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¢ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT
Tothe Members,

The Boord of Birectors s delighted to presen| the ddth Annual Report on the business and operations of the company Narmada Gelalines
Lrmited Cfhe Company ) along with |he stordatons and consalidoled linancial stotarmants for the linanciol vear ended 3 s March, 20256,

Financial Highlights (7 lakhs)
Consolidated Operations Standalone Operations
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
I, Revenue Frorm Oparofions 18852.07 M.A, TRARZ2.07 1817954
Il Oiher Income 166,25 LA 166,25 141.09
i, Total Incormne 19067.32 A, 12067 .32 18340.65
VY, Total Experses 14778.35 M., 16778.35 1628283
W,  Profit Betora axceptional items ard tox (0- 227855 LA 22TBS8 2057 .81
VI, Shose of Profit of an Associate
(Rafar note-d to the consclidated finonciod Stafamanis) B2.00 ML A 0.0 000
Wi, Profit Befare Tax O+ 236096 MLA, 22TH.SE 2057.81
Will. Tox Expenses HE801 M, S68.01 524.83
. Profit After Taxation OV 1602 94 MLA, 172094 1532.98
X Other Comprebiarsive Income-ramaasurameants
af net defined benefit plans (B5:19) LA 66, 19}
®l,  MNet Profit for the yedar (X-X) 173677 A, 1654.75 1506.64
Operating Performance

[uring fhe financial vear 2024-25. the revenus from operations increased by 4.9% from T 181,79 crores In the pravious vear, to 1 188.92
crores. Prolil after tax for theyad wias |72 crorssws, 115,33 croras in Ihe prévious veaor,

Eamings before interast. toxes and depreciation and amortisation (EBITEA) stood ot T 26.23 croras (previous yacor T 22.87 croras), higher
thon the previous year by 14,69% and Earnings per share stood-at ¥ 28,45 as compared to $25,34 In 2023-24,

The Consolidated results includs proportionate sharg of profit of Indio Galating and Chamicals Limited (1GCL), which has become an
assecicte of the company with effect from 05th December, 2024, inview of comibined holding of the eguity shores by the cormpany, and its
promatens pusuant to applicobls provision of Componies Act, 2013 ond meloted accounting standards Consequently, consalidoted
finorcial performancs for the full yaar 5 not comparable with the previous year, as the share acquisition occurned In Decemiber 2024, A
statemsnt containing the safisnt featurss of the financial statements of the Company's ossociate campany in Farm Mo, ACC-1 i provided
inthe Annexue- of this repart.

Dividends

The Board is plecsad to recommend a dividend of 210000 (Le. & of 1W00%) per Equity Share of Rs: 10 each of the company (previous vear
$10.00 per Eguity Shore Le. 100%) for the financlal yvear ended 313t March, 20245, The total outfiow on occount of the proposed dividend will
b &04,95 lokhs (previous yoeor $604.94 lakhs).

The said dividand on equily sharas s subject fo he approval of the Shareholdens af 1he aniuing Annudl General Mesting CAGMD
scheduled to be held on 2dnd Septemiaer, 2025,

Record Date
The Record date fiked for determining the enfilement of Members for payrment of Dividend is Monday, 15th Septemiber, 2025,

According 1o the Finance Act, 2020, dividend Income will be taxobia in the hands of tha Mamibes w.et, Apddl 1, 2020, and the Company 5
required 1o deduct tax atsource fram the dividend pald 1o the Mambers of prescribed rates as per the Incarme Tax Act, 1941

Transfer to Reserves
As permitted undsar the Act, the Board does not propose to fransfer any amount fo General Ressres, but hos decided to efain the entire
amort of profit tar the inoncial year 2024-28 0 the profitond loss occount

Share Capital

Thiz Pald-up Equity Share Capital of the Company gs on 313t March 2025 was RBs, 604.946 lacs comprising 80,49 587 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
aach, Dunng the year under review, your company has netthar issued any shares with diffarential voting rights nor grarted any stock
options or sweat equity shanes. The Company has pold listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 io the Bombay Stock Exchange Lid,, whera
ks equity shares are listed.

Quality initiatives

Thes Company is commitfed fo the highest levels of guality for its products and custorer services, During the financial veor 202426, the
Caompany retained itg 150 cedificalion for Quality Managemeant (150 9001:2015), EDQM Cerificatlon from Buropaan Directorate for the
Sludlity of Medicines and Healthcare, DNV Monagement Systern Certification for Food Safety Monagement System Standard (150
FROC0 20053, KOSHER Cartification and Holal Assurarce System Cartification.

Deposits from public
Durng the year under review, the Company hos not occepted any depasits from public os defined under Chopter Vol the Companleas
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Act, 2013, Noamount onaccount of principal orinterest on deposits from public wos cutstanding os on the date of he balonce sheat,

Particulars of Loans, Guaranfees and Investments
The Comnpany hos made an investrment by acguirng 14, 14% stake |,e, 10,03 000 aqulty shoras of M/s indic Selatine & Chermicals Limited,
with theunanimaousaporoval of the Board of Directors, utilizing the surplus funds of the Company gated 05th Decernber, 2024,

The Detais of Loars, Guarantess and Investments cavared under the provigions of Section 184 of the Companies Act, 20013 are also
disclosed in the notes to the Fironciol Stotements,

Corporote Social Responsibility (CSR)

I cormpliance with Sectlon 135 of the Act, the Company has undertakean CER activitlies and programs, excluding octivities undertaken in
pursugnce of its normal course of business. Under Section 135 of the Act, the Compony waos required fo spend $34.446 lokhs (2%) of the
average qualifying net profits of the last three financlal years on C5R activities In financial year 2024-25. Durlng the year under revigw, the
Company has spent a fotal of $34.50 lakhs. Accordingty, the Company has fulfiled its C5R spending obligation ior the financial year2024-
25,

I Annul Repon an SR conlaining 1he composiiion of Ihe CER Commilles, salient eatures of he T3 Policy, delails of activilies and
aiter infornation ay required under Companles (Cormporate Sodial Respansibiity Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annesurs - allachad o
this Repart. Since the averags CSR obligaton for the preceding three financial yeans L.e, fmanciol yearn, 202122, 3022-23 and 2023-24 was
less than T10 crores, the mpoct assessmant report was not applicatle for the year 2024-25. The CHR Policy may be aocessaed on the
Company's website atthe link: https:fwww.nammodogelatines.com,

Risk Management

The: Risk Manogement Committes has been enimusted with The responsioiity to assist the Boord in (a) opproving the Company’'s Risk
Manogemeant Frarmework and {&) overseeing sirategic. operational, financial, liguidity . security, reguiatony, legal. erwironmeantal. human
resowrce, and other risks that ove been identified and assessed to ensure fhat here is a sound Risk Management Podicy in ploce to address
such concems/risks,

The Audil Commiltee hos exercised additonal oversight in the area of linancial risks and controks, Mojor isks identified Dy 1he business and
functions dre systermnatlcally addressed through miligating actions. The detalls of the Risk Maragement Commities, its terms of refeencs,
by BaLizinyess rigks Idantflied and mitigation plansare sat out infha Corporata Gavernancs Repor,

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Thie Company has a Vigl mechanizm / Whistle-blowsr Palicy In ploce to encourage ond tocilitote employess to report concerns about
ursathical behavior, octugdl/ suspected frauds and viclation of Company’s Code of Conduct or Efhics. The policy provides for adeguata
sofeguords ogainst victimisation of persons who ovail the some ond providas for direct occess to the chainpeson of the Audit Committes.
The Audit Committes of the Company oversees fhe implementation of the Whistlie-Biower Policy, no personnet hod been denied acoess to
the Chairman of the Audit Committes,

The Committes offirms that ore complaint has been received under the Whiste-Blowar Policy/ Vigil Mechanism, which has been rescived
during the yaor undar renview,

Information on Whistie-Blawer Policy s availaile on the webslte of the Company at hifgs:/www narmadogelafings.com and in the
Corporate Govemnancs Repon,

Reporting of Frauds
There ware nainstances of fraud of suspactad frouds reported during the yaor under review which required the Statuteny Auditars ta report
for the Audit Committes ond f or Board under Ssction T43012) of the Act and the rulss mode thereundesr.

Subsidiories, Joint Ventures and Associale Companies
OnMarch 31, 2025, the comipany hos no subsidiaras or joint venture companles within the mearing of Sectlon 2(&) of the Companies Act,
013 At

[Cunnig the yeor under review, Narmado Sedatine: Umited acquired a 14.14% equily shake in India Selatine and Chamicals Limited (500,
While this direct holding is below the threshold prescribed under Sectian 208) of the Act for classibing on entity as an associote company,
IS consdered an assaciate of the Company, as Narmaoda Gelatings Limited, along with its promatarns, colledtively halds maore thean 2005
of the equily share capilal of ISCLAnd theraby exencises significantinfluence.

MNomination and Remuneration Policy

The policy of fne Compaony s to hove an apprepricte number of exacutive and indepaendent directors on the board, The policy of the
Company ondirecton’ appainimeant and remunseaation, efc. asrequired under Section 178 of fhe Cormpanies Act, 2013, isavailable on the
website (www.narmadagelatines.coml and in the Corporate Governance Repart. The remunearation paid to directorns & as per the ferms
loict dowen I the Momination & Remunaration Pollcy of the Company.®

The Compony has o Nomination and Remunsration Commiftes which makes recommeandation 1o the Board with regard to the
appantment of new Dirsctons and Key Mandgenial Persannal, This policy on nomination and remuneation of Directors, Key Mandgsrial
Pemmannel and Senior Manogemeant has been formulated in terms of the provisions of fhe Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulofions
cisarmended from time o tims,

The main cbjectives ofthe policy are:

. To lay dovwn criterio and terms and conditionswith regand fo  Identifying persons who are qualified fo become Directors (Executive
and Mor-Exacutive) and persars whio moy be appointed in senicrmonagement ond key managerial positions:

N To determine remunesation bosed on the Compony's sze and financial pesition and frends and proctices on remunerafion
prevalling Inpeer compankes and in fhe Industry,
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. Toeary out evoluation of the performaonce of Directors, as well as key manogarial and senicr management parsonnel.
To provide them rewards linked directly fo thelr effort, performance. dedication and ochievement relating fo the Company’'s
operations.

N To retain. motivate and promote talent and 1o ensure kong ferm sustainabiity of folented manogerial persons and o cregte
compefitive advantags.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnal

Thie Board of the Company 8 comprsed of eminant pesons with proven competence and integrity, Basides the axperence, strang
fincnciol actmen, strategle astuterass, ond leadenship qualities, fhay have a significont degrees of commitrmeant fowards the Company
ord devole odeguate time to the meetings and prapanation,

Re-appointment of Directors retiring by rotation

Im lerrmis of the provisions of The Compardes Acl, 2012, 05, 5 Annarmalol (DIN: 00001 381) Nor-Execulive (Nor-indapendant) Director of the
Campany, refires af the ansuing AGM and beaing eigible, seeks reappaintmeant, As i, & annamalal bos ottained the age of 78 (Geventy-
aight) yaars o spacial rasclution In occordonce with Regulation 1701A) of the Listing Regulations seeking the re-appointment of M, 5
Annarmoic iomspart af Ihe Nalics convening the ensuing Annual Genaral Meesling schadulad o be hald on Zénd Saptamber, 2025

In the opinion of the Board, all the direciors, o5 well o5 the directors re-appointeds during the yaar possess 1he reguisite gualfications.
axpenance and expedise and hold high standords of integrity.

Interms of requirement of Usting Regulations. the Board hos identified core skillz, expertize ond competencias of the Directors In the context
ofthe Company's businesses for effective funchicning. which are defailed in the Coporote Governance Report.

aftention of Shareholders s invited to the relevant itams of thie Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Notes inerato. Brief resurme of
the Cirectors proposed to be recppolnted, nature of thel expertise In gpeciiic functional areas and names of companias in which they hold
diractorship and mambarship) chalmanshlp of commititaas of the Boord, as stipuloted under Reguiction 36 of tha Listing Regulations dre
givan inthe sactionon Carporate Governance nthis Annual Report.

Pecuniary relotionship or fransactions with the Company

[Curng the yaor undar review, the non-exscufive directon of the Company had no pecunian reliatiorship or framsactions with the
Campany, olher than sitting fees and reimbussment of expenses incumed by hem (or the purpose of altanding mestings of the
Booara/Commillea of the Compony,

Declaration from direclors

The Compary has recelved necessany declarations under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, from the Independent Directors  stating fhat they meet the prescribed criterdo for independence. All Indepandeant
Directors howva affrmed complioncs fo the code of conduct for Independent Directorns as prescribed inSchedule 1Y fo the Companies Act,
2013,

The Company has aso received from tham decloration to complionce of Rule 6013 & 2) of the Companigs (Appaintmeant ond
clualiications of Directors: Rules, 2014, regarding online registration with the ‘indian Institute of Corporate Affains™, for Inciusion)’ renswal of
thelr nomesin the data bank of Independeant Directors,

With regard to proficiency of the Independent Directon, ascertained from the anling proficiency seli-assessment fest conducted by the
institute, os notified under Sub-Section (1) of Ssction 180of the Act, the Board of Directons hoas taken on record the declarations submitted
by Independant Dirsctors that they are sxempt from appeaning In the test, except M, Manimegoial Thongamaonl who hod cleared the
anline proficiency seil-ossessmeant test,

Mone of the Qirectons of the Company are related inter-se except M. 5 Annamalgi and b § Maheswaran, In ferms of Section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Inciuding Rules theraunder. The Commpany has noflssued any converible iInstruments henca, disclosure infhisrespact
s not apeficable.

Mane of he Directors of the Company are disgqualified for baing appointed as directars as spechied under Saction 144(2) of the Act and
Rulesthere undear.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursucnt fo the pronsions of Sechon 203 of the Compones Acl 2013, Mr Ashok K Kopur Monaging Directos, W Amun Joiswal, Chae(
Financicl Otficer and Ms. Marnima Patkarn, Company Sscretary are the Key Managernial Pesonnsl of the Company os on 3 st March, 2025,
s, Meanu Sharma, Company Sscratary have resigned from the offics with effact from 28th June, 2024, the Board places an recond [ts
appreciation for her invaluatls confitution fo the Company durlng be fenure, M. Mahimo Pafkar (ACS Mo, 72544) hos been apponted
as the Company Secietary and Compliance Officer of the Company wilh effec! from 070 Avgusl, 2024, Mr Mahesh Verma, Chisl
Firvancial Olficer, has resigred rom the olfice with effec! from 071 Jonuary, 2025, The Boord ploces on récord |15 apprecialion for his
[Myvaluable contritution to tha company durng bls tenure, M, Arun Jalswal has Bean appolnted s the Chisf Firancial Officer of the
coampany with effect from 15th March, 2025

Board Evalucfion

Thie Momination & Remuneration Committes ond the Board have foid down the manner in which a formol annual evaluotion of the
performancea of the Board, Commitfess, Chairman and individual directors has 1o be made. The Boord of Directorns has camed out on
annual evaluation of its own performance, Boord commiftess, and Individual directos pukuant to the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing
Regulations and the Guldance Mote on Boord Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of india.

The Boord evaluatad its own performonce, Board Committess as well as the Individual directar's pedomance after ssaking inputs from all
the directons/mermbers and aled on the basls of oriterda such as the Boord compogitlon and structure. effectiveness of board processes,
Irformation and functioning. ete.
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The independent disectars ot their separate mesting reviewed the performonce of non-independsnt direchors, the Boord os a whole and
Chalrman of the Company,

The Boord and the Momirdlion and Remunaration Commitfes reviewesd the perfomionce of individudl dirgcton on ine bosis of criterio
such as the contriibution of the indvidual director to the Boord and Committes meetings ke preporsdness on the ssues to be discussed,
mieaningful ond constructive contributionand  Inputs Inmestings. etc.

Parformance evaluation of independent directors wos done by the entine Boord, excluging the independent drector bemng evoluated
The mannerin which fhe evaluchion wos carmed out 5 coveredin fhe Corporate Sovemance Repor,

Board and Committee Meetings

Thie Boord meats ot regutar Intervals o discuss and declde on company's business policles and strataghes. In coze of special and wgent
bginess, thie Board/Committae’s approvalls taken by passing resolutions theough clireulation, of by caling Board/Commitfes meastings ot
ashorfer notlca, s parmitifed oy low,

The Compoany hos complied with Sscretarial Stondards Esusd by the institute of Company Secretaries of Indio on Boord meestings ond
Annual Seneral Mestings, The ogenda for the Board and Committes mestings inciudes detailed nofas on the items to be discussad to
enaole the Directors to foke an informed decision,

Cruring the fincncial year unces seview, 5o Board Meetings and fow Audit Committes Meestings were convenad and held, the details of
which are givenin the Corporata Govermanaoes Report, Tha infervening gap betwaen two Meatings was within the perlod prescribad under
fhe Companlas Act, 2013,

& detalled note on the composition of the Board and its committess s provided in the Corporate Govemances Report,

Meeafing of Independent Direchors

Az par provisions of Schedule IV to the Companles Act, 2013, the Independent Cirectons are reguired fo hold of feast cne meeting Ina
fincnchol year, without the atandance of Non-independent Director: and members of managermeant. During the financial year 2024-25,
fheindependent érectors mat on 28% Februory, 2028,

Directors' Responsibillty Stafemen!

Pugsuicint to the requirement of Saction 134051 of the Act, the Baard of Diractons, to tha bast of Its Enowladge and abllify, confim that:

d.  inthe preparaticn of the armual inonclal statemnants forfha yvear ended March 31, 2025, the appllcabie occounting standards nave
beenfollowed olong with properexplonationreiating o matedial departures, If any;

b, oppropriate accounting policies hove been selected and opplied consistentty and judgements and estimotes mode are
reasonabls and prudent so as fo give o trus and fair view of the state of affals of fhe Company as of Morch 31, 2025 and of the profit
afthe Company forthe yearendad  anthatdote;

€. proporond sufficlent core hos been taken for tha maintenance of adocgquaote aocounting records in gccordance with tha provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the ossets of the Company and for praventing and detecting fraud and offer
irreciulartiss:

d.  theannudi finoncial stotements haove been prepaned on a going concern basis,

& proparintermal fimanciol conlrol hove baen followsd and that such finoneial cantrols are adequate and are opemating effectaly;

and

f propar systems to ensure compionce with the provislons of all appicoble lows are In ploce and were adequate and operating
affactivaly,

Related Party Transactions

The transactions with related parties entered Into durng the financial vear were an arm's length basls and wae In the andinary coursie of
buginass, Thara are no maleially significant related parly transactions made by the Carmpany with Promaterns, Directon, Key Manoganal
Parsonnal or ofber designated pasons which maoy have apotentiol canflic | with The mnterest of Ihe Company ot lange.

Particulars of comtracts or armangements with related partias referred toin Section 18801) of the Companbes Act. 2013 0 Form o ACC-2 are sat
cutin the Motes to Financial Statermeants forming part of the Annual Report,

Stotutory Auditors

Tre Statutony Auditons M/s Lodha & Co, LLP.Chorterad Accountants, Firmn Begistration Mot 301051 E. were appainted by the memibers of the
Carmpany Indlst Annugl Genaral Meeting, 1o hold office from the conciusion of 615t Annugl General meaeating fora term of consecutive flve
e 1l conclusion of 68t Annual General Meeating to ba held inthe year 2027 Interms of the aoplicabbe provisions of Sechion 13901 ) of tha
Act raad with the Componies (Audit ond Auditors) Rikes, 2014,

Intermns of the Mofification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs doted 7th Moy, 2018, the proviso requinng rafification of fhe Auditors
oppointment by the shareholders of each AGM has been omitfed. Accordingly, the ratification of appointment of Statutcny Auditors
would not be recuired af the ensuing AGM and M5 Lodha & Co. LLP, Charfered Accountants, Firm Registration No: 3010571E wowd
coavtinue foact as the Stoltufory Auditors of the Company for five yaars upto the conclusion of the 48t AGM to be held in 2027

Report of Statulory Auditors

Thie Stabufory Audifors, M/s Lodha and Company LLP. Mumbal, Chortered Accountants, have submitted fhelr Repard on the Finarcial
Statemeants of tha Company for the fimanckal yvaor 2024-25, which forms part of this Apnucl Report. Tha Notes on Fnonclal Statements
refarsd fo in tha Auditars’ Report for the year 2024-25 are seif-axplanatory, There are no ghzardaiions, gualifications, fesenvations or
adversaramarks inthe Auditor's Report that call far any axplanction,
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Cost records and cost audit

hMainterance of cost records and requirement of cost audll as prescribed undsr the provisions of Sactlan 14801) of the Companias Act,
2013 are not opplicakle for the products monufactured by the Company,

Secretarial Auditor and their report

Cr. Asirn Kumnar Chottopadhvay, Company Secretary, was appointed oz Secretanal Auditor of your Comipany far the financial vear 2024-25
pursuantto Sactlon 204 of the Cormpanles Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appolniment and Rernuneration of Manogerial Personnel) Rules.
2014,

Ihe Secretaral Audit Repor s annexed tothis Report as Annesure- |,

Theta.are no qualiications. Sosendations or adverse remarnks of the Sacretanal Auditors In the Reoost lssued by them for tha financial year
2024-25 which call forany explanation from the Boord of Drectors,

Transler of Unpaid and Unclalmed amounts to IEPF

Pursuant fo the applicabie provisions of the Act, read with the IEFF Authorty (Accounting. Audit, Transter and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the
Ruies’) as amended, all unpaid or unclaimed dividends which wete mauired (o be ransfarrad by tha Company 1o the [EPF wers fransferes
to [EPF Authority,

The Company hos also fransfered shares In respect of which dividend amolnt remained unpaid) unclaimed for o consecutive period of
sEwen yaars or mora folEPF Authority withdn stipulated fime,

Pursuant to the provisions of Sechicn 124 of the Componies Act, 2013, during the linanciol yedr, the declored dividends which remoinsd
urspoidd or unclaiméad for o perod ot 7 yaors hove bean transterad by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (EPF
established by the Cantral Government, s defalled inthe Corporate Govarmoncs Repot,

The defols-of unpald J unclaimed dividernd and fhe shores fransterred o |EPF Awuthority are avaiaoble on the website of the company at
hiftes: |/ ferwew narmocagelatines, com .,

Significant and Material Order possed by the Regulators
Thete are no ggniticant ond rmatenal orders passed by the Regulatons or Courts or Trbumols imgactng the going concam sfatus and he
Company's operafians in future,

Corporate Govemance Repor

The Report on Corporate Governances as stipulated under the SEBI (Lsting Cbligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015
forms part of the Annual Report, The Managing Director's decloration regarding complionce with the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics for Directoss and Manogement Personnel forms part of the Coporate Govemnonce Report, Asrequired by fhe Listing
Reguiations the certificate on Comporate Govermnance for the year endead 315t March, 2025 ssued by O Asim Kumar Chottopadhyay,
Campany Sscratary inProctice, s annexed ta this Report,

Maonogement Discussion and Analysis

Pursuont fo Regulation 34 of thwe SEBI (Listing Obllgofions and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulottons, 2015, defolled review of
cparation, pecormance and futuse outkook of the Compony is presentad under Maonogement Discusson and Anolyvss Reporl inaseparate
section and forms part of the Annual Report,

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption ond Foreign Exchange Earnings and Culgo

The particularns rssating fo ensrgy corsenvation, rechnology absomption, forsign exchanpe eamings and outgo, as reguired 1o be disciosed
urder Section 1340330m) of the Companies Act, 2013 reod with Rule B(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rukes, 2014 s annexed to this Report
iE Anmexire - I

Annual Return
Az provided under Section 2050 & 1340300a) of the Act, the Annual Return for FY 2023-24 5 ovalablz on he website of the Company at
httes:/ fwrwrw narmadagelatines. com,

Parficulars of Employees

Mone of the employees of the Company 6 in recapt of remuneration exceeding the it presciized undes Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 52} and 53} of The Companies (Appointfrment and Remuneration of Managerlal Personnely Rulas,
2314,

[Zisclosures pertaining fo remuneration and other detaills in respect of directors and employess of the Compary as réauired undsr Section
1970120 af the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ruls 501) of The Companias (Appainimeant and Remuneration of Managsenial Personas)
Rudes, 201405 annexad to fhis Report as Annaxung - IV,

Disclosure under the Sexual Horassment of Women ot Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition ond Redressal) Act, 2013
All the employees in the Company are considered egual, There is no discrimination between individuals at any point on the basis of race.
corour gender, religion, ofigin, sexual onentation or age. Every indvidual s expected to fraat his/her colleagues with respect ang dignity.

The Company has in ploce o policy for prevention of ssxugl hargsment al workploce, This poliey of the Company & in ing with the
requirements of the Sexual Horassment of Womean at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redrassal) Act, 2013, Al employess
(parmanent, contractual, tempomry and fralness) are coverad under his pollcy, An internal Complalnts Committes |s in place to radiess
tre complainis recseivad regording sexucd horassment, The fallewdng is |he summory of the Complaints received ond disposed of during fhe
fincncial yeor ended 315! March, 2025

ay Mo ofcomplaints received during the year: O
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By MNaof Complaints disposed of-0
c}  NeofComplaints pending. 0

Disclosure under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
Pussuant to the reguirements under Ruls 80500 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules. 2014, the Company hos complisd with the provisions
af the Motermity Benafit Act, 1961 inaccordances with iisinfemal palicy, durng the year undar review.

Material changes and commitments offecting the financial position of the Company
There have been no motenol chonges ond commitments affecting the finaonciol pesition of the Company which have occured behwvean
fhe end of tha financial vear of the Company towhichihe finoncial statemenis relate ond the dofe of thisreport.

Appraciation

The Dirgctons wish ta Convey their desp appraciation foall the amployess, customens, vandor, nveston, and consultamts! advisars of the
Cormpany for thal sincera ard dedicated senvices os wetl as thelrcollective contribution to the Company's parformancs.

The Directors also thank the Cantral ond the Stote Govemmaents, statutory authonties, bankers, ond business associates and all the
stokehoiders for their continued intarast ond valuad suppot.

For and on beholl of the Board

5. Annamalal Ashok K. Kapur
Chalrman Managing Cirectar

Mo Jotbalgur
[rate ;137 August, 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

13 Economy Overview
Ag of the finoncial year 2024-25, thae global gelatine market hos demonstnated growth, driven by increasing demaond across vonous
sactors such os food and bevaroges. pharmoceuticals, Nutraceuticals, and cosmetics. Indio, now recognized os the fifth-largest
aconomy In the word, lsalso considared the fastast-growing major economy giobally

1. Market Size and Growth:
The global gelatine morket was valued ot USE 8.58 billion in 2024 and s prajected to reoch USD 934 bilion In 2025, reflecting o
compound onnualgrowthrare (CAGR) of 8 87% during this partod,

Domestic Market:

The domestic demand for Galatineg 5 showing growth trand as India s strengthaning its identity o3 o pharma and Nutroceuticals
manutocturing hub. Coltogen also shows great promise in domestic market as the nutroceutical market in Indic Is showing strong
growtty, The India’s Gelatine market is projected to register o CARS of 4% to 5% annually over the nest few yaars,

2. Increcsing Consumer Awareness on Health ond Weliness
Consumers are becoming more aware of fhe heaolth benefils of gelatin usage. Gelatin, belng o Ach source of collogen, s ecognized
for boosting Joint heatth skin elosticily, and halrstrength. driving ifs demand in fhe Nutraceutical ond pharmaceuical sactars.

Selatin is o natural product which s mods of hyoolylic degradation of protein rom coliogen and s disinciive stnechure of aming
acicks v it sevaral benafits, IHsin the form of tabifets, granuies o powdens and hos bigh protein content

3.  Increasing application of Gelatine-

Selatine finds widespreod use in vanous seclons

. Food and Baverage: Gelating s cansiderad a key Ingredient In food and bevarages such as confectionary (gummy candees,
rmarshrmalicws, pelllies), dalny products (vogurt, cream cheese, Ica cream), desserts and other fucticnal food duea to iz gelling.
Thickening, and stabilzng properties.

. Prhormaceuticals; gelafin s wsed to manufacture hard and soft copsules, for coating toblets, and In syrups, It also has many
biomedical applications, It s used in the manufacturing of scaffolds for headling wounds. They effectively mask unpleasant
tastes ond cdors, making them easiar fo swallow.

Coametics It 5 ussdin cosmeatics and pesonal cors products for its lim-forming and gs a binding agent in makeup products.
Photogrophy: Although digital ghotogrophy has langely replaced fitm, gelafine remains crfical in archival photogrophic
rnoteral, and fine art photograpiy.

. Mutrocauticols ond distary Supplements: Used in protein-rich suppiements forjoint ond bone bealth.

Opportunities and Threats, Outlook, Risks and Concems

The country’s dugs and phamaceuticals exports increosed 8.2 per cent year-on-yaar in 2024-25, india’s phormaceutical indusiry is the
third largest by volurme and the 148 largest by value In the world, producing mone than $0.000 generic drugs ocross 60 theropeutic
categorntes,

High demand for vegan products posing afhreat fo traditional gaelatine

The flse of planf-based gelatin substiutas, lueled by rsing demand for vegetanan and vegan goods, 15 one of the primary market barmiers,
Traditiaral gelatin mode from anlmal sources i@ In danger dus ta fhis frend, oz consumers ook for alfernatives thot take dustainablity ang
ethicsinto cccount. Furthemnors, cultural and religicus prohibitions are impading moarket growth,

Due fo the reduction in globo! Gelatin price, the price of Gelbone giobolly reduced significanthy during the second half of the year This
apportunity is baing utilized foimpont/ purchose Gelbone, which will heip import Gelbone of compeatitive price.

Segment-wise or product-wise perflormance
The Company is engaged inonly ona segment, nomaly, manufoctura and sale of getatine ond ralated producis ke osseln and di-calcium
phosphote (OCF) ond as such thaera are no reportabke segments as per ind AS-108 "Operating Segrments.”

Internal financial cenhrols ond s adequacy

The Company s Infernal Financial Control fromeawaork 5 commensurate with the size and the nafure of s oparations. Thase have been
designad o providea reasonable assuranca about recording and providing raliabls finoncial and cperatonal infarmction, camphying with
applicatle statutas, safeguarding assers from unauthonzed use, axacuting fransactions with propesr authorzation ond ensuing
compiones of Coporois Folicies,

The Company hasiold down procedures aond policles fo guide the operations of the business. The Company hos o wel-defined delegation
of power with authority limits fo approve revenus as well os expendifure. Funclioral heads are responsibde to ensure complionce with the
policies and procedures laid down by the board of direcions.

The Compory has appainied M/s BB, Sngh & Assaciates, Charterad Accouniants to aversasa and carmy oul infermal audll of its activiliss,
The audit is based an an intemal oudit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutony auditons and approved by the
anldlit committas, [he efficacy of the Intarndl checks and control systems ars valldated by Internal auditons, [he audit s bassd anafocusad
arc risk boassdinlemal audil plan, which s reviswsd ond opproved soch veor by the Audil Commiltss of the Company.

The Audit Committes reviews repors submitted by Intemal awdiics. Suggestions to improve any process ane considered by the
monagement ond the Audit Commitfesa (ollows up on comective actions faken by the mancgemeant. The Audit Committea aiso meats the
Company’s statutory auditons to asceartain, inter alia, thair views on tha adeqguacy of internal contral systerms and keeps the Board of
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Directorsinformed of its major ohsendations perodically.

BASs. Lodha & Co LLP, e Statutony Auditors of the Company auditad the financlal siatemants Inciuded in this Annugl Report arsd have
Esued o report an the internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act, 20131

Bosed on s evaluation (os provided under Saction 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 18 of SEBI Listing Regutations). the Audit
Committes has concluded that as of 3 15t March 2025, the Internal Financial Confrols were odequate and oparafing effectivaly.

Hurman Resources / Industrial Relations

Tha Company’'s numan resources agenda contirues o remain focused on the development of its employees. bullding capablities in the
organzation and prograssive employes relafions policies. The Company addressed troining and developrment needs of its workforce in
technical ond bahavioural areas by degloving infernal and axtomal faculty.

Hurman capital s af the heort of cur company s succsss, It can be oftrbuted throwgh our diversified and competent workforce, copable
feadeship and empowesring culturs and efficient operational excellence,

We alm 1o provide o safe, dynamic, and trustworthy envirenment for all our employeess henceforth, Our people palicies are designed 1o
cragte afutura ready workforce, while empowenng them and creating an entching ampioyes expenance.

Cur efforts wers asoin confunction with varous ospects ke Emploves haealth and safety, Training and skill development,

We do not maoke employee decisions or discriminate against individuols based on pesonal chamoctaristics ke race. color, age. gendar,
reBgion, natlonality, marntol status, sexunl ofentation, atc. We base our employment relationship on the princlple of equol opportunity and
falr freatment and sfiive to create an enviranment that fosters the same. There weare no Inclaents of discimination in fiscal 2024-25,

We always led emphasis on employes well-beling may it be mentally, physically, emotionally orsocially

Inctustricl ralations remained cordial throughout the year, Your Directos ploce on ecord thalr sincere appreciation of the significant
confributions mode and the continued support extended by all ermployees ot all levels to the Company s oparations durlng the year.

Financial and operational performance
Revenues from operations stood of T 188,92 crares higher than the previous yaaor by 3.9%. 5ales volumes of gelatine and DCP ncrecassd by 2%
and | respectively, Averages saling prcs of gelatine decraased by 0L5% but DOF Incrensad by (L.4% as compared to last year,

The coniribution of Gelatine sales to the fumover was 74.27%, whereas that of the: DCP sales tumover was 25.45% during the year under
review,

Matericl consurmed in fiscal FI24-2hincreased by 5%, which i dus to Higher cost of Row matedial, powsr ond fus cost reduce by 15% due
fo decremss in the codl prcss and consurnption, Employes cast stood ot 8.560% (8.2 1% pravious yvear) of revenus from agsmations, Othse
axpanses were 1 2% of the revenue from operotions during the year under review.

Profit before exceptional fems and foxes stood of T22.7% croras, higher than previous year, Growth led Dy better viekd and lower
consumption of powsr and fusal,

Profit affer foat T 17,21 crores, which is higher than the previous finoncial vear,

Earnings bafors interest, toxas ond depreciation and amartlsation (EBITDA ) stood af T 26723 croras, highar than the pravious yeorby 14.68%.
Diluted Eamings parshare stood ot T 28,45 ascompared to 725,34 In 2023-24,

The financial highlights for the vear 2024-25 are as follows: (7 lakhs)

2024-25 2023-24 Varance %
Ravenie from Operoficns 1aav2.07 1817%.54 390
Profit befone tax 227896 2057.81 10,74
Profit after faxation 1720.94 1532.578 12.24
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Significant changes in key financial ratios

In aocordonce with ihe Listing Regulations, the Company s requited fo ghve detalls of significant changes in 1he key financial rafios, Duing
the e, thee significant changes in financial ratics of the Company, which are more/less thon 258% a8 compared 1o the pravious year are
sUrmrraried below:

S5r.No.  Parficulors 2024-25 2023-24 Varignee (%) Rermarks
[ Current Ratio {In fimas) 255 405 -A5%
z Dabt-Equity Ratio (n times) g.11 0.00% 100%:
3 Dbt Ssrvice Coverage Rotlo (n fimes) 882 0.00% 100%
4 Retum on Equity Ratio &) 15.07% 15.12% 0.30%
] Imventary Tuinovsr (no. of doyss 74 it 5.48%
t Dabtors Turmicver (o, of doys) A5 42 72714%
¥ Payobles Tumover (no. of doys) a0 45 11.55%
8 NetCopital Tumaover in fimes) 395 248 59.25%  Company has avalled
Credit Foclitias e CC
Limits & Term Loan (Mo

such fociifies were
ovaiied during ihe

FY 23-24)
Q Met Profit Bosgin (%) S.03% B.34% B.04%
10 Retum on Capital Emploved (%) 14.08% 15.12% &.38%
.. 11 Marke! Price per equily shore (Th 332,50 333.35 0.13%
i2 Earnings per .Shﬂl'ﬂ £+ . 28.45 25.34 12.27%

s on 315t March, 2024 and 315t March, 2025

Caulionary Statement

Certaln staterments mads in the Managsment Discussion and Analysis Report relating to the Company's abisctives, profactions, outlook,
sxpactations. estimatas and athers may constitute Tonyard-lacking statements' within the meaning of applicabile laws and regulations.
Actual resutts may differ fiom such expectations whether sxpressed or implisd. Several factors could make significant difference fo the
Company’s operations, Thase include mw moterniol availotidity, Import ond sxports of row matedrdal and finished goods, economic
conditions, affecting demand and suppty, governmeant reguiations, changes in taxation, notural calomitiss, onwhich the Company doss
not have any direct contral.
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Annexure - | o the Board's Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Briel culfine on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company is focused on activifies contibuting fo the sociol ond economic development of the communities inwhich it cperates and in
doing sa. builld o better, sustainable way of lIfe for the weaker sections of the society ond rase the humon development index In the
surmounding areqs.

Dirlng the yeor under revien, the Company s confrbutions o the community wers in the areas of protaction of environment. promation of
aducalion, ivelihaod, promaling haallh cars including praventive heallh core. providing wotas, soniation and rural development arid
cantributions ha other social development organisations. The Comparny also support and parlneed with severl NGOs in community
dervalopment and health inltiatives, Some of the social activitbies cartlad out by the Campany during the year weara as undsar;

Environment
The Company hos dore plontotion in 22 acres approx. of lond ot three spots ediocent to river Narmodo at Bheraghat, Jobolpur and also
mntaining the some since lost seven years.

Tha Company canied outplantation of trees, malntenance of grean belts and gardans,

The Company and s emplovees regulary promote and participoie in projects for cleaniness of river Narmaoda through cleaning banks,
puthng uo flex, bannars etc.,

Educaticn

Education ramaing ona of tha focus areas of :ocial developrnant and the Company supports academics af all leveis, The Company
provided contribution fo varous schools, trustisocleties engoged in providing asslistoncea ta poar children for fhelr education such as
Vivekanod Pubdic Schaal, Arya Vidya Sabka, Friends of Tribal Soclety, Narmada Ved Vigyon Vidyalkoya, Dreom Foundotion, Sabam walfare
society, Novothanam Welfare, The Company also provides schokarships to poos girs of the locality and nearoy viloges,

Healthcare
Cormpany suppoded to Virat Hospice Brahrorishi Somili for Treotmenl of Cancer Fatients,

Eradication of hunger & Poverty
Tha company hod donated funds (0 ISKON society ond the Indicn Red cross Society for occomplishing thairmizsion offeeding the poor.

Rural Development
Contributlon towards the Anganwadl at Bhadaghat and nearby villages for the uplitimeant of vilagers,

Swachala Abhlyan
The company hos confributed fowards the promotion of Cleanliness-Jal Ganga Sarvadhn Akhlyan,

Brief outline of the Company's C3R policy, including overview of projects or progrommes proposed to be undertaken and areference tothe
weblink o the CSR policy and projects or programmes

The main abjeclive of the CER Policy & to lay down guidelinss (ar the Compary 1o make C5R o key business process for suslainabie
cievalopment for the society. Itaims of supplemeanting the mlaof the Govemment Inenhoncing walfore meaasuras of the sociaty based on
the Immediate and lang ferm social aond environmental consequances of their octivities,

Thae Company shall constantly stive fo ensure strong corporate cuiture which emphasizes on infegrating C5R values with business
objective. It shall alko pursue inflaives refoted to quality manogement, enviecnment presendsation ond social aworenass, In the areas as
detaiied balow:

{1 Pramoting heatth careincluding preventive heaithoors and sanitation and moking avaiabls safe drirking woater,

{y  Promotieg education, including speciol education and empioymant erhoncing vecationol skils especialy among chidren, wamer,
aldary and tha differantty obled and ivelihgod enhoncemeant projacts;

{iiy  Ensuring environmentol susfainability, ecologlcal bolonce, protection of ficra ond founa, animal weltare, ogroforesing, consenyation
of naturad resources ond maintaining of sofl. airand woier;

(v Contribution 1o the Prime Minister's Natlonal Relisf Fund o any other fund sa1 up by the Cantrgl Govarmmment for socio-esonomic
developmant and rsiiel and weilars of the Scheduled Caostes, the Scheduled Tbes, othar backward classas, minotlties and wamsan;

o0 Rural develocpment projects:

(i) Promote ond porticipots in projects for cleanliness of Narmoda iven

(il Promaote education of gid child aond the underpivileged by providing ocademic support, assistance to schools, sponsoenhips for
aradicating iteracy;

ity Empheasis on regular health checks and medical oid/ health core focilities with speciol focus for the mother and child as well osthe old
aged persons of surmcundings and making available of safe dinking water;

{x)  Pramoleand sponsorvatiows sporls activities and games organized by kool gram ponchayal;

(x)  Promote and support locol relligious and cultural prograrmirmes;

(il Otherorens osmay be notified by the Governmant from time fo time;

(i anyactivities orsuojecisspeciiied In Schadule Vil of the Act,
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2, Composition of the C5R Commities:
5l Naome of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meefings of
Mo. Directorship C5R Committee held C5R Committee attended
during the tenure during the tenure
1 MAr, 5 Annamalal Mon-Executivie — Non-independent 1 I
Director (Chairmean)
2 flr, 5, Maheswaran Naor-Executive = Non-indspendant | [Tl
Directol
3 M Ashok K Kapur Wanoging Director 1 T
4 fir, 8. Wijcmadurai Man-treculive - Independsn| Direciar | [

(VC)-allended hrough video confesncing fociily

3.

Wizb-link whare Composkion of CSR commiites, C5R Podicy and CSR projects approved by the boord are disclosed on the website of
the Company

Ihe projects underioken are within the broad framawork of Sehedule VI el The Companies Acl, 2013, Details of fhe CEF policy and
projects or programs undedtaken by the Campany are available onlinks: BltpsSesw narmodagelalines.com.,

Detoils of Irmpoct ossessment of C5R projects camed out in pursuonce of sub-rule (33 of nae B of the Companies (Corporate Social
rasponslity Policy) Rulas, 2014, fappicabla (oltach the repaort). - Not applicable

Drestaails oof 1he armaun! availaiaie for st off in puruanes of sub-nile (3 of ke of the Companies (Corporale Sochal raspondtility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amaount requined forset off for fhe fironcial yean if any.

Sl. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be setoff for the
Mo, preceding financial years (in T} financial year, i any (in )
1 202495 ¥ 0.04 lokhs ¥ 0.04 lakhs

Average nal proft of ihe company o5 persechion 1350(0) 1 T 1/23.29 lakhs

(o) Two percent of averoge net profit of the company os per section 135(5): ¥ 34,46 |okhs

(b3 Surplus ariging out of the CER projects or programmeas o activitias of the praviaws finoncial years: 0.04
(cy Armount required to be ot off for the financlal vear | ¥ 0.0dkokhs

Total SR obligatian for the finoncial yadar (Ja+7l- 7o) | 7.34.44 lokhs

(o) C5R amount spent or unspent for the finonciol year:

Total Amount Amount Unspant {in <)

Spent for the Total Amount iransterred to Unspent Arnount fransferred to any fund specified under

Financial Year (in?)  C5R Account as per seclion 135(4) Schedula Vil as per second proviso fo saction 135(5)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

34,60 lakhs il il it il Ml

(b Detols of CER amount spent against angoing projects for the inoncial year: Mil

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 (1_2;}



# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

{c) Delails of C5R omount spent against other than ongolng projects lor the financial year;

5l Mame of the Project Item fram Locol  Lecation of the project Amount Mode of implementation
Mo. the list of area spant for
activiiesin  (Yes/Na) the project
schadule VI (7 lakhsy Direct Through implementing
ta the Act (Yes/Na)
State District MName CSR
registralion
number

1.  Financiol support by paying fee
for poor students, free education,
walfare & lvellhood of poor children (D Yes M. P Jakalpur 5.51 Yes - -

2. Supporting aclivilies ke ee quality
aducation, capasity bullding of

teachars. enrfching learming (1) s MLP. Jopalpar ded Mo Friends  CESROD0DD1TESE
opportunitias lor childran, slfeclive ol Il
sehool Qovamance Society
d.  Promohing Uteracy () g Gurat Ahmedaobod  0.50 Mo Crearmn (CSRO00D0O7 125
Foundafion
4, Promaoting Ueracy {ii} Yeg fut, F. Joalpur 225 Mo Soham  CSRO00312348
Weilfore
Sociehy
5. Promofing Literacy {i) Yo kAP Jabalpar .50 Mo Vondon  CSRO0DAS17E
Punansas &
Anusandhan
Kendra
& Promoting Lteracy Ly Yexs Jabalpur 020 Mo NaiSoch CSROCO48470
Hamari
Kalpano
Mahila
Mandal
7. Promoting Literacy {1 Mo Pt . Jabalpur .75 Mo Alb of  CIROO003Z73
Sawa
tradication of Hunger & Powvearty {0 Mo i, . Jokalpur 450 Mo ISKON CERIDDOG241
Eradication of Hunger & Povarty N Mo . P Jobalpur 250 Mo Tra CERO0DFOIO
Inclicin
Red Cross
Sociaty
10, Erweonmental sustamaiility, () g . F Jozalpur G.aY Yes

ecatogical balance, protection
of flora and fauna, ogro foresiry-
Tree plandation, protection ond

mairtenonce
1T Promciion of culiural cctivilies {3 Y P, P Jabzalpir 25 s
12 Promothion of sports aclivilies it Yas ML P Jaobalpuar .30 Yes -
13 Promotion of Healthcare activities ] Yeus ht, P Jokalpur .85 s
14 Bwochato Abhivan L} Yes Mt P Jabzalpar 1.00 Yes - -
15 Rural Developrent (6 Yerg M.P Jcakscalr 1.60 e
Tolal 2.9
(e} Arnourt spent I Admirsticiive Dverhecds 1.60 leakihe
(2} Amount spent on iImpoct Asssssment, If apollcabls il
) Total amourt soent for tha Fmoncial Yaor s T 3450 lokhs (Abv+Bo+80-Ba)
{g) Excess omount for set off, if any il
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5L No. Particular Amount (t lakhs)
)] Tweo percent of average net profit of the company as par section 135(5) 3446
{i) Total amound spent for the Financial Yeaor 34.50
{lii} Excess amount spent for the fnancial vear [(0-0 0.04
i Surpius arising out of the CSR projects or programmeas or aclivities of the previous financial years, if any 0.0
) Amount avallable forset off insucceeding financial years  [Ti-0vE) 0.08

g. [{+}] Details of Unspent C5R amount for the precading three finoncial years:

81 Preceding Armount Amount spenl Armount fransferred 1o any fund specified  Amount remalning
Mo.  Finoncial Year  transierred fo in the reporting under Schedule Vil as per section 135(48), to be spent in
Unspent CSR  Financial Year (in ) if any, succeeading
Account under financial
sechion 135 (&) yeors
{inT) (in )
Ml Hil il il il il Ml

(o) Details of C5R amount spent in the financlal year for ongelng projects of the preceding financlal year(s):

=18 ProjectiD Mame of Financial Project Total amount Amount Cumulative Status of
No. the Praject Yearin duration allocated spent onthe amaount fhe project
which the forthe prejectinihe spantatthe Completed/
projact was project(inT) reporing end of Qngoing
commence Financhal Financial
Year {in¥) Year {ind)
il il il T4l il il Mil Ml

10.  Incose of creafion or ocquisition of copital aset, furnish the details relating 1o the aset so created or acguired through C5R spentin
tha fimarcial yvear (asset-wise details)

(o) Date of creation o ecquisition of The capital asset(s) - None
(B Amount of CSRspant for creaiion oracquisition of copital asset | MIL

ey Detalls of the entity or pulblic autharty or beneficlary under whicse norme such capital asat & reglstened, thelr oddress etc,; Nal
Applicatile

(d) Provide details of the copital ossetis) created or acquired {including complete oddress and location of the copital asset) | Mot
Applicable

11 Speciy the reasonds), I the company has fallad tospend two per cenl of he average ret proft s pet Section 13505)  Nat Applicakds

5. Annarmalal Azshok K. Kapur
Chairnan - CER Commithas Managing Director
Fiace ; Jabakour

Diote: 13" August, 2025
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Annexure-Ill fo the Board's Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FORM No. MR-3

FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3 1stMarch, 2025
(Pursuant fo section 204(1) of Companies Act, 2013 ond Regulation 244 (1) of SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 20151

To,

The Membsers,

Narmaoda Gelalines Limited, CARAVS, Room No. 28,

15, Civil Lines. Jabalpur- 462 001

| hove conducted the secratarial oudit of the complicnce of opplicoble statutcry provisions and the adherence 1o good corporaie
practices by Normoda Gelafings Umited, (CIN LA TTIMPI26TPLCONS023) (herginafter caled the company). Secretanial Audit wos
conducted in o manner thot provided me o reassnable bosis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutary compionces and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verfication of the Company's Books, papers, minute books, forms ond returns fled ond ofher recards maintained by the
company and alsa the information provided by the Company, Its officers, agents and authorzed representatives dunng the conduct of
sscratanal audit, | hersby report that in my opinion, the campany has. duing the oudit panod covenng the financial year anded on 315t
MWarch 2025 complied with the statutory provisions lsted hereunder and oo that the Compory hos proper Board-processas and
comphionce-mechanism inpiaces o the extent, in the manner ond subject 1o the repofing mode hersinofter:

I hove examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed ond ofher records maintained by Narmoda Selafines Limited for
the fnoncial yeorended on 315t March 2025 cccording fo the provisions asmoy ba applicable to the company of:

k Mhe Componies Act, 2012 and any Amendments thereof (hereinofier collectively refarred o as the "ACT and the Rules modes
tharaunder,

Il The Securifies Contracizs {RegulationyAct, 1984("3CRAaRd the rules made thaeraunder:

I Ihe Depositoriss Act, 1996 and the Regulotions and Bye-ows framed thesunder;

V. Forgign Exchange Manogermant Act, 1999 and tha rules and reguiations made frereundar;

W, Tha following Regulations and Guidednas prescribed under the Securnitias and Exchonge Board of Indio Act, 1992 (SEB Act):
0. The Securnfies and Exchangs Boord of India (Rubstantial Acqulstion of Shares and Takeovesrs) Regulations, 2011;
lx.  TheSecurties ond Exchangea Boord of Indla (Prohldtkon of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:

. The Securifies ond Exchongs Board of India (Lsting Obligations and Disclosurs Reaquirements) Regulations, 2015 and
omendments thereof (hereinafter collechvaly refered o os "Lsting Regulations');

d, The Securfles and Exchange Board of India {(ssue and Listing of Debt Sacurlties) Regulations, 2008; Net Appcable durlng the
pencd under review;

&,  TheSecurtiesond Exchange Boord of India {sswe of Copital and Disclosure Requirements) Regéations, 2018;

f. Tre Securties and Exchangs Boord: of India (Shore Bosed Employves Benafits and Sweat Equity). Regulations, 2021; Mot
opplicabie durng he pendd uncer review!

0. TheSacurities and Exchange Board of Indla (Registrars fowan lssue and Snare Transfer Agerts) Regulotions. 1593; Not opplicobie
during the period under review o8 the company Enotacting as o Registrar and Shara Tronsfer Agent;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Reguiotions, 2009 Nof applicabie during the period
under revieiw,

L The Securties and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998, Mot applicabla durlng the perlod unds:
FEvisw,

| % The Securties ond Exchange Board of Indio (Depostories and Participants’ Regulations, 2018, and

k,  The Securites and Exchonges Boord of India (sus and Lstng of Non-Corvertible ond Redeemable Prefersnces Shores)
Fegulation, 2013 - Mot applicatle to the company during the period undsr review,

Wi, TheFood Safety ond Stondards Act, 2008 along with Food Safety and Standards Rules 201 1;

Wil Poliution Control Act, Rules ond Mofification lssued thereof;

Vill.  LegalMetralogy Act 2009andRulesmade thereundear,

X, TheFoctornesAct, |P48andRulesmade tharaunder;

X ShopsondEstabiishmentAct, 1953

Xl Thie Employess Provident Fund and Miscalianaows Provisions Act, 1952 ond Rules made thereaundar;
Xl Industial Emplayment (Standing Crder)Act 1944:

XL The Matermily Benafits Ach. 1961

X The Minimum Waoges act, 1948;

¥\, The Payment of Bonus Act 19485,

WL The Payrriant of Gratulty Aot 1972

XV The Employment Exchange{Compulsory Notification of Vocancies)Act, 1959,

VL The Poymant of woges Act, 1934, and ameandments thieraof ond other applicoble Industiol and Labour Lenws,
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| hove: aiso exomined compllance of Secretarial Standards on Boord of Directorns (55-1) Geneml Meetings (55- 2) mode effective 15t duly
2005 ond Dividand (55-3) mods effective 1stlanuany, 2018, Secrataral Standards on Report of the Boord of Directars mods sffective 15t
Cotober 2018 Bsued by the Institute of Company Secretarias of iIndio.

Diring the pedod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Reguiations, Guidealines, Standards, etc,
mantioned abova,

I further Report hat:

The Board of Dyectors of the Company & duly constiiuted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- Exaculive Drectors and
Independent Directars, There wane no changes in the composificn of tha Boord of Directors that took ploce during the parod undear raview,

Adesguate notice i given to all fhe directors o schedule the Board Mestings, ogenda ond detailed notes on ogendo wers sent of east
seven days inadvance, and a system exists for seeking and obiaining further information and clarfications on the agenda items befoe the
meaating ond for meaningful participation at the meeting, Video conferance foclities) other audio-visual meons are wed as and whan
required to fociifote the Directors ot other locationstopanicipote inthe meefing.

Moty decisions camled through whills the disenting marmibar sviaws, I any, are captured and recarded as part of the milbutes. Howewet,
o suchcose nos orsen during the perdod uncled review.,

| furfner repart that, thare ore adequate syitems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of thie
Company fo monitor ond ensure complionce wifh appicabla lows, nulas, regulations ond guidslines.

It may e noted that | have conducted onling verfication & examination of records, as faclitated by the compamy (where everrequirad),
for the purpose of Bsuing thisReport.

Dr. Asim Kurmnar Chattopadhyay
Practising Company Secratarny
FCE2303,CPRA0
Pear Review - 6375/ 2025
Urilgue Identification Mo, [T9BSWBOTSR00
LIDM < FOO2 30300015659

Diota: 20" Apl 2025

ANNEXURE "A"

(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF NARMADA GELATINE LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T
MARCH, 2025)

To,

Tha Membore,

Marmada Gelatings Umited, CARAVS, Room No, 28,
15, Chll Limas,

Jabalgur 482 001

My Repart for tha inanciol year anded 3 1stharch, 2025 of ovan dote B to ba redd along with this lettar

L naintenonce of secretanal recard is the responsibifty of the management of the Company, My responsibility is to express anopinion
on these secretariol records based on my audit,

Il Thove lollowsd the audil praclices and processes as were approgiole to ablain reasonable ossurance aboul the comectness of the
contants of the secretanal records, The verfication was dorse on test bosis to ensure that conect facts ara reflected In secratarial
racoids, | belayve thot the processies and proctices, | Talowsad provids o reasonatale bosts tor my opinion,

I, | have nat vedified the coractnass and appropriatenass of financlal recards ond Books of Accounts of the Company.

IV, Wherever required. | have gbtained the manogement epresentation about the complionce of lows. rules ond regulotions and
hoppening of evenisetc,

W The complionce af the provisions of Carponate and other appliceble lows, rdes, regulations. stondords 2 the reenonsibility of
rnanagament, My exarmination was irmited 1o the verfication of procedures on test Doss,

VI,  Tha Secretarlal Audit Report s nedther on assurance as fo the future viablity of the company nor of the efficocy or effeciivenass with
which ihe monoagement hos conducted the affairs of fhe company.

D, Asim Kurmar Chattopadhyay

Practising Company Secretary

FCE 2303, CPEAD

Paer Revisw Certificate Mo, -4375/2025

Unigue identification Mo, 1T985WED 15800
Digte: 20" April, 2025
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Annexura -l to the Board's Repor]

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
{Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
A, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

I, Steps taken or Impact on consarvation of enargy:

- Replocerment of old inefiicient motor with new energy efficient motors ond installotion of temperoture controllers to reduce
the steom consumption in gelatin production

Maodification of Edtraction fonk and replocemasnt of Steam Rodiatons by hot woater o reduce steam consumplion.

2 Steps token or utising alfernate sources of energy: The solor plant within the Foctony premises, is set for commissioning anly
DISCOM confimation is awaiting

4. Copltalinvestment an ensgy conssrvation equiprment{Selor Planty: Rs, 7.04 Crores
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
. Effartsin brief rmode towards fechnology obsorption:

2. Efforts are being made to improve the guality) quantity of Selatne production with support from Promctar company-
Production improved fram 5.3 MT per day to 4.7 MT per day onyear ta years.

Banafits dervad as amsulof above eflons;

i Impaned technology (mporfed durng the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) : Not applicaoble as
notechnology imported

(o) Tachnolagy

(o) Yearof impot

() Hos technalogy baan fully absotbad:

(d) I not fulhy obsoribed, Greas where this hos not token ploce, reascns thereof ond fufure plan of action
4. FOREIGMN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
FOB valiis fo axprorts: 146,567 lakhs 47909 lokhy
Expandiure in foreign exchange
impor! of spare pars 4554 lakhs 45,99 lakhs
Travel for export prornotion 0.45 loskhs 0. 74 lakhs
= Oihers (subscrphion) 991 lakhs 17.00 lokhs
5. Annamalal Ashok K. Kapur
Chesirrmcn tManaging Director
Floce : Jobalpur

Diate = 13" Augiust. 2025
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Annexure - [V to the Board's Report

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (AFPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)

RULES, 2014

il Mhe percenioge Increass In remuneration of each Direclarn, Chisl Financial Officer ang Company Secretary durng the financial year
2024-25, rafio of the remuneration of eoch Director 1o the median remunecation of the employees of the Company far the financiol

year 2024-25 and the comparison of remunaration of each Key Monageanal Personmel (KMP) against the perfarmanca of the
Compary are as Under:

5. Name of Director/KMP and Remuneration % increase in Ratio of Comparison of the
No. Designation of Director/KMP Remunerafion remuneration of Remuneration of
for financial year in the each Director KMP against the
2024-25 Financial Year fo median performance of
(7 lacs) 2024-25 remuneration of the Company
employees
Mon-Executive Direchor
L. 3. Annamaloi - Direcior
5 Maheswaran - Direchor
B. Vijayodurai -
MNon-Executive - Independent Director = + -
4. Morimegalal Thangoman -
Maor-Executive - Independent Divector
5. K. Krishnomoorthy-Director-
MNon-Executive-independent Diector
Executive Director & EMP:
& Ashok K Kapur - Managing Director G 26 5.467% 16.6%
7. Mkl Vismrna - Chief Bronclal Officart 1504 8.65% Mot Anplicabis
8. Anun Jaiswal-Chiet Financial Cfficers 071 [ Mot Applicable Profib after fox
9. Meenu Sharma - Compary Secretany® 0.89 FA Not Applcable  Moreased by 12.24%
_ I the Finoncial
10,  Maohimo Patkar- Company Sacretany# 293 7Y Mot Applicable  year2024-25

*1, Mr. Mahesh Vermo Ceosed to be the Chisf Finonciol Officer w.e.f. January 07th 2025; and #hir Anen Joeswal wene Appointed os the

CFO w e f Morch 15, 2025

"2, Ms. Meenu Shorma Ceosed o be the Company Secretony w.e.f. June 2Bth 2024: ond #Ms. Mahima Potkor were appointad as the
Compary Secretany w.e.f. August 07, 2024,

The Mon-Execulive Directans of the Company are onby entifled (o sitting fees os per ihestatulory provisions, the dalails of which are providsd

in lhe Comporate Govemanss Report,

Ii. The median rermunarction of employess of the Company dunng the finoncial yedr 2024-26 wios T 3.72 lakhs,

iH, Thepacentogeincreaseinthe madion remuneration of employveas In the financial year was 7.20%.

I fhara were 198 parmanent employess on the rolls of Comparny os on 3 st Marekh, 2025,

V. Retoficnship betweon overage increase in remuneration and company performance: The Profit affer tax for the financial yeaor
ended March 3lst 2025 Increased oy 12.20% and the average remuneraficn Increcsed by 7.26%. Percentoge Increases for varlous
calegores are granfed bosed onmarket frends and performonce cileria,

v,  Comparigon of Remunaration of the Key Managernial Persannal(s) agonst the parfarmance of the Company, The total remunsration
of Key Maragerial Personnelincreassd by 6. %3% whareos the Profit affer tax increased by 12.26%.

vit,  a) Moratlons in the market copitalsation of the Company: The rmarket capltalsation as on 218t March, 2025 was 19400 lokhs, as

comparad to® 201488 530 okhs ason 315t March 2024,
) Price Earings ratio of the Company wos 1 1.70as at 315t March, 2025 ascompared to 3. 16as ot 315t March, 2024,

will,  Average percentags ncredss in the salares of empioyess othar than the Key Managserial Farsonnatin the fnoncial yveor 202425 was
9.40% whearsas the manageaial ramunaration for the some linancial vear was increased by 5.67%

ix, Tha key porametars for the varable comporent of remunesation avaied by the directors are considered by the Boord of Directors
based on the recommeandations of the Nomination and Rermuneration Committes as per the Remunarotion Poicy for Directors, Key
Marnaganal Personnel and cther Employoss.

¥, [t ratio of the remuneration of the highast pald dirsctor fo that of the employvess who are not dirgctors but recelve remuneration in
excess of the highest pald director during the yaar - None of the employess are in receipt of remuneration In excess of the highest
paid dirsctor,

¥, Tha rernunaration pald s as per the Remunaration Polcy for Directans, Key Monogearial Persaonnal and othar employess.

€D)
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Annexure - V lo the Board's Report
Form AOC-01

(Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Company

Part "B": Associale Company

5.No, Mame of Associate Company

India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited

I Latest Audited Baloncs sheet date
2. Date of acqulsition/Incorparation
4 Sroras of Associote held by the company an the yaar «and
Equity Shares
I Murnber of Shoras
i Armount of Investrment in Associate Company
fii Extanc ol Holdings
Description of haow there B significonf influence
Reason why the finoncials of Assoclafe is nof conselidated

Met worth aftributable to shareholding as per fhe lotest
Audited Bolonce Sheet (¥ In lakhs)

oo ProfitLogs Tor he year
I Considered In Corsolldated” (% In lakhs)
i, Mot Corsidarad in Consalidated” (T In kakhs

atst Mareh, 2025
05 Dacember, 2024
003000

1003000
41151

14, 14%
Shareholding

242502

@z.00

Moles Associale Campany have been celermined bossd on the Accounting Slandards,

5. Annamalai Ashok K. Kapur
Chiakmnan Managing Directar

Ptace ; Jabclpur
Data : 13" August, 2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Govemance is the implermantation of best monagement practices. compliance of law and voluritary adherance to ethicol
stondards which are inevitable for ochleving arganizational efficlency, enhancing shareholders volue and discharge of sociol
responsitiity. The principte of good coporate govemnance b to ensure fairneass in all fransactions within ond outside the company with
investons, customers, employees, partness, compefitorsond the society ot large.

The concept of coporate governance primarly hinges on complete ransporency, integrity and accountablity of the monagermant, with
an increasingly grecter focus aninvestor protection and public intersst. Good compordia govarnance is an esentiol port of walkmanagad,
successiul business enferprise hoat delivers value tashareholders.

Governonce proctices may vary but the principles are generic and universal, viz. commitrnent of the Board in monoging buskness ethically
and in o transparent manner with the profit objective batonced by long termn value equitably for all stokeholgers, With increasing
complexities in business orgonizotions, sournd governance prachices ane indispensable 1o bulld ond sustaln tnast,

Good govemnance anhances the confidence, fnest and enthusiosm of ifs stakeholdearns. For ansunng sound corporgle govemance
proctices, the Govemmaent of India has put In ploce o framewaork bosed on fha stipulations contained undes the Companies Act, Securifies
and Exchange Boord of Indic (SFBD Regulations, Accounting Stondards, Secratanal Standards, ete.

The Company is committed to n its business in a legaol, ethical ond fransparent manner with dedication that pravails throughout the
organzation. This report sets outthe compionce stohus for the Company with fhe requirements of corporate governance for the fincencial
yeor 2024-25,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORE

Faimess and
excellences

lnﬁam_lfy and
transparency

The compony is committed to focls on long term value creation and protecting staksholders” interests by applying proper care, skill and
dillgence o business dacisions. The Company hos established systerms. procedurnss and policiss to ansure that s Board of Dirsctors s weall
informed and well equipped fo dischargs its overall responsibiitiss and provids the Monagement with the strategic direction catering to
endgency of long-termshareholder svalue,

The corporate governonce strectuse in the Company ossigns responslities and enfrusts autharity among different participonis in the
organzationwviz. the Board of directors, the senlar management, employeas, etc. The company confinuously endecvours to Improve upan
thesa aspacts on an ongoing basis ond adopis innovative opprooches for leveroging resourcas, convering opporunities into
achlevermants through proper empowerment and motivation, fosterdng o haalthy all-rowend growth and developmant fo toke the
Cormpany forsard,

Your Company s In compllonce with the equirements of Corporote Govermancs as stipulofed in the Securlties and Exchange Boord of
incho (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requisments) Regulations, 2015 ¢ Usfing Reguiations' ). In addition to comphing with the statutony
requiremants, effective governance systams ond practices towards improving fransparency, disclosures, internal control and promotion of
ethics ot work ploce have been mstituticnalized, The following codass and policies have been odopted by the Company:
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Codeof Conduct

Code of Infarnal Procedurs and Conduct far Insidar Trading
Winiste Blower Policy

Retoted Party Trarnsactions Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Seeuial Harassmant Policy

Momination ond Remunaration Pollcy for Directors, Key Manageral Parsonne!l and other Employess
Board Performances Evaluation Palicy

Risk Monogameant Falley

Palicy for determination of Materiality of any event

Policy on peeservation of docurments

Antl=-Carruptian and Anti-Bribery pollcy

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors along with its committess provides leadenship and guidance to the Maragement and directs and supervises the
pertormonce of the Company, thereby enhancing stokeholder valus. The Hoard has a tiduciany retationsnip in ensuring thot the dghts of all
staxeholdersane protected, Your Company has an engoged and weiHnfarmed Boord with auaiifications and experniencs invarious arecs.

Tha members of the Board are frorm diverse backgrounds with skills ond experience in differant sectors like technoiogy, finonce, legal,
power and general managemeant. With @ view 10 hove o more focused aoftention on various focefs of business and for betier
accountabdity, the Board hos constituted the following committees viz, Auddt Committes. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes,
Mominotion and Remunaration Committee, Rigk Mancgemeant Committes, Corporote Sockal Responsblity Committes and Comploints
Comrmittea pursuant 1o Semual Harassment Policy of tha Company.

The Company Secretary 5 primarily responsible for ensuing complionce with opplicoble statutory reguirements ond s the inferface
etween the monogemeant ond reguiotony cuthorties for govemance mottars, The Company Secretany piays a key rofe in ensurning that
the pracaduras are fallowead and regulany reviewsad and that all relevant information, details and documents ore mads avallotls to the
Oirectaors and seniormonagement for sffective decision-making.

Composition of the Board
As on 315t March 2025, Company’s Board comprised of slx members which Inciudes one Executive Direcios three Mon-Execufive

Independent Directors (ncluding one Womaoan Director) and two Mon-Execufive Nor-iIndependent Directors. The profile of Directors canbe
found of the wobste of the company af htips:/ fwww naormodagelatines.com.  The compaosition of thae Board Is in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations enjoining specifled combination of Executive and Non-Exgcuiive Directors wifh atfeast one
Women Director and one half of the Boord comprising of Independent Direclors as laid down for o Boord with the Non-Executive
Independent Director as tha Chalrmon (related 7o promotar),

Catagory Mo.of Directors %ol tolal number of directors TEE::E;"E:E' r;if:ﬂl:hﬁ-..
Exacutive Directorns 1 17% Cirscton ‘
(rcigding =
Mon-Executive Independent Directons il
dncluding wamean divectarn) K R directan, 50

Mom-Execiutive Non-independent Rirectors 2 33% oA Euac Ll
Miean | e pesrvidest)
Total 2] 100% Secions. 3%

Detalls of Directors altendance and other Directorships/ Committee memberships

As required by Reguiotion 24 of the Usting Regulations and declarations/disclosung received from the Directors, none of the Directorisa
rmembsar of morne thon ten Board commitiess (considerng only Audit Committee and Stakeholdars” Relotionshic Committes) or Chalrman
of more than fve Commitfees across all public mited Companies (isted orunlisted) inwhich hefshe is o directar, None of the Director of the
Cornpany senseas as Directorin morethansaven listed Companias, and asindependent Diracios in more than seven Bted Companias-and
in cose ha/fshe s senving s o Whiole-Tima Director Inony listed Company, does not hold the position of Independent Director in mora than
theea fisted Companias.

All Directors:have informead about ther Dirgctoships, Committes Membeships Chormonshins including any chonges in their positions,
Mone of the Directors of the Company ore rielated interse except b § Annamalal and W § Mobeswaran, in terms of Ssction 2077 of the
Companiss Act, 2013, ncluding Rulss thers undern, The compary bos nof sseed any corvertibis imstrumeanis hencs, disclasurs in this respact
snotapplicoble,
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Details of ottendance of Directors af Boord Meetings and at the last year's Annual Genenal Meeting fogather with porficulars of their
Directorhip and ChairmanshipMembership of Board Committess as on 317 March 2025, are asunder:

Name of Directors Category# Aftendance at Directorships and Chairmanship/ Shore-
Memberships of Board Committees  holding
it Indian Public Companles inthe
Boord Meetings AGM Director- Committee Committee company
24.09.2024 ships® Member- Chairman- (equity share
Held AHtended %of ships* ship*® of ¥10
aftend- per share)
ance
M, 5 Annarnahol MISMED &  S(2VO) 100 Yes 2 - . Pl
b5 Mahestwaran MIBMED &  BVE) B0 Y 2 - - il
Mr, K Krishnarmoorthy [ & aNVE) 100 Yes 2 2 2 [+l
M. B Vijoyodural I & &EVCY 100 Yers 2 2 M4l
Wir Ashok K, Kopur El3 & & 100 e | I . 1050
Mrz, Manirmegoiol Thongamani B &  5OVC) &0 Yas 1 ] - -4l

(WO-attended through video conference
1D Inciependant Dirsctar: N Noreindepsndant Dirgctorn NED: Non-Executive Dirsctar; EL; Exacutive Director

*The abowve Includes only directorship held In companies whose eguity shares are isted on o stock exchange and does nat include any
Alternate Direcicrships ond Directorships of Foreign Companies, Section 8 Compardes and Private Limdfed Componies:
Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit Commitiees and Stakeholders’ Relafionship Commiftees of listed Pulbiic Umited Companies
have been considerad,

Mome of other listed entities where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directorship

Marme of Director Name of listed enlilies in which Ihe concemed Direclor is a direcior Category of Directorship
ML 5 Annarmalal Imdia zelating and Chemicals Lmited NI & NED

M Maheswaran Inefia Gelating and Chemicals Umited NI & NED

B K Krishnomoorihy MPIL Corporation Umired Ic

M B, Wijenadurai [rcfia Gelating and Chermicals Lmited ([w}

MNumber of Boord Meetings ond dotes
Minimum fouwr Board meeifings are held every yeor (one meating in every colendar quorier), In case of any exigency/emergancy,
resolutions cre also possed by chculation.

Durng the firancial year 2024:25 the Board of Directons mat sik times on 21" Moy 2024, 077 &sugust 2024 04" November 2024, 4" Decambear
2024, 137 Februany 2025, ard 28" Februany 2005,
The maxmum gop between any two consecufive meetings was less than one hundred and fwenty dovs, os sfipuicfed under the

Companles Act, 20013, Regulation 17 of the Listing Reguiations and Secretanial Standards. In all Board meetings during the financlal year
2024-25Video Conferance facilihy was also provided to the directors,

Mecessany Quonam was present Inall the Boand meaetings.
Skilts/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors

The Hoard of directors of the Company are professionals, possesing wids expanence and expertse in thelr areas of Tunchion, viz. Soles &
Markefing. Infemational Business, Genaral managemsant dnd leadsmship. Financial & sk management skills and Techrnical, professional
siills ond knowledoe including legal, governance and reguiatony aspects. In terms of requirsments of the Listing Regulotions, fhe Board hos
icdentified the following skils/expertisa/competencies of the Directons ason 31" March, 2025
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The specific areas of focus orexpartise of iIndividuol Boord rmembears ave been lighighted and given inthe toble Delow:

Director Area of experiise
Company's Behaovioural Leadership Sales & Board and Financial Technical & Legal/
business & skills Marketing Corporate Professional Corporate
Inclustry Governance laws
Mr, K Krishinarmoorty v "4 v v v v
B Ashok K, Kapur v "4 v v ' ¥ U Ud
M S Anncirmolal 'y " v v v (4 v 4
Mr S Maheswaron v v v v v v
B B Vioyodural v ("4 v v v v Ud
K. Manimegaoiol
Thangomani v ¥ " v 4 v 4

Profile of Directors
Detalled profile of o the Board membens i avallable on the Company’s website ot www narmadagelatines.com

A brief profile of Director being appointed/re-oppointed, nature of thalr expertisa in speciiic funchicnal oreas and nomes of companies in
which thay hold directoships, membeships/chairmanships of Board Committess and their shareholding in fhe Company, if any, are
provided below.

Director{s) retiring by rotation

M 5. Annarmalad (O 00001387). aged abaut 78 years, s a Bachelor of Technology (Cherm Engn.). He has vast expatience in succassiully
managing Chemical Industies overa pencd of 5 decadas, In 1973 he wos appointed os the Manoging Director of Pondion Chemicals Lid
(PCL) which i the largest producer of Potassiurn Chlorate Inindia.

He i5 also on the Boord of Indio Gelotine and Chemicab Limited, Pionesr Jelice India Private Umited, Sree Ayyanar Spinning and Weaving
#ills Priviate Uimited, Pondlon Chemicals Limited, Mepco Industries Umited, The Metal Powdear Company Umited, Asia Motch Company
Private Limited, Ashok Matches and Timber industries Private Limited. Miranjan Sankar Enterprizes Private Limited. Pioneer NF Forgings India
Private Limited.

He doss not hold amy shorgs of the Company cson 3151 Manch 2025,

Ag M 5 Annamalal hos affained the age of 78 yaors, theretare In complionce with the provisions of Reguichion 17(1A) of securities and
Exchangs Boord of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, mambers approval is required by passing o
Special Resolution, forre- appointmeant of Mr. 5. Annamatalos a director lioble to retire by rotation,

Board Procedure

The Agenda and MNotes on Agenda for Board Meetings are circulated fo Directons in odvance fo enabla them to takea informed decislons,
Tha information partaining to mandatany fams as specified in tha Listing Regulations, Companies Act 2013 and other applicable lows,
dlong with other business ssuas, & provided 1o the Booard, as part of the agenda. Allmaterial Information is incorporated there into faclitote
rmecningiul and focused discussions ot the meeting. Whera |t s not procticable to attoch oy document to the agenda. |t is fabled bafore
the meaating with speciiic reference ta this effect on the agenda, In spacial and axcepiiaonal circurmstanceas, ary other matfers are
discussad with the parmission of the Chairmon of the Board mieeting, A video conferarcing fociity is provided to focilitate Directos to
participotae Inthe meeatings,

Recording minutes of proceedings al Board and Commiftee mestings

The Company Sacretary recands the minutes of proceedings of Board and Cormmittes meaatings. Draft minutes are criculoted to membearns
of the Board! Committass for thelr comments and are finaized by incorporating the caomments of the Directors, The minutes are antared in
The Minutes Bookowitiin 30 doys from T he conciugion of he mesling.

Post-mesting follow-wup mechanism
Manogemenit takes actions on the decisicns and directions arising out of the discusscns of the Boord) Commitiess Meetings, Irmportant
deckions token at mestings of the Board/Cormmitteas are communicated prompihy to the concemed deparfments/ divisions,

A action taken repod on decisions/minutes of the praviows mestingis) & ploced af the succesading meeling of the Boord/Boora
Cormmitieas forreview and Toliow-up.

Compliance

The Campany Secratary, whie preparng the agenda, notas on agenda and minutes of the meetinois), s responsible forand s reouired to
ensure achersnce fo all applicable lows and regulofions. including the Companies Act, 2013 read with nules ssued thereundesr, as
appllcable and the Secretarial Standards recommiended by the Institute of Company Secretariss of india,

Durlrg the financicl year 2024-25, inforrnation s menticned in Part A of Schedule | of thae SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed bafore
the Board for s considerafion. The Board of Divectors s proviced with oll the information and update on the subjects detalled under and
hove complete occessio any Informaticn within the Compaony.
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Annual cperating plons and budgetsond updates

Copital budgets and updotes

euartery fannual financiol results of the company

Pinutes of meastings of boord, audit committes and other committess of the board

Show-couse, demand, prosecution notices ond penalty notices, which are matedally impartant

Information on recruitmeant and rermuneration of senior officers just below fhe level of board of directors, incluging cppolmment of

removaol of Chief Finoncial Officerand the Company Secretary

Fertal e serinus accldents, dangerous occuirancas, any motendal efluant or pollution proBlems

- Ay rnateral default in financkal cbligations to and by thecompary, orsubstantial non-payment for goods sold by the company
Any ssue, which iInvaives possitls publlc orproduct llability claims of sutstantial nature, Including any judgement or ordern whilch may
hove passed strictures on the conduct of the company ar taken an adverse view regarding another enferprise that con have
negotive implications on the company
Significont labour problers and thelr proposed solutlons
Any significont development in Humon Resources)” Industrial Relations front ke signing of wage agreement, implementation of
Violuntary Retirement Scherme, efc.,
Sale of moatedal noture of investrmants, asseds, which is notin the nomal couse of Dusiness

™ Mon-compliance of any regulatorny, statutony or listing requitemeants and shareholdes service such as-non-paymeant of dividend,
dekay Inshore transfers, etc,

™ Guarterly complionce cerificates which includes non-complionce of any regulotony, statutory noture or lsting requirements and

sharehoddars senvice

Appointment. remuneration and resignation of Director

Proposals requiring strategic guidonce and approvals of the Board of Direcions

Retoted porty fransactions

Farmction and reconstitution of Boord Committeas and thelrterms of raterence

Declarghons by Independent Directors

Disclasuras of intarast of Diractonand thelr sharsholding

Appointrient and fidng of rernunenation of Sfatutony Auditons as recommended by the Audt Committes

Appointment of Infermal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors

Discussion on teports and cbservations of Infemal and Statutory Auditors

Dividend daclaration

Making of laans and investrmant of surbis funds

Proposal formajor investrments, merges, amalgamations

Barrowing monsy. giving guorontees or praveding security in respact of loan

lzsue of sacurities, shores, debenfures

Independent Direclors

The Companies Act 2013 ond the SEB (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements; Regulations, 20156 (" the Listing Regulations”) define
an independent director’ os a person who, including his her relafves. 5o wos not a promoter or empioye s or key manogerial personnel of
the company or ifs subsidiaries. Tha personand his [/ her relatives showkd not have a moierial pecuniany relafionship or fransoctions with the
company or itz subsidiarias, during the three Immediate preceding financial years of during the curent financial year, apart from recelving
rernuneration as anindependent director

independant Dirsclon of the company hiove been appaointed as per the provisions of 1he Ac! and rules thersunder, The Indspendant
Direc o hove confirmead thal they meel the crifedn of independences lald down under the Companias Al 2013 and Regulation 14601 1B
o tive Listing Regulations and thot hey are not oware of any circumstance orshaation, which exist or may be reosonably anticipatad, that
could impair of impact thelr abiity fo discharge their autiss with an objactive iIndependeant judgrment and without any extermal influance,
Tha Board of Directors hove taken onrecord the declaration and confirmation submittad by the Indespendsnt Dirsctons aler undesrhaking
cue assessment of the veracity of the same,

In tha oplrionof the Board, the independent Directos, fulfl the condiflons of independance specified inSacton 149(&) of the Companiss
Act, 2013 and Regulotion 1401 W) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosune Requirements) Reguiotions, 2015 and are independant of
the management,

Farmal letters of appointment hove been isued to the Independent Dirsctons and the ferms ana condiions of their appointment are
disclosed on'the company s website ot www narmodagelatines.com

Tenure of Independent Directors

In occordancea with Section 14901 1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. K. Krishnomoorthy wos oppoinfed as indepandent director with effect
from 21092021 wha shall holds office for first ferm of 5§ consecutive years Le, from the dote of Annual Seneral Meeting (AGM) hald
an2 1 septemberz02 1 Up tothe conclusion of 45" AGM of the Company or fill 21" 5eptember. 2026, whicheveris earliar.

#r. B Vioyodural and M. Manimagaial Thangamani were appointed as independant directors of the compony with effect from
14.07.2023 by the members of the company al the 627 Annual General Meeating (AGEM) hald on 25" September 2023 who shall hold office
fout firsh terrm of & {five) corseculve years 1l 13,07.2028,
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

Incependeant Directons of the Company meat separately on 28" Febuany 2025 withoul the pressnce of Non-independent Directon and
rmamies of tha Mandgemant., Inaccardancs with the Lsting Regulations, fallowing mattens wena, Interalia, raviewsd and discussed Inthe
rreetingg, cxs reciuired uncler Scheduls Vo the Act (Cods for Independant Dirscton) and Regulation 2504 of the Listing Regulations.
Atthesald meeafing., the Indepaendent Directors, inter-alia, considerad the fellowing:

. raviawad tha parfarmancs of Nan-Indapendant Dirgctor and the Board as o whola:

. raviswasd the performance of the Chainman of the Company faking into consideration the views of Execulive ard MNon-Executive
Directors.

™ Assessed the guolity, guontity ond timeliness of fiow of information between the Company Monogement and the Board that is
riecassary for the Boord fo effectively and reasonably performn their duties

Alltha Independent Directors weare pressnt at bath the Meetings. The iIndependant Dractor: exprassed satistaction on fhe parformancea of
tha non- indepandent directons In the funchioning of the company, an the performance of tha Chigimman of the Boord and parfarmanca of
the Board as o whoke,

Directors' Familiorizotion programme:

Tha Company bas an orentation process/ familiorzation progromme torits independeant and other directors that includes Sriefing on theair
roke, responsibiities, dulies, and obligotions os o member of the Board, noture of business of fhe Company, plont visit, monufoctuning
proeess, guality, sofety meosures in ploce, CER activities ete., motters reloting to Corporate Governonce, Code of Business Conduct, Risk
Manogement, Complionce Programs, Intemal Audit, efc. and infreduction to senkor monagement team, This provides Insights into the
Company fo enable the Independeant Dirgctars to understand he Comipony's busingss in depth that would facilitate their octive
parficipotion in managing fhe Company.

As o process, when o new independent direcior 5 appainted. o detaled Appolntment Letter Incorporating the role, duties and
responsblities, remuneration and perfomaonce evoluation process, Code of Conduct and obligations on disclosunss, is ssued for the
acceptance of the Independent Directors,

Efforts are made fo continually updote fhe Independent Directors on all imporrant developments within the Company and regulatorny
changes viz. sharing Imeorant developments in the industny, fhe compaony’s infernal envircnment and external environment, industrial
refafions, updates on demaond and supply situation for the Company’s products, atc

All nen directons appalntad on the Board go theough on anentalion processfomiliomzation programme. The detalls of fraining and
tarmllotization pragram are provided In the Coporote Govemance Report and olso avallable on fhe webslte of the company ot
wiw narrmadogalatines.com

Directors and Board Performance evaluation

Pursuont to the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3and Regulotion 1% of the SEBI (Listing Ooliootions and Disclosurs Requirements) 2015,
the Boord has camed out the annuol performoncs evaluation of its own performancs, the Directos individually as well as the evoluation of
the working of its Audit Committes. Momination and Remuneration Committes and other Committess.

Pursuont fo applicabie provisions of the Compankes act, 2013 ond the Listing Reguiations, the Board, n consultation with ifts Nomination
&Remunaration Committes, has formuloted a fromework containing, inter-alio, the process, formot, attibuies ond crterda for
parformance evaluation of the entire Board of tha Company, it Committess ond individudl Directors, including independent Directars,
The framework s monitoed, reviewsd and updated by the Board, in consultaion with he Momination and Remunsration Committes,
mosed on need and naw complianes reculremants. Evaluation of tha Boord and lis Caommitess & boagad on vorouws ospeaects of thalr
furctioning, such as, odeguacy of the constitution and compaosition of the Board and it Commiftess, motters oddressad in fhe meatings,
procesEss followsad at the meeting, Board's foous, regulatory complianess and Corpomate Govemanoces, e, are in place. Simibarly, for
avatuation of ndivicdual Diectors performanc s, vanaus paramealers ke Directoss prafile, contibution in Beard and Committes mastings.
exgcutionand performance of specific dutles, obligotions. reguotony compionces and Governance, sl are considenad,

Further, the performance of Chalrman, Execufive Directors and Independent Directors are evaluated on cerdain additional parometers
depending upon thedr roles and responsibilities. Similary, criteria for evaleation of indepencent Directors include effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, commitment to their role towards the Company and varous stakeholders, high ethicalstandaords, adheence to
applicoble codes and policias, effective parficipotion ond application of okjective indepandent judgernent during meetings, etc,

Accordngly, the annuagl perfarmmance evaluation of the Board, s Committess ond each Cirector was corled oul for the financlal yeoar
200425 by the Board on parameaters such as level ol engagement and contibutlon, independencea of Judgemeant, safeguading the
iriferest of the Compony and itsmimanty sharehaldens, ste, wos camed out, The performancs evaluation of fhe Indepeandant Directons was
corried aut by the entire Board. The parfaormones evaluation of Non-indepaendant Directans was comed out by the Independsnt Directors,
The Directorns expressed thalr sofgfaction an the performances of all the dirsctors and beard 6 the functioning ard thalr contribution
fowards the growth of he company

COMMITIEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has corstituted sik committess, nomely Audt Committes, Nomination and Remunerdtion Committes, Corporate Social
Responsibiity Committes, Stakenolders Relationship Committes, Risk Management Committes and Complaints Committes, The Board =
authorized to constitute additional functional Committess, from time fo fime, depanding on business nesds, During the yearn all
recommendations mads by the committess wers approved by the Boord,
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Audit Commities
The Audit Cormmmittee has been constituted buy the Board in compllonce with the reguirements of Section 17 7of the Companlas Act,
2013 and Reguiation 18 of fhe Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committas asists the Board in its responsibility for oversesing the gualihy and integrty of the accounting, Guditing and
reporting proctices of the Company and its complionce with the legal ond reguloiony reguiremsnis,

The Committes’s purpose B o overses the accounting and financhal reporing process of the Comipany, the audits of the Company s
financial stafermants, the appainimant, independence, perfomance and remuneration of the statutory ouditors, fhe performance
of Infernal auditors and the Company’s fisk managemeant palicies. The Audit Committes may call for the comments of the oudibon
aout intemal contfrol systems, the scope of audit, including the obsenvations of the auditors and fevienw of financial statement bafore
thalr subbrnission o the Board, The Audit Committes shall have aufttwority to investgate amy mafter within the tarms of reference or
refeqred Toit by the Board,

The terms of refersnce of the Audit Committes cover all the areas martioned under Section 177 of he Act and Regulatian 18 read
with Fart C of Schedule | ta the Listing Regukations, The terms of refarance of the Audit Cammittes. inter-alio, ars as follows:

Faviewing the financial reports ond the disciosure of its financial iInformation to ensuns that the fincnciol staterments reflect o froee ond
falr position and that sufficient and credible Infemmation is disclosedin the reparts.

Recommending the appointment and removal of intemol and external auditcrs, fisotion of cudit fee ond other poymenis,
Feviawtng the financial statameants and draft audit report, ncluding quartarty halt yearly financial Informatian,
[Fendewing with monagerment the quartery and annual finoncial staternants berore submission fo the Board foousing primarity on;
- Any changes in occounting policles ond proctices:

hMaojor occounting enfries bosed on exerclse of judament by mancgement;

whaalifications Indraff oudit report;

Significant odiustrments ansing out of oudit,;

Thegolng concam assumpiion;

Cormpllance with sccounting standonds:
- Compllonce with stock exchange and legal requinerents concerning financiat staterents;
- Approval orany subsequent modification of fransoctions of the company with reloted parties;

Reviawling the Company s financial andrisk monagameant poliches;

Cisclosure of confingent katalittas;

Scrutmy of intercorporateloars and investrments;

Violuotion of undertokings or ossats of the company, whetever IF s necassany;

honitanng the end e of funds raised thraugh public offers and related matters.
Reviawing with the management . andinfemal auditers fheoadeguacy efintemal inancial contrals and rsk manogarmant.
Reviewing the adequacy of intemal aualt function, including the audit charen approval of the audl plon ond ks execution,
coverage and frequency of Internal audi,
Diseussion with internal auditons of any significant findings and follow-up therson,
Reviewing the findings of any infernal investigotions by fhe internal auwdlicrs Info moiters whene thare is suspected froud or rreguiarty
orafallure of internal control systems of o material nature ard reportirg the matter to the Board.

Lookinginta the raasons for substantial defoults in pavments to the sharehaldses (in cose of non-poyment of decloarsd dividends) and
creditars,

To raview the funciioning of the Whistla Blowear mechanism,

Approval of appointment of the CFO (Le. the whaole-time Finonce Girector or any other person heoading the finaonce. function of
discharging that function) after assessing qualifications, expanence ond bockground, etc, ofthe condidote.

Fecommeandatianal the Policy on Related Party Transoc tiors.
Carmy out such othar funchions o may be specifically referred to the Cormmmittes by the Board of Directon or ofher Commilttes of
Directors.

it 1he Tinansial year 2024-28 Audil Comrmitlae rmel lour limes an 217 Meay 2024, 077 Aggus! 2004 047 November 2024 ane 127
Fabruary 2025, The time gop between two comsecutive mastings wos e than 120 cdoys, asis required under Regulation 702 and
BCE () of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirernents) Regulations, 20145,

Mecessany quornem wos present af all fhe aobove Meetings.

The Audit Committes Meetings ore attended by the Managing Dirgctorn Chief Fnonciol Officer ond outhorlzed repressntativei of the
Statuton Auditons ond Intermal Auditons, The Company Secretany aots asthe Secretary to the Audit Committes,

The chalman of the Audit Committes was presant ot the Annual General Meeting of tha company held on 24" Septembar 2024
through Video-Conferancing.

Al members of the Audit Committes hove occounting and financial monagement knowledgs and expertise,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 (Z_E}



&

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Composition and Atendance during the year

A of 317 March 2025, the Committes consists of 3 (fhres) mambes, all ars Non-Execullve Independant Directon. The members of (he
Audit Cammittés hoave relevant experdencs in financicl mathers as wall g hove accounting of related financial maondgeanmeaent
expartise and are consiclarad linancially Frerate gz delined in Regulation 180100 of the Lsting Regulations, The Chairman of the Audlt
Committes has sxper knowladgs inoccounts & finonce, camporales lows, ond govemancs maliers,

The composition of the Audit Committes of the Boord of Directors of the comparny and the details of the meetings oftended by its
members during the financial yearended 31" March 2025 are osunder:

Diractor Category Status Dale of Meeatings Yo of
21.05.2024 07.08.2024  04.11.2034 12022025 atlendance

fAr, B Vijayodural MEID Chalrmon (AR (AP WC [AFY {1]

Mr, K, Krishnomoortty MEID hemisr (VCD CD V) 0D 100

s, Mamirmegalal

Thangaomarn MEIC: Memiber (W) (V) (W) (Lo BO

OVCiattanded through video conference; (AP = attended In parson; LOA=Laava of dbsaence; NA= Not appdicabla; Man-Exscutive
Indapendant Diractor (NEID), Mon-Exacuflve Director (MED)

Internal Confrols
fhe company has o formal system of intemal control which examinas operational effectiveness ho ensure reliobiiity of financial and
oparational, information and all statuton fregulatany compliancss,

Nomination and Remunefation Commiftes
Tha Momiration and Remuneration Committes (MRC) has bean constituted by the Boord in compiance with the requirements of
Section 178 of the Companias Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI{Listing Cbiigations ond Disclosurs Requirementsl 2015,

The braad termns of refarance of the Mamination and Remunsiation Committes ang s undarn

o [ojdentity peosons who o qualfied 1o become directans and who moy be oppointed insenion monagement in acocordoncs
with thecriterda laid down, recommend to the Boord thalr appointment and remaoval

Tocarry outan evatuation of every director's performonce.,

To farmdiata the critarla for detarmining guallfications, positive atfributas, and Independaence of o dirgctar,

o recammend to the Board a policy relating to the remunstation for the dikectons, key managenal pesonnel, and ofter
employess,

To identify persons who are quofified fo become directors and who may be appointed insanlor manogement in accordance
with the criterio loid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

To carry outanevaluation of every director's parfarmance,

Totarmulate the criteda for determining quallfications, pasithve attibutes, and Inde pendence of adirectar,

L]
-
Composition and Attendance during the year

A5 on 315t March 2025, the Mominotion and Remunemtion Committes consists of 3 (Three Non-Executive Directos, of which 2 (hwo)
Directors are independent Directors. Mr, B VEayadurai s the Choirperson of the Committes,

lhe chalrpensan of the committes atfendsd the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24th Septamber 2024 fo angwer
fhe sharahoiderns’ olsries,

Quring the financlal year 2024-256, fhe Committes met on 217 May, 2024, 07" August, 2024, 04" Movember, 2024 and 28" February 2025,

fhe composition of the committes and the details of maetings aftended by its membans dulng the finoancial yaar ended 317 hMarch
2075, are ghven bekow:

Diractor Category Status Date of Meetings % of
21.05.2024 07.08.2024 04.171.2024 28.02.2025 aottendance

flr, B Vilayadural MEID Chairmcan (AR AP (i) (V) 100

M & Annarnalol MED Mamber (AP [Py (W (VT 100

M, K, Erishinamoortiy HEIL hember (VIC) (V) (W) V) 100

VO-attended through video conference; (AF-attendead in person; LOA-Leave of abisence; NA-NOt applicatsie; Non-Executive
|mctsrendent Director (MBI, Non-Executive Direator (NEC)

Remunerafion Policy

Thie Momingtion ond Rermuneration Committes hos odopted o policy which, interglio, degiswith the monner of selechion of fhe Board
of Directors, Key Monageral Parsonnel and their remuneration. The Policy is availoble on the company’s
wabsifelwww narmadagelatines.com),
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Remunanation of Direciors:

During the year under review, thare was o pecuniany relafionship o fransactions between the Company and amy of Its Non-
Exacutive Direcions, apart from sifting fees, commizsion (f any) and reimbursement of expenses incurad by tham for the pupose of
attending the mestings of the Company.

Dwring fhe Firaonciol Year 2004-25, the Company did not odvance any foan to any of its directors or companles and firms in which
direciors are interasted,

a) Mon-Executive Director's compensation and discloswes

The Non-Executive Diractors, Inciuding Indepandant Directors, ara poid siffing fees for affarding the maatings of the Board and
Commitiess of the Boord, The Campany pays siifing fees of T 20,000/ per meeting o the Non-Executive Directons for affending
Meaatings of tha Boord, 210,000/ per mesting for atterding tha Audit Committes Meaeting and ¥ 1000004 per mesting for aftending
Momination and Remunearotion Committee, Stakeholdar's Relationship Committes Maeting and Independant Director's Mesting

Sitting fees pald to the Mon-Executive Directars durng the FY 2004-25 ore o= detalled below:

Director's Nome % lacs)
M. 5. Annarmolal 1.80
M 5. Mahsswaran 1.00
Mr. B Vilonyadural 220
Wrs, Manimegalal Thangameani |40
. K Knshnamoorthy 220

b} Manoging Director and Execulive Director(s)

The remuneration pald 1o he Monoging Executive Directosiof the Compony 15 appraved by the Board of Directons on the
recammeandation of the Namination and Remunaration Commities, Remunsration of the sxecullve directons consists of o fixed
componen! and o variable performancs incentive, Tha Momiralion and Remunaraltion Commities makes an annual appoisal of
fhe performance of the Managing, Executive Directar(s) based on o detalled perfarmance evaluation, and recammends the
camparsation Doyabile to them, within he parametars approved By the sharahalders, o the Board for theair appraval,

Cin tha recommendation of Momination and Pemuneration Committaa In itz meating held.on 147 August 2023 ond subject to fhe
approval of members inthe 42 annual general meeting held on 28" Septemier 2023, the Board of Directon re-designated M. Ashok
K Kapur as fhe Monaging Director of company w.e.f. 01° June. 2023 and extendad the fenure of service fo three years, e, up to 317
Wy, 2024, ot the remuneration as detailed hereunder:

Remuneration, perquisites, allowances and benedfits: Amount (T
1 Remuraration:
Basic Poy 250,000 prm.
i) Perguisites & Allowances
HRASCompany Accommodation 50% of the Bosic Pay 1.25, 000 pm.
Comayance Allowonas 15000 o,
Special Allowance J0.000 i,
o 's contribution to Provident Fund £12% on the bosic as per the Company's nules) 30,000 pm.
Tokal 4.50,000 p.m.
Leove Travel Allowance COne-manth basic poy
Madical reimbursarment of actual expenses / alowance forsall and family COne-manth basic poy
Personal Alloworce 1,600,000 pao

Annual Incremeant: 10% on the Baslc pay,

Performonce bosed bonusfincentive:  On achisving an EBITDA (Before other income and interast income) of # 20 Crores — & lakhs
cnthe On ERTDA above T 20 crores, on addifional 1% of the EBITDA above ¥ 20 crores

The aggragate volus of the salary ond perguistas paid for the year ended 31" March 2025 fo Mr. Ashok ¥ Kapur (Managing Dirsctor)
wias T 66,26 locs, Basides this; the Managing Director = entitled 1o gratulty and sncashment of isave at the end of fenura of service.
The agreemant with the Managing Director is for o perod of 3 years from he dote of appaintrnent Le. up 1o 315t May 2024 ond the
sarme con ba ferrninated by aithes party by giving thres monthe” notice inwriting.

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee
The canstitution of the Stokeholder's Relationship Committes meets with the requirements of Section 178 of the Compoanies Act, 2003
and Reguiation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Ciigotions and Disciosure Reguiresmentsy, 2015,

The Cormmittes specifically iooks Inta the varkaus ospects of inferast of sharshoiders, debeniure holders ond oiner security halders,
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In farms of Sechon 178 (5 of the Act angd Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulafions, the terms of reference of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committes are asunder:

e Resoling e grisvonces of tha sacunty holdaers of the sted entity including comploints relafed 10 ransten Transmssion of shones,
ricn-receipt of annual report, non-recelpt of deciared dividends, lsues of naw /duplicate certificates, genamal maatings efc.

& Reviewof measuras taken foreffective exaercise of voting rights by shareholders.

o Review of adherence 1o the s@rvice standares odopled by the lisfed entity in respact of varous senvices being rendered by the
Registra: & Shars Transfer Agent.

» Review of the vorous meosures ond inifigtives takean by the listed antity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring firmety receipt of dividend warrants Jannual reparts Sstatutory notices by the shareholders of the company.
Recommend methods to upgrade the stondard of services to investors.

s Monitorimplementation and compliancs with the Company s Code of Conduct for Prohisifion of Insicer Trading.

& ‘Camy cut any other funchion as s referred by the Board from time to fime and Jor enforcea by any statutory notification/
amendment or modification as may e applicable.

e Perfommsuchother functions as may be necassary of aporopriata far the paerformances af s dulies,

Ason d1st March, 2025, the Stakeholders Relgfionship Commities comprised of 3 (fhree) Directons comprsing 2 (hwo) Mon-Executive
Independeant Direcicn ] (one} Executive Directon Mr, K Kishromoorthy, Indepandent Director is the CThaiman,

M K. Ershnamoorthy the Chalrman of the Committes aftended the Annual Genaral Mesting of the Company heid on 247
Sepiember. 2024 through video conleranes facility to addess ihe shareholderns gueanes,

Durng the financial year 2024-25. the Committee mef on 127 Febmwary 2025. The Commitiee oversees the status of invesions
grievances, During the year, one complaint was received from the sharebwolder which hove been resolved to the satisfaction of the
complainants and no investor complaint was pending at the beginning o of the end of the year.

The composition of 1he Slakshoiderns Relolionship Commiltas and 1he details of The maslings oltendad by ils membens during e
finenclal veor ended 317 March 2025 are as under;

Director Caotegory Status Dofe of Meeting % of ottendance
12.02.2025

M. K. Krishnomoorihy MEID Chalerman VIC) 100

W Ashok K, Kapar ED Member (AP 100

e B Vijonvodural MEID Mamber [AR) 100

{WCrlotendad through video conference; (AP) - atended in person; LOA-Leave of cbsence: MA- Not opplicoble; Mon-Executive
Independent Drector (MEID), Non-Executive Director (MED); Executive Directar (EC)

MName and designation of Compliance Officer

Curirg the pancd under revigw Ms. Maeanu Sharma, Company Secretary was the Compliance Officer il 387 Jure 2024 tharaafter Ms.
Manima Patkar, Company Secretany, was the Compliance Officer w.e.l 07" Aug. 2024 for comelying with the requirements of SE&I
Reguiations.

In arder to provide efficient senaces to Investors. and for speedy redressal of the compiaints, the Committea has delegated he
power of opproving tronsmission of shares and other motterns ke spit up/sub-division ond consolidation of shares, issue of new
Jduplicore cerificatas, consolidation ond exchanges, to Mr. Ashok K Kopur, Managing Directorn, M Mahesh Yerrmno (upto 077 Janeany,
20253, M, Arun Jalswal {weef 157 March, 2025) Chief Finoncial Officer and Ms, Meana Sharma (uptc 287 June, 20243, Ms, Mahima
Pothar (wee £ 07" August, 2024), Company Secretany.

Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) Commiitea
The Compary has consfituted o Campente Social Responsipdity (C5R) Committes as required under Section 135 of the Compandes
Act, 2013, The termig of reference of the CER Commilttes broadly comprisas:

e Toreview the exsiing C5R Policy and fo make It more comprehensive so o3 o indicate the activities 1o be undertaken by fhe
Coampany osspacifisdin Scheduis Wil of the Companias Act, 2013,

s Jaracommend the amount of axspenditure fo ba incurrad on CER activities,
& Toprovide guidonce onvearnous CER activifies 1o be undertaken by the Compony and to monitor its progress.

The Board hos adoptad the C5R Palicy as fomulated and recommeanded by the TSR Committes. The same Is disployed on the
website of tha Company teww.narmodagsiatires.comd. The Annua! Report on CSRactivilies for tha yaar 2024-25 forms a part of the
Boord s Report.

Ason 31" March 2025, the Comorate Social Respansibiity (CSR) Commiltes comprisad of 4 (foun) Directonss comprising 1 (one) Mon-
Executive Independent Director 1 (oned Executive Director and 2 (hwod Mon-Executive Non-independant Qirectos M § Annamalal,
Mon-Executive Non-independent Director is the Chalman. M § Annomalai the Choirmaon of the Committes otiended the Annual
GaneralMeeting of the Company beld on 247 September 2024,
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Diuring tha financial year 2024-25, the C5R Committes met one time on 217 May 2024, The compaosition of the C5R Committes and the
defalls of members’ participation at the meetings of the Committes are as under:

Director Category Status Date of Meeting % of aftendance
21.05.2024

W & Arnamala HED Chairman (A 100

M 5 Moheswaran MED hamb-ar (W} 100

. B Vijoyadural MEID Mearmber LAP) 100

M Ashiok K. Kapur EC: Mambear {AZ 100

WC)-attended through video conference; (AP)- attended in person; LOA-Leave of absence; NA-Mot applicable; Non-Executive Independent
Directar (NEID), Non-Executive Director {NED); Executive Director (EC),

Risk Manogement Committee

Tha Risk Management Committes of the Company has been constituted o frame. implement and monifor the Risk Manogemenit

Pian for the Company. The Committes is responsible for reviewing the Risk Manogement Plaon and ensuring s effectivenass. Major
rigks identified by the businesses and functions are systemaficady oddressed through mitigating ocfions on a continuing bosis.

Ausiness Risk Evaluation ond Moragemenl s an ongaing process wilhin the organisalion. The Company has o mobust sk
managamant framework o identify, monitor ond minimize reks os olso dentify business cpportunities,

The objectives andscope of ihe Risk Management Committes broadly comprisas:

Crwversight of rigk management perflommad by the exsculive managemen,

Rendewing tha Risk polley and framewaork in line with local legal requirerments and SEBI guldelines;

Reviswing risks and evaluates reatment including inficting mitigotion actions and cwnership as per o pre-defined oycles;
Defining framewark foridentfication, assessrment, monitaring, and mitigation and reparting of risks,

Within its overoll scope as oforesaid, the Committes shall review reks trends, exposure, potentiol impact analysiz and ritigation
phan.

Duing the financial year 2024-25, the commiffes meat on 31"March 2005,

Tha composition of the Risk Monogement Commiftes ond the details of members’ paficipaticn of the meetings of the Committes
are asunder:

Director/Members Category Status Date of Meeting o of
31.03.2025 ottendance

M 5 Annarmctal Mor-Exsculive Non-Indepandant Diractor Chairrman (AT 100

M, Azhol K, Kapur Manaoging Director hiernbar (AP 100

hr. Suthir K, Shevastava Factony Manager Mierniber (E ] 100

M. 5, Bhoiftachanya .M., Cporations Miernber (LA 100

M WML Tripothi Managear Maintenance hEmitaer (AF) 100

(VCi-attendad through video conference( AF-attendad in person; LOA-Leave of absance: NA=NoT applicable.
(13 M VAL Tripathi wos appalnted as the Member to the Risk Manogement Commitfes w.e.f 01.01.2025 and during his fenura 1
Lone) meeting washeld.

Complaints Committee

The Company has in place o policy for prevention of ssxual harassiment ot workplace, The policy of the Comparny i3 Im ine with the
ragulrarnants of the Saxual Horassment of Women al the Workploce (Prevantion, Prohbibitlon & Redregsal) Act, 2013, All amployeas
(parmonent, canfraciual, temporany and frainess) are coverad undar this policy, An Infarnal Compiaints Committas i§ in plocs o
redress the complaints recanved regording sexunl harassmen!, The compasition of ihe Commities i as under:

Director/Members Category Status

Mir, Ashiok K, Kopur Managing Diractor Chalrman
Dir, Sushma Rajput Breslding Cfficer Member
. Kalpana Mishra From NGO Mamkbrer
M. Sudhir K. Shrivostova Foctory Monoger Mernber

Mo comploint was recelved by the Company during the financlal year ended 31° March 2025
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

in complianoe with Regulation] 705} of the SEBI (Listing Oblkgotions ond Diclosura Requinements), 20015 ond the Compantas Act, 2013 the
Board of the Company hos adopted the Coda of Businass Conduct & Etnles (the Code”), The Code s oppllcobie fo ol Drectors and Senlar
management pasonnel of the Company, The Code. white loving down In detail fhe stondords of business conduct, efhics and
governance, cantas's on fhe following theame:

The Company's Board of Directors ond Ssnior Monagement Personnel are responsble for corduct of the business, ond are committed to
satting the stondards of conduct contained in this Code and far updoting thesa standands, os appropiote, to ensure fhelr continuing
relevance, effectivensss and responshvenass to the needs of Investars aond oll other stakeholders os abso to reflect corporate, legol and
regulatory developments: Al the Boord members and Senior Monagement of the Company 05 on Morch 31, 2025 hove affimed
complionce with their respective Codes of Conduct in accordance with Regulafion 2603 of SEBI (Lsting Cbligations ond Disclosure
Requirernents) Regulations, 2015, A copy of the Code has been put on the Company's webste (wew narmoadagelatinegs,com), The Code
has bean circuloted to Directors and Manogament Persanned, ond Hs complioncs s affirmed by therm annually, A daclaration signed by
the Managing Director of the Company to confimm that the Compony hos adopted a Code of Conduct for its DEectors.and employvess of
the Company s given below

Compliance with the Code of Conduct

| Asholc k. Kapur, Managing Director of the company, heraby declare that the company has adopfed o Code of Conduct for its Board
hMembers and

Barior Manageman, in lenms of Regulalion 1705y of SEBI (Lsting Obkgation: and DEclosuwes Requirsments) Regulations, 2015 and the
Boord Meamitzars and Senior Managemant hove affirmed complionce with the said Code of Conduct of Boord of directons and sarior
rmanagement.

Date: 24" Moy, 2025 Ashok K Kagpur
Ploce © Jobalpur hManaging Diractor
GEMERALBODY MEETINGS

Lacation and time where the lost three AGMs were held, whether any spacial resolutions possed in the previous thres AGM:, The lost three
Annsal Ganal Mestings of the Company wers hald as urds:

AGM  Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolutions
&1" 2021-22  Hotel Mamada Jacksons,  Thuriday, 22nd Septamber,  None
Sath Chvl Lines, 20022 at 1130 am

Jakxalpur - 482001

&2 2022-23  Hotel Mammadao Jacksors,  Monday, 25th September, i Re-appointmernt of Mr. Ashok K Ropur as the
South Civil Lines, 2023 at 12:00 noon Monaging Directar.
Jabalpur - 452001 iy Appointment of M 5 Annomaobal as Director of the
COMEpany.
iy Appointment of M 5 Mahesworan as Director of
tha company.
Yy Appolntment of M B Viioyadural os Indepandent
Diractor of fhe company,
vl Appolntment of Ms. Manlimegalal Thangomani os
Independant Director of fhe company.

s 202324 Hotel Mamado Jacksors,  Tussday, 24th Septemioer, Re-appaintment of M 5. Maheswaron as Mon-txecutive
Salithy Civil Linss 2024 at 1200 noon Neon-independent Direchar
Jabalpur - 482001

Exfroordinary Ganeral Meating:
Mo Extroordinary General Meating of the members was hald during the financial year 2024-25,

Postal Balic

Dring the yaor endad 317 March 2025 no rasolulion was possed thvough postal balla!, Currenlly, no resolufion s proposed 10 be possed
theough postal ballot, However, i required, the sames sholl be possed in complioncs af provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Listing
Regutations orany other applicatle iows.

AGM vio Video Conferencing / Other Audic Visual Means

The Ministny of Corporate Affairs CMWMCAT nos vide its General Circulor Mos, 14,2020 doted Aol &, 2020 and 17/2020 doted April 13, 2020, and
subsaguent circulars ssued in this regard, the lotest being /2024 doted September 1%, 2024, (Collectively refermed to as "MCA Circulars”
hos permitied fhe companles to hold their Annual General Meeting ASM} through Video Conference ("WC") of through Other Audio
Viseal Meons ("OVAMT), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, {'the Act ), the Secwurties and Exchonge Board of Indio (Listing ObEgations and Dhisclosure Reguirements)
Regulofions, 2015 {"SEBI Listing Regulations™}, and Secreforiol Stondosd-2 on Seneral Meeatings (552" lssued by the Institute of Compiany
Secretaries of India and MCA Clrculars, fhe 4dth AGM of the Company s being held through VCOAYM on Monday, Sepf, 22, 2025, at
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11:00 aum. (5T The proceedings of the AGM are geemed to be conducted at the Registereda Office of the Company siwated ot CARAVSR
Mo, 28, Civil Lines, J1ABALPUR, Modhya Praodesh, India, 482007

Ramota e-voling and E-voting at the AGH

The carmpany hos amranged e-voling and Remate E-veting Focillfies far the sharaholders to vate on tha resciutions 1o be possed al the
ansuing ACM. The Compony hos fwed Monday. 15" Septembern 2025 o the cub-off dote for determining shorehaldes entitled o
participate in the e-yoting process, The foclity for e-voting will oo be ovallobie ot the AGM. and the shareholders who hove not casted
thelrvotes by remete e-voting Can exerciss their votes ot e-vating durrg AGM,

DISCLOSURES

Compliance with mandatory requirements

Tha Company has complied with ail the applicoble mandatony reguirenents of the Listing Regulations during the fincncial year 2024-26.
awartety compllance repot on Corporate Govarnance, in the prescribed formal, duly signed by the compilonce officer iz submitted
regulasy with the Stock Exchanges whare the shanes of the Company are listed,

Furttiar, in lirse with fhe SEB (Listing Obligations and Disciosurs Raquiramants) (Third Ameandment) Regulations, the Cormpany has also filad
the Integrated Comporats Governonce Report in thefarmat specified by 5261 within the prescribed ime lines,

Related Party Transaclions
The Company has formulated a Polley on materallty of Retated Party Transachions ond on dealing with Related Party Trarsactions. In
accardance with Refevantprovisions of Compdnies:Act 2013 and Usting Regulations,

All Related Parly Transashions are approvad by the Audil Commilles prior o he ransaction, Al ronsaclions enlersd inlo wilh Related
Parfles as defined undes the Compories Acl, 2013 and Regulations of the SE8I (Listing Obligalions and Disclosure Reguiremenits),
Reguictions. 2015, duwing the financial year were in the adirary course of Business and-on an arm’s length pricing basis ond as per the
prreadsions of Section 188 of tha Companlas Act, 2013,

Thare were no matenally significant transactions with reloted parties during the financlal yeor which were in conféct with the Inferest of the
Company,. Attentlon of the Shareholdes s drown to the disclosures of tronsoctions with the retated porfies set out in Motes on Financlal
statements, forming port of the Annual Report,

The Policy hos been disclosed on the webste of the Company at www.namadageiatings.corm.

Sirictures and Penatties

The Company hos complied with all the reguiremants of reguictony authorities. Mo other stictures ar penaolties hove been imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchanges or the Securifies and Exchonge Board of Indéa (SEEl) or any statutory aurhority on any matters related 1o
capifalmarkets during the last three years, except during the year 2021-22 there was a delay In compbiance with Regulction 1701) of SEBI
tListing Obligotion and Disclosure Requiramants), Regulation, 2015, for which penalty was imposed on the company, the same wos made
good on 19 November, 2021

CEO & MD/CFO Cerfification

Tha CEC & MD and the CFC have ksued cerificate pursuant fo tha provisions of Regulation 17(8) SEBL {Lsting Obdgations and Disclosure
Requirerments). 2015 cafifying that the financial statameants do not contaln any untiue statement. and these stataments reprasant o s
cnd fairview of the Company's affalrs, The sald cadificate s anmexed ond forms part of the Annual Report,

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistie Blower Policy

The Company believes In conduating it alfain ina fair and ransparent monner by adopting the highes! stondards of prolfessionalism,
honesty, integrity and ethical behavion Ary octual or potential violation of these prirciples ond the Company's Code of Conduct for
Employess wiould be o matter of serous concanm for the Compary,

Employeas have a mle and responsibility in pointing out such viclations: This Whistle Blower Policy iz formulated to provide o secle
amdronmant and to encouage employeas of the Company to report unefhlcal, uniowiul o Improper proctices, octs or octivitles inthe
Cornpany and 1o prohid rmanagernal pesonnel from faking any aodverse personnal action against those empicyees wha report such
practices in good faith and no parsonnat had bean denied access ta the Audit Committes.

The Cormmittes offirms that one complaint hos Deen received under tha Whishia-Blawer Palicy/Vigh Mechanism during 1he vaar unciss
reviaw, same s being resolved,

Code for Prevention of Insider Troding practices

As per SEBI (Prohibifion of Insicder Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company hod cdopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading and Code of Conperate Disclosure Practices (which includes Policy on Determination of Legitimate Purpose). All the Directors,
ermpiovees and Hhird parties such as-guditors, consultands, etc. who couid hove gccess o the unpublished price sensliive Information
of the Company are governed by the sald Code.

Tha Cods of Conduct for Pravantion of nsicer Trading loys down guidalines advising tha Maoragameant, staff and other connectad pesons,
an praceduras to be followed and disclasurss to e mads Dy them whils dealing with the shares of the Company, and whilla hancling ary
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. coulioning them of Ihe consequences of viclalions, [he Company Secretany s responsibie lar
implemeniationof Ihe Code.

Tha troding window |5 closed during the fime of declaration of results and on the occurmence of any maienol everts as per the code. The
Code of Corporate Disclosure Procticesis hasted onthe website of the Compony and con be accessed abtwww . nomodageiotines.corm.

All Directors and designoted emplovees have canfirmed compliance with the Code.
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During the yearundes raview the Audit Commiftes has reviewed the complionce with the provisions of The SEBI Insider Trading Reguiations
ond hasverified that the systems got indernal control are adequote and opearating effectively,

Legal Compliance Reporling
Tha Board of Direciors reviews in Getall, on a quarrady basis, the report of campdianca with respect fo all lows and regulaticns applicable o
the Company,

The Compony has devaloped avery comprehansive Legal Complliances System. Any non-complionoe s sanously taken up by the Board,
with fcation of occourtabiiity and reporting of steps taken for rectificotion of non-complionce,

Recommendations of Committee(s) of the Boord of Directors
During the year, all recommendations of Committee(s) of the Board of Directors, which are mandatorly required, were occepted by the
Board.

Means of Communicalion

The quarterty, half-yearly and yveaorly financial results of the Company ors sent to Stock Bxchonges iImmeadiately after they are approved by
the Boord. The quariary / onnual resulis are generally publishad Inat leoast one English languoge notioncl daly newspoper crculating inthe
wiiie of subsstantially the whitle of Incic (Financial BExpress | Hitavadaiand in one regional dally newspaoer ciriculating In Madtya Pradesh
such az, Navieharat . Dashbandbu, Dalrik Brhaskear, Mel Durba and Parike,

Pursuont to the MCA circulars and SEB| Circutar, the Annual Report for FyY 2024-28 containing the Notice of AGM waossent through emaol to all
those Mermbers whase email IDs were registerad with the Campany/ Depositony Participants.

Anriual raports, quartady resulls; sharehalding pattem, notices. press ralease. stock sxchongs disciosuras and athar impartant infarmoation
of the Company are also posted on the BSE website and the Company's websie www narmadagelatines com,

Manogement Discussion and Anabyss Repaort forms port of the Annual Report.,

Communication related to Dividends and updation of recornds
Tre Cormpany Bsues varous communication such os rerinder ketters fo shorsholdars for clalming unclaimed dividends, updomon on PAN,
Baonk datails, signature, and other detalls, ond natice befare transfering sharas are ioble to fransfer to |EFF,

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Usting Centre')
H5E's Lisfing Cantre is o web-based application designad for coporates, Al penodical cormpliancs filings ke sharshalding pattem,
corpoiate Governances repaort, media releases, among cthers are also fled electronically on the Listing Centre,

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in g cenfrgiised web-bosed complaints redress system, The sakent features of this systermn are
Centralised dotabase of all complaints, onling upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and onfine viewing By
imvestors of actions taken on fhe complalnt and its curment status,

GEMERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

(il Company Registration Details: The Company 15 registerad in the Stote of Madhya Prodesh, India. The Corporate Identity
Murnber {CiMallofted to the Company by the Minisiny of Corporate Affairs (MCAY s
L2411 TMP 196 T1PLCO 1 6023

i 64" Annual General Meeting Monday, 22 September 2025 at 11:00 am,

Vanue: Hotel Normnoda Joacksons, South Civll Lines, Jabalpur-4820017
(i) Fimonckal Yeon Aprl 1 toMarch 31
(v Finoncial Calendor 2024-25: First Exaarter Rasults 07" August 2024

Second Suarter Results ;04" Novemnbear, 2024

Third Suarfar Resuits 12" February 2025

Reasulis for tha guartar, ond
Annual Results for he yvear

ending on 21" March, 20256 ¢ 24"May 2025
) Cut-off date; 157 September 2025
vy Dividend payrmant dote: Cividerd o recommeandead by the Baard of Directors, If approved at the Annual Genaral

Meeting wil be paid affer 23° September 2025 fo those shareholders whose names opoear
on the Company’s Reglster of Mambars on 15" Saptembar 2025

(wiill  Listing of Shares and other Securfies: Bombay Stock Exchange Umited (8581 Phiroze Jesjesbhoy Towers, Dolol Strest, Mumbai-01
(x) Stock Code: Senip Code Bombay Stock Bxchange (BSE) "526739" Compary Symibol: SHAWGELTIN

(k) Stock Morket Doto: The monthly high/low markst prices of the shares dunng the yeor 2024-25 aof The Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) were as unden (T per share)
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Month High Price Low Price Trading Volume
Apr-z4 414.70 a27.80 4395
Mary-24 A34.80 25855 93951
Jun-24 A07.00 352,00 49430
Juk-24 404 95 7630 ApLHEE
Aug-24 A16.00 360.20 73632
Sop-24 414.00 35520 1258684
Oict-24 388.95 33000 Bid4s
Nov-24 366.00 332.65 53305
Dec-24 A4 .40 3a0.00 239615
Jon25 395,95 335,00 64551
Feb-25 357.95 - 301.00 44614
fiar-25 352,00 J08.25 ba244A
(Source BSE website)
™ Share price performance compared with brood baosed
BSE
Company’s share Price A5 onl.04.2024 5950
As on 31.03.2025 33250
-Ch::lnga 7500
BSE Sarsey Ason 1.048.2024 T3.968.62
A5 on 31.03.2025 TFA90.65
Chonge 24.56%
. Performance of Share price in comparison to the BSE Sensex
Stock Price Vs Sensex Movement
A50 | I' RD0OC
400 i - Booar
asn | : 7000
= e I | A000C
3 25 I = BDOOC X
= 200 | 2
s [ 1= A000C a
g 150 | |
160 | SRR
] o
a - : . : . N ; . - 1000
K] 2 a A 5 & 7 i L= [T | 12
MONTHS —il— EloceMiosfaGL
O EE Sarsen

Mote | Manihly closing price vs. sensex.

. Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
B, Managemenl Services Pyl Lid
Rosol Court S floor
20, §ir B N Mukheres Road,
KOHLKATA = 700000
[l Mo 033-401 1 6700
Emall : rtoiichmsl.com,

Webmsite  wwwi.chimsl.com
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. Dividend declared on equity share for the last five years

Year Rote of Dividend Per equity share Dividend Payout Tlocs)
2015-20 106% 10,00 H04.96
2020-27 TO0% 10,00 S04,

2021-22 1005 10,00 604,56

2022-23 (Inferirm Dividend and

Firral Dividend paid) 00 [ s Xnn] B05.59
2023-24 100% 10,00 404,594

. Detaits of Public Funding Obtained inthe last three years
The Comgany has not obtgined any public funding in the last three years,

. Share fransfer sysfem
Im termns of Regulation A1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from fima fo fime, securtlas can be fransfermad anly In
dermaferialized farm with effect from Al 1, 2019, except In cose of request recelved for transmilssion or transposition of securitas,
hMembers holding shares in physical form ane requested to consder comverting thelr holdings fo demateralized form. Tronsfers of
equity shores in electronic form ore affected throwgh the depositores with noinvalvernent of the Comparny.

. Demateralization of Shares-Process

With effect from April 07, 2017 SEBI has barred physical transier of shares of listed companies and mandaied (ranstes only through
demat. Howewver, investons are not barred from holding shares in physical form, We request shareholders whose shares are in physical
modeto dematenalize thelr shares. Sharshalders holding shares in dematenalized maode have beanreguasted 1o register thel emall
address, bank occount detalls and mabile number with thelr depository parficipants, Those holding shares In physical mode have
e requastad 16 furmish Iheir Permanesn! Account Mumber (PAN}, ermad addreas, bank accoun detalls and mobils rnumbes with the
Compory’s Registror and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). ot ta@chmslcom. Updoting all the relevant informotion will enotble
sharehoiderns to recaive dividends and communications on time,

For convenience of sharaholders, the proceass of getting the shares demateralized is given hereunder:

a)  Demataccountshould be opened with a Depositary Participant (D).

bl Shorebolders shoukd subanit the Dematerdalizotion Request Form (ORF) along with share cedificates inodginal, 1o thalr DR
) DPwill pracess the DRF and will generate a Dermatenalzation Reguest Numiber (DRM),

di  DP will submdt the ORE ond odginal share cedificotes to the Reglstrar and Transfer Ageants (RTA), which B C. B Managemaeant
Sardoas Pyt Lid,

&) [TA wil process the DEF and confirm arrgiect fhe request o DR depasitaras

fi  Upon confmation of racuest, the shoreholder will get cradit of the equivalant number of sharas In his demot account
rnairtalned with the DF,

e LstingFees
Aneuc shing Tees for the veor 2024-26 hove Desn poid 10 1he Bomboy Stock Exchangs Limited (B5E) whars Ihe securnilies of 1he
Compary are fisted,

in compliance with the Listing Regulations /SEB| Guidalines:

. A Practicing Company Secretary camies out the Reconciiation of Shaore Copital Audit oz mandaoted by SEBIl, and reports on the
reconciiiction of fotal lssued ond listed Copital with that of total share copital admitted /held In dematedaolized fonm with MSOL and
CD5L and those held in physical formn: This oudit B camed out on o guarterly basis and the report fhereof is submitted fo the Stock
Exchonge, where the Company'sshares are [sted ond s olso ploced before the Board.

. Shareholding pattern and  finoncial results (guartery) and the Anneal Reporsionnually) o baing uploadad on
wiwrw listing. bseindic.com.

. A Practicing Company Secretary cames out a Dus Diigence survey, perfalning fo share fransfers, fransmissions, efc annualty and
necessary cartificate fo that effect b Bsued and the same is filed with the Stock Exchanges In compiance with #Reguiation 4005} of
thiz SEB| (Listing Obligatfions and Disclosure Requirements) 2015,

somifted wef, 12" Decamber, 2024 vida SEBL{ILODR) third Arnandments Regulations, 2024,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 {3_5)



% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

. Distribution of Shareholding

Range (Mo, of shares) Shareholders Equily Shares
Mos % to Total Mos, % to Total
Shareholders shares

Upto 500 7248 Q4 724 AA974 7.35
&01-1000 238 309 185700 an?
1007 =2000 100 1.30 147054 243
2001-3000 14 041 g2090 Q.81
S001-4000 14 18 48827 021
4001=-5000 12 014 54938 0:%1
500 1-10000 26 24 181493 3.00
MDD andabove 20 0.24 AG0A502 81.07
Tatal 7711 100.00 S049587 100.00

. Demateralisafion of shares as on 315t March, 2024

Category MNa. Shares %o ?;';d I

Crermat 4014715 29,42

Prwsical 34572 0.54

Total 4049587 100
Deiracit
ST

= Shareholding paltern of the company as on 31st March, 2025

Category Noof  No. of shares % holding
shareholders
Promoters 2 4457489 75.00% vt R WaR D% Cleding Copalior
il
MR 100 8798 dir i JEFF 24 HUF 50
lndllcr nstitutions 1 350 0.071% Touts O0T%
MNationalised Banks il Q 0.00% it L
Domestic Companies 42 B30 1.38%, Peritriefhis CO00%
Dornasie < cmiparies
Limited Liability Partnership a 76 0.00% 1.38%
Public Shoraholders 7254 1305792 21.65% WAlGHEARGA B
Blrecton/Ralatives 1 1050 0.02% Tk i
|EFF I 24334 0.40%
HLIF 154 54244 0.90% —
Clearing Corporation 1 150 0.00% =%
Trusts 1 400 0.01%
Total 7560 4049587 100.00

Mote:Diffarance in the Number of Shareholdans in distribution of shareholding and shareholding pattern dus to merging of
Shoraboiders os per PAN.

. Reqistered Office:
‘Corgyvs’, Foom No. 28
15 Civil Linas. Jobalpur-48200 1{M.E) Ph.: (07413 2678827

. Address for Correspondence To the Company:
MNarmaoda Selatines Lmded
28 Caravs, 15 Civll Lines, P.O. Box No.¥1. Jobalpur-d82001

To the Registror & Share fransfer Agents:

C.B, Manogement Sandces Py, Lid

Resol Court 510 flaarn 20, 3 R N Mukheres Rood, KOLKATA = 700001
Tel Mo: D33-4011 6700

Emall: ta@comsl com, Website: www.cbmsl.com

. Plani Lacation
Meargan), Bheraghat Rood, Jabalpus, M2,
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Transter of Unclalmed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

A5 reculred under Sactions 124 and 125 of the Companiss Act, 2003, all unclaimed/unpald dividend, debenturs inferest as well o
principal amaunt of debanturas as af March 31, 2025 ramalnitg unpald o unclaimead for a period of seven yaors from the data theay
bacams dus for payment, hove beean fransternsed to the Investor Bducation & Profection Fund (EPF) established by the Canfrol
Government

The Investors are advised o cloim the unencoshed equity dhvidend money for the years 2017-18 o 2023-24 ving In the unciaimed
accounis of the Company biefore The due dates {as indicatedin the Motes to the Naotice).

During the financialyear 2024-25, the Company has fransfanad 1o he iInvestor Education and Frotection Fund, uncloimead dividends
a5 clelailed hereunder

Equity Share Lincloimed Dividend 2016-17: ¥ 1,85 094/-

Transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund

I farme of Saction 124 (a) of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Rude & of the investor Education and Pratection Funa Authonity
CAcoounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (asamended from fime to fime) shores on which dividend hos not been paid o
cloimed by o shareholdar for o pened of seven conssoutive years ar mare shall be credited to the Demal Account of Investar
Edugzation and Protection Fund (IEFF) within o pedod of thirty days of such shores becoming dus o be so transferad, Upon transfer of
such shoves, all benafits (ke bonuses, etc. ), Ihany, accrung onsuch shares shall also be credited ta such a Demat Account and The
voting rights on such shares shall remialn frezen 1l the rghtful owner claims the shares, Shares which are tfransferned to the Demat
Account of IEPF con be claimed bock by the shareholdar from IEPF by following the procedure prescibed undes e oforesoid ks,
Therefars, It 15 0 the inferast of shareholders to regukary clalm the dividends declared by fhe Company.

Dwuring the fincncial year 750 equity sharas of the Company wera tronsfered to tha [EPF. Relevont deddils of such sharesis availoble on
thewebsite of the Company www nomodageiotines.com

Cartificate from a Company Secretary regarding disqualification of Diractors

The Secretarnal Auditors of the Company D, Asim Kumar Chottropodhyay hove sseed o cartificats that nona of tha Dinectons on the
Boord of the Company have been debarred or dequallfied from belng oppointed or continuing as Direcion of Companies by the
Boord/Ministry of Corporate Affals or any such statutony autharity. The same s onnaxed harawithas o port of thisreport.

Certificate on Corporate Govemance

Complionce cerificate from O, Asim Kumar Chottopadhyay, Practicing Company Sscratary, confirming compliance with the
congitions of Corporate Governance o stipuloled under Schedule W of the 5201 (Usting OkBgations and Disclosure Requirsmants),
Regulotions, 2015, s attached to the Directors” Report forming part of the Annucl Repart

CEQ/CFO Cerfificate

The Monaging Director and the Chief Financiol Cificer provide annual cerification on the finoncial reporfing and intemol confrots to
the Board in Terms of Regulotion 17(8) of the SEBI {Listing Obligotions ond Disclosure Reguiremenis), Regulatians, 2015, The Wihole-Time
Director ang the person heading the Accounts funchion oo give quartery cerification on the fimancial results while placing the
finonciol results before the Board In terms of Regulotion 33(2} of the SEBI (Listing Oofgotions aond Disclosure Reguiremnents),
Regulations. 2015, The annual cerificate for the financial yeor endad 31 °March, 2025, given by the Maonoging Directar and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company s published hereunder,
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[=3
Tre Board of Directors Narmada Gelatines Lid. Jobalpur

Suby Complinnce Cerlificate for the year endead 315t March 2025 s per Reguiation 17(8) of the SEAI (Listing Obligations and
Disclogure Requirements), Regulations, 2015

i,

Pumsuant to Regulation 1708 of SEBI (Usting Oiligations and Disclosure Requirements), Fegulations. 2015, we herety certity that, to
the best of our knowledges and belisf

A, That we have reviewsd financlial stotements ond the cash flow statament for the year and that to the best of our knowledge
and belief:

1. these stgtements do not contain any matenally untrue stotement or omilt ory moterial foct or contain statements That
might ba misheading;

4 these stotements together present a true and falr view of the company's affairs and are in complionce with exlsting
accounfing standards, applicabie lows ond regulafions

B, That, to the bast of our knowledge ond belief, no fransactions wene enterad into oy the company duting the yaar which are
fraudulent, llegal onvioiolve of the company s cods of conduct,

T That we aoccept responsiblity for estatdishing and maintaining intemal contrals for financial repeding and that we hove
svaluatad tha effactivensss of intemal confral systems of the company sefaining to financial repoting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committes, deficienclas in the design or oparafion of such internal controls, IFany, of
which we are aware and the steps we have laken or propose 1o take fo rectify hese deficisncies,

0. Thatwse hovendicated to the auditons and the Audit committes:
1. Sgnificant changes in intemal contral over financial reporting during the year, if any,

2. Sgnificant changes in accounting palicias during thea yedr, IFany, dnd that tha samea have bean disciosed in the notas to
the fincincicl staternents and

3. Instanceas of signifficant frauds of whlch we have become aware and the invalvemeant tharsin, If any, of the managsment
or an employes having o significant rols in the compaory ' s internal confrol system over financial reporting,

Thaarking you,

Sk~ S

Ashok K. Kapur Arun Jaiswal
Managing Director Chigt Financial Officer

Floce: Jabalpur,
Dicite: 24" May, 2025

On beholf of the Board of Directors
5. Annamalal Ashok K Kopur
Chairman Manoging Diectaor

Place : Jobalpur
Cote: 137 August, 2025
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ISSSUED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
Ta The Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited

| have exomined the complionce of the conditions of Coporofe Govermnance by Namodao Gelatines Limited (CIN
L2ATTIMP1RS1TPLCONS023) ¢ 'the Company ) far thie vear endad on 3 15t March 2025, os stipulated In The Sacurifles and Exchonge Boord of
Inchor (Listing Obligations And Disciosura Requinemients) Regulations, 2015 and The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Listing
Chbligations And. Discloswre Requinements) (Amandment ) Regulations, 2018 ond other Amendment thereof (heminafter collectively
refemad toas * Listing Reguioticns") ;

The complignoe of the conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the managemeant, My examirnation waslimited 1o meview
of procedures and Implemantation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensurng the complionce of the conditions of Corporate
Sovernance. [t snaither an ouwdit nor an expression of opinion on the financidl stolements of the Company.

In my opinlon and ta the baest of my Information and occording to the explanatians glven to me, and tha respresentations moda oy the
Diractars ond the manogerment, | cerify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corponate Govemnance as stipulated |n
Listimg Reguldtions during the year endead 3 15F March 2024,

| state that such complionce s nefther on ossurance o8 o the fubure viakility of the Company nor of the sfficiency or effectivenass with
which the manogement has conducted the offairs of fhe Compaony.

Dr. Asim Kurnar Chattopadhyay
FCEMG. 2303, CREE0

PR Mo, =&375/2026

Date : 20" Apdil 2025

LIDEN ¢ FOD2303 0001 54585

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE REGARDING DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) ond Schedule ¥ Para C clouse (10} () of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20153

The Membaears,
Marmocko Gelatines Limitea, Coravs, Room Mo, 78,
15 Civil Lines, Jobalpur— 282 001

| have examined the relevant reglsters, records, forms redurns and disclosures recelved from the Directos of Narmoda Gelatines Lmited
CTIM G L24T T TP 1924 T PLED14023) and having registered office ot Carows, Room No. 28, 15 Civil Lines. Jokbalpur - 482001 (heretnafter refemad
to gz "the Company”) produced bafore me by the Company for the purpose of iBsuing this Cedificate, in cococordance with Regulation
34i3randSchedule V Pora C clouse 1000 of SEB (Listing Tbligotions ond Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations. 20045,

n my opirton and fo ke best of my iInfoarmation and cocoding 1o the vediications (ncluding Directors Identilicafion Numbear (DIMNDY status
at the partal www moa.gov.in. as considered necassany and explanations furmnished to me by the Campany and its officers, | emeby cerdtify
that none of the Directors on fhe Board of the Cormpany s stated below as on the Financial Yeor ended 315t March, 2025 hos been
debarsd o dsgqualified from being appointad or continuing as Directors of the Cormpanies by e SEBL MOCA o any such ofher Statutony
Avthoriby,

Sr.No. DIN Hame Designation Date of Appointmant
L 02797916 Kailasam Krishnamoorthy Director 21/09E0e]
3 00126807 Ashok Kumar Kaput Managing Director 01/06/200
a 00001381 _Annamalal Sankaralingam Dirsctar 14/07/2023
5 00143046 sarkaralingam Maheswaran  Director 14/07/2023
& 07403507 Balasubramarnian Yiayadural Directo 14407 2023
7 10254123 Wanimagaoial Tnangamani Director 14/07 (3023

ersurng the eligibdity for appaintmsant ( confinulty af avery director on the Board is iespongibiity of the Maragaement of tha Cormpany. My
rasponsbility & 1o express an oplnion based on my verlfication. This cedificats neither an assurance as to fhs futues viabiiity of the Company
nor of fhe efficiancy ar effeciivanasss with which the manogement hos conducted fhe affalrs of tha Company,

Dr. Asim Kurmnar Chaltopadhyay
FCEMo. 2303, CP&a0

PR Mo, —6375/2025

Dote : 207 Apnl 2025
UDIM : FOO2303G000 155943
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Indepandent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of
Normada Gelatines Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financlod Stotemeants

Opinion

We hove audited the necompanying standalans financial statemeants of Narmoda Gelatings Limited {the Company®), which comprises
of Baloncs Shast as ot March 31, 2025, the Stotament of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprahensive Incoms), the Statarmant of
Changss in Equity and the Stotement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes fo the standalone financicl statements including a
surmmaory of materal accounting policies ond other sxplanatory information.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according o e explonations gliven to us, The aforesald stanoglons financial
stotements give the infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) Inthe monner so required and give airue and fair view In
conformify with the Indian Accounting Standards prascribed undar Section 133 of the Act read with Companias (ndion Accounting
Stondords) Rules, 2015, os ameanded, (Ind A57) and other occounting principles generally cccepted in Indla, of the state of affalrs of the
Company as af March 31, 2025, ifts profit (including other compraheansive incoma), chongas in equity ond its cash ficws for the year ended
onthat dote.

Basis for Opinion

We conductaed ouraudi! inaccondoncs with the Standords on Audifing (S4s) speciled undersection 1430100 of the Act. Ourrespansibiities
wrickes those Stondards are further described in the Audilon's Responsbiliies fon the Audit of he Finorncial Stalemants section of our repor,
Wi are independent of the Compony in accordance with the Code of Ethics issusd by the Institute of Chortered Accountants of Indla
AN togethar with the athical raguiremants that ara relevant to our audit of the standalore linanclal statements under the provisions of
tha Act and the Rules made thereundern, and we have lulliled our other ethlcal respansibiifles in occordance with thess requirernants and
Ihe Code of Eihics.

We befieve that fhe oudlt evidence we howve cbiained Is sufficlent and appropriate to provede a basls for our oudit opinlon on the
stondalone finoncial stofements.

Key Audit matters
Key audit mathers are these matters that, In our profesionad judgment, wara of most signilicance in our audt of the standalares financial
staternents of the current perod, We have determined hot there are no key audit mmathens o communicate n our repoet.

Information Gther than the Stondoiones Finonclal Stotements and Auditor's report thereon

The Campany's Bodrd of Rirectoss s responsible for the other Information. The Other Infarmation compdses theinformation inchuded in the
Baoard's Report including Anrsxuras fo the Board repod bul doss not includes the standalone inancial statermants ond ow auditor's repornt
therean. The reports are expected to be mode avallable to Ls ofterthe date of thisauditar srepont,

Cur opinion on the stancalons finoncial stotements does not cover the other information and we do not express ony form of assurance
conciusion thiereon,

In connection with ouwr oudit of the stondaions financial statements, ow responsDiity 5 1o read the ofher mtormation and, in doing s,
cansider whathar the other Information & matadally inconsistent with the standolons finoncial statements o our knowledge citalned
cluring the courss of auraudit ar afherwise appaars fa be materally misstated.

When we read the repor, if we conclude that there & a material misstatement therein, we are required fo communicate the matter to
thosa chargedwith governonca,

Managemeant responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Boord of Directors i responsiode for the matters stated in Section | 3405} of fhie Acthwith respect to the prepantion of these
stondaione financial stalemeants that give a tree and for view of the finoncial position, Enancial perfarmance (ncluding other
comprehensive Income), changes in eguity and cosh laws of the Company In accordance with the accounting princigles genarally
aocaptad in India. Including fhe Accounting Standards spacified undar Saction 133 of thie Act. This responsiblity o Includas
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordancs with the pravigions of the Act for safeguarding of the asssts of the
Company and for praventing and detecting frauds ond ather Iregularitles, selection and applicafion of opproprote oocounfing policies;
making judgmeants ond estirmates that are reasonable and prodent; and design, iImplementotion and maointenance of adeguaote infernal
fingnclol controls, that ware operating effectively for ensuring the acourocy and completenass of tha accounting records, relevant 1o the
preparation and presenfation of the standolone financial statemeants that give a tree and falr view and ore fres from materat
misstatamant, whsthar due 1o froud of e,

in preparing the standalons financial stotements, manogement s responsible for ossessing the Company's ability fo continue as o going
concern, disclosing, o8 applicable, matterns relofed 1o going concemn ond using the going concem bosk of occounting unbess
management either infends to liguidate the Company or fo ceose operaticns, or hos no reolisic alfernative but o doso,

The Board of Directors are dlsa responsible for oversealing the Campany s Tinanacial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemeants

Cwur chiectives are 1o obtain reassonable osurances about whether the standalare finonciol statements os o whole are free from moteriol
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or eron and toissus on ouditor’s report thot includes our opinion, Reosonabie assuronce 50 high ievel
of assurance, but s not o guorontes that an audit conductad in occordonce with 54z will always detect o motarial misstatemeant when |t
endsts, Misstotemeants con arse from froud or eror and are considerad matenol if, individually arinthe oggregaote. they could reasonobly be
sxpected tonfusnce the economic decisions of users faken on the bosis of these standalone finoncial stataments,
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Aspart of an audifin occordonce with 545, we exercise professionol judgment and mainfaln professional skepticim throughout the oudit,
W also

™ |dentity and ossess the risks of materal misstatemant of the stondolone financlal statements, wheathar due to foud or erorn, design and
parfarm audit procedures responiivie to thasa reks, and abtain oudit evidence thotis suffickent and approphiale to pravide o basis for
our oinian, The sk of not detecting a material misstotemant resulting from frowd s higher thon for one resulting from eror, o froud
rnay Invakve coliusion, forgery, iIntentional ormissions, misreprasentations, orthe cverids of intarnal control

. Oiotain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the oudit n arder fo design audit proceduras thot are apgropriate in the
circumstances, Under Section 1433)() of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinicn on whether the Company has
adequote intarnal finonclol conirols systar In ploce and the operating effechivensss of such controls.

™ Evaluote the approptlatenass of occounting policies used and the recsonablenass of accounting astimatas and related deciosuras
rmiccie by the monagsmearnt.

™ Conclude on the appropratenass of manggement's.use of the going concern basis of ooccounting and, based on the awdit
avidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty exsts related 1o events or conditions that may cost significant doubt on the
aentity’s abiifty to continue Os a going concem, Ifwe conclude thaot o motenal uncerfainty exists, we are reguired o drow aitention in
our guditor's report to the redated discloswres In the standalone financial statements o, if such disclosures ore inadeguate, fo modify
aur opinion. Cur conclusions are bosed on tha oudit evidence obtainad up to the dote of ourauditors report, Honwever, futung events
orconditions may couse the Company to cease fo continue as a gong concern.

. Evaluate the overall presantation, shuctuse and cantent of the standalone financal statements, Including the disckasdras, and
whather the standalons financial stofemeants reprasant the undadying fransactions and events in a mannes that achievas falr
presentation,

Matenaiity is the magnitude of mEstotements in fhe standalone finoncial statements that individually or in oggregate makes it probable
that the economic decisions of g reasonobiy knowledgeable user of tha stondalone financlal statements may be infiusnced. We considear
quarntitativa motericlity ond gualtativa factos In ) planning the scope of cur oudit work and inevaluating the results of ourwork and () to
evoiuagte the effect of any identified misstotements In the standalone finoncial stotements,

Wie cormmunicata with those chargad with govarmance regarding. amang ather mcattes, the planned scops and Himiag of fhe audit and
significont audit lindings. including any signifficont deliclancies in infermol confral that we identify during our audit,

We also pravide those chorged with govemonce with o statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarging
Imdependence, and o communicate with them all relafionships ond other matters that may eosonably be thought fo bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matlens communicatsd with hase chamged with govermancs, we deleming those matters thal wera of most significonce in the
audif of (he standalone financial stataments of the curren! period ard are, heretong, 1he key Gudil matters, We descrbe these mallers in
ol aucitons rapat unlass [aw of fegulation preciudes public distiosura about tha matter of when, In extremsly fore cicumstancas, we
aietarming that amatter should not be commumicoted in our report bacause the oodvenss consaquences of daing 50 would reosonably be
expecied tooutwaigh the public interest bensfits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuont to the Companias (Auditor's Report) Order, 20080 the Order”), Bsuad by the Central Government of Indla in teoms of suls-
saction (11)of Section 143 af the Acl, we give in Ihe Annexure "A" o statemant on [he molles speciiied in parogrophs 3 ond 4 of the
Crcler,

= Asraquired by Saction 14303) of fhe Act, we repart that:

(@l We hove sought and obtained all the information and explonations which 1o e best of our knowledne and belisf wee
necassany (orthe purposes of ouraudit,

(b In aur opinlon, proper books of account s required by low haova been kept by the Company 2o far ai It appearn: from our
examination of thosa books.

{cy  TheBalonce sheet, he Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehersive income), Staterment of Changes in Eguity and
the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are inagreemeant with the books of occount.

(ef) I our opirion, the aforssaid sfondolone linoncial sialements comaply wilh the Accounting Slandards specilied uncar Saction
133 of the Aclread with Companies (ndion Accounting Standards) Rulss, 2015,

(=) Onthe bask of the witten representations recelved from the dinzctors as on March 31, 2025 token on record by the Board of
Directors. none of tha direciors s disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed oz a Dirsctor in terme of Sacton 164(2)
of the Act,

(1 With respact to the adequiocy of the Internal financlal controls over financial reporting of the Company and the opeating
effectivensssof such confrols, reler to ourseparate Report in Annesure "B

(ol Withrespact fo the otharmatters to ke included in the Auditor' s Report In aocorance with fhe requirements of Section 197014)
of the Act, in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and acconding 1o the explonations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Cormpany ta its directors during the vear s in accondance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act,

{th}  With respect o the matters fo be Included In the Auditor's report In accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
AuditorsiRubes: 2014, in our opinicnand fo the best of curinformation and according tothe explanations given fous:

I The Compony hos discliosed the impact of pending itigotions on s finoncial pedormancs in s standalone financiol
statermnents. (Refer note ne 3dto stondalone finoncial statements)
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II. The Company did not hove any long-tem contoch including derdvotive contracts for which there were any moterial
foresseable loses,

lii, There has been no delay in fransfering omaounts, reguied to be fronsferad, fo the Investor Education and Profaction Fund
By the Compary,

. {o} The Maonogement has represented thaot, 1o the best of its knowledge and bellef, no funds fwhich are moterial either
individuaily ar In the aggregate) hove been advonced or looned or invested (efher from borowed funds or share
prermdum or any offver sources or kind of funds) by the Company fo or In any other person or entity, inchuding foreign
anfity (lntermediaries’), with the undestanding, whether recorded inwrifing or otherwlse, that the Intermediany shal,
whether, directl or iIndirecty lond to orinvest in ofher persors of enfithes [dentified In any monrer whotsoever by of on
behalf of the Company (CURmate Beneficiares™) or provide any guarantes, security or the ke on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiaries

(Bl The Managemant has iepraseniad, that, o the best of its knawledges and Belisf, no funds (which ore matenal aither
incdividually or in the ogoregota) have been received by the Company from any person of entity, incieding foeian
enfity ("Funding Partiss", with the undenstanding, whather recorded I witing or otherwiss, that the Company shal,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend 1o or invast in other persons or enfitiss identified in any manner whatsosver by oron
ehalf af the Funding Porty CUltimate Baneficlaniss™) o provide any guarantes, security or the ke an behalfl of the
Uttimetes Bensficianes,

(o) Based on the audit procaduras thot hove been consldered recsonable ond appropdote Infhe clrcumsiances, nothing
hos come 1o aur motics that hos caused us e believe thial the nepresentation undear subs clousa ) and N of Rue 1 1@ of
The Compankes (Audit and Audiforsy Rules, 2014, as provided undar (g) and by above, confalns any matedal
misstafemant. (Refer Nota i, 50 (v} & () 1o the standalone financial stotamants)

v. The dividend poid by the Company duwing the year B In accordance with Saction 1232 of the Act. Assiated In note 45(c) 1o
the stondalone fimancial stafements, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year 2024-25
which is sulject to the opprovai of the memiberns at the ensuing onnual general meeting. The proposed dividend declared is
inoccordoncawithSechon 123 of the Act o the extent it applies to the decloraficn of dividend,

vi, Bomed on our axaminiation, which includsd test checks, the Company hos used soccounting software for maintaining ifs
accaunt Books for ihe inonciol veor ended March 31, 2025 which hos o feature of recording oudil rail (it log) facilily and
the sormie hos apented throughout the yeor for all relevant tronsactions recorded in the soffware. Further, durng the course
of owraudit we did not come agrass any instance of the audt trall feature being fampered with, The Company s in
complioncs with the preservation of audit trai gs per the statutony requirements for record retention,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accourdants
Arm ragistration Mo, - 301051E/ E300284

E. P. Baradiya
Floce: Murmbal Partner
Dafe Moy 24, 2025 Mermbershio Mo, 44101

LIDHN: 25044101 BMIVNCE958

Annexure A"
Reterred lo in "Report on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements” section of our report to the members of Narmada Gelatines Limiled for
the yearended March 31, 2025:

On fhe bass of our @xamination of he books and recornds of the Company caried out inoccordonce with the ouditing standords genarally
acoaptadin indio and oocording tothe rformeation and explanations given toous, we state that;

I (o 8

Inrespactof Company s Property, Plant ond Equipmeant (FPE) and Infangible Assats:

A. The Company hasmalntained proper records, showing full particulors Including quonfitative detals and sifudation of PPE and
refevant detalls of ight-to-use assets

8. The Company has mainfalined proper records. shawlng full parficubars including quantitative detalls of infangiole assets:

As explolned fo us, the Company hos o phased program for physical verdfication of all the PPE over o perod of three yaars. Inour
opEnlon, the frequency of verification s reasorable considerng the size of the Company and nature of its PPE. Pursuont o the
program of the physical verification of PPE, physical verfication of certaln PPE haos been camed out during the year ond on the
bBaesls of our exomination of the records of the Company no motesial discrepancies were noticed on such vertfication,

According to the infarmation ard explanations ghven to us and on the boss of Sur sxamination of the racards of he Campany,
the title desds of immovable properfiss disciosed in the stondalone finoncial stotemsnts includad uncer FRPE are held in the
name of the Company

The Company hoas not revalued any of s PPE (including rght- of-use assets) ond intangible assets dunng the year. Hance
reporting undar Clavse 3d) of the Order i not applicable to the Company.

According to the imformation and explanations given to us, and on the bosis of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, naither any proceedings have beean Infiated durng the year nor are pending as af March 31, 2025 for holding any
benami property under the Benomi Transactons (Probibition) Act, 1988, as amendead, and rules mode fhereunder and hence,
repofimg under Chouse (e} of the Order is not applicakie o the Company, (Refer Note no. 50 (1} to the standalone fincncial
staternents)
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(o) The Inventories hove been physically verlfied By the monogement ot reasonable intervals during the year, except for goods In
fraarsit, The coverage and procedusss of physical varfication of the inventorias folowsd by the manogemsnt are reasonoble
and adeguate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of it's business, Goods in transit hove besn venfied by woy of
subsequent recelpt/confirmations. As per the Intormation ond explanotions given fo us ond an the basis of examination of
recards of the Company, no discrepancies of 105 ormore in the aggregote for each-cioss of Inventony was noticed on physical
varfication of inventaries as compored 1o book reconds.

() Baged on our audlt procedurss and on the basis of information and sxplonations given to ws, the quarsarty returms of stafamsnts
filed by the Company with bonks in respect of working copital are inagreement with the books of occount of the Comparny,
Imrespact of Invesiment In, provided any guaranies or securty o granted any loans of advances In the noture of loans, secured of

unsaciured, fo compaonies, firms, Limited Liakiity Pardmerships or omy other portles:

() According to the information and explaonations given to usand on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has
rot providead any loons o advances in the nature of Inons or guarantes or provided security fo any offher enfity and hence
reporting under Clause 200 is natapplicabie to the Company.

() According ta thenfarmation and explonaticns given fo us and on the boss of cur exominahon of the records of the Company,
Irvastmant made are in the ordinary cowse of business and accordingly in our opinlon, prima facle, not prejudicial to the
Comipany’s Intansst, The Cormpany hcs not provided any guardntess, ghan cny securty and grantsad oy loons and advancas
i fhve nartura of loans and guarantes,

()  According to the information and explanations given to ws and on the basis of cur examination of the recards of the Company,
thie Company has not granted any koans or odvonces in the noture of loans ond hence reporting under clauses e, (d, (e)
and (f) of the Orders not oppicabla tothe Company,

According to the Information and exslanations ghvan 1o us and on the basls of aur examination of the records, the Company hos
compliadwith the provislons of Saction 1B5and | 86 of the Act, ta tha éxtent applicabla with respect fo tha iInvestments made durlng
the year. Thie Company bos nal provided any loans, guamniess and secunliss 1o porties coversd under seclion 185 and 156 of Ihe
Act,

According to the Information and explonations given tous.ond on the basis of examinaton of reconds, o deposits or amounts which
are deerned 1o be depdsts hove been acceptad by the Company within the meaning of Saciicn 73 to 76 or ony other relevart
provislons of the Act and the Companles {Acceptancea of Deposts) Rules, 2014 {as amended). Hence. reporfing under Clause 3(vi of
tha Order s not appticable to the Company,

According the information ond explonaticns given fo us, the Central Government hos not prescribed maintenancs of cost records
under clouse (d) of sub-section 148 of the Act, Accordingly, the provisiors of Clause 3 (vi) of the Order are not appliicable fa the
Company.

to) According to the information and exglanations givern to us and on the basis of our examinotion of the records. the Compony (s
ganerally ragular in depositing undisputad stotutony dues iIncluding goeds ond sendcas tax, provident fund, emplovess' stale
[rsurance, Income tox, sales fax, custam duty, duly of exciis, value added fax, cass and ofher statuton duss dutlng the yaar with
the appropriate autharties, Mo undisputed amounts payabie in respect of the afonesoid statutony dues were autstanding as ol
the last day of the tinancial year for a pedod of more than siomonths from the date they becamea payabile.

(bl According to the information and explonations ghven to us, there are no statutony dues menfioned in Clouse vii (a) which hove
not been deposited on account of any dispute exceptthe foowing:

MName of the statute MNature Amount Period fo which Forum where dispule
ofdues Tinlakhs the amount relotes is pending

The Cantral Exclea Act, 1944 Exciza Duty 240.88 2000-03 High Court, Jaboipur

todnvo Pradesh WAT Act, 2002 WAT .76 2012-13 Deputy Commissions:, Jatalpur

WP Land Rervenus Coda, 1959 Land Revenus Tax 2557 2017-18 Commissionar, Jabalpur

The Income tox Act, 1961 Income Tomx 7.85 Ay 201314 Commizssloner Appeals

*Also, refar nota no, 34 () o the standalans financial statements

Wil

According to the information ond explanations given to us and basad on our examinotion of records of the Company, thare wers no

amaunts to be recorded in the books of account that hove been sumendered or disclosed os income during the year In the fox

assessmients under fhe Income Tax Act, 1861 {43 of 19611, Hence, reporting under Clouse 304l of the Order B not applicobls to the

Company.

() Bosed onour audit procedures and on thie bosis of infermiation ond expianations givan 1o us, the Cormpany hos not defaulted in
the repayment of laans or other Bonowings o in the poyment of Infersst thereon toany lends:

() Ontihe bosks of infermation and explanaticns given o us, the Company hos not been declared os williul defoulter by any bank or
financial Instihution o otherlende:.

() Inour opinion ond occording to the information and sxplandtions ghven to ug, the Company has applied term laan for the
purpose fonwhich it was obtained,

(ol Onanoverall examinafion of the standalonea fimanciol statermants, in cur opinion, the Company has not utilized funds ralzad on
shiort termn basis for long term plrposes.

{2y Based on our oudit procedures and an the basis of information and explanations given to ws, the Company hos not foken any
funds from any entity or perscn on account of of fo meet the obligotions of its associate. Accordingly, the provisions of clouse
Aixde) of the Order i applicable to the Comparny.
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(fi Bosedon ow aud/t procedures and on the bosis of informotion and explonations given to us, during the year the Compoany bos
naot roised any funds on fhe pledge of securifies held in s osociote. Accordingly. the provisions of clouss 3000 of the Order is
applicable to the Comoany.

(o1 The Comparny nos not raised any monsy by woy of Initicl putlic offer o further pubiic offer dncluding debt instrument dising the
year and hence, reporing under Clause 3(x) of the Order s not appllcable ta the Company.

{by The Company has notmade any preferentfial allotment or private placement of shares or fully or portly converiicle detbenturas
during the year ofin the recent past and hence, reporiing under Clause 30x{D) of the Crder s not applicakée to the Company

() During the course of our examination of the books of account and other records of the Company comied outin occardance
with the genemlly accented auditing stondords and bosed on the infermation ond explanations given 1o us, we report that no
fraud on the Company or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. Howaver, during the yvear, a whistie
biower complaint was recelved by the Company alleging certain unethical practices conceming the operations of the
Compary, Assxplained in nate 46 of the financiol statemants, on enduiny by the manogement with the suppor of an extemal
agency. b was found that the allegations wers mens surmise and devoid of any substonticl evidence which arg lsgally tenakie.
a fogrmal report from the sald agency 5 owaolted ncluding thelr suggestions fo strengthen the intemal confrod meosunes,
betterment and smicoth funchioning of the Campany.

(b1 Dusing tha yaar, na rapor is raduired 1o Ba Tled with the Cantral Governmeant undes Saction 143 (12) of the Companias Act, 2013
a3 the individual instance of aisged unethical practices mentioned in the whistle blower complaint do not excesd the
prascribad lmit mentioredin the Act ond Rules.

(cy  As part of ouroudit procedures performed ond occording o the information ond explanations given fo us, we report that we
have faken infa considenation the soid whistle-blower complaint received and dealbwith by the Company during the year.

Ir cur ppinion and goccording to the information and sxplanations given to us, the Company 15 not a Nidnl Company and hance,
reparting urder Clause 34l of the Order s not applicakls to he Company.

According to the informaotion and explanations gliven to us and bosad on our examinaticn of the records of the Campany, all fhe
trarsactions with reloted parties are in complionce with Saction 177 and 188 of tha Act and all the details have been disclosad inthe
standalone financlal stotermeants as reguired by the opplicable occounting stondard. Rater note. 37 o the standalone fincncial
stofernents.

(o According to the informotion ond explonations glven to us and bosed on our examination of the records of the Campany, the

Compoany’s infernal gudit systemn s commenswrote with the size and noture of its business,

() We nove consderad the intermal audit repars far the vear under audit issusd 1o the Company during the year and il date, In
datenmining nature. Hming and exfent of our audit procedurss,

According 1o the information and explonaticns given o us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has not entered Infe any non-cash fransactions prascribed under Section 192 of tha Act with directors or persons

conneched with them durng he yaar.

(@) The Company s not regquired to bs registersd undsr Section 4514 of the Reserve Bank of Incia Act, 1934, Hence reparting unds:
Clouse 00 (ad, () ond (o) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(by A per the information and exsplonafions glven fo us and as per the definifion of Group under Core Investrment Companias
(eserve Bonk) Directions 2014, thans are no Cora investment companies forming port of thea group.
The Comparny has natincured ony cash losses dunng fhe curent finaoncial year and in the mmmediately preceding financial year.
Thare nos baen no esignation of the stotutany auditons of the Company durlng the yaarn Hence reporting under Clauwse S0l of the
Cirdder s not opplicable fo the Company,
According to the inforrnation and explonations given fo us and on tha basis of the financial ratios, ogaeing ond expacted dates of
recisation of finoncial ossefs ard payment of financial liabilites, ofher infarmation accompanying the stondolone finoncial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Dlrectors and Management plans ond bosed on ow examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which couses us o believe thot any moteral uncertainty axlsts as on
the dote of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeating its labiities exsting af the date of balance sheet as
and whean thay fall due within a pencd of one year from the balaonce sheet date. We, however, siafe that this is natan assurance asfo
the future viabllity of the Company. We further state that our reporting s bosed on the focts up fo the date of the oudit report and we
nadtner ghve any Quorantes nor any assurance that all lokbdties fSlling dus within o pedod of one yaar from the balonce sheet dote.
will getdischarged oy the Company as and when they fall due.
Thera are no unspent amounts fowords Corporate Sociol Responsiblity (CSRY requinng o transfer fo afund specified in Scheduls Vilto
the Componies Act In compiance with the second proviso 1o sub-section (&) of Saction 135 of the said oct, Accordingly, reporting
under clouss Alx) of the Order are not appicable fothe Company,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Charlered Accourtanls
Firrm regestration MNo. - 3000518/ E300284

R. P. Baradiya

Place: Murmbal Partnar

Daota

s May 24, 2025 Mambaiship Mo, 44101
UDIN: 2504410 TEMIVMNCAF5E
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Annexura ‘B
Refened fo in ‘Report on Other Lagal and Regulalory Requirements” section of our report to the members of Namoda Gelatines Limited for
the year ended March 31, 2025:

‘Wa hove audited tha intfemal inanciol contrals over finonclal reparting of tha Narmoda Gelatines Limited (“the Company®) as of March 31,
2025 In conjunction withivour audi of the standalona financial stotements of the Company for the year ended onthot data.

Manogement's Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Boord of Directon of the Cormpany 13 responsiiie tor astablishing and maintaining Infernal finoncial controls based on the Intamal
cantrol aver linancial repaorting criteno establishad by the Company considerning the essential componant of intemal control stoted in the
Guidoncs MNote on Audit of Intemal Financial Confrols Gver Finonciol Repaeding ssued by the Institule of Chartered Accouniants of India
CAL, These resoonsioiliies include the design, Implementation and maintznonce of adequats internal finoncial controls that were
operating etfectivaly for ansuing the orderdy and efficient conduct of its busness, inchuding adherence to company’'s policles, the
safeguarcing of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and srmors, the occuracy and completensss of the accounting recaornds,
cmnic the limely preporafionof reliable financialinfarrmation, as required under ihe Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibiitty i 10 express an opinion on the Company’s Intemal financlal contrals over financial reporting Based on our audir We
conducted our audit in accordonce with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Condrols Over Finoncial Reporting (the
“zuidance Mote") and the Standards on Audifing deemad to be prescribed under Section 1430100 of the Actfo the extent opplicoble to on
cudit of Intermal fimancial controls, both appiicable fo aon audit of Infernal finonclal controls ond both issued by the ICAL Those Standords
and the Guidance Noterequire that we comply with-ethical requirements and plan and perform the audif to obiain reasonable assurance
about whether odequate inferna financial controls over finoncial reporting was established ond mormtained and if such controls operated
affaciively inall matedial respects,

O audil Involves perfarmeng procedures fo obtoin audit evidence aboul the odequacy of the intemal financial contrals systam over
financial reporting ornd their operating effectivensss. Quraudil of intermal financial controls aver linanaial reparting includsd oblaining an
undesstanding af intarnal financial contrals aver financial reparting. asssssing the sk that a matenal weaknass exlsts, and testing and
svaiuding 1he design and oparaling elfectivenass of iInfemal contral bosad on the dsatsed sk, The proceduies selecied depand on the
aruditor s judgmenl, including the assessmant of the sk of materdal misstatemeant of tha standalars fnonciol statemeants, whslher dus o
froned o ermor,

Wa beleve that the oudit avidence we hove cbiained s sufficierd amd approgriate 1o provide a basis for our oudit opinlon on the
Company’simtemal financial controls system over finonclal repoding.

Meaning of Intemal Financial Confrols Over Financial Reporting

A Company's infernal finonciol control over financiol reporting is o process designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the
rabability of financlal reporing and the preparation of standalane financlal stalements for extemnal purpases in accordonce with genarally
aocapted accaunting prancipies. A Company's irfarmial financial contral aver financial reporting includss thase policies and procedurss
that (1} partain 1o the maintenancs of reconds that, in reasanable detall, accurately and faily reflect the transactions and aspositions of
the assets of the company: (2) provide recsonable ossurancs that ronsactions ore recorded o necessary to pemit preparation of
stondalonea financial stafamsants in occordance with genarally accepted accounting principlas, and thot recelpts ond expanditurss of the
entity are belng made only In accordance with authorlsations of management; and (3} provide reasonabile assurance regarding
prevention ar fimealy defaction of unauthonised aoquisifion, use, or disposition of the entity's osets that could hove a mafernal effect on the
standaiones financicl staterments (4 also provicde reasonabile assurance by e intermal auditons hrauagh thel intsmnol audlt reports gvan o
the entity frorm fimsa to time.

Inherant Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Anancial Reparting

Becouse of the inhersnt imifations of intemal finonciol controls over financiol reparting. Including the possibiity of collusion or iImprops:
managemeant averide of controls, materal rmisstatements due to eror or froud may acour and not be detectad, Also, projections of any
evaiuation of the Internal financicl controls over fincncial reporting to future perlods are sublect o the sk thot the iInternal finoncial confrol
ower financial reporling may become inodeguote because of changes in condifions, or that the degres of complionc e with the policies o
proceduras may deterorate, )

Qpinion

In our opinion, to tha best of aur Information and accarding 1o the explanatians givan to-us, the Company has, breadly. In all maternial
respects. aon adeguate nterrsal finoncikal controls system over finoncial reporting and such imtesnal financlal confrods over finonciol
raporting wera cperating effectively as ot Morch 31, 2025, basad on the internal control over financial reparting critera estoblished by the
Company considardng the esartial comporsert of Intarmol confral stated in fhe Guidance Note on Audt of Intermal Fnonclal Controls Owver
Financlal Regorting ssuad by the Instihute of Charfered Accountants of India,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountarts
Fireri registration Mo, - 307051E/ E300284

R. P. Baradiyva
Floce: Mumbal FPartner
Dote: Moy 24, 2025 Mermbership Mo, 44101

UDHMN: 2504470 TBMIVMNC %55
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
s at 315t March, 2025
(Al arounts in Indion rapee lakh, wnless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS MNotes As at Asal
313l March, 2025 318t March, 2024
ASSETS
NON-CURREMNT ASSETS
Property, plant and agquipment 3 329767 260208
Copital work-in-progress 4 67829 47.81
imtangible assets ] - -
Financial asseds;
- Invesiment In an associafe & 4,115.31 -
- Other Investments -+ 9&60.48
- Loans 7 1404 Q.09
- Dithar financial ossets 8 147,18 6642
Incomea tax asats {net) 49.52 43 35
Other nor-curmant ossets ¢ 6. 74 F3.29
Total Non-Current Assels 8.385.77 401269
CURRENT ASSETS
Invantorios 10 a,657.37 4,650.43
Fnancial asseis,
- Tradle recelvanies 1 2.A84,20 219062
- oish and cash eguivaients 12 19.048 Bt 74
- Bank balonces olber thon above 13 20,35 1.553.70
- Loans 14 45,98 30,25
- Other financial assets 15 6744 106.3%
Ot curren ! Qassels 14 24753 164.40
Total Current Assets 7,547.91 9.346.43
TOTAL ASSETS 15,933.68 13,359.12
EQUITY AND LLABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 1#a &05.03 60503
Cthesr eguity 7o 11,230,323 10.289.44
Total Equiiy 1194426 10,854.47
LIABILITIES
NON-CURREMT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 15 &03.08
Prowislons 192 19.98 21.48
Detared tox iabilties (net) 20 4057 .8y A31.RR
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,032.95 453,34
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities:
- Bomrowings 21 Aa%. 12
- Trode payables 22
{1} Total outstonding dues of micre and small enferorises Q51.85 53.85
(i} Total cutstanding dues of creditons other than 76685 1.388.43
rmicro and small anterprzas
- Dithar finoncial llabilities 23 142,77 182,10
Other cursent liobilifes 24 27120 23723
Provislors 25 128,24 20,42
Curent 1ax labilfles (nat) 26,31 50,24
Total Current Liabllities 2,956,237 201129
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,933.68 13,3569.12
Materal Accounting Folicies 2
Motes fnrmlng_pﬂrf of accounts 352
The accompanying notes ore an ntegrial part of ihe finoncidd statements
A% DB oUr reseort of even dole
For LODHA & CO LLP For ard on bahoif of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. Mo, - 301081E/ Fa002a4 5. Annamalai Azhok K Kapur
Chojrman Menaging Draclor
R. P. Boradiya DA 0000381 D001 26807
Farrisr
Marmbarsnip Mo 44107 Anun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Floce | Mumbal
Dot 1241 Moy, 2025

Chisf Financial Officsr Compamy Secrabany
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#— NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
as at 315t March, 2025
(Al arounts in Indion rapee lakh, wnless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS MNotes Year ended Year ended
31sl March, 2025 31st March, 2024
INCOME
I Revenue fram oparations 26 18,4892.07 I8.17%.56
I Other Incoms a7 16525 161.04
I Total Income  + 1) T19.067.32 18,340.65
IV EXPENDITURE
Cost of mofendals consumed 25 11,407.13 10.844.43
Chainges in inventony of finlshed goods,
work-n-progress & stock-In-frods i (423,72 (334,49
Employes banefits expense a0 1.5618.21 1.451.%5
Finance cosis 31 12205 25"
Depreciation ond aomcisation expense 32 222.23 204.84
Power & Fust 2455.65 289720
Oher experses 33 1.474.81 1.154.14
Total expeanses (V) T16,778.36 J78.35 m
V  Profit before exceptional iterns and tax ( 11l - IV) 227894 205781
Wl Exceptioral ferms 3 -
VIl Profit before tex (v - Vi) " 227896 ~ 2,057.81
Vill Tax Expense
(o Currant tox 20 58000 525.00
() Deslemad tax {7197 0.17
IX  Profit after taxation (VI - VIl 1,720.94 "~ 1,53298

¥ Other Comprahensive Incoma
ltems that will not be reclossified to profil or loss

Remenzurements (ossas) of nel defined ceneflt plans (G619 (27.34)
Total Compreheanstve Income (X - X) 1.554.75 1.505.64
Earming per Equlty Share of Foca Value of T 10 each

Basic and diluted Earnings per share (T) 28.45 25.34
Material Accounting Polcles 2

Motes farming parl of accounts 352

The accompanyling notes.ore an Integral part of the financial statemeants
A o our report of even data

For LODHA & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Boord

Chartesed Accountomits

Firrn Ragn, Mo, = 301051E/ E300284 5. Annamalal Ashok K Kapur
Chairmen Meanaging Directar

R. P. Baradiva DIN: 000071281 DArLO00 24807

Partner

Membmership Nao, 44101 Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patiar

Chigf Financlal Offlcer Company Sserstary
Ploce @ Murmiai
Date : 24th May, 2325
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year anded 3 1st March, 2025
(Al amaounts in Indion rupes lokh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Yeor ended Year ended

J1st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met profit before tox 2.270.94 2.057.61
Adustments for
Depreciotion.and amortisation expense 22223 203.64
Imterest Income (11818 £104.44%
Profit on redarmpton / falr value of investmeants (45,473 {55.65)
Finonce costs 122,05 25,
Prafit on disposal/discard of property, plant and eauipment (0.50) 2
Linbiitias no longer required writfen back (Nef) 22,386 20139 (25.74) 42.72
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,480.35 2,100.53
Adjustments for :
Increase in frade and ather recsivatles (293.68) (244.04)
(Increase) |Daecrease Ininventores L6543 32.73
(increqse)/Decrecse In loans & other finonciol assats (&7 .98) 19.90
Inerease in ather curant ossets (23,13 {15.08)
Dacracse/{Incraase) In other non- current ossatfs 10.02 £107.51)
Increase in trade payables 254.07 167.29
Dacrease In short arm provisons {29.85) (5.04)
Increcse/{Decregsa) In othar cumant kabllities 538 (222, 11) 2854 A7aal)
Cosh genaroted from oparating octivities 2.258.24 1.921.72
Toxes paid (Nefd of Refund) (553,55 {68, 3%
MNet cash generaled from cpenaling aclivities (A) 1,704.25 1.457.36
Cash Flow from Investing Activities ;
Purchose of proparty, plant and aqgulpment
{including CWIP ond capital odvonces) {1.470.01) (179.53)
Purchogse of Current/Mon - Cursnt invesimeants {4.115:31) 500,000
Sole of Man - Cument Inveastrments Sal.48
Baonk deposits not considered os cash ond cosh equivolents (ploced)/ refund  1,529.03 (ATRATY
Interes| received 20505  (2.890.44) §51.02 (124815
MNet cash used in investing activities (B) (2,590.44) (1,248.12)
Cash Flow from Financing Aclivities:
Dividend poid including tax therson (604.56) -
Procesds from Long term borowings - Bank G308 =
Meat Proceads from shod tenm omowings - Banks aai. 12 -
Armount fransfered to Investar Education and Pratéction Fund:
Urpaid dividend amaunt {160 287
Finonce cost pald {122.05) 543.51 (25.91) (23.04)
Net cash from / (used in) financing aclivities (C) 543.51 (23.04)
Met Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) {642.71) 186,20
Cash and Cash Equivalents ot the beginning of the year &41.74 475,54
Cash and Cash Equivalents af the end of the year 19.03 661.74
Particulars Asat As ot

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash on hand 10.03 7.58
Halanes with Banks 2.00 454, 18
TOTAL 19.03 &61.74
tateral Accounting Pollcles 2

Motas forming part of accounts 3-52
[ cccompanying notes arg an infegred part of the fnonciol stafements
AR REF O reRort of avan date

For LODHA & CO LLP

Charlensd ASCcounionis

Firrn Rogn, o, - 3010616/ E300EE4

R P. Bazadiya
Partnes
hbemierzhin Mo, 44100

Pace - Murmibol
Diofe @ 24th Moy, 2035

For and on behaolf of the Board

5. Annamalol
Chairman

Card: DOOD 1381

Arumn Joiswal
Chtef Finoncial Cfficer

Ashok K Kapur
Monoging Cirector
DiIM:COT 26807

Mahima Patkor
Company Secretary
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¢ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Al amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at As at

31zt March 2025 31zt March 2024
Issuad, Subscribed ond Pald up 60496 &H04.94
Farfaited Shares .07 0.0
TOTAL &05.03 &605.03
QOTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total

Capital Securities General Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income

As of 1st April, 2023 7.51 42537 2,329 40 5,999 84 2N 8,783.80
Profit for the year 1.532.98 1.532.78
Other Comprehensive Income for the yeor (27.34) [(27.34)
As at 31st March, 2024 1.51 425 37 2.329.60 753282 {5.13) 10,289.44
Protit for the year 172094 1.720.%4
Othar Cormprehansive Income 1of The yaar (&4, 19 (56,19
Dividend Paoid {604,903 (0,54
As ot 315t March 2025 7.51 42537 2,329.40 8.648.80 (71.32) 11,339.23
Maleral Accounting Policiss
Motes forming part of accounts 362
The acoomparying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements
A5 e o repor] of even dote

Far and on benall of tha Board
For LODHA & SO LLP
Charlered Accounibanis
Firrmn Regn, Mo, — 3010615/ E300264 5. Annomalod Aghok K Kopur

Choirman Moragng Director
R. P, Baradiya [xM; DoO0T 381 CHM-D01 24807
Paart s
htembeship Mo, 44101 Arun Jolswal Mahima Patkar

Chial Firsaresol Cficar Carmpony Secralary

ce ) Mumbal
Date | 2410 Moy, 2085

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25



&

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

(i

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Marmoda Getatinas Lia, was set up in 19461 as Leliner Knlt Selatin Company Pt Lid. The Company was converted Into a Pulbéc
Compary and registered s Show Leinar Limited in 1969, In thie yaar 1972, fhe name of the Company wos changed fo Show Waolloce
Galatines Limbed, and in the year 2002, the Company wos renamed as Normoda Gelatines Limited. The Company & registernad In
Jobalpur (Madhya Pradesh) under Registration nurnber L2417 TTMP196IPFLC01 6023, The Registarad office of the Company |s of 28,
CARAVE, 15 Clvil Lines, Jabalpur (MR}, The Cormpany s engaged in the monufacture aond sate of Cssain ond Gelotine and has s
rmanufachuring focility located at Jobaipur (M.P.)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The financlol statements have been prepared in occordance with the Indlan Accounting Standards (herelnafter refered to.as the
I AS') os notified under the Compondgs {(Indion Accounting Standards) Rules, 20158 and Componigs (Indion Accounting
Stondards) Amendments Rules 2014 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 recd with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affals ("MCA™) notiies new standards or omendments to the exdsiing standards under Compaonles (Indion

Accounting Standards) Rules os issued from time fo fima. On August 12, 2024 and Septemiber 05, 2024, MCA lssuad the Compankas

{Indicn Accounting Standards) Amendrment RFules, 2024 ond Companies (ndion Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules.

2024 introducing following changes;

al  nd AS 117 = Insurance Confracts: Ind AS 177 Insurance Confracts wos introduced and Indg AS 104: Insurance Controcts was
withdronen, This wios accompanied with corsequent omendmeantsin other standards,

by Ind A5 116 - Leases: Tha amandmends clorify agccounting treatment for o sellerleisas involved in sole and leosebock
frarsoctionsand infreducoad some ralated illustrative exompies.

The above standard are effective from April 01,2024, The Company hos Ryviswed the new pronouncements and based on it
evoluation has determined that it doss not have any significantimpact inits finanolal stotemeants,

Tre Board of Directons opproved tha Financial Siatements for the yaar ended 3151 March, 2025 and authodisad for ssue an 24th May,
2025,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual Basis under the historcal cost convention, exceot for certain financial
assets and liobiities meosurad of fair volue, The accounting policies odopled in the preporation of the finoncial stotemeants are
consstent with thoss followed In the previous year

Currant and Nan-curant classification;
(i} The ossets ond liabilitiesin the Bolonce Sheet are based on curenty nan - current classification, An asset as cumantwhen it is:
o, Erpectadio be reclzed or infended 1o be soid or consumed Innormal opamating cycle of fwelva months
b, Hald prirmarity for tha purpose of troding
. Expectadis be realized within beslve manths atter the reporting penod, ar
d,  Cashor cash aqulvalents unlass restricted from belng exchanged or usad 1o settle allability for af least hwelve months aftarn
tha repoding pariod, Al other assets are clossfied os non-cursnt,
iy Aldiobdity is cument when:
o Bxpectad tobe setlled innormal operaling cycla
b, Held prirmarily for the punoose of trading
. [Duetobe settled within twelve months oftar the reporting perod, ar
o, There s no uncanditional pght to dater the satfiement of the liability far ot leost twelve months atter the repating peiod. Al
other babllifies are treated aznon-currant,

Defared tox assets and Babilfies are chkossified as non-current assets and liabillities respectivaly.

(i) Use of Estimates
The praparation af the financial statemeants 1§ In.confarmiby with the Ind A%, requires the Managameant tomake astmataes and
cesumptions consdared in the reported amaunts of ossets and liabdities dncluding confingent Babiifies) and he reportad
income ond expanses during The yeorn The Monogemesnt believes that the astimates used in preparalion of the financiol
stofemenisare prudant ond recsonabde, Future actual resulls could differ dues 1o these estimatas and Ihe differences belween
the actual results ard the estimates ong recognised in the parods in which the regults are known [/ materiallse,

(iiiy Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
Freshaold lond is carded of historical cost, Al othar itams of property, plant and equipment are meaasurad ot cost
less accumdlated depreciation and iImpaliment losses, If any. Costsincluda freight. import duties, ner-refundable
purchase taxes ond other expenses directy attibutable 1o the acgulsibion of the asset, Subsequent costs are
included In the asset's camying amount o recognised as a seporate asset, os appropriate, only when it s
probable that future economic benefits associated with the tem will flow to the Company and the cost of the
itam can be measured raliobly. The camying amount of any compeonent occounted for o3 a separate asset is

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 @P:}



4,.5'& NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

derecognized when reploced. Allother repairs aond raointencnce are charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the reporting period inwhich they are incured.

Infangible assets: Infanglble ossets are stated ol cost of gcguisition less occumuiated amardisation and
impairment, it any Losses arlsing from the retirement of, and gains or lkosses arsing from disposal of fived assets
which are camed at cost orrevalued amaunt are recognized inthe Statameant of Profit and Loss,

({iv) Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation is provided on the sfraight-line mefhod doplying the useful lives as prescribed in part C of Schadule o
the Companies Act, 2013 except for plant and eguipment. wherein useful life i determined based on infemal
technical assessment, The range of estimated useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment’'sare as under:

Cotegory Usetul Life
Buelldings {inciuding rooads) 560 Years
Flant & Equipment 5 25 Years
Electncal installations 10 Years
Furniture & Flxtire 10 Years
Otfice Fouiprhent 3 -5 Yeors
Wahisles B Yeor:

The monagement believes that the usefulife asgiven above the best represent the pericd over which the monaogement expectsio
use thaese assets, The Compary reviews the useful ives and resdual value at eoch reporting date,

Cepreciation on assefs odded /sold or discardad durlng the veaor i belng provided on pro-ata basis up 1o the date on which such
cets ore added/sold of discardecd.

Assats costing up to 5,000 ecch are depreciated fully in the year of purchose.

Galng/| peses on disposaly/derecognition of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with cafrying
amount ond these ane recognized in statament of profit 8 Loss,

Imtangible ossets are omo ised over thelr estimoted useful economic ife under Stralght Line method. Computer soffwore cost is
amortised over aperiod of five yaars,

) Inventories

Imventoras (Inciudes Row Materal, Wark-in-Prograss, Finished goods, Stores & spares, Consumabilas, Pocking Motanals) arevalued af
costor nat realsable value, whichever § lowern, Nef realisabile value is the estirmofed seling pdce in the ordinany coursa of Dusness less
the estimoied cost of completion and fhe estimated costs recassary to make the sale. Cost of Row Moterlal, Sami-finlshed and
Fimlshed Goods and Weork-In-Progress is defarmined on walghted average bosis ond comprises of expanditure incutred in the nomal
course of busingss In brngling Inventarss 1o thalr prasant iocation Inciuding appropdate overheads appartioned on a reasonobie
and cansistent bosis, Obsalete. skow moving and dafective stocks ara identified ot the ime of phyvilcal verdfication of stocks and
whare necessary, provision 15 moda for those inventoras, Adequate allowanee s moda for obsolete ond slow mowving ifems.

(vi) Revenue Recognilion
The Cormpany recognizes avenue, whenaver canfrol aver distinet goods or services s fransferad o the custamen e when the
customer s obls to dirsot the use of the transferrsd goods orservices and obtaing substartially all of the remaining benefits; provided
a contract with enforceatile rights and obligations exists ond amongs! othes collectobilty of conzsideration & probables taking info
account customer s credifwiothiness,

Revariue & the tronsaction price the Compony expects to be entitted to. In detarmining the fransoction price, the Company
considers effects of varloble consideration, the exstence of significant firancing confrocts, noncash consideration and
consideration payable to the cusiomaear if any,

Sale of goods

Revenus ffom the sale of goods is recognised when the confrol of the goods passes to The buyerelther at the fime of dispalch o
daliverny arwhien the sk of loss ironsfens, Expor sales ore recognized bosed an the terms of The sale which is when substantiol risks and
rewiards of ownarship are possad bo 1he customeds.

Reverue from sale of goods i net of toxes and recovery of charges collecied from customers ke frarsport, pocking efc, Provision is
made forreturngwhen appropricie. Revenue is meosused at the fair value of consideration recelved or recelivable and s net of price
discounts, alzwance for yolume rebbates and simillar irems.

Clairms / Retunds not oscartainobies with regsonoble cettainty are occountad fon on final setilement and ore recognized as revenus
onaartainty of recsipt on prudent basis.

Reweanua recognition from sake of "Duty Enfiflement Passbook: License or Marchandisa Expots from Indla Scherne (MES)' s mode on
sate of the icense after recaipt of the same from the office of the Director General of Faresgn Trade.

Ineame from Duty Drawback Brecognised on ieceipt Basis,
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

(vl

vl

L)

Dividend
Dividend Income from Investrents 13 recognized when the shamabodder's right 1o recealve payment hos been established (provided
that it s probable thot the economic benafits will fiow to the Company and the amount of Income can be measured reliably,

Interastincome

[riferest income from a finoncial asset s recognised when It S pratable that the economic barerits will flow 1o the Caompany and the
amaunt of income con be meaosured reliably, Interest income i oconied on alime basls, by referancea 1o the principal outstanding
cind ot the effective Interest rate applicable. which is the rate that exactly discounts estimoted future cash recaipts through the
expected ife of the financial asset to that amset’'s net carrying armount on Initlal recegnitian,

Income from Investment
Income from Investmants (other than Investments inshares of companies and Mutual Funds) s accounted on acorud bosks,

Dividend Incoma on investrients & recognized whan the right to recealve dividend (s estoblished. Interast income s recagnized ona
tirme proporticnate basls taking Info account tha amounts Invested and the rata of Infarest, For all financlal instrumeants meosurad ot
omartized cost, inferest iIncome Is recondad using the Effective inferast rafe rmethod fo the net camying aemournit of the finranciol ossats.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Fargign curency trarsactions are accounted af the exchangs rates pravaiing on the date of the transactions, Gains and |osses, i
ary, an settiemant or reinstalement of vear end closing bolances by opplying 1he closng rates in respac! of manstany assels and
monetary liabilities not covered by the forward confroct: are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Man-rmonatary iterns denaminated in fansign curmancy are stoted ot the rate pravalling on the dote of the fransaction.

The premium o discount arising at the inception of the forward contract entered into to hadge the axisting asset / llability, is
amartized s expenss o income avel e ife of the confract, Exchange differences on such controct are recognized n the
statement of profif and loss in the reporting pedod inwhich the exchangs rates change. Any profitor loss arising out of concellation o
renewal of such contioct are recognized as income or expenss in the reporting period. Forword exchangs controcts cutstanding
asat e yaar snd an accourt of fiem cammitment [ highly probable forecast transaction are morked ta moket and the losses, I
any, arerecognized in tha statement of profit ond loss and gains ore ignored,

Employes Benelits

The Company has the followling post-employment benefit plans:

i Definedbanefit plans such as grotuity;

I, Defimed contribution péans such asFrovident fund & Suparannuation furd; and
i, —Otheremployes beneafits,

iy Defined benelit plan:

Victuntory Retiremant Scherme Expanses, if any. are fully charged offin the veor of poymant,

The liobility or ossat recognised in fhe balonce sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity planis the present vaiue of Zefined benefii
ohbligations at fthe end of the reporting pedod less foir value of plan assets, The defined benefit abligation B calculated annually by
actuarles through actudgriol valuotion wsing the Projected Unit Credit mathod,

The Company recognises the following changas i he net dafined benglit obligation as an axpansa In the statamant of proflt and
lcass:

a. Sensce costs comprising cument service costs. post-sendce costs, galns and losses on curtalrment and non-routine satfiements;
ard

B, Metinterest expenia o income

Thia niet Intarast cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to tha net balance of the definad benafit obdigation and falr valua of
plaon assetz, Thiscost b included Inemployes banallt expansa In the stotermant of profit and koss,

Re-measurement comprising:
Q. Re-mecsurementof Actuakal (goingfosses
b. Retunonplonoassets, excluding aomount recognized Ineffect of asset calling

c.  Re-meosurement ansing becouseof change in effect of assat cefing

ara recognised in tha perdod In which they occur diractly in Other Comprehansive income. Re-macsuramants are not reclassifed fo
profit of koss in subseduent perlads,

Ind AS 19, Employees benefits raguires fhe exercize of judgment in relaton to varous gssumptions including future pay nses, inflation
and discount rofes and employee and pensioner demagraphics. The Company determines fhe assumplions in conjunction with ifs
actuaries, and beleves these cssumptions to be Inline with best practice, but the application of differant cssumplions could have o
significont effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehersive mcome ond balonce sheet, There may
be dlsointer-gdependency betweean some of the assumptions.

{iiy Defined conlribution plan:

Under dafined contribution plans, the Company pays pre-defined armounts 1o separate funds and does not have any legal o
Informal cbllgation o ooy addittanal surms. Definred contribution plans comprise of contributions o provident fund, insurance and
Ermplovess’ Pension Scheme, The Company's paymants fa the gafined confribufion plans are recognised a3 axpensas duning tha
pariced in whch the employess perform the services that the poyrment covers,
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

x)

{xi)

{xly

(il Otheremployes benefits

a,  Compensofed absences which ore not axpectad fo occur within twelve months after the end of the period In which the
employes renders the related senncas ars recognised as aliabiity at fhe present vaiue of the obligation osof the balancs shest
date determined bosed on an actuanal valuahion

b, Undiscourted amount of shard-term employves benefits axpected to be paid In exchange for the serdces renderad by
ermployess gre recognisedduring the penod when the employes mndears tha raloted sendces.

c. Expernsesincured towards voluntary retirarment scheme are charged to the statferment of profit and foss asond when imcumred.

o, Other benafits comprsing of discrationany long senios cwards ors recognized os and when determinesc,

Current and Deferred tax

Imcome tax comprses current and defermed fax. iIncome fox expense i recognized in the stotement of profit ond loss except to the
extent it relates fo fems directly recognized In equety orin ofher comprehensive incomea. Curent tax s bosed on faxable profit for the
year, Taxable profif i different from accounting profit due to temporany differences befweaen accounting and tox freatments. and
due to iterns that are never taxable or fax deductible. Tox provisions are included i curent Babiifies, interest ond penalties on fax
liobilities ore provided forn the tox changs. The Company offsets, the cument tox assets and obiities (on a yvear on year basis) where
It hices a legolly enforceable rght ond where it intends to settle such assets and llabiltias on a nat basls or to reolise the assefs and
liabilities on net basis. Deferred income fox is recognized using the balkance sheet approach. Defermed income tox assets and
liabilitles are recognized for deductible and taxoble ternporany differences ansing between the tox bose of asseis ond llabilities and
their comying amount in finonciol siotemants. Deferred income fox osset are recognized to the extent thot it is probabie fhot toxokble
profit will be avallable against which the deductible femponary differences, and the camy forward of unused fox credits and unused
rax losses can be utilized. Defered tax assets are not recognised wheare it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realised In
the fuiure. The carmying amount of defermed income fox assets s reviewsad ot each reparting daote ond reduced to the exdent that itis
na longer prab-able hat sufficlent taxakbie profit will oe avallable to allow all or part of the defered ncome foax Gsset to be uliized.
Defarad income fox-assets and lakilifies are measured af the fax rafes thot are expected to apply In the pedod whoen the assetis
recized of the liabillity s sethed. bosed on fox rates (ond tax lows) thot have been enacted or subsiontively enacted ot the reporting
date. Defered tox items are recognised in comelafion fo the underying fransaction elther in Other comprahensive income ordirectly
Iraguity.

Impaimeant of Assals

The Compoany assassss ot ench reparting dote whathar thee 5 any objective avidence that a non-financiol asset o o groue of non-
financiol assets ore impaired, If any suchindication exists, the Company estimates the amount of Impairmant koss. For the purposa of
crEEssing irmpairment, the smaiest dentifiable group of asgets hol gersaies cash inficws from confinuing use that are langely
irdepasndant of the cash inflows fror other assats or groups of assets s considerad a3 a cash generating unlt, If any such indicafion
axists, an astimate of the recovernble omaunt of the Individuol assetfcash generating unit ismade. Animpaimment loss is caloulotad
as the difference batween an osset's camying amount ond recoverable aomaount. Lossas are recognised n profit or loss ond reflectad
irs an allowance aocount. Whean the Compony consdars that there are noredlistic prospects of iecoveny of the asset, the relevant
armeunts ans wiitten aff, If the amount of imeairmsnt ioss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be relotsd objactively to an
aven! occumng afted the Impairment was recognised. then the previously recognised impairmment loss 15 reverssd hrough profit o
s,

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Fimanciol assets are recognized when the Company bacomes a party 1o the contractual provislons of the Instrurments. Fnancial
assats othar than trode recelvablas are inifially recognised ot fairvalue plus rarsaction costs Tor all finonclal assets not camed of falr
walue through profit or loss. Finoncial ossets cored af foir volue through peofll or los o inffiolly recognised of fair value, and
trarsoction costs are expeansed in the statement of profit and loss.

Subzequenl measurement

Fimoncial assets, other thon eguity instruments, ore subsegquenty maosured of amortised cast, fair value through other
comprehensve income or falr value through profit orfoss on the basisof:

. the entity’s business rrodel for managing the financial assats; and

b, the confractual cash flow charactenstics of the fimancial asset.

(il Measured at amortised cost:

A financial assat s measured af amaortised cost, I i i haid under the hold fo collect businass model Le, hald wifh on objective of
halding tha osets fo collect contraciual cosh fiows and the confractunl cash flows are solely payments of principal aond interest on
the principal cutstanding, Amorised cost is calculated wsing fhe affective interest rate (BR) method by taking inte account any
discount ar premium on acguistion and feas or costs that are an infegral part of the EiR, The EIR amoisotion & ncleded In intensst
Imcoma In the statement of profit and loss. The iosses arlsing from Impaimant afe recagnised In the statement of profit and loss. On
darecognifion.gain of loss, 1T any, §recognised fo statement of profit and loss,

(i)  Measured at fal value Ihrough other comprehensive income (FYOCH:

A financial asset s measured at YOG, I is held under the hold 1o collect and sall business model L&, hald with an objective fo
collect confractual cosh lows and ssling such financial oset and the contractual cosh flows are solely poyments of principal and
irterest on the principal outstanding, It is subseguently maasurad ot Tair value with foir value movameants recognised n the OO
except forinterest Income which recognised using effective iInterast rate method, The losses arlsing from iImgairment dre recognlsed
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iy Ihe statement of profil and loss, On derecognition, cumulalive gain o loss previously recagnissd n the OCHS reciossilied from he
equlty 1o statemeant of profit and [oss,

(il Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Irvestment in finonciol asset other than eguity nstrumant, not measured ot eitheromortised cost or RO CTHs measured ot FVTPL, Such
finonclol assets ore meosured ot foir valus with all changes in fair value, Including interast income and dividend incame if any,
recognised inthe staternent of profit ond loss,

Equuity Instruments:
Al Invastrnents Ineguity instruments. if ary clossified under financial assets are subseguantly measured of falrvalue,

Ihe Company recognises a loss allowance for Fxpectad Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured ot amortised cost
and al FVOCL The cradit Ioes i differencs between all contractual cash flows thot are due ta an entity In accardancs with fhe
contract and ofl the cash Nows that the entity expects o receive (e, all cosh shortialls), discounted.at the ongind sffective ntemsst
rate. This B assessed on an indivicual or collectve bogs ofter considenng all reasonable and suppotable including that which is
farward-looking

The Company’s frade recelvable: or contract revenue recelvables do notf confaln significant financing component and
loss ollowance on frade recehvablesis measured ot an amount egual fo life fime expected loses Le. expected cash shorffall, being
simpiified approach for recognittion ofimoalment los allowance,

Under simplified approach, the Compony does not frack chonges In credit sk, Rother it recognizes impoimment loss allowance
bemed on the ffatime Expacted Cradit Lasses of eoch reporting dote right from s intial recognition. The Company uses o provision
mattx to determins Impairment loss allowonce on the poffolio of tods receivables.

The provision matry s bosad on s Ristorleally observed defoult rates over the expected Ble of the tradae recelvable ond s adjusted for
forward looking eshimates. At every reporting date, the histodcal obsernved defoult rates ore updaoted and changes in the forward
looking estimotes ora anclysad.

Far finonciol assets ofther than frode receivables, the Compony recaognises 12 month expected credit losses for all onginoted or
acquired financial assets If at the reporting date the credit sk of fhe financial asset has not Increased significantly since its initial
recognificn. The expected credi kosses are measured as ifetime expected credit Iosses if the credit risk on finoncial assat ncreases
significantly since itz inltial recagnition, If, in o subssauent perod, credit guality of the instrument Improves such that there s no longsr
significont Increass in credit risks since nitial recoagnition, then the Company reverds to recognizing impakment loss allowonce bassd
on 12 months Expected Credit Losses

Thie mpalrment losses ond reversols are recognized In statemeant of profit ond foss. For equity instruments and financial ossefs
rmensurad at FVTPL, thera s no reguirameant forimpalrment fasting.

De-recognition

The Compony derscognises a finoncial asset when the caonfrachual ights to the cash fiows from he finoncial asset expire, or it
transfers rights to receives cosh fiows from an asset, it evoiuates it and to what extent it has retained the rsks and rewards of ownsship,
Wien it hias neither fransferad nor retained substantioly all of the fsks and rewards of the asset, nar fransferad caonbrol of fhe asset,
the Company continues torscognise the fronsferad asset to the exdant of the Company s confinuing invelvamesant,

I that cose. ine Company alsa recognises an associated linkdity, The transferred asset and the associated liablity one measuned on
a basis that reflects the rghits and obligations that the Compomy Ros retalned,

Financial Liakillties
Inttial Recognition and measurement

Fimarscial llabdities are recognised whan the Company becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
lizbilities cre indticlly recognized ot fair valuse net of tronsaction costs for all finonclal lailtes rot canlad of far value through orofit or
loss,

The Company’s financiol iaobifties inchdss frode aond ofher payables, loans and Bormowings inciuding bonk overdrafts and
dertvative instrumenits,

Subsequent measurement
Fimarcial kablities measured af amorised cost are subsequently measured of using EIR method. Finconclal llabilties cared of falr
walue through profit orloss are meosured of fairvalue with all chonges in foir value recognised in the statement of profit ond loss,

Loans & Borrowings
After inifial recognition, Inferest bearing inans and borowings are subseguantly measured at armortised cost using EIR rrsfhod, Gains
and lpsses ang recognized n profit & loss when tha liobllies ore derecognized as well os through EIR amortzation procoss.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantes contracts ssuad by the Company are thoss contracts that requikes a payment 1o be mades o o reimburss the
hecler for @ loss i incurs becouse the specifisd debtods fails to make payment when dusin accordanoes with the term of o detd
instrurment, Fnonciol guorantes contracts are recognized nitialy s o labiity o foir volue, aodsted fo ransaction costs that ars
directly otibutable to the sseancea of the guarartes.
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{xily

{xv)

Subssguenly. he lobdily 5 measured al The higher of Ihe amount of kess glowonoes delermined as per mpairmenl reguitemenis of
Ired A5 109 and the amaunt recognized less cumukathve adjustmeants.

De-recognition

A finaoncial liability s de-recognised when the obligation under the liobiity & discharged or concelied or expires, When an existing
financlal lobiity s reploced by anothar frorm the same lender on substartially diferent terms, or the terms of on exsting llality are
substantioly modified, such an exchange or modiication is tréoted os the derecognition of the criginal inbiity ond the recognition
of anew kability, The differsnce in the respactive carmying omounts srecognizad in the stotemant of profit and loss,

Derivative financial instruments & hedge occounfing

Tha Company usas derivative financial instraments, such asforward foreign exchonge contracts to hadga s foreign curmancy rigks,
Zuch derivative financial Instruments ara initially recognised of foir value on the date on which a dervative contract is entered  into
and ara subsequently rermeasured ot foirvalue, with changes infolr valuerecognized in statermant of profit and loss.

Dervatives are caried as financial ossets when the fair volue s positive and as financial lobiitiss when the falr valus B negative, The
Compory designates fheir dervatives ds hedges of forsign curmency sk omsocioled with the cash flows of highly proboie forecast
tronsoctions and variable intarast rate risks associated with the borrowings.

Fair Value Measuremeni

Thie Company maasures inanclal iInsfruments, such as, derivatives af falr value at each bolonce sheet date. Fair value isthe price
that would De recelved to seil an asset of pald to tronsier a Babiity in an orderly fransgction between morket participonts of the
mieasurement date, The far value measurement is based on the presumpiion that the fransociion to sell e osset or fransfer the
licllity tokes ploce elther:

e Intheprincipol moket for ihe assel or liabillity, o

¢ N the absence of a prAincipal market, In the most odvantageous market for the csset or lability The principal or the most
advaniogeous market must be oocessible by the Compary

Thie fair vatus of an ossel or a liosiity s measured using the assumpbions |hal morkel participants would uss when pricing e assel an
lictility. cssuming that morket parbicipants oot In their economic best intarest,

A fair value measuremant of o non-finoncial osset tokes nfo occount a market parficipont’ s abiity fo generate economic banafis
by using the azset Infts highest and bast use or by seling It to another maniet paticipant that would use the asset inits highest and best
LESe,

The Company wiss valuation technigues that are appropriate in the cieumstances and for which sufficient dota are available to
rrgdsLre far valua, maximising e use of slevant obbsenable inputs and minimsing e uses of unobsenatle inputs.

The Company usas the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the falr value of finonclal instruments by vatuation
techrigue:

Level | Suoted (unadjusted) prices inactive mankets tor identicol assets or bobiltiss

Lenval 2: Oimer technigues for which allinputs whichihove o significont effect on tha recorded fal value are cbsenvaidie, eithar diractly
ar indiractly

Level 3: lechniguas which uses inpuls that have a significont effect on the recorded foir value that are not based on observable
market gata.

For assefs and kabillities thof are recognised in the financlal stafemants on g recuring baosls, the Company determines whather
fransfers hove occurnred Detwean levek In the hlerarchy by re-ossessing cofegorsation {bosed on the loweast level Input that Is
significant to the folr value measurerment as a whole) af the end of each reporting petiod,

Far the purpose of Talr value disciosuras. the Company has determined ciosses of assets and llabiities on the basis of the nature.
characteristics and risks of the osset ar llability and the level of the fairvalus hismarchy as exploned above,

Provision and Confingent Liokilities

A provislon isrecognized when the Company hos o present obdigation oz o result of past events and it s probabde thot an outflow of
resaurces embodying economic bencfits will be required to seftle the obifigation in respect of which a relioble estimate con be
made. These are reviewed of each balance sheat date ond odjusied to reflect the cument best estimates.

Contingent Liakiiites are net recognised but are declosed in the notes, Contingent Assets ara nedther recognibed nordisclosed Inthe
firrarcial stataements,

Leases

Asalessee:

The Company ossesses whesther a contract conlaing a lease, af inception of o controct, A contract &, or conlaing, a leass il the
contract conveys thadght to conra! the wie of onidentified asset for o perod of time Inexcharge for consideration,

To assess whether a contract conveysthe Aght foconirol the use of an Idenfified asset, the Company assesses whethear:

() the controctinvolves fhe uss of on identified assat

() the Company hassubkstantially ol of the economic banefits from use of the asset through the perlod of the leass; and
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Leviy

(i) the Cornpany has the sahl o direct he use of the assel,

Atthe dote of commencerment of the lease, the Company recognizes anghi-of-use aoset (ROU) and o comesponding leasa liabilithy
for all lease armrongemenis in which it is o lessees, except for ledses with a ferm of twehve months or less (shor-term leases) and low
value leases. For thase shor-term and low value ledsas, the Company recognizes the legse poyments as an operating expense on g
stralght-Ene basis over the term oi the lease.

The right-of-usa ossats gre inifially recognized af cast, which comprzsas the initial amount of the leqse llabiity odiusted for any lease
paymants mods ot ar prior 1o the commeancemeant date of the lease plus any inticl direct cosls less ony leose Incenfives. hey ae
subsenuenly maasurad af cost lBssaccumulaled depreciotion and impairmanl ossas,

Certain leose arangements iIncludes the options to extand o terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and
leose koblifies includes: these options when itis reazonably certain that they will be exercised,

Fighl-ol-use gssels are depracialad from ha commencemeant dals on a siraighi-ing bosls over the sharter of the (2ase lerm and
useful life of the undearying assel, Right of use assals are evaluoied for recavarability whemsver avents or chonges in creumstances
irdicate that their carmying amounts may not berecoverable, For the purpase of impairment testing, the recoverable amaount (Le,
the higher of fhe falr value iess cost fo sall and the valua-in-use) s determined on an individual asset Dasis unless the asset does not
garerate cosh lows thol arg l[argely independent of Ihose from other assels. Insuch coses, the recoverabie amaoun! & detarmined
far the Cosh Genarating Unit (CELN o which the asset belongs.

The ladsa liability s initialy meosured 'af armnartized cost af the present value of the future leoase payments. The leose payments are
discounted using the interest rote impdicit In the leosa o, if not readily determinable, using tha incremental borowing rafes In the
couriny of domichs of thesa looses. Leose labiifies ane remaasured with o carmasponding adiustrment to the reloted dght of use asset
itthe Company changes s assessrmeant if whather i will exercise onextension of o termmination option.

Leose Fabiity and ROU osset have been seporately presented in the Bolonce Sheat and lease poyments have been classified as
firancing cosh flows,

Asalesson

Legse income from operaifing leases wheare the Company 5 a lessor s recognised Inincome on g straight-line basls over the lease
termunless the eceipts are structured fo increqse inline with expacted generalinfiation to compensate for the expected infiafionany
costincreases. The respective leosed assels are included in the balance shest bosed on their nature,

Bossd on Compony's assessmant, 1ha contracts antarad inlo by the Campany oo nef contain o leoase as spacilied above ar they are
either shor lerm or low value eases, Theneforg, Ihose have been occounied as per alher opplicable accounting standards,

Segment Reporting
Dperating segments ams reparted in o manner consistant with the internal repaorting provided to Chisf Oparating Decision hMaoker
(SO0,

The Cormpony hos identified its Managling Director as CODM wha 5 responsible for aliceoting resources ond assessing parformancs
at the operating segments and mokes strategic decklons,

(xvil) Eamings per share

Baslc earnings per share are calculoted by dividing the net profit or loss for the paiod attibutable to eguity shore holders (ofter
daducting preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the wsighted overags number of equity shares outstanding
during the perad, Far the purpese of calculating diluted eaming per share. the nat profit o loss for the perad atiributable to equity
shoreholders and the weaighted overage number of shores outstanding during the pericd are adlusted for the effect of all dilutive
potential eguity sharess,

{xviiiy Cash and cosh equivalents

{xix)

Dex)

Cosh and cash egulvalents include cash and cheques in hond, bank balances, demond deposts with banks ard other short-term
highty liquid ivestrmenits that are readily corverfible fo kmown amounts of cash and which ane subjact to on insignificant risk of
changesinvolue whare onginal moturity & three months or lass,

Cosh flows ora repontad using the Indirect method wharsty the profit betore tax s adjusted for the etfectof the transoctions of o non-
cash nature, any defemals or accrualy of past and future cperating cash recelpts of payments and items of Income or expensas
asocialed with invesing of financing cash Nows, The cash fows from operaling. investing and inancing actvifies of Ihe company
cresagrenated,

Bomowing Costs

Ganaral and speciiic barowing costs that are directly aifributabile to the acquisition, corstruction ar production of qualifying
assets are copitolized os.o port of cost of that asset, during the period 1l ol the octivities necaessary to preparne the gualifying
assefs for s intended use or sale ore complete. Gualifying assefs are assets that necessarily toke o substantiol pedod of time o
get ready for their infended use orsake,

Cithear borowing costs are recognirad as on expanse in the pariod in which they are incurred.

Exceptional fems

When an item of incoma or expense within profit or loss from ordinary activity s of such size, nature or ncldence that their
disclosure ks relevant 1o explain the parioemance of the Company for the year, the notwe and omount of such tems is disciosed
as excephional items,
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Buildings Plant&  Furnifure Vehicle  Office  Electrical Total
Land equipment & Fixtures equipment Installations
At cost | deemead cost
Gross Block
Balonce as of st April 2023 116.92 359.28 284604 3.50 892 11.84 3605 338255
Additions - - e - 3l A0 421 2,46 1317
Daductions) Adustrment - - &2.06 - - 0.08 - 42,13
Balance as ab 315t Morch 2024 11692 35928 2 87461 350 41.35 15.98 38.51 345214
Additions . . BOS.25 0.35 1.53 .13 Bd] 26
Deductons/ Adjustment - E 6823 - = 6B.23
Bolance as af 318t March 2025 11692 35928 3461343 3.85 41.35 17.51 7264 422518
Accurmnulated Depraciation
Balance as ab 15t Aprll 2023 - B3.81 501,76 1.70 4.1 7.00 18,45 416,82
Addiftons - 2040 17573 .29 297 213 2,18 203.54
Daductions Adustment - - 40,35 - - - - 60,34
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - 104.21 &17.13 1.99 7.02 913 20.566 760.10
Addifions - 1737 19521 30 J.62 250 3.24 222.24
Deductians Adjustment - - ful 84 - - - - 54,84
Bolonce os of 315t Morch 2025 7 121.58 757.50 2.29 10.64 11.63 23.90 927.50
MNet zarmying amount
as at 315t March, 2024 116,92 SR507 225948 1.52 34,33 6,84 17.85 209205
Mest carmylng armount
as at 31st March, 2025 116,52 237.70 285613 1.56 3071 5.87 AB.74 3207 .47
Refer Nate 18 for the detallsin respect of cartaln properly, plantand equipment hypothecoted /mortgoged s securty for bomrowings.
Particulars As at As al
3st March 2025 315t March 2024

4, CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Piant ond equipmeant undar instalkation” 67829 47 .81
Bullding under canstruction - a

TOTAL 678.29 47.81

"Refar Note 18 for the detalis in respect of certain property, plant and equipment hypothecated/mortaoged os security for
bBamowings.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE

Particulars Less thon 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  Maore than 3 years Total

As ot 315t March'2024

Projectzin progress - - - - -
Projects temporarly suspended x r = = -
Tolal - - - - -
As al 315t March 2025
Projects inprogress &78.29 - - - 67829
Frojects temporarlly suspended - - - - -
Tetal 478,29 - - - 47829
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Software TOTAL
Gross Block —— —
Balance as al 1st April 2023 292 252
Acdditions - o
Deductions / Adlustmants = -
Bolance as ab 313t Morch 2024 2.92 252
Achchithons - -
Daductlons [ Adjustments - -
Balance as of 315t March 2025 292 292
Accumulated amorisation
Balance os ot 13t Apil 2023 279 279
Arnartisation charge for thea year 0,13 03
Deductions [ Adjustmeants - -
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Particulars As ot As ot
A1st March 2025 st March 2024

Accumulated amortisalion as of 315 March, 2024 292 292
Armorfisation choarge for the yvear - -
Deductans [ Adjustrmants - -
Accumulated aomortisalion as aof 31st March, 2025 292 292

Met carrying amount as of 315t March, 2024 = 3
Met carnrying amount as of 318t March, 2025

& INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT

Irvestrriants In Mutual Funds (at NAY) Unguoted, fully pald-up (Refer Mofe 399 a0, 48

Imvestment in an oisociate (Refer Note 400 411531 :

TOTAL 4,115.31 256048
7 LOANS

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to empioyess 14.06 09

TOTAL 14.04 2.09

& OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Ursecured, consldered good
Securty Daposits 16718 162

TOTAL 16718 14662

g OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, corsidered good

Capital Advance 54672 .34
Prepaid Expenses 7.02 253
TOTAL &3.74 329
10 INVENTORIES

Rorw mcrtesials Bab.24 1.116.74
Wiork-in-progress 1.A77.41 151447
Fimished goods 1.895.74 T.433.16
Stores & Spares 42778 584.06
TOTAL 4,657.37 &50.43
Refer Mote 2(v)

Mote; Mo Inventoras witten dawn dudng the year and In the previous year

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

frode Receivables considerad good - Unsecurad 248420 2,190.52
Trade Recelvables which hove sigrificont

Trade Recelvables - cradit impaired 281 281
Less: Allowances for expected cradit loss (281 {281}
TOTAL 2,484.20 2,170.52
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

13

15

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCTHEDULE:

Oulstanding for following periods from due dale of paymen!

Particulors Mot Due Less than 6 months  1-2 2-3  More than  Total
& months -1 year  years years 3 yaars
As al 315t March'2025
I3 Undisputed Trode recelvables - consicered good 1910017 57200 203 281 248701
i Uindsputed Trads Recenables -
which have significont Increqse in credit Risk - - - = = = =
[y Undisputed Trade Recewvables - credit Impaired (2811 {280
%) [Hsputed Trode recahvables - considared good - -
8] Disputed Trode Recehables —
which have significonf increase in credii Risk - - - - - - -
vl Dispirtad Trode Recelvoblas - credit Impaired
Total 1,210.17 572.00 2.03 - - - 248420
Oulstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Partlculars Mot Due Less than & months  1-2 2-3  More lhan  Tolal
dmonths -1 year years Years 3 years
As at 31st March'2024
i Uindsputed Trode recehvables — corsldered good. 162787 BAZAL - - - 281 2193.33
(4] Undsputed Traode Recevablas -
which hove significant Increase In oredlf Risk - .
fit} Undsputed Trode Recelvables — credit impaired = = = 3 - (2813 (Z81)
I3 Disputed Trode receivables — considered good T -
Wl Disputed Trade Receiobies -
which hove significant incredase In credll Risk -
i) Cisputed Tmde Receivables - credit impaired = = = = = = =
Total 1,627 87 562.65 - = = = 2190.52
Particulors As at As al
st March 2025 313t March 2024
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Hank balance in curmant accounts 9.00 a54. 18
Caish on hand 10,03 756
TOTAL 19.03 &661.74
BANK BALANCE OTHER THAMN ABOVE
I Dividend acoounts 22.30 20.61
I Deposits acoounts AN 15330
TOTAL 26,36 1,553.70
LOANS
Ursecursd, carsidersd good
Loan o empioysss A5.58 a2
TOTAL 4598 30.25
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecurad, considered good
Sacurity deposits A48 15.18
Other Receivable 62,92 .
Imterest atcrued on fixed deposifs 0.0 o021
TOTAL &7.44 105.3%9
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Particulars Az at Az at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Ursecured, considerad good

Advances fo suppliers 2253.22 101.43
Prapalid 22.69 a7 as
Basances with govesnmant authantias 1.62 15.%1
TOTAL 247 53 154,40

17a EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capifal

1.00,00.000 equity shares of T 10 eoch 100000 1.000003
1.00.00,000 %% cumulative edeemoble preferences shares of T10 sach, 1,000.00 1.000.00
TOTAL 2,000.00 2,000.00
lssuad, Subscribed ond Paid up
6049587 aqgulty shares of #10 each. fully poid &04.964 H04.54
Forfelted shares 0.07 0.7
TOTAL 505.03 405,03
{1 Reconciliation of the number of shores outstonding & the omount of share copitol ot the beginning and ot the end of the reporting
pearod:
2024-25 2023-24
Particulars Mo, of shares  Amount Mo. of shares  Amount
Eqquity shares at the beginning of the year & 04t 587 &04.95 &.040:587 &04.54

Acid @ Shares ssued during tha vaar H -
Less : Shares bought bock during the year - - - =

Equity shares outstanding at the end of year &, 049 587 604 .96 6,049 587 404,96

(in Terms/rights atached to equily shares

The Company hos only one closs of agully shargs having o por volue of T 10 par shora, Each halder of aqully shares i anfitled 1o
ane vota per shara, Tha Company declares and poys dividends In Indian rupass. The dividend proposad by the Boord of
Directors i§ subject fo the opproval of the sharaholdens In the enswng Annual Ganeml Meating. In the avent of the llquidaticn of
the Company the halders of equity shanes will be enfited 1o receve the remalning assets of the Company in proporfion 1o the
numbes: of fhe shoresheld,

(iily Details of shares held by the holding fassociate company:

2024-25 2023-24
Parficulars Mo ofshares  Amount MNo.ofshores  Amouni
Pioneer Jelice Indic Privote Limited 2583419 258,34 ~ -
Ashok Marches and Timber industrles Privote Limditad 2,113,870 Z211.3% - -
Alfcemont { Mauntius) Limited, the Holding Cornpany . ‘ 4537183 AR T2
Total 4,697 489 44975 4,537,189 453,72

(iv) Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:

2024-25 2023-24
Particulars Mo, of shares % Mo, of shares %
Planeer Jellce India Private Limited 2583419 42,71 - -
Ashok Matches and Timber iIndustres Private Umited 2,113,870 3.5 - -
Alfarmaort (Mowrnithes) Limitad, the Holding Cormpany . 4537182 75.00
Total 4,697 489 T1.66 4 537,189 76.00
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

v} Dehails shareholding of promoter ond % changes in the holdings during the year:

2024-25 2023-24
Particuiars Mo. of shares % Mo, of shares % Yeof
change
Alformaont { Mouritius) Limited - - 4537 189 FE00 100
Fiorzer Jelice India Privata Limited 2,583,519 42,71 - - 100
Ashob Matches o Timbar industries Pevoate Urndtec 2113870 34,94 - - 100
Tetal 4,697 489 77.65 4,537,189 75.00

Mote:

"0y On 09th June, 2023, Share Purchase Agreerment (TSPA™) was executed by and between Afaomont (Maouritius) Limited. the
ershwhile promnocter [/ holding company, Floneer Jellice Indlg Private Limifted (CIN: UZAZ95TN 199 1FTCOA063D) and Ashok
Mafches ond Timber Industies Private Limited {(CIM: U2429TTHN2000PTCRA5347) {fogether called " Acquirers”) and Narmada
=elatines Limited (" the Company” "), whereby the Acquirers have agreed to purchase 4537, 189 fully poid-up equity shares
of Rs. 10 eqach, constitutimg 75% of the fully pald-up equity share capital of the Company, from Alfamont Mourithus)
Lireted, Further, pursuant o execution of the SPA, the Acquirers as required maode an Open Offer to the publlc shoreholders
of the Company In ferms of the applicakble provigons of the SEB (3ubstandiol Acquisition of Shares ang Takeovers)
Reguiations, 2077, The complionces refabed fo the Open Offer were completed and thereafter an Tdth July, 2023 the enfire
shareholding of 4,537,180 aquity sharas of the Company fransferred from: Afamont {(Mourities) Lid. o Ploneer Jollice India
Private Limited 2495454 equityshoresand to Ashok Matches ond Timber Industies Private Umifed 20,41 735 equlty shoras,

(b Cut of the 1.60.300 equity shares were receved under Open Offar, 88,165 equity shares wene ooquired by Plonaer Jallice
India Private Limited and 72,135 eguity sharas by Ashok Matches and Timer Industries Private Uimndted,

{vi} Aggregate number of shares allotted as lully paid up by way of bonus shares during the last five years

Curing the last five finoncial years, the Company hos not alotted any bonus shares,
(vil) Issue of shares for consideration other than cash

During the preceding five finoncial years, the Company hos not issued amy share for consideration other than cash

(vili) Dividend paid and proposad
reeter Mote 42(c

17t OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Oiher Total

Comprehensive
Income

Capital Sacurities Genaral

Retained Re-measurement

Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings  of the defined

benafit plans
As ot 1st April, 2023 751 42537 2.329.60 5.999.84 22.21 8,783.80
Prostlt for the vear - - 1.532.78 - 153298
Cher Comprehensive Incoms (o he year - - > (27343 (27.34)
As al 315t March, 2024 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 7.532.82 (5.13 10,289.44
Profit for the vear - - - 1.720.94 = 1,720,594
Othar Comprehensive Income for the yaar = = (6. 19 (5619
Divicterd prald - - - (&00.96) = (a04.96}
As at 31st March, 2025 7.5] 42537 2,329.60 8,648.80 (71.32) 11,33%.23
Purpase of the Resarves:

Securifles Premiurm: Securfies pramiunn is credibed whan shares ane ssuad af pramiurm, This will be utilsed i accordance with fhe

provisions of the Act,

@enaral Resarve: The Genaral resane (8 created by way of tronsfer of profits from retained earnings for appropnation gurposes. This

regands 5 uilised In occordonee with the provisions of the Aot

Raetainad Eamings: Retained aamings ama the profits that the Company hos eamed fill date, less any fronsfers 1o genenal resanda,

dividends or other dishributions pald fo shareholders,
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2025 A1zt March 2024
18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT
Frearm €1 Bk
Tarm Loan® TSR 08 -
Less: Curent Moturities of Lang term bamrowings (126,000
TOTAL 603.08 =
"Term loan

= Term loon ore secured by o first renking par-passu wpethecation/ Exchusive charge on the assets created out of the term loan
Repayable in &0 equalmonthly instalments (refer balow). Rate of Interest -8.20% p.a (previows yearnil)”

Repayment Schedule
Parficulars Asat Asat
315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024

Fram Banks:

|-2 Years 195,00

2-3 Yeors 195,00 *

3-4 Yaors 195,00 %

4-5 Years 171,88

G-t Yeors A1 14

Total outstanding Borrowing 798.02 -

1% PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Pension [9.98 .48
TOTAL __19.98 __21.48
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Caferad Tax Liobiities (Nat) A1 B9 A31.88

TOTAL 409 8% 431.88

@ The maojor components of ncome fox experse are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Yeor ended

SlstMarch, 2025 31stMarch, 2024

Current income tax charge 580.00 626,00

Deferred fax

Relating to ofgination ond reversal of femporany differences (21.9%) 017

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit or loss 558.01 524.84

Reconciliation

Accounting profit) (Ioss) belore income fox 22785 205781

Erocted tox rate in Indio 2517% 2507%

Computed tax expense 573.61 51795

Differances dus o

Expenses not deductible for tox purposes (14.463) 798

Orihars 1,08 (110
(15.60) 6,88

Current Income Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 558.01 524.83

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 @



# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

(i Deferred tax relotes to following:

Recognised in Balance Sheel Recognizsed in Profil or Loss
Particulars Az ot Asal Yoor ended Yaor ended
31st March 2025 315t March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Accelerated depreclation for tox purpase (A18.60) {(425.19 (5,59 (15.64)
Expanses aliowable on payment bosis B.72 8.563 (0.1%) 025
Fair valuation of financial instruments - {18.22) (1525 1522
Dafared tox azset [ (labiling (400, BA) (431.88)
Net {income)/ expense (21.99) (0.17)
Parliculars Asal As ot

31st March 2025 31st Morch 2024

21 BORROWINGS

From Banks
Bk Crheardroaft (Reler Note Leiow] 1.56 -
Cash Craedit Faclity (Refer Note below) A72.26 -
Curant Maoturitles of Long ferm bomowings 195.00 *

56912 =

Bank Overdraft

The overdraft focility Is secured ogainst bonk deposits

Cash Credit

- ioash Credi $872.28 Lakhs (previous year nil), Pimary Securty-Exclusive charge on enfire current cssets (present and future),
Secondary Collateral- Mil -1 2 months, repoyable lumpsum on demond. Rate of intererst-8, 158%p.a (previows vear nil)."

22 TRADE PAYABLES
Totol outstanding dues of micre and small entarprisas 951.86 54,85
Tatol outstanding duss of creditors ofhar thon Th4.85 1.3858.43
rricre andg small enterprises

TOTAL 1,718.71 1,442.28

The Management has identified enferonses which hove provided goods and senices fa fhe Company and which gualify under the
definition of micro, small and medium entemprisss, as defimed undss Micro, Smoll and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2005,
Accordngly, the disclosure In respect of the amounts payokle 1o such enterprises has been mods in the finoncial statements based
an Information recelved and ovalloblie with the Company, which 5 refied upon by the auditors, Further in the view of the
management, the impoct of interest, if any, that may be payable inoccordonce with the provisions of the Act s not expected to be
rmiaterial.

Il The prnclpal omownt cutstonding os of the year end 53,85
iy Principal amount due and remaining unpaoald

g} Imterest due on (@) above and the unpaid interest - -
k) Imterest pold on all deloyved payments under fhe MSMED Act, - .
v)  Poyment mode bevond the appointed day during the year

Wil Interest due and payable for the perod of delay other than (v above -

i} Interest accriad and remalning unpaid = =

yiil)  Amount of further iInferest remoining due and payable
Im succeeding years - =

* It includes amount payabla in e nature of capital creditors amounting to 3.73 Lakhs (previous year nil}

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 (:5_3’-_}



# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Farticulars As at As ot
31st March 2025 315t March 2024

Trade payables ageing schadule:

Oulstanding for following perlod: from due dale of payment

Particulars Mot Due Less than 1-2 2-3 Mare than Total
1 year years yeoars 3 years

As at 315t March'2025

I3 Unbllled - - -

iy Were and small erterpises - Q51 8s - - - Q51,84

iy Creditors other thon micre and small enterprises - 75880 3.80 4,55 088 7o, A5
vy Disputed duss - Micro and small enterprises * - + =
V) Disputed duss offher than micro and small enterprises - - - - -

Tokal - 1.709.646 3.80 4.59 066 1.718.71
As at 31st March'2024
N Unbillad Q428 - - - - 04,28
iy Miere and small enterprises - 53.85 = = £ 53.85
iy Craditors other thon micro-and small anterprises . 1:284.73 |.56 0.78 204 1,289.15
W) Disputed duss - Micre and small enterpises - - - - - -
v Disputed duss ofter than micro and small enterprises - - - - 5.00 500

Tatkal 94,28 1,438.58 1.5¢ 0.78 7.04 1,442 28
Parficulors Yeor ended Year ended

31st March 31st March
23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Seourity deposits B0 -
Unpald dividend* 22,30 20.461
Advances from cusiomers 112.37 141.4%
TOTAL 14277 182,10
*1.85 0946 (P.Y- NiL) Transtemrad to Investor Ecucotion ond Protection Fund under Secticn 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at vear
[=1g%s §

24 OTHER CURRENTLIABILITIES

Statutary duss poyable 271.20 237.23

TOTAL 271.20 237.23
25  PROVISIONS

Grotuity 116.67 4% b

Compensated absences 1.41 aLn

Fansion 10L18 .tk

TOTAL 128.24 90.42

246  REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS
sale of Manufoctured products cnet of rebates and discounts)

Saiatine T4,027.83 13.780.76
DCP - orimal feed grods 4800 24 £326.65
Bone meal products 24,94 28.47
Other Operating Incomea
Sale of scrap/Cocl ash 12,22 12,67
Export Incenthves and duty drawbaock 016 041
Ligtsilities no longer required written bock (MNat) 10.93 2305
Miscelioneous incoma 6,73 6:55
MET SALES 18,892.07 18,179 56
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

MNOTES TO FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025

(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

28

29

a0

a1

3z

Parficulars Yeor ended
313t Maorch 2025

QOTHER INCOME
|rterest income

From banks 28,01

From others 1717 11518
Change In fair valuoion of current [ nor-currant
Irvestmants in rutual funds A%, 47
Profit on depasal ! discard of propearty,
plant and equiprment (Nef) 0,560
TOTAL 165.25
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Forw Materials:
Cipening Stock 118,74
Add : Purchozas 11,144.63
Less 1 Closing Stock 856,24
Raw materials consumed 11,407.13
CHAMNGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Cening Shocks

Frished Goods 143316

Work-in-progress 151647 2594963
Closing Stocks

Finished Goods 1.895.74

Wiork-im-progress 147781 3373358
Net {Increase) / Decrease (423.72)
EMPLOYEE BEMNEFITS EXPENSE
Salares and woges 1.3460.72
Contrilbution to provident and oitvar funcds 20 D
stafl wellore expensas 53.43
TOTAL 1,618.21
FINANCE COSTS
Irterest expenss on borowlings 105,79
Cther borowing costs 15,264
TOTAL 122.08
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
[Depraciation & Amorfisation expense e X
TOTAL 22223

Year ended
315t Morch 2024

1.213.05

140209 261514

143316
1.516.47 284963
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Particulars Az at Az at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

33 OTHER EXPENSE

ConsumpTion of stores and soare parts 12685 105,79
Rates and taxes (othar than faxes an Incamea) 10,08 255
Effluen! sxpenseas 2976 3052
Ground watar abstraction charges 2552 2588
Irsuranee 26.42 2235
Repairs and mointenonce:

- Bullding o1 1493

- Plant and aculprcnd S08.09 52474

- Other Repain 15,5 H21.97 10,04 AR I3
Legal and professional charges 73.87 3745
Auditors’ remuneration (CRefer note below) a817 &.44
Freight and delivery charges 11865 120,11
Cammission to seling agents 10.08 243
Rent 15.86 1543
Travaling 16,14 1512
Advertisemesnt 11,08 390
Research and Developmen! expensas (Rafer Note 39) 13.95 1215
Sundry belonces written off 309 -
Directors’ Fee 8.t 284
Forelgn exchange loss 0,72 0%
Comornate social responsbiiity axpenditure (Refar Note 38) 34.10 2523
MiEceloreaus Sxpansss 222 85 151,50
TOTAL 1,374.81 1,154.14

Auditors’ Remunaalion®

Statuton audit fees (including limited raview fees) 4.00 4,00
T At 1.00 1.00
Other certification laas 0.or 035
Relmbursement of out of pocket expenses 1.0 1.08
TOTAL 817 4,44

34 DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTO IND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS®
iy Gratuity: In docordancs with the opplicabls lows, the Company provides for gratuity, o defined benafit retirement plan (The
Zrotaity Plan™ covering eligitle employeeas. The Grofuity Plon provides for a lump sum payment to vested employeas on refirement
(subjectto completion of five yaars of confinuous employment), deoth, Incaopocitation ortermingtion of employment thot are based
on st drgwn salary and tenure of employmeant. Liabilities with regord o the Grotuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuotion on
thie reporting dote and the Company mokes annuaol contributicn to the grotuity fund adminlstered by Life Insurance Corporation of
Indio undear Sroup Sratuity Scheme.

The dizclosure in respect of fhe defined Groiutty Plan are given below:

#A.  Balance Sheet

Defined benefit plans
As af Asal
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Present value of pion koblities 41943 38358
Fair value of pion assels 0276 333.92
Asset/(Liability} recognised {118.67) (49.58)
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2025

B. Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities

As al 1st April 2024

Current senvice cost

Addjustrent In opening balonce

Post service cost

Interest Costilinoome)

Return on plon cssets excluding terast ocorne

Actuarial (goini/loss arsing from chonges in financikad assumptions
Actuaral (galn)/flos arsng due fo change in demagraphic assumphions
Actuarlal (gain)/loss arlsing from experlence adusiments
Ermpioyer confibutions

Ranafit paymeiis

As at 31st March 2025

As at 15t April 2023

Curmant sanica cost

Addjustrment In cpening baloncs

Post service cost

IMterest Cost/lnoome)

Return on plon assats excludging intersst income

Actuanal (gaind/loss arising from chonges in finonciol assumptions

Actuarial (gaind/loss ansing dues o changs in damogrophic assumptions
Actuarial (gaini/loss arisng from experience odlustmenis

Ernployver confributions
Benaefit paymenis
As af 31st March 2024

C. Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee Benafil Expenseas:

Current Service Cost

Irteras! Codt

Post Sarvice cost (vestad benafis)

Met Actuanal (Gain) [ Loss

Interest costi{income?

Total amount recognised in Statement of profit & loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (Eaing / Loss recognissd for the period

Aszet it affect

Faturn on plan assets excluding net interest
Unrscognised Actuanal (Sain)f Loss from previous perod
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Present value of
obligations
383,53
.52

27.58

22,28

4438

(7927
41%.40

340.54
19.%0

2523

18.32

0.33
1049

i21.28)
383.53

20.92
357

24.49
G6b.64
(045}

66.19

As at
31st March 2024

Fair Value of

Plan assets
330z

2400
0.45

23.65
G927
302.75

307.94

22.82
.62

J2.460
(31.28)
31192

1790
2.41

2231
29.15
(LET)

27.34
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

b.

Assurmpfions

With the objective of presenting the plon assets and plan ligbilities of the defined bensfits plars  al fheir fair value on the balance
shaat, assumphions under ind AS 19 are sot by referenc e to market conditions at the voluation date,

Particulars As at As ot
315t March 2025 3gt March 2024

The significont octuarol assumplicns were 0s follows:

Fnanciol Assumptions
Ciscount rate A471% 7.1%%
Salory Escalotion Rate
hMonogement Employess B.00% B, 0%
Mon-monogement Employess 8.00% 100
Demographlc Assumplions
Eypected Average remaning wotking Ives of employass in na, of years
honogerment Employess 14 14
Man-rmonagaement Employess 7 g
Martality Rate TALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Urbsain Urbain
Attriticn Rote
ronagement Employess 1% 1%
Mor-monagement Employees &% A%
Retiremeant Age 60 =

Adjusted Avarage Future Serviaes

Sensitivily
The sersitivity of the overall plon BobiFtles to changss in the weighted key assumptions are
I_rnpm::r on defined benefit obligation
Change in  Increase in Decrease in
assumption  assumption  assumplion
Dlscount rota +-1% (20200 22467
Salary Escolation Rate + 1% 206 (20,153

The sensifivity anafyses above hove been defermined bosed on reasonobly possible changes of e respactive assumptions
ccourmng aof tha end of tha reporting perlod and may not be reprasantative of the actual change. Its bozed on a changsa in tha key
cisgurmption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calcukating fhesensitivity fo the assurnpiion, fhe same mathod used
fio calculate theliability recognised in the balonce sheet hosbeen applied. The methods ond types of assumptions used In preparing
the sensitivity anabyis did not change compared with the previous patod.

I} Compensated Absences: The Company permits encashment of compensoted absence accumulosted by their emolovess on
retirarnent, separction and durdng fhe course of sandoa, The llablity In respect of the Company, for outstonding bolonce of laowve ot
the balance sheet dote 5 defermined and provided on the bosls of octuanial valuotion performead by anindependent actuary,

The disclosure in raspect of the defined Compensated Absences are given below:

Particulars Yeor ended ¥ear ended
35t March 2025 A1st March 2024

Expenzes recagnisad in statement of profit and loss 3.44 2413

Balance shaat llabilihy 1.41 Jn

iii} Pension

Thiz ratiremant benefits pansion will Be fiked amount of INR 5a5 per month for an employes only afferrétinng from the organizetion
and If service renderad by the emplovas s 25 yaars and above at the ime of refitemeant, A pensionar may opt onoption to commute
MR 24,000 o= a lump surm ance In ffefimne, After commutation of pension mambar wan't get any monthly pension, Fany employee
explra hiz/her spouse will get lumpsum beneflt of INR 34 000, thereatter no manthly pansion will be payable. Liablity determined and
provided on the bass of octuanal valuotion performed by o independent octuary. The disclasura in respect of pension lakdlity are
alven balow

Particulars As at Az at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Expenses / (gan) recognised in stotement of profit and loss 4,10 4,81
Balance sheat llabiliby 316 3113
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Parficulars Yeor ended Year ended
313t Maorch 2025 31st Morch 2024
35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Estimated amount of confract remaining 1o be executed on 1.3711.48 2407
caplial ocaoun! nol provided for
Loz Capltal advance: pald there against 5472 0,08
Capltal Commitments 1,254.74 34079
36  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Cledrms not ocknowledged s debts (excluding further Infarest, If any)
Income tax matters®
Excize duty 240,88 240,88
Sales tax 374 i7h
Land reveniue cess 14,14 1414
TOTAL —258.78 —258.78
Motes:
I TheCompany's pending itgations compriss malnky claims aganst the Company, procesdings parding with tax and ather
authorities, The Company hos reviewed ail its pending lifigotions and proceedings and hos mode odequate provisions, wherever
recuired and disclosad the confingent labilties, wherever applicable, in s finorcial stotements. The Company doas nat reascnably
axpect thae outcome of hese proceedings o hove a maotenal impact on its finonciol staterments.
({y “Income fox matter relgied to assessment year 2012-14, resuied In disputed fox demand of € 7.55 locs arsen on account of
disallowance of odditionol deprecation cloimed which 5 o mistoke apparenf from records agoinst which the Compary’s
reciification appicaiion/appeal is pending. The Management s confidernt that this disputed demand will get reversed or rectifiedin
due course andhence, net considered as confingent liabilities.
37  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Erdmrpriss where (he conirol exisls Relationship Censed to be the reloted party#
Jurnbe World Holdings Umited Utimate Holding Company 14,07 2023
Alfarmont (Mouritius) Limited Halding Cormpony 14,07.2023

Other related parties - (ceased to be related party w.e.f. 14.07.2023#)

Aosmon Maoragement Services Pyt Uid,, Dandvati Investments & Trading Co. Pyt Ltd., Firestorm Elecironics Torporation Pyt Lid.,
GWL Propearties Lid., Harshil Finlease & investments Pyl Lid., Jumba Elechonics Corporation Pyt, Lid,, Jumbo Investmanis Lid., Jumbo

Waorld Holdings {india) Pvi, Lid., Pimo Entemrizes Pyt, Lid., 38N Engineers Lid,, Starfire Investments Lid., Fious Investmeants Byt Lid,

Enterprize whare the control axists Ralationship with affect fromd
Ploneer Jalica Indla Private Limited Associate Co, 14.07.2023
Ashak Matches and Timber Industries Private Umited Asgociate Co, 14,07 2023

Key managerial personnel
M. Ashol Kapur

M. Arun Jaiswal

Mz, Mahimo Patkar

Mr. Mohesh Miarmo

Mz Meesnu Sharma

Mon-Execulive Directors

hAr, 5, Annarmalol®

M, 5. Mahaswaran”

M, B Vijoyodurai®

Mrs, Monimegalal Thangamean|®
e ¥ Krishinamoorthy

M, Prakash b Nens*™

M. Rovindra €, Rojs **

Mrs, Drushti 2. Deasait*

hr, Gowrang Shah™

“wis P HA07 2003, upts 14072023
Refarrots Fat)iom

Marnoging Director

Chief Financial Cfficer {w.af 15.03.2025;

Company Secretary {w.e.f 07.08.2024)

Chief Finoncial Officer {Ceazed from sernvices to w.e.f 07.01.2025)
Company Secretary (Ceosed from services to w.ef 28.06.2024)
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

Particulars of ransaction ond outstanding balances with related parties

Particulars MNalure of Transaction Year ended Yeor ended
315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Transactions with related paries
Pioneer Jelice India Private Limited: Purchose of row maternal 1.524.64 162333
(Including 5T}
Technical Consultany Senice
Sales commission recedived 6.72 7.73
Cuistanding Balonce with related parties
Pionaer Jellce India Private Limited: Mt iy -
Transactions with Key Manogerial Personnel (Remunaration paid)
{1 M Ashok K Kapur &, 24 B &2
(i M Anon Jaswal® 0.1 -
@ Ms. Mahimo Patlkor™ 293 -
{re} Wi Mahesh Yearma®™* 1o 16,18
(vl Ms. Meenu Sharma®*** 0.56 3.81

“Ag the Grofuity and Compensated obsences are compuied for all the employeses in aggregate. the amount reloting to Key
hMonageral Personnel connot be individually be identified ”

W Aruny Jalswol Jolned wef 15,03 2025

Ms, Mahimo Petiearw.e fO7.08. 2025

W WMahesh Verma (Cedsed fromaevices tow.e f OF.01.2025)"""

Mz, Meanu Sharma (Ceased from sendcesfowe f 28,08 2024)

Transactions with Mon-Executive Directors (Sitting fee pald)

M. 5. Anncmakal 1.60 0.83
M. 5. Moheswaran .00 0.60
e, B Wisayaduroi 2.4 1.31
Mrs, Manimegalal Thangamani 1,40 1.28
e, Progieasi b Mene - 0.73
M. K Krshnamaart by 2.20 224
Mr. Rovinicira kK. Raje - 0.88
Mrs, Drushti R, Desol - 0.54
A, Saurang Shah - .80

Motes:

0 Mo amounts in respact of ralated porties hove been witten off O wiitten back during the year, nar has any provision baen maode
for doubttul delbts [ recelvables during the vear, except as disclosed above,

(i Allrsloted party fransactons enterad during the yearweana in ordinary course of the business ond ara on arm's length basis.

(i} Key Maomagenal Parsons whao are under the armployrment of the Company are entitied fo post-employment benafits (dafined
benafit grotuity plam) recognised as per Ind 45 19 "Employea Banefits” In the financial statermnents and short-term employes
benefits In the form of premiurm paid by company Tfor group health insurance plan. As thase employee benedits are lumpsum
arnounts provided on tha basls of actuaral valueation ! premiunm poymeant for the Company os g whole, tha same s not Includad
abova,

38  EARMINGS PERSHARE

Profit ovailabée for equity shareholdears 1.720.94 1.532.98
Wislghted average number of aquity shoras &0.43.587 60,49 587
Maminal volue of eguity share TL00 10,030
Earnings per share - Basic [/ Diluted 28.45 25.34

37 INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Investments In Mutual Funds (of NAY) - un-guoted, fully poid-up

As ot 31st March, 2025 As al Jist March, 2024

Particulors Fair Value No. of Total  Fair Violue No. of Tatal

Por unit  Unils Value  Perunit  Units Value
MNippon india Short Term Fund- Growth Plan - 5140 106096 54,54
Mippon India Money Market Fund- Diract - Growth - 382133 2851 106.94
SBI Savings Fund - Direct - Grawih s 40,44 133580 5324
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth - B0420 42977 21755
ICHCPru Ultra Shart ferm fund -Direct Growih . 3231148572 31288
Mippon Indig Ultra Short Duraticn Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 4032.74 2530 10606
ABEL Savings Fund - Dirsct - Growth - HOS20 2084 10657
Tatkal D&0.48
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(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

39
A

41

INVESTMENT IN AN AS50CIATE
Investments in Equity Shares

As of 31st March, 2025

As ol 315! March, 2024

Pariculars Falr Valua No, of Total  Fair Value No. ol Tatal
Perunit  Unils Volue  Perunit  Units Value
Ecpuity Shicras of India Selatine and Chamicals Lid 10.00 10.03.000 4.115.31 -
Total 41153 -
Summuarised Financial Information of an associate ( India Gelatine and Chemicals Limited)
() _Summarised Balance Shest:
Parficulars As ot Asat
dlstMarch 2025  Sistharch 2024
Mon-curren! ossals 10000138 R226
Current assets & AA0L82 9.308.48
Mon-cursnt liobiitiss 123306 145394
Currert liokifities 1.069.05 1.579.87
Eqquity 17,150.10 15.406,93
Carmying omount of investrment 4,118.31 -
(i Summarized Slatement of Profit and Loss:
evarue 19852 87 20.583.97
Cost of matedal consumed SA28.21 208394
Purchase of Stock-in-Trode - |4.51
Chariges in Inventony, Fnished Goods WIFPSIT 57455 (365.58)
Emploves benafits expense 1.217.83 1.274.79
Depreciation and amaortisation expense 580,08 B2E.G5
Finance costs a7y 73,74
Power & Fuel 2.785.02 290050
Other expenses 4,009 26 4,171.25
Profit before fax 2,264.84 3,726.45
Less, Tax expenss 52591 Be7 .60
Profit for the year 1,738.93 283885
Cithar comprehansive incame . -
Total comprehensive income for the vear 7817 (8.58)
Share of profit for the year &2.00 -

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY

Az per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, o CSk Committes hos baen formmed by the Company. As part of nifiatives under
Corporate Social Responsiolity (C3R), the Company has underoken proiects in the areas of envirmonment [ river protection,
education. livellood, haalthcore, santtation, rurad developrmeant, promotion of sports and cultural acthvities, which cre specified In
Schadula Vil of the Compardas Act, 2013, The amaount spant on tha some s givan below

Particulars

() Amount required to be spent as per Saction 135 of thae Companies Acf, 2013

a0 Armount spent during the vear on
Construction / aoquisition of any asset

On puiposes other thon above

Balonce utilsed from the excess spent in FY
(im} Shortfoll ot the end of the year

(i Total of previous years shartfall

() Reqson for shartfall

{viiMature of C5R activities

Yeaor ended Year ended
31stMarch 2025 A1sk March. 2024
3411 26,00
34.11 2502
- 0.81
A s,

{vil) Details of reloted party transactions in relotion fo CER sxpenditure

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue sxpenditure

Solanes and wogss

Ofher exparses

Literocy pramotion, Environment protection,
Health care activities. Eradicotion of hunger
& poverty

1344
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43

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

“Tha fair values of the financial ossets and Fobilittes are included at the amaount af which the insfrument could be exchanged in a

currant rarsaction batween willing parias, sifer han B a frarcad o liguiiction sale. The follr:nwing riEthdds and Sssumphions weie

used to esiimate the falrealses;

() Faievolue of cash and short-tern deposits, frode ond othier short term receivaobiles, frode poyables, other cument lokdifies. shor
term laans from banks and cther financial imstiutions aporodimote their carmying amounts largely due to short term moturnties of
these instrumenits,

(i) Finonaial instrurmeants with fixed ond varabla intersst iotes are evaluatad by the Company bossd on parametans such os interest

rates and indhidual credit worthiness of the courter-party. Based on this evaluation, allowonces are taken to account for expected

Iossms of thesa recalvabdes. Accordingly, falrvalue of such instrurmants is not motaially different from thalr camying amounts.

The Company wses the fallowing hisrarchy Tof defermining and diclodng the falr value of financial instrumants Dy valuation
technigue:

Leval 1: gquoted (unodiusted) prices in octive rnarkets for identicol cssats or llakslities.

Ll 2 alhar tachnhicgues oo which all mputs which have asignificant elfec! on the recorded fair valus are obssecabla, silher dirgctly
arindirecthy,

Laval 3; techrigueas which use inputs that have a significont effect on the recordead falr value that ore not based on observobie
market data,”

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instrumenis by category ore as follows:

FVOCI FVTFL  Amorized Totalfair  Carrying

Mote 2(xiii) MNote2 {xii) cosk volua amount
31st March, 2024
Financlal assals
Investrments - 048 - o468 S48
Trade recabvables - - 219052 219052 215052
Cash and cosh equivalents - - aa1.74 aal.74 &51.74
Bank Dolances ofhier than aove 1.563.70 1,653.70 1.553.70
Loan - 3034 IR 39.34
Cther linoncial ossels - - 272401 272401 2720
Tobal - $60.48 4,717.31 5.677.79 5.677.79
Financial liablifies
Trade poyablss - . 1.442.28 1.442.28 1442 28
Ciher linoncial liabilities - - 182,10 182,10 182.10
Total financial Habilities - - 1,624.38 1,624.38 1,624.38
31st March, 2025
Finoncial assefs
Investmient In on associale - - 411631 411631 4,1158.31
Trode receivables - - 248420 248420 2.484.20
Cash and cash equivalents - - 19.03 19.03 19.03
Bank balonces ofhar thon above 2634 26384 28.34
Loan - - 6004 6004 &0.04
Cihens finonciol cssets - - 23462 23442 234.62
Total = - 4.939.56 46.939.56 6,939.56
Financial liabilities
Bomowings - - 1.272.20 1.272.20 127220
Trade poyables - - 171871 171871 1.718.71
oihers . - 142.77 142.77 14277
Total fingncial ligbilifies = = 3,133.49 3,133.69 3,133,469
Fair value estimation

Far financhal iInsfruments measured . af folr value In the Bakance Sheet, o three level fair value hierarchy s used thof reflects the
significance of inputs used in the measurements, Tha hierorchy gives the highest priorty to unodjusted quoted prices In active markets
for identicol ossets or iobilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority fo unobzersable inputs (Level 3 meosurements),

The categores usad ane gs follows:!

= Lavel 1 guoted prices Tor denfical Insfruments

s Level 2: directly or indirectly observable market inputs. other thon Level 1 inputs: and

s Lavel 3: inputs which are not bosed on observable markeat dota.

For assets and lobilities which are caried of foir value, 1he clossification of fairwalwe calculations by categany s summiarzed below:
Level | Leveal 2 Leved 3

3 1st March, 2024

Agsafs ot falr voalue o048

315t March, 2025

Assets at fair vakse - - =
Investrments in Eguity Shares Nof Camled at Fair Value

There wera no significant changes in clossification and no @gnificont movements betwean the fair value hkerarchy clossifications of
fincnciol ossets and finoncial kabilities durng fhe yaaors,
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Finoncial risk manogement objectives and policias :

The Company's financial sk manogement is an integral part of how to plon and execule ifs business strotegies, The Compary's
activity expose i to market risk, Bouidity risk, commaodity risk and credit ek, The Compony's financicl sk manogemeant policy issst by
the Risk Marnagement Committes and governed by overall direction of Boord of Directons of the Company,

Market sk i the risk of loss of future eamings, failr values or future cogh flows that may result from a change Intha price of o financiol
Imstrumeant, Tha value of a finoncldl Instfrumant may change as a result of chonges In the Intarast rates, fonelgn curancy exchangs
rofes, equity prices and ofher market chongeas that offect market sk sensitlve instrements. Market dzk i3 attrbutolbe fo all fmarked rlsk
sansitive financial instrements incleding investrments and deposits, foreign curency recahsables, poyables ard loons ond Dorrowings.

Rigk Exposure orising from Measurement Risk Monagement
) Cradit sk Cosh and cash equivalants, Ageing analysis Credit Credit limits and lethers of credit
frade recelyables, financial rertings and Performance guorantess,

instrurnents, financicl assets
rmecsured ot amotised cost

(i) Ligulciiby risi Borowings ond other iabiities  Raoling cosh flow forecosts Avallabiity of committed credit
lines and borowirng  focilifies
(i} Market risk=Intarast rate Long-tarm barmowings af Sensfthvify amalysls |rtarest rate swops
wafcile ot
(v Barket risk—forelgn exchonge  Future commercial ronsoctions  Cash flow forecosting Farward foraign exchange
recognized finoncial assets ond  Sensifivity analysis contracts
ligkdities not dencminated in
Indian nupees
o) Commodity risk Purchase of Row Matanal Ag per production Procurement and Inventory

planning and budgeating strotegy

CREDIT RISK

‘Cradit risk anses from the possibliity that counter porhy may not be able to seffle their chbligofions os-agreed. To monage this, the
company perodically assesses the financial reliability of customeds, faking into account the finonciol condition, current economic
trends, and anolysis of historcal bod delbis ond ageing of account recaivables. Individual credit imils are set accodingly, The
Compony considers the prababiity of defoult upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been o significant increase in
cradit risk on an ongoing bosis throughout ecch reporting period. To assass whethar there i a sgnificant increose in credit risk the
company comparas the rsk of default occuming on the asset os ot the reporting date with the risk of defoult as atthe date of initial
recognition. The company consiciess reasonakble ond suppordive fonwvard-looking information. Financial assets are written off when
there s no recscnoble expeciation of recovery. such os.debior faiing to engoage in a repayment plan with the company, The
company provides for overdue outstanding as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors. which are evaluated on a cose to
case basis: The Company s concemiration of risk with respect o frode recedvablas is bow, as s custornear’s base swidaly spread across
the lengtih and breadth of the country and mgjority of the customaerns are with sound financiol healih.”

IThe ovearage credt peiod extendsd to customens rangas within 30- 120 days
Expacted credit loss fortrode recebvables under singitied opproach

Particulars As al As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(o) Ageing of frade receivables
From the date of invaice

0 - & months 248217 2,190.52
& - 2 months 2,03 =
& 12 manths . .

beyond 12 months - -

TOTAL 2.484.20 2,190.52
(b Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables
Cpening provision 2.81 2.81

Aaditicnal provision moda
Lass Bad delbts witten off [ recovered

Closing provisions 2.8 281

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 (73)



&

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

n

LIQUIDITY RISK
"Liquibddity risk 15 defined s the nsk thiot the company will not be able 1o settle of meat its obligotions on fime or ot o recscnoble pricea.

The Compamy’s treasury department & resporsitis for maintenonce of Fguidity (ncluding audos Bquidity), continuiby of fundng oz wel
agtimely setiement of debis. Inaddition, policies related to mitigation of risks ore overseen by seniormanagermeant

Monagemani maonitars the Company’s net bguidity pasition on fhe bosis of expected cash lows vis a vis debt senice fulfilmerd
obligoiion.’

Maturity profile of financial llobilities
The table below provides details regording fhe remoining confraciual maturites of financiol Babiifies of the reporting date.,

Confractual maturity patterns of Financial Liabilities :

Particulars As ot 315t March 2025 Asal 315t March 2024
0-1 year/ Ttas  Total 0-1 year/ 1tes Total
on Demand  years on Demand  years
Bormowings 1,.272.20 B 127220 - - -
Trode payoblas 1.718.71 - 1.718.71 1,442 28 . 144228
Oiter fimancial lioblities 142.77 - 14277 182,10 - 182.10
Tatal A,133.49 - 33349 1.424.38 - 142438

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rohe risk s the risk that the fair vodue or future cosh flows of o financial imstrumeant will fluctucke becouse of changes In moarket
imterest rates. In order to balance the Company s position with regards 1o interest Income and interest expense and to manage the
Imterest rate sk, fincnce deparfment performs o comprehansive interest rate sk manogement. The Company is nof axposed 1o
significant interest raterisk as ot tha respecthive reporting dates.

MARKET RISK- FOREIGHN CURRENCY RISK

The Company 1§ exposasd to forelgn exchange sk fowards honouring of export/ import commitments. Managemeant evaluatas
axchonge rote axposure N this connectian In ferms of s established risk managament pollclas which includes fhe use of damiathvas
[ foredgn exchange forward cornfrocts o hedge rsk of exposure in forelgn cumency, The company B nal exposad fo foreign
currency rsk ot the respective reporting dates.

COMMODITY RISK

“Prircipol Row Material o Company’s products 5 Crushed Bone, HCL, Urme and Coal a8 a Tual, The Company sources i1 rmicior row
rmaterial requirerment fram damsastie suppliars lacated in varlows part of Indic,

The Company effectively manages with availaiihy of moteriol aswell as price volatility bosed on the following:

» Roawmatanals are procurad from different sources at compeatitive pricas.

s Alfarnative sources are davelopad for uninfernupted suply ol raw moterols,

o Demondand supply ars external factons on which company has no canfral, howaver the Company plans s production and
sailes from the expanence gained in the past ond on-going study and oppralsal of the market dynamics, competition, economic
policies ond growth patterms of different segments of users of compony s products.

Spacific stops fo reduce tha gop betwaen demand ond supply by expanding its customer basa, defivery machanisms, efc.

Proper inventorny contial systams hove been put in ploce. The Risk commiffee of the Company comprising miembers from Boora
of Directos and the aperations has developed and enocfad a sk menagement strofegy regording commodity Prica risk and its

mitigotion.”

FINANCIAL RISK FACTCRS
(o) Capitalrisk manogement
The Company's objectives when manoging copifal ane 1o
s sOfeguord thelr abiity fo confinue as a going concem, 3o that they con continue 1o provide redurms for shareholders and
beneafits for other siakeholders, ond

e maintain an optimal copltal strectune to reduce the costof copital

() Term loon are secured by a first ronking pari-passu hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the assets created oul of the term loan,
Cash Credit Pimary Security-Exclusive charge on entire current assets {present and fulure) & fixed deposits relemad in Note 18
and 21,

(cy Dividends
The Company follows the polley of Diidend for any financial yeor as may be decided by Board considening financiol
perlormmance of e company and ofharinfernal and axtemal factors,
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Particulars As at As at
st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
On Equity Shares
Dividends not recognised af the end of reporting pearod
since year end, the directors hove recommended the payment of a final
dividend of T 10,00 pe fully poid up egulty shora. The proposed dividend iz
subjaat ta the appeoval of sharehaldens in tha ensuing annual genearal
masting, S05.03 &04.96

46 During the year, the Company had received a whisfla blower complaint alleging cartain unethical proctices concerming the
oparahions of the Company. On enguiry with the support of on extermnal ogency, it was found thot the allepations ware meare surmise
and devoid of any substantial evidence which are legally tenable. A formal repor fraom the ogency |s owaoited including thair
suggestions ta strengihen theintemal contral measures, betfarment and smooth funchioning of ihe Company.

47  Certain finonciol assets and finoncial liobiites are subject to formal confirmation and reconciliations, The Management, however, i
confidantthat the Impact wheraof. if any, for thayaar an tha fnanciol statements will not be matardal.

48 The President has glven his ossent to the Code on Soclal Security, 2020 (" Code”™) In September 2020, On 13th  November 2020 the
Miristny of Labour and Employment released diofl rules for the Code. Howesvern the dale onwhich Ihe Code will comeinta effect has
rot been notified, The Company will assess the Impoct ence the subject rules are notified and will give approprdote impoct fa s
fincancial statemeants in tha paded in which the Code becomas effective,

49  Financiol Ratios
Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Variance Reason forvarance

MWumerator Denominator Rafios ) over 25%
i Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 255 465 5% Company hos
(in fimes} avalled Credit
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Borowings Net Worth 011 000 100% Facllities like CC
{in fimes) Limifts & Term Loon
(M h faciin
3 Debf Service Prafit before Tax, Finonce Charges + 333 000 100%  Lare avelad during
Covarage Ratlo Excapiicnal Farns, Lo Termy Bormowings the FY 23-24)
{n times) Depraciation. scheduled Princioal
Finrance Charges TEROYMEnts
{exciuding
prepaymeants +
rafinancing)
during tha year
4 Returm on Equity et profit after tox Averoge Metworth 1507% 1612 -30%
Rortiey (3
i Irwartary Turnowss hutca ferial & Stores & Average Inventory 74 T0 5.48% -
(no. of days) Spares consumed
& Cretors Turnowver Average Trade Revenue from
{(no. of doys) Receivobles Including operations A5 Az 7%
unbilied revenue
) Payabies Tumover Avarage Trade Cost of goods sold a0 45 11.55% -
{(no. of donys) payaDles
: Met Copital Tumove:  Annual tumover Working Capital 395 248 57 24%
{in firnes) {axciuding curmearnt
maturities of ong
tarm debts)
9 Mat Prafit Margln (%) et gt for Tetal Incomsa 208% BiS% 804% -
the yedr
! Refurn on Capital Profit affer tax plus Averoge capital 1&08% 15.12% 5,38%
Emploved (%) Inferast on long employed
Tarm loans ard
dabsaniures
i Returm on Ircome genanated Time waighted 505%  ToB% -32.95% Comparny sold
iInvastmant (%) from investments averdgs investment rrutual funds
Motes:
Metworn = Equity + ofher Equity
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless othernwise stated)

50

51

52

Other statutory Information:

1

Iy
)]
]
Wl

Wil

wii)

wilk)

%)
¥)

)

The Compory doss not hove any banoml property, whare any proceeding has baen infiofed or pending against the
Compary o holding any Renomi property,

The Company dossnot have any fransactions with componies struck aff.

The Company does not hove any charges orsatisfaction which s yet fo be registered with ROC ayond the stafutony paricd.
The Company has nat fraded or Investad in Crypto currenay o Virual Curaney durlng the financial yaor.

The Cormpany bos nol advanced o loanesd o invested funds to any alhe parson(s) o entliylies), includmng foraign antities
(ntermediaries) with the undestonding that the Intermediany shall () dirsctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o
antities identifiad In any manner whatsoever by or an Behall of the company (ultimate Baeneficianess) ar ) provide any
guarantes. sacurity ar thalike to oron bahaltof the wlimata banelicidrnies.

The Company has nof received any fund from any personds) o entitv(es), Including foreign entities (funding parfy) with the
understanding (whether recorded inwriting or otherwise ) that the Company shall: ) directly orindirecty lend o invest m other
pearsons or enfiies Identiied in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimote beneficiares) or b}
provide any guarontes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimote beneficiaras,

Tha Compaony does nothove any such transaction which s not recorded inthe Dooks of coccountsthot hos been surrendarad or
disciosed as incorme during the year in tha tax assessments undar the income Tax Act, 19461 {such as, search of survay or any
othar relevant provislors of e income Tox Act, 1961,

Tra Company has complied with the numiber of layars prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the
Cormpanies (Restiction onnumioern of Layers) Rules, 20017,

The Compony 5 not declored wilful defaulter by any bank orfinoncial institution o lendsr during fhe year

The quarieddy returns or siaternents of current assets filed by the Company with Danks of financial instiuiions are in agreement
with the books of ccoounts

The Cormpany hos used the borrowings from banks and financlal institutions for the specliic purpose for which ibwaos token oz at
Boioncea sheat date,

Tha Company & engaged in the manufocture and sale of Ossein and Gelotine. Sinca all fhese segments meaat the oggregation
criteria as per the requlkements of Ind AS 108 on  Operating segments’, the monogemeant considers these as a single reporfolie
sagrnen!, Accordingly, no further disclosue srequired o be furnished,

Previous year's figuras bove been re-grouped [ re-clossifisd wherever required fo conform fo curent years” classification,

Signofuras o note 1 1o 52 For and on behalf of tha Boord
5. Annamalal Ashok K Kapur
Chairman Managing Drector
Dir: 00001381 DAM:00 T 26807

Flace ; Jabalpur Arun Jaiswal Mahima Patkar

Date - 24" May, 2025 Chief Financial Officear Company Secratary
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Independent Auditor's Report
To The Members of Marmada Gelatines Limited

Reporton the Audit of Consalidoted Anancial Statemeants

OCpinion

Wa have cudited the consofdaoted financial statements of Narmoda Gedatines Limited {"the Parent Company ™) and an gssociate
{together refarmed as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheat as at 315 March 2025, the consclidated
Statermant of Profit and Loss (ncluding Other Comprehensive income), the consolidoied Statement of Changes in Eguity and the
consolidoted Stotement of Cosh Flows for the veaor then ended, and notes to the finoncial statements, including o summary of
materal occounting policies and ather explonatory Information

In aur oplrion and fo thebast of our information and according 1o the aexplonations given fo ug, tha aforasaid consolidated financial
statermnents give the Information requirsd by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the monner so reguired and qlve o frus and fairview
in conformily with the accounling prirciplas generally acceptad in Indio, of ke stale of affais of the Company asal 3151 March 2025,
and profil, changes in equity and its cosh flows lor the yearended on thal date,

Basis for Opinion

Wa conductad our oudit in occordoncs with the Stondards on Auditing (545 specified under Section 1430100 of the Act. Cur
responsioiities under fhose Stondards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiifies for the Audit of the finonclal Staferments
saection of our report. We are Indepandent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics ksued by the Institute of Charerad
Accountamts of india (HCAD together with the ethical requirements that are refevant to ouwr oudit of the consolidated finoncial
staterments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we howe fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities In
ocoordance with thase requirements ond fhe Code of Efhilcs. We believe fhaot the gudit evidence we hove obialined issufficient ond
approprate to provide o basisfor cur opinion,

Infarmation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Parant Comnpaony’s Boord of Directors 15 responsibbe for fhe preparation of ofher information, The Other Information comprises the
Irfarrnafion inciudsd In the Booid's Report including Annexures 1o the Boond repe, but doss not Include the consolidated finangial
statement ond our auditor’ s repaort theraorn.,

2ur opinion on the consclidoted finonciol stalements does not cover the ofher informafion ond we do not express any form of
assuranoe conclusion thereon

In connectian with cur audit of the consalidated finanaial statements, our responsibiity 5 to read the athes information and, indoing
g0, consider whathar the ofher Infarmmation s matanally inconsistent with the consalidated financial statameants of ol knowladge
obtained durng the coursa of our audit or otherwize appears to be materdally misstated.,

Bosed on the work we have performed, if we conclude that there o mateial misstatement of this other mformation, we required to
report thot fact We hovenothing toreport in thisregard.

Management responsibilities for the Consclidoted Financial Statements

Tha Porent Compony’s Boord of Directors |5 responsible for the moitars stoted In Section 134058) of the Act with respact to tha
preparation of thesa consolidated financlal statemeants that give o frue and falr view of the financial posttion, financlal parfarmoncs
{including ciher comprehensive Incama), changes inequlty dnd cash fliows of the Compony In accordance with he occaunting
principles genarally accepted in indic, including the occounting Stondards specified under Section 133 of the Act, This responsbiliby
also Includes malnfenance of adequate acceunting records In accordance with the pravisions of tha Act for sofeguarding of the
assets of tha Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and othar Iragulantias; selection and application of appropedte
coocounting policies: maoking judgrments and estimates that are recsonable and prudent; and design. implementation. and
maintenance of adequare infermnal financiol controls, thal were aperating effectively forensuning the acouwnooy and completensss of
the deoonting records, relevant ta the pregaration and prasertation of fhe finonciel statermeants that give o true and falr view and
are free fram matedal msstartameant, whathar dus to frawd or emaor,

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors s responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
confinua 05 a going concearn, discicsing, s applicable, matters related fo going concem and using the-golng concemn basls of
aocounting unless manoagement either intends fo lguidate the Company or o cease operchions, or has no realistic olfernative but fo
doso,

The Board of Directors are olse responsibla for ovengoing the Company s financial reporfing process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur oblectives are to obtain regsonable assurance about whather the financial statements as a whole are free from materal
milssfatement, whether dus to fraud o erarn and fo Bsue an auditor’s report thatincludes our opinion, Redsanable assuiancs s ahigh
level of assurances, butis nota guarantes that an audit conducted in occordoncs with 585 will chways detect o matenol misstotement
b it exisls. Misstatemeants con arise from froud or enor and ore considered matedal if, individually orin the agaregate, they could
regsonably be espectaed toinfiuence the aconomic deciions of users takan on the basis of these consolldated linanclaol statemeants

As part of an audit In occordance with 545, wea exerclse prafessional judgment and maintaln professional skeotickm throughout the
audit. Wae ailso:

. Identity ond ossass the rsks of materlol msstolement of the financial statements, whethsr due to fraud or eporn design and
parform audit proceduras responsive o those risks, and obbain audit evidence that s sufficient ond oppropriote o provide a
csis for aur opinion, The sk of not detecting o matenal misstotement resulfing from fraud is higher than for one resulfing from
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.

Oiztain an undesstanding of Internal control relevont to the audit in order 1o design audit procedures that are oppropriate in the
wircumstanceas, Under Ssction 143030000 of the Act, we are also responsible far sxpressing our opinion on whisther the Company
hos adeguate intermal finoncial contrals systemin plece and the operafing effectiveness of such confrols,

. Evaluate tha appropiafanass of accounting palickss uied dnd he recsonablanass of accounting estimates and related
disclosuresmade by the manogemeant,

. Concluds on fhe approprioteness of Management's use of the going concam basis of accounting and, bossd an the audit
avidence obtained, whether o materal uncertainty exists reloted to events or condifions that may castsigniiicant doubton the
enfity’s ability o confinue s 0 going concern. If we conclude hat a materdal uncedainty exists, we are required 1o drow
attertion In our ouwdiicr’s report to the reloted disclosures in tha consodated finoncial staterments or, if such disciosures are
inadaguate. to modify our opinion, Durconclusions ore bosed on the audit evidence obtained up fo the dote of our auditor’s
report. Howeaver, future events or conditions may couse the Company fo cease to confinue os o going concem,

evaluote the overall presentation, structure and contant of the consolidated financial statements, inrciuding the disciosures, and
whether the financla staterments represent the undetdying transactions and events o mannet that achieves falr prasentation,

Cibtain sufficient approprote oudit evidence regarding the financial information of fhe entities or business activities within the Parent
Company and an osociote to express on opinicn on the consolidated finoncial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supenision and parformanca of the ouditof tha finoncial sftatermeants of such antitias included in the consolidated financlal stofaments
of which we are the independent auditors. For the oiher entity included in the consolidated financial staterments, which have been
gudited by offher awditorn, such other ouditor remains resporsible for the direction, supervision ond performance of the audit carried
out by fhem. We remain solely responsibie for our audit opinicn.

Materdality 5 the magnitude of misstatemeants in the consolidated financial staternents that individually or In egaregate mokes 1
perobabde thot the sconomic decitions of a recsanably knowledosable usar of the finoncial statemeants may be influenced. We
consldar guantitative moterality and gualifative factons in ( planning the scops of ou audit work and in evaluating the resultsof our
wark and (i} o evaluate the effect of any dentilled misstataments In the linanclal statemeants,

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding. among other matters, the plonned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings. including any significont deficlenciss in intermal control that we identify during our oudit,

We also provide those chargea with govemanca with o stofemant that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirsments
regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other maliers ihol may reasonably be ihough! 1o heor
an ourindspandenea, andwhars applicable, retaled sofeguards.

Other Matter

The comsolidated finoncial statements also include the Group's share of profit after foscof Rs. 82.00 lakhs for period from 57 Decemiber,
2024 e, dabe of acquisition by Parent Compony uptill March 31, 2025, as considered in the consolidoted finoncial statemeants, in
respect of an aisociote, whose financial statement has not been oudited by us. The financial statement has bean audited by other
auditar whoss report hove been furnighed io us by thae Management, ond cur opinicn on the consciidoted finrancial statement, inso
far asit relatas to the amounts and disclosurss, and our repart in ferms of sub-sections (3} and (111 of Section 143 of the Act, Inso far as it
reiotes to the oforescid associate, s bosed solely on the report of the ofher ouditor.

Car opinion on the consolicoted financial stotements, ond our report on Ofther Legal and Regulotory Requirements below, s not
rmiodiflad Inrespact of the above matfers with respect to financial staterments audited by ofter auditon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Asrequired by the Componiss (Auditar's Report) Crder, 2020 the Order or CARDT), issued oy the Central Governmeant of Indiain terms
af sub-section (1 1y of Section 143 of the Acl, we give in e Annexure "A" astatement on tha mates spacified In poographs 3 and 4 of
the Crder, to the sxtent opplicable.

Asragulred by Saction T43(3) of the Actowe report that:

(ol We have soughl ond abtained all the information and explanations which 1o the besl of our knowledge and belie! were
necassany for the purposas of ol audi,

{2} In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by low have been kept by the Company so far as it appearns from our
examination of those books and recornds,

& The Bolonce sheadt, tha Staterment of Probit & Loss (ncluding other comprehensive iIncome), Statement of Changes in Equity and
tha Statermient of Cash Flows dealt with by this Repor are in ogreement with the booksof occount,

(e} I our aginlon, the aforascld consolldated financlal stafemeants comply with the Accounting Standords spacified under Sactian
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Campanias (Account) Rules, 2014,

(=) O the basis of the written representations received from the direcions as on 317 March, 2025 taken on reconds By the Board of
Dirgaton, nons of the directors arg disqualitied ds on 317 March, 2025 from baeing appointad as a Director in terms of Secton
I 64(Z) of the Act,

Fy With respect 1o the adeguacy of the internal fincncial controls aver financial reporting of the Company and fhe operating
effectivaneass of such controls, referto cur separate Report in Annesare "B”.

(o) With respect to the other matters to be included in tha Auditor's Report in occordonos with the reguirements of Section 197016)
of the Act, inour opinion and to the best of our Information and oo cording o the explanations given to us, the rermuneration pald
by the Porent Cormpany toits directons duting the yaar s In accordancewith the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
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With respect to the mattens o be included In the Auditor's repartin occordance with the Rule 171 of the Componles {Audit and
Auditors) Rudes, 2004, inour opinion ond o the beast of aurinformation aond accarding to the explanations ghven to us

I TheGroup has disclosed the impoct of pending ifigaticns on its finoncial position in it consoldafed finoncial stotameants,
fefer Mota Mo, 38 to the corsolidated financial statermeants.

i, The Group Jid not hove ony long-term confracts ncluding dervative confracts for which there were any materal
foresesable |osses.

fii,  Thara hos been nodelay in fransfaning amaounts, reauired fo be frangfered, to fhe Investor BEducation and Pratection Fund
b thie Campany

. ) The Manogement hasreprasented thot, to the best of its knowledge and beief; other thon o= dsclosed in the notes to
the occounts, no funds {which are material efther indrviduclly or in the cggregote) hove been odvanced or loaned or
Imviested (either frorm borowed funds or share premium or any ofiher sources orkind of funds) by the Parent company of
in oy other person or enfity, including fomsign entity (CIntermediaries™), with the undestanding. whiether recarded In
writing or atherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities
identified in ony manner whotsoever by or on behalf of the Parent company (" Uitmaote Baneficiories™ or provide any
guarantes, security or the like onbehalf of the Utimate Beneliciarnas

(b3} Tha Mancgement has representad, that, 1o The et of its knowladge and Deliel, othar than o disclosed iIn1ha notes 1o
the accounts, no Tunds (which are matedal elfter Individually o in the aggragate) hove baen recaived by the Porent
carnpany rarm any peson of enfity, including forsign antity ("Funding Pamies”), with the understanding. whathar
recorded i wiiting or otharwise. thot the Company shall, whether, directly orirdirectiy, l@nd of invest in ot parsons o
entitles [dentiffed In any manner whatsoever by of on beball of the Funding Party (“Uimote Benetlcianies ) or provide
any guarantes, securiby o the ke on baholf of the Utimate Benaficiorass.

(c) Baosed on the oudit procedures that hove been considered regsonable and oppropriate in the circumstances, nothing
hos come to our nofice that hos caused ws to belleve thot the representation under sub clouse () ond (D of Rule 1142) of
The Companies (Audit ang Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under () and (D) above, contairs any materal
misstalarnent, Refer note 50 {v) ond (vil} to the consolidated finoncial sichemanis,

v, The dividend paid by the Porent Company durng The yeor i in accordonce with Section 123 of the Act, As statad in nofe
A5E 0 the consolidated linancialstatements, the Board of Dirsclors of [he Parent Company hos proposed lingl dividend for
Ihe yeor 2024-28 which is subjact ta the approval of the membears al [ha ansuing annuol garendl maaling, The proposed
dividend declaredisin accordonce with Secton 123 of the Act to the extant i applies to tha daclaration of dividend,

Based on our examination, which Included test checks, the Group has used occounting soffware for malntaining s occount
books for the financlal veor endad March 31, 2025 which has a fecture of recording audit trail (edit log) faclity ond the samse has
oparcied throughout the yeaor for all relevant fransacfions recordedin the sofheana, Further, during the course of our audit we did
net come acrass any Instance of the oudit frqil fectune balng tampeared with, The Sroug Bin compiance with the preservation of
audit frall os par the statutory requirerments for record retentian.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 30 and 4.of the Companies (Auditorn’'s Report) Croder, 2020 (e "Order”/
"CARD™Y issued by the Central Governmeant in terms of Section 143011 of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report.
accarding to the infarmation and explanations ghven ta us, and based on the CARD reports issued By us tar the Parent Compary
ond by the auditor of an asociale, Includad in the consolidoled linancial stotemanis of fhe Parent Compony, o which
reparting under CARO Boppliicable, we report that there are no qualifications o adverse remarks in these CARD reports except
that abserations regarding o whishe-blower complaint have been mads in tha report of the Patent Company under Ciause X
of CARD 2020,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Charfered Accountanis
Firmn reglstration Mo, = 301051E/E300284

R. P. Baradiya

Murnial Partner
247 May, 2025 Mermbearshilp Mo, 44101

LD 25044101 BMIVNDS393
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“AMNEXURE B"
Report on the Internal Financial Controls undar Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companias Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

In conjunctian with our oudif of the consolidoted Ind A financial statemeants af the Company as of and o the yeor endsd 375t March,
2025, we have audited the intemal inancial controls over noncial reportirg of Narmada Gelatines Limited  “the Porast Company”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respactive Board of Directars of the of the Holding compony, ond an associate, are responsibie for establishing and maintaining
Imternal financial controls hased on the infermal cantrol over financial reporting criterio established by the Company considering the
essential components of Infernal contral stated in the Guidance Mote on Auditof Intemal Fnanclal Controls Orver Fnancial Reporting
Ezued by the Institufe of Chartered Accountonts of India (CALD. These responsibilities include ths design, implementatian and
maintenance of adequaots intemol financiol confros thot were opearafing effectively far ensuning the ordery  and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policias, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frouds
and arrees, the accurccy and completeness of the occounting records, and the Himely preparation of reliabis finonclalimformotion, os
required under fhe Act.

Auditor's Responaibility

Cur responsibility s to express on opinlan on the Company's infemal fnancial controls over fincnciol reporing based on our audit, We
conducted our qudit In accordance with the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Confrods over Fnancial Repoing (thi
"Gukdance Mote™) ssued by the ICAl and the Standords on Acditing, lssued by ICAI and deamed to be prascribed under Section
143010} of the Act, 1o the exent appiicable fo an audit of Intemal firancial conireds, both lssued by the institute of Charered
Accountants of Indla, Those Standaonds ond the Guidonce MNote require that we comply with ethical requirernents and plon and
parform the audit o obtain recsorable ossuronce about whether odeguate intemal nonclal controls aver finoncial reporting was
astacdshad ond maintalimed and If such controls oparated effectively inall materalrespects.

Cur audit involves performing procedurss o abtain audit evicdance about the adequacy of the intemoal fincnziol contiols systam ovar
financial reporting and their operating effectivensss, Cur audit of intemal finonciol controls over financial reparting includsd
abtoining onundestanding of interral financial controls over financial reporting, oszessing the sk thot o motenol weaknes sxdsts, and
lesting and evaluating the design and cperating sffectivenass of intemol control based on the assessed risk, The proceduras selectad
depend on the auditor's Judgement, Including the assessment of the rsks of materal misstotemeant of the Corsolldoted Ind AS
financialstalements, whether due to fiaud o sror,

Wa beleve that the oudit evidence we hove obtained i sufficient ond opprogrote o provide o basis for our audit ogmnion on fhe
Company’sinfemal finonckal controls system ovear financial raparfing.

Meaning of Infemnal Finoncial Confrols Over Financiol Reporting

A Company’s internol finoncial control over fingnciol reporting 5 o process designed fo provide reasonabile asuronce regarding the
refiabiity of finoncial reporting ond the preparation of finoncial statameants for extarmal purposss in accordance with genarally
aocepted accourting principles. A Company's intemal financial confral cwsr financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detal accurately and faily reflect the frarsactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provids recsonable assumnee that tromsactions are ecomded as necassary o parmit
preparation of financial stotements in occoidance with generally acceptaed accourting principdes, and that recsipts and
expenditires of the Compory are being mads only In accordance with authorsations of monagement ond disectors of the
camprany; (3) provide reasonatle assurancs regarding prevention or imealy detection of unauthonssd acauistion, use, or disposition
of fhe Company's assets that could have amafesdal effect on the inanciol staterments: and (4) also provide reqsonobie assunance by
the internol ouditons theough theirintermol audit repaorts given to fhe crganisation from fimes to ime.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Fnancial Reporting

Becaouse of the inherent limitotions of intermal finoncial controls over fnonciol repoding, Including the possioility of colluslon orimproper
monogement overnide of controls, material misstotemeants due to eror or froud may occur ond not be detected. Also, profections of
any evaluohan of the internal fingncial contras over financial reparting fo future periods are sublect to the sk fhat the Infernal
fincnclal confral over financial reparting may become inodequote becouse of chonges In condiflons, or that the degree of
compiance with the policies or procedures may deteroroie.

Opinion

In-our opinicn, the Parent Company, hos breadly, ingll moiediol respects. on adaquate intemdal inancial controls system over inancial
reporting and such inteimal inancial conbrols over financial reparting were agerfing effactively asat 215t March, 2025, bosad on the
irternal control over financial repoting criteria egtablshed by the Company considering the essential componeants of infemal control
stated in the Guidance Mota on Audf of iInteral Financial Contrals Over Fnancial Repoding Bsued by the Institute of Chorterad
Acoountantsof india,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accourtants
Hrrm registration Mo, — 301051E/ 300284

R. P. Baradiya
Murmbal Partriar
247 May, 2025 Mambarship Na, 44101

LITHR: 25044101 BMIVNDEIZS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 315t March, 2025
(Al armounts it Indion rapee lakh, wnless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Notes As al
. 318t March, 2025
ASSETS
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froparty, plant and agulpment & 3.297.67
Copifal work-in-prograss 4 a7 BT
Irtangible assets ] =
Frcrclal ossets,
- Invastment in an associole 4 4,197.31
- (rther Investments -
- Loans v 14.04
- Orther financial ossels i 147.18
Income tax assets (net) 49.62
Other narccurant owseis @ 63,74
Total Non-Current Assels B,467.77
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventonss 10 4.667.37
Financial assets
- Trade receioblas 11 248420
- Coash ond cosh sguivalants 12 1903
Bank batances aothar thon above 13 26345
- Loons 14 45.98
- Orher finoniciol assets 15 &7.44
Other cument assats = 247.53
Total Current Assets 7,547.91
TOTAL ASSETS 14,015.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
E&@UITY
Equity share capifal 17a &05.03
Otner equity 17t 11.421.23
Tatal Equiky 12,026.26
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 15 &03.08
Prowisiors 19 19.98
Defamad tax liabiities (net) 20 A07,85
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,032.95
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Eabilities:
- Borrowings 21 Gh9.12
- Trace payablas 22
(1} Total outstonding dues of micro ond smaoll entenorises R51.84
iy Total outstanding dues of craditors ofher thon Tob.85
micro and small enferprises
= her financial lobiities 23 142,77
Ofer cursnt llobditiss 24 27120
Prowvislons 25 128.24
Current tox liabiitles (neth 26.31
Total Current Liabilities 295637
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,015.68
Materal Accounting Policles 2
Maotes forming port of occaurts 350
The accampanying notes are on infegnal part of the consaligated finarcal siatements
Ag per our report of even data
For LODHA & CO LLP For ard on beholf of the Board
Charersd Accountants
Firm Regre Mo, - 301081 EF E300284 Ashok K Kapur
hanaging Dlector
R. P. Baradiva LM 001 26807
Porinie
Plenioarshlp Mo, 44501 Mahima Patkar
Ploce : hMummb Chigfl Finoncicd Officar  Company Secratary

Dote | 2d4th Moy, 2025
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4’} NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended 315t March, 2025
(Al arounts in Indion rapee lakh, wnless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS MNotes Year ended
31st March, 2025
INCOME
I Revenus from opsarations 26 |8.852.07
Il Cther Income 7 1&5.25
Il Total Income €1 + 1) T 19,057.32
IV EXPENDITURE
Cost of matenals consurmed 28 1140713
Changes in mventory of finlshed goads.
wark-n-progress & stock-in-trods 9 (423,72
Emploves benefits exparce 30 1.418.21
Fingrce costs 3 122,08
Depreciafion cnd amorsafion expense a2 23223
Power & Fual 2455.65
Oiher expenses 33 1.37681
Tolal expenses (V) -m
W Frofit betore exceptional Fems and fox (I -1V} 2278.9%6
Wl Excaptiandl lems
Wil Shore of Profit of on ossoclate 82.00
VIl Profit batore tax (v - V1) T 2,360.96
¥  Tox Expense
{ay Currant tax 20 540.00
(o} Defared tax [21.9%)
X Profit affer taxation (VI - VI " 1.802.94
X Other Comprahensive Incorme
[terns hort will not be reclossifed to prolt o loss
Remeasurements (losses) of net defined benefit plans (85,19
Total Comprehensive Income (1X - X) T 1,736.75
Eorning per Equity Shore of Foce Yalus of T 10 soch
Basic and diluted Eamings per share (1) T 2980
Material Accounting Policies 2
Motes forming port of aocounts 3-50

Tha accampanying nates are an irfegral part of the consalidated financial stoternents

Az par our report of even dala

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartaered Accountants
Firrn Rergn. Mo, = 301051E/ E300284

R. P. Baradiya
Partner
Membarship Mo, 44101

Flace - Mumibal
Date : 24th May. 2025

For and on bahalf of the Board

5. Annamalal
Chalirnn
DIM: 00001381

Arun Jelzswal
Chiet Financial Officer

Ashok K Kapur
Managing Directar
DM 00125807

Mahirna Patkar
Caompany Secratary
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
for the year anded 315t March, 2025
tAll amounts in Indion rupes lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Porticulors Year ended
315t March, 2025

A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Met profit before tax 2 380,98

Adjustrierts for:

[Depraciation and amarisalion expeanse FEE3

Interest ncome C118.18)

Profit on redampfion [ falr value of nvestments (4947

Frmance costs 172058

Shara of profit of on asociote (82,00

Profit on disposal/discard of property, plant ond eqguipment (0.609)

Liatities no longer reaulrsd witten back (Net) 2856 119,39

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,480.35

Adjustments for :

Imerease r frods and other recsivables {253.68)

(increasa) [Decredgse in inventories (5.594)

(Ircreqsa)/Decreqse Inloans & other inonckl assats (&7 98)

Increase In other curent assets (92.52)

Decreose/(Increqse) in other non- curent ossets 10.02

IPcrecsa in frade poyables 25407

[Cecrease insharl lerm provisions [29.84)

Increase/{Decrense) in other curent abiliies 5.37 {221.48)

Cash genemated fiom cperating activites 2.258.87

Toiress paald (Met of Rafund) {553.99)

Net cash generated from operating octivities (A) 1,704 88
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Purchose of proparty, plant and equipment (neluding CWIP ond copital odvonoes) (1470.14)

Puzchase of Curent/Mon - Curent investrments (411585

Sale ot Non - Curmant Investmeants a0 48

Bork deposits not considarsd s cath and coash equivalents (placed)/ fefund 1,.529.03

Interest recelved 205.35 {2 89059

Net cash used in investing aclivities (B) (2,890.59)
C. Caosh Flow from Financing Activities;

Cividend pald including tax theraaon (a05.48)

Procesds from Leng termn Borowings - Bank &03.08

Met Proceeds fram short ferm bormawlings - Bonks H&9. 12

Amount fransfered to Investor Educotion ard Protechon Funad:

Unpaid dividend amount (165

Finance cost paid (122.08) 543.01

MNet cash from / (used in) financing octivities (C) 543.01

MNet Increase / (Decrease) in Cosh and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) (642.71)

Cash and Cash Equivalents al the beginning of the year B61.74

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 19.03

Particulars As at

d1st March, 2035

Cash on hond 1003

Balance with Banis &.00

TOTAL 19.03

hatardal Accounting Pokcies 2

Motas forming part of occounts 3-50

The aoccompanying notes ae an ntagrml parf of the consolidated finanaclol stalemernts
As par our reparl of even dale

For LODHA & €O LLP For and on behalf of ha Board

Charferod Acoouniants

Firm Regr, Mo —301051E/ E300RE4 8, Annamdalal Mshak K Kaplr
Chairman Mahaging Direcfor

B. P. Baradiya Doii: D001 381 Cik:O0F 24307

Partnes

Meambersis No, 44101 Anun Jaiswal lahima Poticar

Floce : humibo Chiaf Finorciol Cfcar Compony Scoratary

Cxxla 244y Moy, 2025
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¢ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Al amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As ot
31st March 2025

Issuad, Subscribed ond Pald up &H04.94
Farfaited Shares .o
TOTAL &605.03
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total

Capital Securities General Retained Comprehensive

Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income
Ag ot 318t March, 2024 751 42837 2.329.40 7.532.82 {5.13) 10,289 44
Profit for the year - - - 1,802 .94 - 180294
Cither Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - (66,19 (68, 19
Divickend Paid = = = {604.96) - (60,963
As ot 31st March 2025 751 42537 2.329.60 8.730.80 (71.32) 11,421.23

Materdal Accaunting Policles 2
Motes farming pat of acoounts 3-50

The ococompanying notes are an infegral part of the consolidoted financial stotemants

Az per owr report of sven dote

Foi LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accounianis
Firmn Regn, Mo, - 301051E/ B3O8

R. P. Baradiya

Partrer
Teanioerhipy Mo, 441017

Fiace : Mumbol
Dote 2416 Moy, 2025

For and on behalf of the Baard

§, Annomalai
Chairman
i O0COT 281

Arun Joswal
Chigf Financial Officer

Ashok K Kapur
Maonoging Dirsctor
CHM D01 24607

Mahima Patkar
Cormpany Secretary
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1)

(i

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ihe Consoldoted finonclal statements comprlse finonclal statements of Narmado Galatines Limited (herelinafter refered to as (“the
Farent Campany®) Boving CIN L2411 IMPISSIPLEDTA023 fof the yaor ended March A1, 202058.The Parent Company 5 a pubiic
company domiciled in indio ond B ncoporoted under the provisions of the Companiss Act opplicabde 0 Indio, The Parent
Compary wos set upin 1961 as Leiner Knit Gelotin Company Pyt Lid. The Parent Company was converted into @ Pubiic Company
and registersd as Shaw Leiner Lmited In 1965, In the year 1979, the nome of the Parent Compony was changed to Show Walloce
Zelatines Umited, and in the yvear 2002, the Farent Company was renamed os Marmadao Gelatines Umited, The Parent Company is
registerad in Jabalpur (Modhbya Frodesh) under Registrotion number LEA1 1 TMP 126 1PLCD146023, The Registersd office of the Parent
Compory s of 28, CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabaipur (M.F). The Company & engoged in the manufocturs ond sale of Ossein and
Zelatine and hos its manutactuing faciity located at Jabalpur (M.F)

Tha Parent Company has the following Associote

Narma of the Proportion of Mature of Business Date of acquisition
Company Crwnership Interest
Incio Gelotine and 14, 14% Maonufocture aond sals of 05-12-2024
Chemicals Limited Cesein and Selatine

Harainofter Porent Company and an assoclote togetherwll be refared as "Goup”,

This beaing fhe fist yeor of consolidated finoncial stotements In view of this acguisition, disclosure far the previous year & not
opplicobie

MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compllance

The financial statements have baan preporad in eocodance with the Indlon Accounting Standords (herslnarfer referad o as the
Il AS') o5 noliied under The Companies {Indion Accounfing Standards) Rules. 2015 and Companiss (Indion Accounting
Slandards) Amencmanis Rules 2018 prescribad under Seclion 133 of the Comparies Ao, 2013 reod with Rule 7 of the Caompanies
(AGcounts) Rules, 2014,

Recentaccounting pronouncemaeants

Mlingstny of Corporate Affairss ("MCA™) notifies new standards or omendments fo the existing stondards under Companies (Indian
Accounfing Standards) Rules os ssued from time fo fime. On August 12, 2024 and Seprermber 07, 2024, MCA, issued the Componies
(Indion Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 20024 and Companias (ndion Accounting Stardords) Second Amendrment
Rules, 2024 introducing following changes:

al  Imd A5 117 - Insurance Contracts: Ind A5 117 Insurancs Confracts was introducad and Ind A5 104 Inguraonce Cantracts was
withdrenen, This wos acocompanied with consequent amendmeants in other standoras,

B} Ind AS 114 - Leases: The omendments clarfy accounting freatment for o seller-lessee involved in sake and leaseback
fransactions ond infroduced some related Bustrative exampees,

The above standard are effactive trom Apdl 01,2024, The Company has reviswad the new pronouncements and Based an ifs
evaluation hos determined thof it does rot bave any signifcant impact inits financial statemeants,

The Boord of Directon approved the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 15t March, 2025 and outhorised forissue on 240 May,
2025.

Basis of preparation ol consolidoted financial statements

Thesa Consalidoted financlial staterments hove bean prapared in occordonca with the Indion Accounting Stardards (hereinalfer
refamed 1o 05 the Ind A5 as notifled by Mindstry of Corporate Affais pursuant 1o Section 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 racd with
Rule 4 of the Cormpanias (ndian Accounting standards) Rules 2005 as amendead from tirmea totirme.

The financial statements of the Group are prepared In occordonce with the Indion Senerally Acceplted Accounting Princlples
{ZAAF) on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost convention except for the cerfain materkal Hems that have been
measurad at fair value as required by the relevant Ing A5 ond sspiained in the ensuing policias below,

The Consaiicioled finoncial staternents are presented in Indicn rupees (INR ) which is functional currency and ol valuss are rounded
to the meairast crore, axcept othanwise indicated.

Use of estimates & Judgaments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statemeants s In confarmity with the Ind AS, requires thea Mﬂnﬂg&ﬂwf—:ﬂf 1o make
estimotes ond assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets ond llobiities dncluding contingent liobdites) and the
reported Incoms ond expenses durng fhe year The Manogement believes thot the estimotes used in preparation of fhe
consciidated financial statements are prudant and reasonable, Fubure actual results could differ dues to these estimates ond the
differances betweasan the actual resutts and the estimates are recognissd in the periocs in which the results ars known | motsrialiss,

Basis of consofidotion
The consolidated finoncial statensants comprse ihe fimoncial staterments of fhe Parent Company and an associale as af 318t March
2025, Consolldated finonciol stotements ore prepared using uniform accounting policies forlke transoctions and otherevenisin
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¢.- NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indion rupes lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i

i)

iy

simiar circumstances. IF o member-of the Group uses accounting policies other thon those odopied in the consclidoted fincncial
statemnents for ke fransactions and events in similar circumstonceas, aporopnate adjustiments are made to that Group's financial
staternents In prepanng the consolidoted financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group'saccouniing poficies.

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intanglble Assets

Freahold lond Is camad of historical cost, All other remns of property, plant ond equlpmant are maosured ot cost less occumulatad
dapreciofion and Impaimrmant Iosses, IF any, Costs includa freight, import duties  nonrafundable purchose toxes and othar axpensas
diractly aftributable to the ooquisition of the asset, Subsequeant costs are included In fhe asset’s camylng omaount of recognised asa
saparate asset, os appropdate, only whan it s probable that future economic benalits associoted with the derm will flow fo the Group
and tha cost of the item con be measured reliably. The coamying amaount of any component aocounted for as o seporate assetis
derecagnized whan replioced. All ofher repalrs and malntenance are charged 1o the Statemeant of Profit and Loss during the
reparting period inwhich they are Incured.

Imtangible assats: Infangible ossets are stated ot cost of aoquisition less accumuiated amosdeation and Impaiment, i any Losses
arising from the retirement of, ard goins or losses arising from disposal of fived assets which ore caried af cost or revaluad amount are
recognized inthe Stoternent of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation / Amortisafion

Depreciation s provided on the stralght-line method applying the welul lves os preseibed in part C of Schadule || to the Companias
Act, 2013 except for plant ond equipmeant, wharain usaful ife & determined based on infarnal fechnlcol assessment, Tha rangsa of
estimoted usetul lvas of Propearty, Plant & Eguiprment’s are as undear:

Category Useful Life
Buildirigs (inchuding roads) 5= &l Yeors
Flant & Fgulpmant &- 25 Yaars
Electrical lnstallation: 10Yeors
Fuarreifura & Flatura 10Years
Office Equiprmeant J-S¥ears
Wahicles 8 Years

The momaogemeant believes that the usetul ife os ghven above the best represent the peniod over which the management sxpactsio
use these assats, The Group revisws the usetul lives and residug! value at each reporting date,

Depreciation on assets odded/sold or discarded during the year i being provided on pro-rata basls up fo the date onwhich such
assets ore odded/ soldor discarded.

Aggats cosfing up to BE.5.000 eoch are depracioted fully in tha year of purchose.

Galns/Losses on disposals/de-recognition of propery, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carmying
armourt and fheese e recognzed in sfaternant of profit & Loss.

IMtangible assets are omortsed over their estimoted wsetul sconomic life under Straight Line method. Computer softwore cost bs
amortizad over a period of five years.

Inventories

Inventores {includes Raw Materal, Wark-in-Progress, Finished goods, Stores & spores, Consumablas, Pocking Maotedaols) are valued at
cost or net realizabiz volue, whichever s lower, Nat realisable valua is the estimmated seling price In the ordinany course of business less
the estimoted cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of Row Materlal, Semiiinished and
Fimishied Goods and Work-in-Progress is determined on weighted average basis ond comprises of expenditure incured in fhe normial
coursi of business in bringing inventories fo thelr present location inciuding appropriate overheads apportioned on a reasonabie
and consishent basls, Obsolate, slkow moving and defective stocks are identified of the fime of physical verification of stocks and
where necessan/, proviseon is mode for those inventones, Adeguote cllowance & made for obsolete and slow moving fems.

Revenue Recognition

Tre Group recognizes revenus, whenaver control over distinct goods or sernvices i fronsferred to the custormear: |.e. when fhe
custormer s able fo dirsct the e of the anstered goods of services and obfaing substortiaily all of the remairing benatits, providad
a contract with enforceable ghts and obligations exlsts ond amaongst athes collectability of consideration & proboile taking Into
gocount customers creditworthiness,

Rewvenue s the tronsaction price the Group expects to be entiled to. In determining the fronsaoction price. fhe Sroup considens
effects of varable consideration, the existence of significant financing confrocks,. noncash considerotion and consideration
payabla totha customaar, if any.

Sale of goods

Ravanusa from the soia of goods s recagnisad when the cantrod of the goods passaes 1o tha buyer elthar ot tha fime of dispateh o
dalivany orwnen thea risk of loss transfers, Export sales ara recognized based on the farms of tha sale which is whean substantial rlsks and
renards of ownership are possed to fhe customers.

Revenusfrom sale of goodsis net of toxes aond recovery of chorges cofected from customess like transport. pocking efe, Provision s
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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rmicde (o raturms when appropnats, Revenue smeasursd al The (airvalus of considanalion received of récaivable ard is nat of pldce
discounts, aliowancs for volume retotes and similar ifems.

Claims / Refunds not ascertainobis with reasonabie cerfointy are occountad for, on final setttemant and ore recognized as revenue
oncerairty of recelpt on prudent basis.

Feverie recagnition fram sale of " Duly Entitlemant Passbook License of Merchandize Exparts fram India Scheme (IMEIS)" I8 made on
sobe af the licernse after receiptol he some fram the office ofthe Director Ganeral of Farsign Trads.

Income from Duty Drawbock izrecognised onreceipt basis,

Dividend
Dividend Income fram Investments s recognised when the shashoelder's rght fo recelve payment hos been established (provided
that it s probable that the acongrmic benatits will fiow to the Group and tha amaunt of Incoms con be maasused rellabhyd.

Interestincome

Irterest income from a finoncial asset s recagnised whien it s orobable that the economic beneflits will fiow ta the Group and the
amaount of income caon e maasured reliobly, Inferest income 5 noonied on a time bosis, by referencea o the orincipal cutstfonding
and at fhe effective inferast rate apalicatie, which iz the rate hot exactly discounts estimated future cosh raceiots throughy the
expacted ife of the financiol osset to that asset’s net camying amount on initlad recognition,

Income from Investment
Income from Invesimeants {othar than Invesirmenis in shares of compaonies ard Mutual Funds) s accounted on accrual bosis.

Cividend Incoms on invasiments is recognissd when the righl 1o recaive dividend is established. Interast income is recognized ana
fime proporionale bosis foking Into account 1he amounis invested and the role of inferest. For oll inoncial instruments measured af
armartisad cost, intarast income is reconded using the Effective interest rate method to the netcarmying amount of thefinonciol ossats.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Faorgign curancy transactions are accounted ot the exchange rotes prevaiing on the date of the transactions. Gains and losses, if
ary, on sefflement or reinstatement of yeor end closing balonces by applying the closing rofes in respect of monetary osets and
monetory licbilities nat covered by the forward condracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Mon-rronatary terms denaminated In forelign cunancy are stated ot the rate prevalling on the dote of fhe ransaction.

The premium er discount anising at the inception of the forword confract entered info fo hedge the existing osset [ liabiity, is
amortized o expense of incormea over the life of the confroct, Exchonge differences on such controct ara recognized in the
staternent of profit and loss inthe repoing period inwhich the exchange rafes change. Any profit or kess ansing out of cancellation or
renewal of such confract ara recognized as income of axpense inthe reporting period. Forward  exchange contracts outstanding
as gt the year end on occount of firrmn commitmeant [ highly probable forecast fransaciion are maorked fo market gnd the losses, if
any, oie recognized in the statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored,

Employee Benefits

The Graup has tha following post-employment benafit plans;

i, Defimed benalit plans such as gratuity;

i, Defined contritbution plans such os Provident fund & Superannuation fund; and
i, Otherempioyas baneflls.

Dalinad banatit plan:
Voluntany Retirement Scheme Expenseas, If any.are fully charged offin the year of poyment,

Thia lliatillty o assat racognised in fhe baiancs sheet In raspect of defined banellt gratulby plan s the prasant value of defined banafl
obligations al the end of the reporting period less fair value of plon assels. The defined benefil cbligalion s cofculaled annually by
acluaries thraugh acluanal valuation wsing the Projecied Unil Cradif melhod,

The Group recogrses the following changes In the net defined benafit collootion as an expensa In the statement of profif ond loss:

, Sanvica costs comprsing curment service costs, past-sendce costs, galrs and [osses on cudalrment and non-routing setiamants;
falgls ]

b, MNetinterest expenss orincomea

The net inferest cost 5 colculated by applying the discount rate o the net balonce of the defined tenefit olbiigotion and fair value of
pican assats, This cost B included in employves banefit expanse in the statemant of profit cndioss,

. Reemeasurerment of Actuorial (goinsfosses

B, Returnon planossets, excluding amount recognized in effect of assst cesiing

c.  Re-meosuremeant arsing becousa of change In effect of assat caliing

are recognsed in the parod In which they oocur directly in Other Comprehansive income. Re-maasuremeants ara not reclossified to
profit or ks in subsequant perlads,
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I AS 19, Employees benalits raquirss e axarcise of judgmenl inrsialion to vanous assurmplions ncluding future pay nses, inflation
ard discount rates and employes and pansloner demographics. The Group datemmings the assuemptions in conjunction wilh s
actuaries, and belleves thasa assumplions to be Inline with bast practice, but the application of different assumpticns colld hove a
significont effect on the omounts reflected In the Income statement, other comprehansive income and baloncs shieest; There may
b also infer-dependency between some of 1he assurmplons,

Defined confribution plan:

Under defined confribution plans, the Group poys pre-defined omounts to separate funds and does not hove any legal or informal
ohligation to poy additional sums. Defined contibution plans compriss of contributions to provident funid, Insurance and Employees’
FPension Scheme. The Grpup's poyments fo the defined contribution plans are recognised s expanses during the perod imwhich the
employvess perform the senviceas that the payment covers,

Other employee benefits

., Compensated dbsences which ara pot expectad to occur within fwelve month: after the and of the pedcd in which the
armployes renders the related senvces ara recognised as a lakility at the present vaiue of the obligation as af the baloncs sheet
dote determined bosed on on actuarial valucticn.

b, Undiscourted amount of short-term employes benefits sxpected to be paid in exchonge for the sevices rendered by
employess ars recognissd durng the perod when the employae rendears the related sendices,

C.  Expensesincurred towords voluntary retirernantscheme are charged to the staternant of profit and less as and when incured.
d.  Other benafitzcomprising of discrationany long semnvioe dwdrds dre recognized as and when detemined.

Current and Deferred tox

Income tox comprises curent and deferad tax. incame fox expensa i recognized in the staterment of profit and loss except to the
exctent frelotes to hams directy recognized in equity orinother comprenensive income, Curent foeds bosed on taxable prott for the
year Taxable profit 5 differant from occaunting profit dus 1o temporary differences betweaan octounting and tax freatments, and
chus to llems Ihal are naver (owaile of fax deduchitie, Tax provisions are included in curen! iabiifies, inleres! and penaltiss on tax
licyilitiess are provided forin the fox chorge, The Group offsets, the curen! tox assets ond liobiifes (on o yveor on yaar basis) whears i
has @ legally enforceabdle right ond where it intends to settle such cssets and liabilities on @ net boss or fo realise the assets and
lliatilities an net basis. Defarsd incoms tax § recognizsd using the balance shest approach. Defersd income tax assets and
lictsilities cre recognized for deductible ond taxatile temporany differences ansing betwesn the tox bose of assets and liabilities and
thelr carrying amount in financial stoterments, Defemed income bax osset are recogrized to the extent that itis probable thot faxoble
profit will e ovailable against which the deductible tamporary differences, and the Sormy fanaarnd of unused fax credity and urnussd
tam Iosses can be utlized, Defered tax assets are not recognizad whare it s mors likely than not that the asssts will not be realised in
the future, The carmving amount of defered neorme fox assets & reviewad ot each reparting date and reduced to the extant that it is
re konger probable thot sufficient toxabie profit will be availabie to allow all or part of the defared ncome fox asset 1o be uliked,
Defered incomes ox assets and liokbilties are measured at the fox rates that are expected to apply Inthe pedod when the aesetis
racfired or tha llability 5 setied, based on fax rates (ond tax Iows) that hove been enoacted or substartively enocted at tha reporting
date Deferad tax fems are recognized in comelation to the undetying trarsaction elther in Other comprehsnsive moome-or directhy
imecuity.

Impairmment of Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there s any olojective evidence that a non-financial assat or o group of non-
financial cssats are impalred, If any such indication axists, the Group esfimaies the amount of impalrment loss: For the purposs of
assessing impakment, the smoflest identifioble group of assets that genesates cash inflews from confinuing use that are largely
irdepandent of the cosh infliows from other assets or groups of assefs s considerad os o cosh genenating wnit, f any such indlication
oxizly, an estimate of tha recoverable amount of fihe individual asset/cosh generating unit lemade. An impairmment ioss 2 calculoted
az the difference behwean an asset's camying amount and recovarable amaount. Losses are necognised in profif or loss and reflected
in an alowonce account. When the Group considers that there are no realstic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amaounts anz written off. If the amount ofimpairment loss subsequently decrecses ond the decrease can be related cbjectively to.an
event occumng after the Impairment waos recognised, then the previously recognised Impalrmant loss s reversad through profit or
less,

Fimancial Instrurments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Fimarncial assets are-recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the controctual provisions of fhe instrunnents. Fnanciol assets
other than frade receivables are intfially recognised at fair value pius fransaction costs tor all finoncial asets not camied at fair value
firough peofit o loss, Financiol assets caried ot fair value fhrough profit or loss are nitially recognised of fair value, and fransaction
costs ore expensed inthe stotement of profit and loss

Subsequent measurement

Fimonciol ossefs, other thon eguity insfruments, ote subsequentty measured at amortised cost, foir value fhrough ofher
comprahensha Income ar falr value throwgh prafit or oss on fhe basis of;

. the enlily's busingss mode! lfor managing the findncial assets; and

b the controctual cash flow characterstics of the financial asset
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{H  Meosured atamorised cost:

A financlal asset s measured of amofised cost, [F i s hedd undar the hold to collect business modal La, hald witih an olgpective of
hoiding the assets to collect controciual cash fiows and the confroctual cosh flows aresolely payments of principal and intenast on
the principal outstanding. Amoriised cost B colculoted using the effective inferest rafe (EIR) methed by foking info account any
disccunt or premium on ocgulsifion and fess or costs that are an integral part of the Bl The EIR amomization s ncluded ninterest
Irccme in the stotement of profit ond loss. The losses arnsing from Impalrmeent are recognisad in fhe staternent of profit and loss. On
derecognition, goin orloss, if any, srecognised fostafement of profit and loss,

{ily Measured ot falr value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI):

A Mnancial asset s maosures at VOG0T s held under the hald 1o colleet and sall business madesl La, held with an objactive fo
collect contractual cash lows and seling such financial asset and the confractual cosh fows aresoley paymeants of poncipal and
interast on the principal outstanding. I s subsequently measured of falr value with foir volus moverments recognised in the OCI,
excent tar interest incomawhich recognissd using effactive Intarast rata methodd. The lossas angng from impalimmeant ore recagnissd
i the staterment of proflt and loss, On derecognition, cumulalive galn or loss praviously recognisad Inthe OCls reciossiled rom the
sojulty to statement of prafit and ass,

(i) Measured o fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Irvestment in fimonciol asset other than eguity instrumeant, not measured of either omor_tised cost or FYOCTs meosured af FYTPL, Such
finonciol ossets aora meosured at fair volue with all changes in fair value, Including interest income ond dividend income if any,
recognizedinthe statement of profit and loss,

Eqquity Instrurnents:
Allirvestments in equity instruments, If any clossfied uncer financlkal assets are subsequently meaasured ot fairvalue.

Thie (Sioup recognisss a loss allowonoce fof Expacted Credit Lossss (ECL on financial assats thot are measured af amartised costand
at FVOCI, The credit loss & difference between all contractuc! cosh fiows that are dus fo anentity inoooordancs with the controct
and all the cash fiows that the entity expects to receive (L. ol cash shortfalls), decountad at the origingl effectiveinterest iate, [Hisis
assessed an an ndvideal or collective Basis after considenng all recsenable and suppotable including thal wihieh s foneard-laoking,

The Company's frade recalvable: of contract revenue recelvables do not corfaln significant financing componant and
loss allowance on trada recehables is measurad ot an amount equal to life fime expacted losses |a. axpected cosh shaorfall, balng
simplified oppraach for recognition of impalment loss allowanoce,

Undder simplified appraach, the Group doss not track changasinoredit fisk, Rather if racognizes impairment loss ollowancs Based aon
the lifetime Expected Cradit Losses of sach reporting date dght from its infiol recognition, The Group wses o provision mattix o
daterming imporment Ioss alfcwance on the portfolio of frods recelvobles,

Tha pravision motng B bosed onis historcally obsernved defoult rates over the expeciad iife of 1he trada receivable ord s adhusted for
forward looking estimates, At eveny reparting date, tha histadical observed dafault rates are updated and changes in the forward-
lecking estimotes cra anclysed,

Far financlal assets ofher than frade recelivables, the Group recognises 12 month expected credglf losses for ofl orginated or ocgulred
fnancial assetsif ot the reporting dote the credit risk of the fnoncial osset has not increased significantly since its inifial recognition,
The expecied credif losses ore meosured os lifetime expected credit Iossss if the credit risk on finoncial asset increosss significantly
sirze its initial recognition, if, in o subsequent period, credit guality of the instrument improves such that there s no kenger significant
IMcrense in cradit risks since inflol recognition, then the Group reverss 1o recognizing impairment |25 allowance based an 12 months
Expacted Credif Losses,

The Impalrment (oses and revensals ane recognized In statemeant of profit and loss. For equity imstrumants and financial assets
rieosurac at PYTPL, thars s norequirsment forimpairrment testing.

De-recognition

[Fe Eroum desecognises a fintoncial assat whan tha contractual rghts ta the cash flows from the financiol assat axpdre. or it transtars
righits to recehve cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the isks and rewards of ownership, When it
ey Rstther transferred norretained substantially all of the meks ond rewards of the asset, ros transferred control of the asset, the Sroup
continuss to recogniss the fronsfered asset to the extent of the Compoary s continuing invohemeant,

In that cose, the Group dlso recognises on associoted liakdihy, The fransferred asset ond the associated llagilty ore meosured ona
basis that reflacts the rights ond obligations that the Group hasrefainad.

Financial Liabililtles
Imiticl Recagnition and msasuramant

Fimancial llabilties are recognised whan the Group becomes o party to the confroctudl provisions of the instruments. Financial
lizbilitios ora indtially recogrised ot falr value net of fronsaction costs for all financial lakslities ot cored of falr value $hrough prost or
loss,

he Company’s financiol lobifties includes frade and ofher payables, kdans and Borowings iInciuding bank overdratts and
derivative instrumeants,
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i)

Subsequent measuramant

Fimancial Babiities measured ot amonsed cost ara subsaquently measured aof wsing EIR method. Finonclad lablttes carmed of Talr
value fhrough profit orloss are meosured at fair value with all chonges in folr value recognised in the stotemeant of profif ond loss,
Loans & Borrowings

Atler Inttal racognitian, Interast bearing Ieans and baorawings ors subssquantly meaasurad at amortised cost using EIR method, Galns
and losses are recognized in profit & losswhen the liobilities are derecognized os well as through EIR amortization process,

Financial Guorontee Contracts

Fimancial guarantes contracts ssuad by the Group are those contracts that requires o payment o be made or fo relmiburse the
hider for a loss it Incurs because the specified debiors fails to rmake payvment when due in accordance with the temrmn of a debi
irstrument. Fnanclal guarantes confracts are recognized nitlaly as a labillity at foir value, odjusted for fransaction costs that are
directly affributabls to fhe lssuance of the guaranies,

Subsacuantly, the liokaity s measured af the higher of the amount of kees olliowanes defermined os par impoimeant reguiremernts of
Ire AS 109 and the amount recognized kess cumuiative adjustrmesnts,

De-recognition

A financial lablity s de-recognised when the obligaticn under the llakdlity s discharged or concelled or expires. When an existing
fnancial lability is repdaced by another from the same lender on substarhially different terms, or the ferms of an existing liobllity are
substantiofly modified, such on exchange or modification is reated as the derecognition of the original linb#ty and the recognition
of anew kability, The difference in the respective camying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and oss.

Derivative financial instruments & hedge accounting

The Group uses dervative finoncial insfrumeants, such as forward fomeign exchange confrocts to hedge its foreign curmency rsks. Such
darhvativa financial Instrurmiants are Initially recogrisad at falk volue an the dafre on which a derdvative contract s entered  Info and
argsubsacuantly rermegsured ot fale welug, with changesinfalr value recognised in staterment of profitand |oss,

Dervatives are carmed as financial ossets when the fair volue s positive ard as finoncial lobilties when the falr value B negofive. The
Group designates their dervatives as hedges of foreign cumency fisk esocioted with the cosh Aows of highly probabie forecost
trarsoctions ond variable interast rate risks assoclated with the bomowings,

Fair Value Measurement
The Group meaosures finonclal iInstrurmants, such s, dedvatives at falr valee at each balonce sheset date. Fairvalue s the price that
would ba received to sell an osset ar paid to fransfer a liobiity In on orderdy traonsaction between market parficipants of the
rmeqsurermant dote. The fair value meoasurement & based on the presumpiicn that the fransaction to sell the asset or fransfer the
lizbility takes place either:

o Inthe principal marked tor fhe asset o Bobility, or

s Inthe absence of o principol market, In e most advantagsaus market for the asset or lobiity The princlpal or the miost
advantagsous market must be accessible by the Company,

The falr volue of anassat ora oty & measurad wsing the assumpticns that market paricipants would wse when oricing the assat or
libillty. assuming that morket parficipants octin thel aconomic best intarast,

A fair value maosurameant of o nan-fnancial osset takes o account a market partdicipont's abiity to generate econamic bensfits
by using the assetin its higheast and best use or by seling it to another markst parficipant thabwould use the qsetinifts highest and best
LEe.

The Group uses valudglion fechnigues thot are appropeiate in e crourmstancas and for which sufficient doto are availoble o
re0sure fol valua, mosindsing the use of rlevant obsenable inputs and minsing the use of unobsanablainputs,

The Sroup usestha foliowing hisrorchy for determining ond disciosing the fairvalues of financlal instruments by valuotion technicgque:
Lewvel | @ucted (unadiusted) prices In octive markets for Identicol assets or kabiities

Level 2 Otner techniguas forwhich allinputswhich hove a significant effact on tha racorded fai valus are obsenvable, aither diractly
ar Indirecthy

Level 4 Techniques which use inpuls thol have a significont effect on the recorded fair value thal are nol based on obsernvabie
morketdato,

For ossats and ligbilitles that are recognized in the financial shatemants ona recumng basis, the Sroup determines whather fransfers
have cocurred bebween levels inthe hierarchy by re-asessing cotegorisation{basad on the lowest level input that s significant o the
falrvalue measurement as o whole) of the end of each repomng porod.

Far the purpose of falr value disclosures, the Sroup hos determined classes of assets and liabiities on the Basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the aaset ar iability and the level of the fairvalue hisrarchy as exploined above,

Provision and Confingent Liabilities

A provision i recognised when the Group hos a present obégation as o result of post events and it s proboble that an outflow of
resaurces embodying economic banefits will be required to. settle the obdigation in respect of which a rekable estimate can be
made, These are reviewead af eoch balance sheet date and cdjusiad to reflect the current Best estimotes.
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{xv)

(v}

Contingen! Lickifitkes are nol recagnised bul org dsclosed in the noles. Conlingenl Assels ans neliher recogrised nor disclosed o the
finoncial statements.

Leases

Az a lessae:

The Group assesses whelher acontract contains alease, at incaption of a contract, & confractis, or contains, o lease I the contract
convays heright to contiol the use of an idenfified dssst fora period of fime in exchange for congdenation,

Toassess whethera contract conveys the nght fo contral the use of an idenfified asset, the Group assesses whether:

() theconfract involves the use of onidentified asset;

(i the Group hassubstanticlly all of the economic benefits from wse of the asset through he perlod of the leass: and
(i the Group has the dght fo direct the use of the asset,

At thee dote of commencamant of thelease, the Groug recognizes o fght-of-use cszet (" ROU™ ond o comasponcing lacse lobilliy for
all lecse arangeamants Inwhich It s o lesses. exoept for leases with o term of twalve manths of [ess (shor-ferm leosas? aond ow valus
lecsas, For fese short-tarmn and low value leases. tha Group recognlzes the leasa payrmeants as an operafing expanse on o straight
liFz asis over the term of the leasa,

Thie right-of-use ossets ore intially recognized of cosl, which comprises the intial amount of the leose liokiity odjusted for any lease
paymeants made ot ar prior o the commencement date of the l2ase pius any initial direct costs less ony lease incentives, They are
subsequently mecsured af cost less accumulated depreciaofion and Impalment losseas,

Ceartain edse arangamants includes the aptions to axtand o terminate the lease bafore the and of tha leose tenm, ROU csssts and
lease lablifes Includes thase optlons when it s reasonably certaln that thay will be exerclsed,

Fight-of-use assets are deprecioted from the commencement dote on a siraighd-line bosis over fne sharter of the leose term and
useful life of fhe undedying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recovarability whenever events or chonges in ckcumstances
irdicate that ther cormying omounts may not be recoveroble. For the purpose of impaimment festing, he recoverable aomount (e,
fhie highear of the falr value ess cost tosal and the valus-in-uss) 5 determined on an inddidual assst bosis unless the ossat doess nod
generate cash flows thot are largely independent of those from other aessets, In such cases, the recoverable amount i determined
farthe Cash Senerating Unit (CEU) to which fhe osset balongs.

The lease liability i initialy mecasured ot amadized cost af the prasent value of the future l20se poyments. The kEase payments are
discounted using the intersst rate impdicit in the lease o, If not reodiy determinabile, wsing the incramental borowing raras in fhe
couniny of domicile of thesa leases. Leosa lobililias are ramaasured with 0 coresponding adjiustrment to the relatad rdght of use caset
it the Group chonges ifs osssssrmient IFwhathar it will exercise an sxtension or a termination aption,

Lease Eabliiy ond ROU asset hove been separctely presented in the Balance Sheet and lease poyvments have been classified as
fnancing cosh flows.

Asalessor

Lecsa income from operating leases wheara e GSroup s G lessor s recagnised in income on a siraight-kne boss over fhe iecse farm
unlesstha racaipts are structured to Increasea Inline with expacted general iInflation fo compeansate for the axpected inflationary cost
Ircredsas, Tha respaciive letsed assats ara hcluded Inthe baloncea sheet based on thalrnotura.

Aased on Company's assessment, the contacts entered Info by the Group do not contain a leass s specified above or they are
elther short term of low volue leases. Therefore, those have been accounted as perother applicable accounting standards,

Segment Reporting
Oparating segrnents ane reported in a mannar consisiant with tha internal reparting provided o Chief Opearating Decision Makar
(oD,

The Group hos Identified its Manoging Director oz CODM who s responsible for allogating resources and assessing performonce of
The opearating segrments and makes sirategic decigions.

{xvii) Eamings pershare

Baslc earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit o loss for the pered attrbutable o eguity share holders (offer
deducting preference dividends. if any. and attribuiable foxes) by the weighted averoge number of equity shares cutstanding
during the perod, For the purpose of calculating diuted eaming per share, the net profit or loss for the perod attributable to agulhy
sharaholders and the waighted averoge number of shares cufstonding during the period are odjustad for the effect of all dilutive
paotential egulty shares.

{xvillyCash and cash equivalents

Caosh and cosh equiveiants include cosh and chagiees in hond, bank balgnces; demand deposts with banks and oftver shor-tam
highty liquid Invastrments that are readily converdible fa known amounts of cash and which are subject fa an inggnificant sk of
changasin valie whare adgingl matuity & three months o less,

Cash flows are reported using fhe Indirectmethod whereby the profit before tox s adjusted for the effect of the frongoctions of onon-
cash nature, any deferals or acensals of past and future Sperating cash recaipts or paymenis and iterns of Income or expensas
associoted with imeasting or financing cosh flows. The cash fiows from opergting, investing and financing activities of the Group are

segregated.
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(xix) Bomowing Costs
Genaral and speciiic borowing costs that are directly atiributable 1o the aooguisition. constructon or producticn of qualiiving assets
are copitallzed as a part of cost of that asset, duwring the pariod il all the activities necassary o prepars the quolfying ossets for ifs
infended use or sale are complete. Bualifving ossets are assets that necessanily take o substantiol period of time fo get ready fortheir
Irfended use orsale.

Ot Botrowing costs are recognized as an expensa in the perod inwhich they are incurrad.

(xx) Exceptional lfems
When an item of ncome or expense within profit o loss from ordinary ocfivity is of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is
relevantto explain the performance of the Group for the year, the nature and amount of such items i disclosed s excepfional items.
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3

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Buildings Plant&  Furnifure Vehicle  Office  Electrical Total
Land aquipment & Fixtures equipment Installalions

Balance os at 315t March 2024 114,92 35928 2874.61 3.50 41.35 15.98 3as1 345204
Additions - BO5.25 035 1.63 3413 841,26
Daductions/ Adjusiment - &B.23 . - 823

Balance as al 318t Morch 2025 114.92 35928 3461363 3.85 4135 17.51 72.64 422518

Accumulated Depreciation

Bolance as at 31st Maorch 2024 - 104.21 617,13 1.99 7.02 213 20.66 760,10
Addttions - 17.37 19621 0.30 daz >80 324 22224
Deductions/Adjustrmeant 54,84 - . - - S48

Balance as ab 315t March 2025 - 121.58 757.50 2.29 10.64 11.63 2390 Q2750 "

Met carying omount as at 315t March, 2025 11692 23770 285613 1.54 3n.g 5.87 48.74 3,297 .47

Reder Mate |8 for the delals in respect of cerlaln propetdy, plon! and sgquipment hypothecated/morgaged as securty for

Brarrowings.
Partlculars As at

313t March 2025
CAPITAL WORK-IN-FROGRESS
Prant ard equipment wndse instaliation” =1 s
Bulldling under construction -
TOTAL 678,29

"Refar Mote 18 for the datails in espect of certain proparty, plant and egquicment hypothacoted/mortgaged as ssecurity fo

banowings,
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE

Particulars Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

As at 315t March 2025
Projects mprogress &78.29
Projects tempararly suspended =

a78.2%

Total 678.29

67829

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Block

Bolance as ot 1st April 2023

Aclciifions

Deductions 7 Adlustments

Balance as af 31st March 2024

Addifions

Deductions 7 Adjustmeants

Bolonce os ot 315t Morch 2025

Accumulated amorfisation

Bolance as al 1st April 2023

Armoartlzation chorge for the vear

Deducticns [ Adjustments

Accumulated amorfisation as at 313t March, 2024
Amortisation charge for the vear

Deductians | Adjustrmants

Accumulated amorfisation as ot 31st March, 2025
Het camying amount as of 31st March, 2024

Met carrying amount as ot 318t March, 2025

Softwore

292

2.92

.92

279
0.13

2.92

2.92

TOTAL

292

2.%2

2.92

279
0.3

2.92

292
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& INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT
Investmants In an ascciate (Equity Shores)
Partleulars Face Value Per Share Mo. of Share Total Value
Eqiuity Shares of India Salating and Chamical Lid 1H0.00 (03,000 4,11531
Share of profil of on ossocials B2.00
Total 4,197.31
Irvestmant in an ossociate (Refer Mote 400
Particulors Asal
31st March 2025
7 LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Advance o employees 14.064
TOTAL 14.06
& OTHER FINAMNCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Seculty Depasts 16718
TOTAL 1467.18
g OTHER NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 5672
Frapaid Expenses 102
TOTAL 63.74
10 INVENTORIES
Raw matarials B54.24
Wiok-In-progress 147761
Finished goods 1.896.74
Stores & Sparas 427.78
TOTAL 4 65737
Refer Mote 20
Mota: No inventores written down during the year and in the previous year
11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecurad 2.484.20
Trade Receivables which hove significand
Trode Racelvaibles - credit impaired 281
Less: Allowances lor expacied credll kass {280
TOTAL 2484.20
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12

13

14

13

14

17a

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCTHEDULE:

Oulstanding for following perieds from due dale of payment

Particulors Mot Due Less than 6 months  1-2 2-3  More than  Total
& months -1 year  years years 3 yaars

As al 315t March'2025
I3 Undisputed Trode recelvables - consicered good 1910017 57200 203 281 248701
1§ Undsputed Trade Recetvablas -

which hove significant increase In credit Hisk - - - - - - -
i} Undspuled Trade Recehablas - credl impaired - - - . = 2en  28n
(%) Cisputed Trode recelvables — considarad good - - -
3] Disputad Tiode Receivobias -

whizh hove significont Increase In credit Risk - -
i) Disputed Trade Recehvables — credit impairsd - - - - - - -

Total 1,910.17  572.00 2.03 - - - 2484.20
Particulors As at

31st March 2025

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
gonk balance in curent accounts &.00
Cash on hand 10.03
TOTAL 19.03
BAMK BALANCE OTHER THAM ABOVE
In Dividand accounts 22,30
In Deposits accoumts A4.06
TOTAL 26346
LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Lodin 1o employaas 4598
TOTAL 45.98
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecurad, considered good
Soourlhy deposits A48
Cthear Recelvobie GE9E
Imterest accrued on fxed deposity 004
TOTAL &7 .44
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Advances 1o supplers 22322
Prapald et
Bolancas with governmant autharitiss 1.62
TOTAL —247.53
EQUITY SHARE CAFITAL
Authorsed Share Capital:
1 00,00.000 eculty shares of T 10 each 1.000,00
1.00,00.000 9% curnulative redeemable praforence shares of T10each, 1.000.00
TOTAL 2,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
6049587 egulty shares of 210 each, fully pald t04. 54
Farfaltad shoras aor
TOTAL 605.03
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(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(il Reconciliotion of the number of shares outstonding & the amount of share copital af the beginning ond of the end of the reporting

period:

2024-25
Particulars Mo. of shares  Armount
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 4,049 587 G04.94
Add | Sharss Bsuad dusing tha yaar
Less - Shares bought bock durlng the year - -
Equity shares oulstanding ot the end of year 6,049,587  404.95

(i Terrns/rights aftached fo equity shares

The Farent Company has only one chass of equity shares hoving o par value of 7 10 per share, Each holder of equlty shares is
entilad fo one vote par share, The Compony daclares and pays dividends in indlan rupees, The dividend propotad by the Boord
af Directors ssubject fo the approval of the shareholders In the arsuing Annual Genasal Measting. In fhe svent of the liguidation of
the Company the haldars of equity shares will be enfifled 1o receves the ramaining assets of the Company in proporion 1o the
rurmizer of thee shoares held,

(iiiy Details of shares held by the holding /associote company:

Particulars Mo, of shares  Amount
Pioreer Jelice India Private Limited 2.583.419 25836
Ashok Maotches ond Timber Industries Private Umited 2,113.870 2711.39
Total 4,697 489 469.75

fiv} Equity sharsholders holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:

Particulars Mo. of shares %
Fioreer Jelice India Private Limited 2583 419 A2.71
Ashok Matches ard Timber iIndustries Private Limitad 2113870 34594
Total 4,697 489 T7.65

(v} Deahoils shareholding of promoter and % chonges in the holdings during the yeor:

Particulars Mo. of shares % % of

change
Ploreer Jallce India Private Limited 25834619 4271 100
Ashal Matches ond Timber industiles Private Limidfed 213870 3494 100
Total 4,6%7,48%9 77.65

Mate:

) On 0%th Jung, 2023, Share Purchase Agreemeant ["SPA™) was executed by and between Altamaont (Maurithus) imited, the

()

arstwhile promaoter f hading company, Plonaar Jeflice Indico Private Limited (CIN: U24295TN 1921 PTCOA0630) and Ashiok
Matches and Tirnbes Industiles Private Limited (2IM: UZA291 THN2000PTCO45347) (togethar called *Acguiners”) and MNarmnoda
Gelotines Umited (“the Porant Company ™), whareby fhe Acqulrens hove agreed to purchose 45,37, 187 fully paid-up eqgulty
showes of 110 each, congtituting 75% of thie fully poid-up eguity shore capltal of the Porent Coampany, from Alfamant
Mauritiue) Limitad, Further, purseant 1o execution of the SPA, the Acguirers g3 required made an Cpen Offer to the pubic
sharehaldans of the Parent Compary In 1eems of the apglicable pravisions of the SERI (Substantial Acqulsifion of Shares and
Toksovers) Regulations. 2011, The complioncas reioled to the Open Offer were complafed and thereaffar an 140 July, 2023
tve entire shareholding of 4,537,189 equity shares of the Parent Company transferred from Alfamant (Maurifiug) Lid. 1o
Plonest Jelice India Private Limited 2495454 agulty share: and o Ashok Matehses and Timkeer Industries Pivate Limited
20,41 735 equity shiares,

Cut of the 1,860,300 eguity shores were received under Open Offer, 88, 1465 equity shares were ocquired by Pioneer Jefice
India Private Limited and 72,135 equity shares by Ashok Mafches and Timber industries Private Limited,
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{vi} Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully poid up by way of bonus shares during the last five years

Curing the last flve finonciol years, the Parent Company hos not allotted any bonus shares,
(wil) Issue of shares for consideration other than cash

During the preceding five financial years, the Parent Comppany hos not ssued ony share for consdeation other than cash
(vili) Dividend paid and proposed Refer Note 45(c )

176 OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Resarves and Surplus Other Total
Comprehenslve
Income
Capital Sacurities General Retained Re-measurement
Rezernva Pramiurm Resarve Earnings  of the defined

benefit plans
As at 31t March, 2024 751 425.37 2.329.60 7.532.82 (5.1 10,289 44
Profit far the vear - - - 1.72300%4 = 1, 72024
Cther Comprehensive Income for the year 5 = > . (56,19} (5615}
Divldend pald - - - (404.94) - (604 95
As at 31st March, 2025 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 8,648.80 (71.32) 11,339.23
Purpose of the Resarves:

Securittes Premium: Securfies pramiumm Is credited when shares ame lssued af pramium. This will e utilsed in accordonce with the
provislons of the Act,

Genaeral Reserve: The SGeneral reserve is created by way of transfer of profits from retained eamings for appropricton purposes. This

rezarva s utiised Inaccardonce with the provisionsz of tha Act.

Retained Eamings: Retained samings are the profits thot the Company hos earmad il dote, less any fronsfers o general resense,

dividends of other distrilbunions pald 1o shareholders,

Particulars Asal
31stMarch, 2025

18 BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT

Frorm o Bank

Term Loan® F9B.08
Less: Current hMafurities of Lomg ferm barrewings {19500
TOTAL &03.08
“Tarm loan

- Termn loon-are secured by a first ranking pon-passu hypothecaotion) Exclsive charge on the assets created out of the ferm loon.
Fepayabie Ind0 egual monthly iInstalmends (refer below?, Rote of Intererst -8.20% p.o{previous year nll)

Repayment Schedule
Particulars Asal
31st March, 2025

Frarm Banks:

1-2 ¥ears 19500

2-3 ¥eorn 196.00

34 Years 195.00

4-5 Years 171.84

56 Years 41,14

Total cutstanding Bomowing 798.02
19 PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)

Pansion 1998

TOTAL __ 1998

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Dedarmad Tax Licbilitiss (Net) A0S BG

TOTAL 409.89
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1# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

MOTES TO CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupeea |aikchs, unless olherwize sioted)

) Tre mgjor comparsnts of INcoms 1oy expenss are as follcws:

Parficulars Yeor ended
318t Mawch, 2025
Current Income tax charge 580,00
Delarred fox
Relating ta odgination and reversal of temporory differances (2199
Income fax expense reported In statement of profit or loss ~_BEB.01
Reconciliation
Accounting profit! (oss) before mcome o 230096
Enocted fox rate in Inda 2517%
Compuled lox expense 59425
Dilerences due fo
Expansad not deductibla fof tax purposes [ 16,63)
Cthers 1.03
{15.40)
Currenl Income Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 578.45

(i Deferred tox relotes to following:

Recognised in Balance Sheel Recognised in Profit or Loss
Parficulars Az ot Year ended
315l March 2025 315l March 2025

Accelerated depreciation for tax purpase (418.50) (&.59)

Expenses allowoble aon payment basis 8,72 0. 19

Fair valuation of fnanacial instruments - (1522

Dafarad tax asset | (lability) {405,883

Met {iIncome)/ expense {21.99)
Particulors Az at

315t March 2025

21 BORROWINGS

From Banks
Bonk Cwverdraft (Refer Note below) 1.84
Cash Cradit Facllity (Refar Note balow) 47226
Current Marurities of Long ferm bamowings 15,00

646912

Bank Overdraft

The oveardraft facility & secured against bonk deposiis

Cash Credit

-Cash Cradit 347224 Lakhs (previous year nil), Prirmmany Security-Exclusive charge on entire cument assefs (presant and futura).
Secondary Collateral- Ml - 12 ronths, repayabia lurmpsurn on derond Rote of Interarst-8, 158%p.0 (pravious vaar nil,

22 TRADEPAYABLES
Total cutstanding duss of micro and small entanorises 951,84
Total outstanding duss of crediforns ofter than 766,85
micro and small enterprises

TOTAL 1,718.71

The Management has ideniified enterprises which have provided goods and services 1o the Group and which gualify under the
definifion of micre; small and medium enferprises, gs defined under Micro, Smaldl and Medlum Enferprises Development Act, 2006
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the drnounts payable to such enterprises has been mode I fhe finoncial stafernments based
on Iinformation received ond ovaitable with the Group, which i eled upon by the auditoss. Further inthe view of tha manogement,
the Impact of intarest, IFany, hot may be poyable Inoccordonce with the provisions of the Actis nof expected to be material,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 (_9_%:1



# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Porficulars As al
31zt March 2025

i The principal amaunt culstanding as at the yaoar end

B} Principal amount due and remaining unpald -
&}y Irferest due on (@) above and the unpald inferest

W) Irterest pald on all deloved paymeants under fhe MEMED Act, -
vl Poyment made heyond the appointed day during the year .
wl)  Inferest due and payable for the perdod of delay othar than {v) abowve

wii)  Irterest accried and remalning unpold

Wity Arnount of further intersst remaining due and poyable
In succesding yeors :

* IV inchudes amount payabls in the noture of copital creditens amounting fa 3.73 Lakhs (previous year nil)

Trade payables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following perods from due date of payment

Particulars Mot Due  Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years yeors 3 years

As at 315t March'2025

I Unblked

i Micro and small enterprises - 051 B4 - - . 051,84

iy Creditars other thon micro ond small snterprises - 757.80 J.80 4,59 048 Téd RS

W} Disputed dues - Micro and small enterpeses
Wi Disputed dues other than milcno and small entemnsises

Total = 1,709.66 3.80 4.59 068 1,71871

23 OTHER FINAMCLAL LIABILITIES

Sacurlty deposiis B.10
Urgoold dividand® 22,30
Advances from customens 112,37
TOTAL 14277
TLBL 0% (RY- MIL) Trarsfenad to dnvastor Faucation and Pratection Fund under Section 125 of the Companles Act, 27013 a3 at year
e,
24 OTHER CURREMT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payakle 27120
TOTAL 271.20
25  PROVISIONS
Sratulty 11447
Compensaied absences 1.41
Pansion 10,18
TOTAL 128.26
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1# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

MOTES TO CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupeea |aikchs, unless olherwize sioted)

Porticulors Year ended
315t March 2025
246  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Saie al Manufachued products (net of rebotas and discounts)
Galating 14.027 .83
DCP - animal feed grade 4.809.25
Hone meal products 24,04
Other Operating Income
Zale of scrap/Coal ash 1222
Export Incentives and duty drowiack 0.14
Liotiities no longet required written back (Net} 1023
Miscelanenus ncorme 6.73
MET SALES 18,6892.07
27  OTHER INCOME
Inferest income
From banks 28,01
From others 1717 115.18
Change In falr voluation of current [ non-cumraent
Imvestrmiends i rmuteal fends 49.47
Preifit an disoosal | discard of propearty.,
plant and equipment (Met) 0,60
TOTAL 165.25
28  COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Rowy Motarials:
Dpaning Stock IL1te 74
Add - Purchases 1114863
Less - Closing Stock Bi5i, 24
Raw moaterials consumed 11,407.13
29 CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOQODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AMND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Dipaning Stocks
Finished Goods 143316
Work-In-progress 151647 294963
Clasing Stocks
Finished Goods 182574
Work-ir-progress 147761 335335
Met (increase)} / Decrease (423.72)
30 EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSE
Sotores ond woges 1.360.72
Contribution o provident ond ofher funds 204.04
Staff welrare expensas 53.43
TOTAL 1,618.21
31 FINANCE COSTS
|nfarast axperse on Borowings 106,79
Cither bormawing cosls 1524
TOTAL 12205
32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPEMNSE
Depraciation & Amorsation expenss 222,23
TOTAL 222,23
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# NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian rupeea |aikchs, unless olherwize sioted)

Parficulcrs

Year ended

315t March 2025

33 OTHER EXPENSE
Consumption of stores and spare parfs
Rater and foxes (other than toxes on Income)
Effiuen! expanses
Ground warer abstraction charges
Irsurance
Repairs and maintenances:
- Buiiding
Plant and equioaant
- Oftrher Repairs
l.egol and professional charges
Aviditors” remunaration ("Refer note below}
Fradgit and delivery choraes
Commession to seling ogents
Rant
Traveling
Advertisement
RFesearch and Development expensas (Refar Mote 39)
Sundry balonoss writtan off
Lirectors’ Fee
Foreign exchange loss

Corparate social responsibility expanditure (Refer Note 38)

MisCcelansous expensas

TOTAL

Auditors' Rernuneration’

Statutory oudit fees (including limited review fees)
T Audit

Cither cartification fess

RFatmbursemant of out of pocket axpenses

TOTAL

34  DISCLOSURE PURSUANTTO IND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS'
i} Gratuity: In occordoncs with the opplicabie lows, the Grour providges for gratuity, o definred bensfit retirement plan {The Gratulty
Plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for o lump sum payment to vesfed employees onretirement {subject io
complation of five years of confinuous employment), deoth, incopacitation or terminaiion of employment ihot ore bosed on lost
drown salary ond tenura of employment. Liobilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuaricl valuotion on the
reporting date and the Company moakes armuol contioution tothe gratuity fund adrinistered by Life insurance Corporation of India

under Group Gratuity Scheme.

126,85
10,08
2076
2552
2042

011
&08.09

14.77 621,97

7357
&.17
1865
10.05
15.86

I 15
11.68
1395
a9
804
01z
34,117
22285

1.376.81

4.00
.00
Qa7
1.0

617
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11#: NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

MOTES TO CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian rupeea |aikchs, unless olherwize sioted)

Tha disclosura inrespact of tha defined Gratuity Plon ana ghvan Daelow:

A, Bolance Sheet

Befined benefil plans

As al
315t March, 2025

Present volue of plan liobilities A419.43
Fair volue of plon ossets J02.74
Assal/(Liability) recognised (116.67)

B. Movements in plan assefs and plan llabilities Presant value of Fair value

obligations of Plan assels
As al 15t April 2024 383.53 33352
Current service cost 20.52 :
Adiustment In opening bolance -
Past service cost
Irterest Costflncome) 27.58 24.00
Return on plan assets exciluding inferest income - 045
Actuarial (gain)/loss ansing from changes in finoncial assumptions 22:28
Actuanal (oon)/Ioss adising due To changs v demogiaphec assumphons
Actuarnial (gain)/loss ansing from exparience adjustments 44 56 -
Employercontributions - 23,65
Barefit payrmearts (7927 (Fe.27)
As ot 315t March 2025 419.40 0275
Parficulars Year ended
31st March 2035

C. Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee Benefif T
Current Service Cost 2052
Interest Cost 3.57
Past Service cost (vested banefits)
Met Actuarniol (Saing / Loss .
Interest cost/lincome) -
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit & loss 24.49
Remeosurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (Eain) / Loss recognised ior fhe perlod i
Asgat Imit effect -
Raturn on picn assels exciudng net infarest (0.45)
Unrecognised Actuanal (Eain)/ Loss from previous peariod
Tetal amount recognised in Olher Comprehensive Income &66.19
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

D.  Assumplions
With the olijective of presenting the plon assets and plan liotilites of the defined baenetits plans ot their falr value on the Balancs
shaet. casumphions undsring A2 19 ore set by refersnos to market conditions at the valuation dote,
Parliculars As ot
31st March 2025
The significont actucriol assumphions ware os follows:
Financlal Assumptions
Discount rate H.71%
Solary Escolation Rate
Management Employvees B8.00%
Mon-rmanagement Employees 8.00%
Demographic Assumptions
Expected Avaraoge remaining warking llves of employaes in no. of yaars
hMonogement Employvess 14
Mon-management Emplovees o
Mortality Rate IALM (2012-14)
Urban
Attrition Rate
Mancgement Employess 1%
Mon-monagement Employees %
Retirement Age i)
Adjusted Avarage Futue Sarvices
E. Sensitivity

The sansitivity of the overall plan Eatlities: to changes in the welghted key assumptions arg:
Impact on defined benetit obligalion
Change in  Increaze in Decrease in
gszurnplion assumption  assu

Discount rata +1% (20,209 2247
Salany Escolation Rate 1% 22146 (20,15

The semsifivily analses above hove been delermined bBoased on reasonably poasible changes of he respactive astumplion:
oocurmng ot tha end of tha reporting peniod and mcy not e reprasentative of the actual chonges, Itis bosaed on o changeain the key
assumplicn whils holding all sther assumptions constant. When caleulating the sensitivity To the assurmplion, the saomes method ussd
loeaiculale tha liobilly recognized in the bolancs sheel hos been applied. The mal hods ond ypes of ossumptions ussd in preparnng
the seensl ivity anabysis did nol chongs compared with The previous panod,

il Compensated Absences: [he Group permits ancoshment of compensated absence occumulated by their employess on
reteement, separation ond during the coursea of service, The liability in respect of the Company. for outstonding balonce of leove of
the bolonce sheet dote s determined and provided on the basis of octuarnial volugtion performed by onindependent actuary,

The: disclosure in respect of the defined Compensafed Absences are given below:

Particulars As of
315t March 2025

Expenes recognised in stotement of profit and loss 3,44
Bl e shest latility 1.41
iii) Pension

Tre retiverneant Benefils pension will be fiked amount of INR 565 per mianth for an empiayes onby after retiing from the organization
and Il sanvice rendered by the emploves s 25 yaars and above at the time olietkemeant, A pensionet moy opt onoption 1o commute
MR 34,000 03 o lumg surn ance inlifetimes. After commutation of pansion mambarn won't get any monthly pension. If any employes
axpaire bils/ et spouse will get lumesumn bansfif of INR 34,000, theeafter no rmenthly parision will be payable, Liobility determinsd and
proyicad on the boss of octuonal valuotion parfformed by o independent actuary, The disclasure Inrespect of pension llakdlity are
aiven balkow -

Particulars As of

31st March 2025
Expensas/ (gain) recognised In statameni of proft ond loss 4.10
Bolance shast lakility 30,14
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1‘#‘: NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Parficulars Year ended
31zt March 2025

35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimated amaount of confract remaining to be axeciled an 131145
capital accourt not provided far

Las Copital advancss pald there agains b6.7F
Capital Commitments 1,254.74

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims not acknowledged as debits (ercluding furtner interast, if any)
Incama tax matters®

Excize duthy 248088
Soiles tow 476
Land revenus Cess 14.14
TOTAL 258.78
Motes:

(0 The Group's pending litigotions comprise mainly claims against the Company, proceedings pending with fox and ather
authorities. The Compary hos réviewsd afl 15 pending litigations and procsedings and hos mads adequats provisions, whsiever
required] and disclosad the contingent Tatiities, whersver applicabie, in s financiol statements, The Company does not reasonably
expect tha autcome of these procesdings to hove a moternial impact an its consolidated financial statements.

(d} “Income fax matter reloted 1o assessment year 20123-14, resufted In disputed tax demand of ¥ 7.85 locs arsan on accaunt of
disaficwaonce of additlonal deprecation clalmed which is o mistoke apparent from records agalnst winlch the Parent Company’s
rectificotion applicatton/appeal |8 pending, The Management is canfigant that this disputed demand will gat reversad of rectifiadin
due couse and hance, not consderad os confingant labilfies,

37  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Entarprise whare the confrol exists Relationship Ceased to be the reloted parfy#
Jurnbs World Holding: Urnited Litmate Holding Compary 14,07.2023
Alfarmont (Maurtius) Limited HolcEng Company 14.07 2023

Other related parties - (ceased fo be related party w.e.f. 14,07.20234)

Acsmaon Managerment Services Pyt Lid., Dondvotl Investments & Trading Co, Pyt Lid., Firastorm Electronics Corporation Pyt Lid.,
EWL Properties Ltd., Hoshit Finlease & Investrments Py, Lid., Jumbo Elecitronics Corporation Pyt Lid, , Jumbo Investrnants Lid,, Jumizo
Warld Holdings (india} Pyt Lid.. Pimo Enterprises Py, Ltd., 30N Englneers Lid., Starfire Investments Lid., Plous Investrments Pt Lid,

Enterprise whare the control exists Relationship with affect from#
Pioneear Jeflice India Private Limited Associate Co, 14,07 2023
Ashok Matches and Timber Indusiries Pivate Lmited Associote Co. 14,07 2023

Key managerial personnel

W Ashiok Kopur
WA Arun Jailswod
Mz, Mahirmo Patkar
W, Mahash Varma
Wz, Mearu Sharma

MNon-Executive Directors

W 5. Annamalg®

NI 5. Moheswaran®

W B Wioyadurai®

Mrs. Manimegoial Thongormoeni*
M. K Krishinomoorihy

W, Prakash M Mena®*

Mr Ravindrak, Rojp **

Mrs. Drushii R Desai™®

Wr. Souwang Shoh*®

fwpoef 14,07 2623, “"upto 14.07. 2023
Refarnote T7alviio)

hianaging Cirector

Chilef Anonclal Gificer {wee f 15:03.2025)

Caompany Sacratary (w.ef 07 .08 2024)

Chilef Finonciol Officer (Caosad from sandces fo wef 07.01.2025)
Company Sscratary (Ceased from sarvices o wat 28.086.2024)
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

WOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in Indion rupee lalkchs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars of ransoction ond outstanding balonces with related parties

Particulars Mature of Transaction Year ended
31&t March 2025

Transactions with related parties

Pioreer Jelice India Private Limited: Purchase of row materal (Including S55) 1.624.64
Technical Consultarny Service 24.00
Sales commission recaived &.72

Cukstonding Balance with related parthes

Pionesr Jelics India Private Limiled: et 99.21

Transactions with Key Manogerial Personnel (Remuneration paid)

(i M Ashok K Kopur b 2t

iy M Anun Joiswal 0.21

{iily Ms. Mahima Potlkar 293

{ivy Mr. Mahesh Verma 1644

) s Meenu Sharmao 0.56

Ag the Gratuity and Compensated absences are computed for ol the employess in aggregate, the amount reloting fo Kay

Managearal Personnal cannot b indiddually be identified.

hr. Arun Salswol Joined wee. f, 15,03,2025°

Mz, Mahima Patkar w.ef 07.08,2025%"

Mt Mahash Varrna {Caasad fromsandces iow et 07.01.2025)""

M. Meanu Sharma (Caasad from sandces tow.e f, 28.06.5024)

Transactions with Non-Executive Directors (Sitting fee paid)

hhe. 5. Andiormalal

hir. 5. Mabeswonan

. B Vijayadural

hirs, Mcnirmegalal Thangarmani

M. Prakesh b Nens

ir. K Krishrarmaart by o

htr. Rensimiciee W, Roje

Mirs. Drusht 13, Desci

. Gaurang Shah

Notes:

(i) MNoamounts in respect of related parties have bean witten off  wiithen back during the vaar, nor has any oravishon baan mades
for doubtiul debits [ recaivables during the yveor, except as disclosed above

iy -Allreloted party transactions enfered durng the yearwere in ordinarny course of the business and are onarmn's length basis,

(iily ey WManogerial Persons who are under the employment of the Company are entifled to post-employment banefits (defined
banefit gratuity pian) recognised as pet Ind A5 1% "Empioyes Benefits” in the finonckal staterments and shorf-term emplayee
brarefits in e form of cremium pald by company for group healthy insurance plan. As thase employes benaflis are lumpsurm
ormnounts provided on tha bosis of octuanal voluation/ premilurn payment for the Company os awhole, tha saome i not inciugad
obowva,

. B kBT

38 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Prafit aovalgbie for equity shoraholders 1.802,%4
Weighted avarage number of eguity shores o,049 587 &,04% 587
Mominal valus of equity share 10,00
Ecrmings per shwara - Basic [/ Diluted 29.80

3% INVESTMENTS - NOMN-CURRENT
Investments in Mutual Funds (ot NAV) - un-quoted. fully paid-up

As gt 31st March, 2025

Particulors Fair Valua No. of Total
Perunil  Units Vaolue

Mippan India Short Termn Fund- Growth Plan

Mippan indio Money Market Fund- Dirsct - Growth E:
3Bl Sovings Fund - Direct - Growth -
ABSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growth -
[P Uitra Shart term fund -Dirsct Srowth -
Mippon Indio Utra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth Pion -
ARSL Savings Fund - Direct - Growih -

Total -
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40 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
A, Investments in Equity Shares

As ot 31sl March, 2025

Parficulars Fair Value No. of Total

Perunit  Units Value
Eauity Shares of Indio Gealatine and Chemicals Lld 10,00 1003000 4,115.3]
Total 411531

B. Summarsed Financial Information of an associote ( Indio Gelatine and Chemicals Limited)
()} Surmmoaorised Balonce Sheak

Particulars As ot Asal
415t March 2025 31st March 2024
Mon-curren| assels 10.011.34 913226
Current cassts 044082 9.308.48
Mon-current llokiities 123308 1.453.94
Cumrent liobilities 1.369.05 1.4879.87
Equity 17,150.10 15,406.93
Carrying amount of investment 4,115.31 -
(i} Summoarised Statement of Profit and Loss:

Reverue 1598532 87 20.583.97
Cost of maternial corsumed @.128.2] 2.083.%4
Furchase of Stock-In-Trade = 14,51
Changes In Irventary Finished Goods WIPST 574,55 (A65.50)
Ernploves banafits axpanss 1.217.83 1.274.79
Cepraciotion and aomarfisafion axpanse 350,08 525.95
Finorce casts &7.77 7374
Power & Fual 2 7502 2.902.50
ey expenses 4 020,20 4171.25
Profit betore tax 2,264.84 3, 72645
Less: Tax expensa 52551 BE7.e0
Profit for the year 1,738.93 2,838.85
Cther comprehensive incame - -
Tolal comprehensive Income for the year 75.17 (8.58)
Share of profit for the year 82.00 -

41  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a C5R Committes has baan farmed by the Company. 435 part of inlliatives undsar
Corporate Social Responsbility (C5R), the Company hos undartaken projects in the areos of emviecnmant § ivar protection.
education, Ivellhood, healihcars, sanitation. rural development, promotion of spors and cultural octivities, which ore specifled In
Schedula Vil of the Companles Act, 2013, Theomount spant on thea some s given below:

Particulars Yeor ended
31zt March 2025
{i} Amount required o be spant as per Sectlon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 3411

() Armount spent duing the year on;

Corstruction / acquisition of any osset s
Cn purposes other fhon abowve 34.11
Balance utiized from tha oxcess spent In FY

(i} shortfall at the end of the yaar

(wiTotol of previows yaars shorifall 3
{w) Reason for shorifall Pl

(widMNature of CSR aclivities Literacy promotion, Enviranment protection,
Health care acilvities, Eradication of hunger
& poverdy

(wil} Detalls of related pary transactions I relation fo CSR expendifure -
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Parficulars Year ended
31zt March 2025

42  RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue expenditure
Solories and woges 13,46
Othar exponses -

431 FANANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

“Trua falr voluees of the finonciol assats and Eabilities are inciuded ot fhie amount af which the inshrument could be exchonged ina

curren! frarsaclion belween willireg forfies, odber than in Q Torcad or ficpuiciation sale. The follorwing methods and assumphions ware

uzed toestimate the fairvalees:

) Fairvakse of cash and short-term deposits, rads and other short terrm recaivabies. frods payabdes. other current liobiities. shor
tenm laans from baorks and other financial insfibulicns approkdmote thetr camylng amaounts largsly due to shorl term molurties of
these mstrumeants,

{1} Fironcial Instrurments with fiked and vanable inferest rotes ore evaluated by the Company bosad on parametarns such os infaras
rates and Individual credlt worthiness of the courter-party, Basad on this evaluotion, allowanceas are taken to account for
axpected losses of these racalvalles. Accordingly, folr value of such instrurnents s not materlally different from thalr carnrying
amoUnits.

The Group wies the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financiol ngtrumans by valuation
technigue:

Lavel 1; guated (unadiusted) prcss in gotive markets for identical assatsor llabiltiss.

Laval 2: othar fechnigues far whilch all imputs whilch hove asignificant effect on the recorded fair value are obsencable, elthar directly

O irndiresciy.
Lavel 3 techniquas which use inputs that hove: a significant affect on the recorded falr valua hat are not based on abservobie
micrket data,”
The camying amounts and foir values of tinoncial instruments by category are as follows:
~FVOCI FVIFL  Amorfised Totalfair  Carrying
hote 20xif) _Notel (xii) cost value gmount
Financial assets
Investmeant in an associate - = 419731 4.197.31 419737
Trode recelvabies . - 248420 248420 2,484 20
Cash and cash agulvatarts - - 19,03 19.03 12,04
Bank bolonces other than above 26,36 26,36 20,3
Loan - - S0.04 &0.04 &0.04
Oithars Mncnaial cssets E - 234,62 234,462 23467
Total - - 702156  7,02156  7,021.56
Financial liobilities
Borrowings . - 123220 | 27220 127250
Trode pavabies - - 1.718.1 17181 1.718.71
Cthers - = 14277 142,77 142,77
Total financial liabilitles - - 3 81 3 A1 3 L]

Falr value estirnalion

For financial instruments measured at fair value In the Bolance Sheet, a thvee level fair value hierarchy s used that reflects the

significance of inputsusedin the medsurements. The higrarchy gives the highest prionity to unodiusted quoted pricesin octive markefs

for ldentical assets or llobilities (Level 1 meosurements) and lowest priorty to uncbservable inputs (Level 3 medsurements)

The cotegores uwsed are as follows:

o Levyel |- guoted prices for enlcal Instiuments

# Level 2 directly or indirectly coservabie market inputs, other thon Level 1 inputs: and

« Lavel 3; Inputs whichare not bosed on cbservable market dota.

For assets and liatilliss which are canigd at falr value. The clagsificalion of fainvalug calsulalions by calegony is summanissd belkw,
Laveal 1 Level 2 Leval 3

31st March, 2025

Aszels al lalr value

Imvestments in Eguity Sharss Mot Carisd at Fair Valees

There weara no sgnificant changes- In classfication and ro significant movements cetwean the fal value hlerarchy classfications of
fimonciol ossets ond Anancial lakbiliies during the years.
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44

RISK MANAGEMENT
Finoncial risk manogement objectives and policias :

The Sroup's inancial dsk monagement = an integral par of how to plan ond execute its business shrategies: The Company's activity
axpose it to morket sk, iguidity sk, commodity sk and craditrigk, The Company's finoncial ek management policy 2 sst by the Risk
Management Committes ond govemed by cverall direction of Board of Drectors of the Company,

Market sk i the risk of loss of future eamings, failr values or future cogh flows that may result from a change Intha price of o financiol
Imstrumeant, Tha value of a finoncldl Instfrumant may change as a result of chonges In the Intarast rates, fonelgn curancy exchangs
rofes, equity prices and ofher market chongeas that offect market sk sensitlve instrements. Market dzk i3 attrbutolbe fo all fmarked rlsk
sansitive financial instrements incleding investrments and deposits, foreign curency recahsables, poyables ard loons ond Dorrowings.

Rigk Exposure orising from Measurement Risk Monagement
) Cradit sk Cosh and cash equivalants, Ageing analysis Credit Credit limits and lethers of credit
frade recelyables, financial rertings and Performance guorantess,

instrurnents, financicl assets
rmecsured ot amotised cost

) Ligulcihy risk Borowings ond other iabiities  Raoling cosh flow forecosts Avallabiity of committed credit
lines and borowirng  focilifies
(i} Market risk=Intarast rate Long-tarm barmowings af Sensfthvify amalysls |rtarest rate swops
wafcile ot
(v Barket risk—forelgn exchonge  Future commercial ronsoctions  Cash flow forecosting Farward foraign exchange
recognized finoncial assets ond  Sensifivity analysis contracts
ligkdities not dencminated in
Indian nupees
o) Commodity risk Purchase of Row Matanal Ag per production Procurement and Inventory

planning and budgeating strotegy

CREDIT RISK

‘Cradit risk anses from the possibiity thot counter porty may not be able to seffle their chbligotfions s aogreed. To monoge this, the
Group periodically ossesses the finoncial reliabillity of customers, faking into occount the fimancial condition, current economic
trends, and analysis of histonco! bad detbts and ogeling of occount receivables. Individual credit limits are set occordingly, The Sroup
considers the probability of defoult upony indtial recogniticn of asset and whather there has been a significant Increass in credit risk on
an ongoing bosis throughout each reporting pencd. To assess whether there is a significont increcse in credif rsk the company
comparzs the risk of defoult occuning on the assat as at the reporting date with fne risk of defoult os of the date of initial recognition,
Tha compoany considerns reqsonable and suppostive forward-licoking information. Financlal assets are written-off when thens s no
reasonoble expectation of recovery, such as debtor foiing to engage in a repayment plan with the company, The compary
provides for overdus outstanding as per the pollcy approved by the Board of Directons. which are evoluoted ona caose fo case bosls.

The Company's concanlalion of nsk with rgspect o ads recaivatles s ow, s its custormen's base is widsly spread acrass he lenglh
and breadth of the countny and majorty of the custormers are with sound financial health,”

The avercge credit perod extended to customers ranges withim 30- 120 doys:
Expected credii loss for trade recelvables under simplified approach

Porticulars As at As at
31zt March 2025 31st March 2024

(o) Ageing of frade receivables
From the date of invoice

0 - & months 248217 219052
& - ¢ months 203 -
- 12 months

beyond 12 months - -

TOTAL 2,484.20 2,190.52
) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

CpEning provision 281 281
Addificnal provision mioce - .
Less Bod debots written off | recovered 5 =

Closing provisions 2.81 2.81
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LESUIDITY RISK

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to sette or meetits obligations on time or ot areosonoble price,

Mhe Group's ieasury departrment i@ responaibie for malntenances of liguldity (naiuding guas liguiclity), continuity of funding o weail ag
fimely setiement of debts. Inaddition, policies related fo rmfigotion of ks are overseean by senio management

Management rmonitors the Sroup s net liquildity position onthe basls of expected cash flows vis Q vis debtservice Tulfliment obligation.
Maturity profile of financiol liabilities

The tobile below provides detoils regarding the remaining coniraciual matuntias of finoncicl labilities at therepaoring aoate

Contrachual malurity patterns of Financial Uakilities :
Particulars As at 31st March 2025
0-1 year/ 1o b Total
on Demand  years

Bomowings 1.272.20 127220
Trode payables 1.718.71 - 1.718.71
COither firdncial lakklities 14277 - 14277
Total 3,132,569 - 3,133.69

MARKET RISK - INTEREST RATE RISK

Imterest rata risk s the risk that the fair value or future cosh flows of o financial instrurmant will fluctuate because of charges in market
Interast rates. In arder to hatance fhe Cornpany™s pasition with ragards fa inferest income and Interest expense and to manage the
Interest rate rsk, finance department oerforms o comprehansive Infarest rate risk management. The Company & not exposed 1o
slgnificontinterest rate sk as at the respective reporting dotas.

MARKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group 8 exposed to forslgn exchonge sk fowards henowting of exporty Import commitmeants. Maorogemesnt evaluates
exchangs rate axposure in this connaction in ferms of s esfoblished risk mancgement policies which includes the use of dervativas
like foreign exdchange fonward contracts o hedge sk of exposure in foreign curency, The campany s not exposed fo forsign
curiency sk at the respactive reporing dates,

COMMODITY RISK
Frincipal Raw Materdal for Company's products is Crushed bone, HCL, Lime and Coal a3 o fusl The Sroun sources its majar raw
miateriol reguirement from-domestic supoliers located invanous part of India,
The Group effectively rmanages with avallablity of rmaterdal os well as price volatility basad on the following
o Rowmaoterals are procured from differant sources ot competitive pricas,
Alternative sources are developed for unimtenupted supply of row materials.

Demand and supply are external foctors on which company has no contral; however the Company plans ifts production and
sales from the expanence gained Inthe past and on-golng study and appralsal of the market dynomécs, competifion. sconaric
poscies and growth patierns of different segments of users of company's products.

Spactic stepstoreduce the gop between deamand and suppdy by expanding Its customer bose, delvany mechanisms, etc,
Proper irventony contal syslems hove bean pul inploce, The sk commiltes of the Compary comprising rmsminers from Board

of Birectos and the operafions has developed and enacted sk monagament strategy regarding commadity Price risk and its
roitigethan.”

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

(o} Capitalrisk management
o [heGroup's obsctived when managing copilal ora 1o

e sofeguord their abiliny to confinue as a going concern, 5o that they con confinue fo provide returns for shareboldéns and
benefits far other stakeholders, and

& maintainan optimal capital structune to reduce the costof capital

(b) Termn loan are secured by o first ranking pari-passu hypothecation/ Exclusive charge on the ossets creoted out of the term loan.
Cash Credit Primary Sacurity-Exclusive charge on enfire current assets (present and future) & fixed deposits refermrad in Note 18
and21.

{c} Dividends
The Group fallows the policy of Dividend for any financial year s may be decided by Board consderng financial performance
of the company and otherintermal and extemal factors.
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47

49

50

Particulars As at As at
31t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
On Equify Shares

Dividends not recognised of the end of reporting period

Since year end, the directon hove recommendsd the payment of a finol
dividend of T 1000 par fully pald up equlty shara, The proposad dividend iz
subject to the approval of sharehaldes in the ensuing annual generl
rmesting, a05,03 404,94

During the yacr, the Porent Cormpany hod received a whistia blowsr complaint allaging certain unathical proctices conceming the
opearafions of the Porent Company. Onenguiry with the support of an external agency, it was found that the oegations were meme
surmise and deveid of any substantiol evidence which ore legally tenoble. A formal report from the ogency s owaited including thei
supgestions to strengthen the irfermnal control measures, betferment and smooth functioning of the Parent Compary,

Cerntain finonciol ossets and finoncial iobiities ore sulbiect to formal confiroation and reconcikations. The Management, howewvar,
|z confldant that the mpact whareof, if any, for the year on the findgnclal staterments will not be matedial.

Tha President has given his assent to the Code on Soctal Securty, 2020 ("Code”) In Septamber 2020, On 13th Novernber 2020 the
Mlirzstey of Labour and Employment relecssd dialt rules o the Code, However, the date on which ihe Code will come inlo elfect
Feas neat baan notitied, The Group will assess the impact once the subjsct rules are notified and will give appropdate iImpact toifs
financial statements In the pedod in which the Code becomes affective.

Other statutory infarmation:

i1 The Porent doss not hove any benarmi property, whare ary proceeding hos been inlflated or pending against the Company for
holding amy anami property.

I The Parent does nat howve any transactions with compankas struck off,

i Tha Porent doss not howve any charges or sotisfaction which s vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

) TheParent hasnoi traded orinvested In Crypto cumency or Vidual Curency during the financial yvear.

v) The Parent hos not advanced of looned or invested funds 1o any other perscn(s) of antifylies), including: forelgn entifies
{rtermeadianes) with the understanding that the Intermediony shall (o) directy or indirectly lend of invest In other persons or enfities
ictentified In ary monnes whotsoever Dy of on behall of the company (ultimate baneficlares) or (D) provige any guarantes,
saaurlty or fhe ke 1o oron behall of the Witimate bareficlanies.

wi) The Farent has not recened any fund from ary pesonis) or entity(ies), including foreign enfities (funding porbyd with the
undamstanding (whether recorded in wrting or offhenyize) that the Group shall o) directly or indirectly l2nd or invest in othsr
persons or enfities identified In any mannenwhatscever by or an bahalf of the funding party (itimote beneficlaries) or B provids
ary guearantes, security of the ke on Bahalf of the ulimate Baneliclanies.

vii} The Parent does not have any such tronsoction which is not recorded Infhe books of accounis that hos been sumanderad or
disclosed os Incomea dunng the year in the fax cssessments under the Income Tax Act, 1941 {such as, search or survey or any other
refevant provisions of the Income Taa Act, 1961,

wiliy The Parant hos complied with ihe numbser of lgyers prescibed unda: clowss (B7) of 3action 2 of the Act read with the Companias
(Resnctlonon nurmtier of Layers) Rules, 2017,

i) The Parentis not declared wilful defaulter by any bank o financial ingtitution or lender curing the year,

¥} The guarterdy returms or statementsof cument assets ffed by the Sroup with banks or finoncialinstitufions: ore in ogreement with the
ooks of accounts

¥} The Porant hos used the bomowings from banks and financial institutions for thea spacilic purpass for which it wios faken os ot
Haloncs shest date.

The Croup is engogaed in the rrarufacture and sala of Cessen and Gelotine. Since all Ihese segmants mast the agoregation criterio os
pear the requirements of Ind AS 108 on "Operating segments’. the management considers these os o sngle reportable segment,
Accordirgly, no further disclosurs s ragquirsd to be furmishad,

Signotures fanofe 1 1o 50 Far ond on bahalf of the Board
8. Annamalai Ashok K Kapur
Chalrmarn tanaging Director
DIN: CO001381 DINDOT 25807

Pioce ; Jobalpur Arun Jalswal Mahima Paticar

Date : 247 May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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* NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice b heraby given that thie Sicty-fourth Annual General Meeting of the Membens of Normaoda Gelatines Limited will be hatd on Monday,
2P September, 2025 at 11.00o.m. (1511, vio video conferencing/ ofher audio visuod means (W C/OAVM T Ho fransoct the fallowing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

[aracaive comsider and adopt the Audited Stondaions ond Consolidated Snancial Stafements of the Company for the veor ended
317 Wiareh, 2025 inctuding the Reparts of the Board of Directors and Auditars thereon and in this respact to consider and if thaught fit,
o piass the folowing resolufion o an Crdinary Resclution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the yvear endea 31" March,
2025, Including the Balonce Sheet as ot thot dale and the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and the Ciash Flow Statement for the
vedr endad on that dale fogether with the Reports of the Direclor and Auditors thereon os lald before this Meeting be and are
heseby opproved and cdopted.”

Toy clechare divicland on aquity shoras for the finandcial year endad 317 March, 2025 and In this regpect to corsider and i thought fit, 1o
prass with of without modiication(s), the following resciution os an Ordinary Resoluton:

"RESOLVED THAT In occordance with the recommendafion of the Boord of Directors, dividend @ 100% Le. #1000 per Bquity Share of
110/~ ench fully poid-up. be and ik hereby declared inrespact of the finoncicl yeor ended 317 March. 2025 and that the dividend be
paid to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Eguity Shareholdsrs as on 15" September, 2025 or to thelr
mandatess.”

To opprove revision In tha Remunaration of M/s Lodha & Co. LLP Chortered Accountants, (Frm Reglsfration Me. 301051E), Statutany
Auditers of the Cormpany. 1o tha remaining fenure of thelr existing tern of ive consscutive years, the fallewing resalution <3 an
Circlinicry Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant ta the provisions of Sactions 142 and ather applicable pravisions, it ary, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules mode thersunder (including any statutory modification ar re-enoctment thareof ond in accordoncs with Regulation 18030 of
SEBI (Listing Obigations and Disclasure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 reod with Port-C of Schedule-ll for the time being in forcel,
and In furthierance to the resolution passed by the Members at the Annual Gensral Meeting hald on Septermber 22, 2022, with respect
to re-oppointment ond remuneration poyable 1o M/s Lodho & Co, LLF, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301051E),
Statutory Auditors of the Company, ond pursuant to the recommendafion of the Audit Committes and fcard of Directors, the
rermuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors be ond B hereby modified, with the authority to the Board of Directons fncluding ifts
committes) to alter and vary tha terms of their remuneration durng the remaining tenurs of theair oppointment atsuch remuneration
asmay be mutually agreed betwesn the Board of Direciors of the company and the Statutony Auditors”,

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT® the Boord of Directoss of the Company be and hereby authorsed to alter ard/for vary the terms and
conditicns of the appointment including the remuneration payable duing the terms of his tenure s may be mutually to be agreed
upon betwesn the Statutony auditors and the Boord of directors,”

o opprove re-appointment of Shi 5. Annamala (CIN: 000013813 as a Non-Executive & Norrindependent Director of the Company
and i this respect o consicier and, if hought fit, i poass the following resolution os aSpeciol Resalution)

“RESOLVED THAT consent of fhe members be and is hereby accordad, pusuant to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies
Act. 2013, for re-oppointrment of She 5 Annomoial (DIN: 000071381). who retires by rofotion and being eligible offers himself far re-
agpointment, as a Mon- Exegutive, Non-dndependent Director of the Company, subjact to retirernent by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Reguiation 1701A) of SEBI (Liting Okligations and Disclosure Requlrements)
Fegulations, 2015 ond other applicable provisions, tany, consent of the membes be and s hersby aso oocorded for reappolntment
and confinuation of M 5 Annamalal, wha has attained the age of 78 yvears, 0s a Non-Executive Director of the Company as lohg as
fe confinuesin the office of tha Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boord be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers to any committes of direchors with
power o further delegata fo any other officen(s) / authorized representatives) of the Company to do-all acts, deeds.and thimgs and
toke all such steps oz moy be necessary. proper of expedlent 1o give effect to this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

&

To consider ond approve, Appolnfment of Dr. Asim Chattopodhyay, Company Secrotories in Proctice, os the Secretarlal Auditorfora
period of S years andin hisrespect foconsider and Ifthought fit, fa pass fhe following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESCLVED THAT pursuant to the provislon of Saction 20401 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule & of The Compandes (Appolntment ang
Remuneration of Personnel; Rules, 2014 and other opplicable provisions, If any of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 244 of the
Sacurties and Exchange Board of Indic (Listing Oodgations and Disclosuse Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with clreular sued
theraundear to the axtend applicable, ather applicabde regulafions framed by the Securities ond Exchonge Board of India in this
regard, consent of the memizerns be and s hereby accorded for appointrment of D Asim Chottopadhyay (FOS No. 23035 (COP Na,
B8l Comparny Secretary in Practics os Secretarial Auditor of the company for o penod of five vears Le. from FY 202526 10 FY 202%-
2030 at a remunanation o be mutually ogresd upon betweaan the Baard of Directors and Sscrataral Auditor,

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Boord b and is harety aulhonzed 1o do ol such acls, deeads, things and fake all such sieps asmay be
rECEssary . propar or expedient to give effect to thisresolution and for matters connected therewith or incldental thereto,
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"RESCLVED FURTHER THAT® the Board of Directors of the Company ba and herebyw authaeised to alter and /o vary the terms and
condfion: of the appointrmant Including the remunaration payabile dudng the terms of his tenure a8 may ba mutually 1o be agreed
upon batween the Secratarnial auditons and the Boord of dissctons.”

By Order of the Boord of Drectors
For Narmada Gelatines Limiled

MMahima Patkar
Comipany Sacretany

Floce: Jabolpur

Dote:

137 August, 2025

Registered Cffice

CARAVS, Room Mo, 28,

18, Civll Lines, Jobalpur - 482001
Motes:

Virtual Meeting:

Fhe Ministry of Corporate Affairs CMCA™) has vide its General Ciroular Mos. 14/2020 doted April 8, 2020 and 1772020 doted Apdl 13,
2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the lotest being 9/2024 doted Saptember 19, 2024, (collectively refermad to as
“MCA Circulars”) hos permitted the componies to hold their Annual Seneral Meeting ("AGSM*) through Video Conference ("VE ") o
fhrough Cher Audio Visual Maans (ORI, without the physical presence of the Mambers aft o common venus, Incomplionce
with the provisions of the Companles Act. 2013 ('the Act’), the Securifies and Exchonge Boord of Indio (Usting Obdigotions and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 5EBI Usting Regulatons’), ond Secrestarial Stondard-2 on General Meetings (75527
issued by The Institute of Compony Sacretores of India and MCA Circulars, the &17 AGRM of the Company is being held through
WCHOAVM on Monday, Sept, 22, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. (57). The proceedings of the AGM ore desmed to be conducted of the
Registerad Office of the Company situated ot CARAVS [} Mo .28 CIVILLIMNES, JABALPUR, Maodfyo Prodesh, India, 482007

PURSLANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, A MEMBER ENTITLED TS ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANMNUAL GENERAL
MEETIMNG IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND WOTE OMNHIS/HER BEHALF AMD THE PROXY MEED MOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPARNY, SINCE THES AGNM 13 BEING HELD PURSUANT TC THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/OAVM. PHYSICAL ATTENDAMNCE OF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH, ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR APPCINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE
AMAILABLE FOR THE AMMUAL GEMERAL MEETING AND HEMNCE THE PROY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AMD ROUTE MAP OF AGKM ARE NOT
ANNEXED TOTHE NOTICE.

Authorized Representative:

Corporats [ Institutional memberns intending fo send their authorized mpessntotives to attend ond vote of the AGM pursuani 1o
Saction 113 of the Act, are requasted to send a cartified copy of the Board Resoluton authorizing their representative to attend and
vote an thalr baehalf ot the Meating or to vote through remaote e-voting are reguested fo send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
o the Scrutinizer by e-mail ot joinodinoth@gmall.com

GluoTum:
Tha Members ottendng fhe AGM through VC S will be counted for the purposa of mckoning the guorun undear Section 102 of
the Act,

Irease voting by joint holders, voting by such joint holdens whaishigher in the ordes of the names s per the Hegister of Maembars of the
company as of 1he cul-aff dale, wilbhe counled for fhe punpose of This meeling.

Dispatch of Annual Report:

In cccordance with the MCA Circulars and the Circulor MNos. SEBHCHCFD/CMDI (CIR/PFZ020/79 dated May 12, 2020,
SEBHOSCFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2021111 dated January 75, 2021, SERIFHO/CFD/CMD2) CIR/PF2022/462 daoted Moy 13, 2022,
SEBY/HOCFD PoD2/P/CIR/ 2023/ 4 doted Jonuary §, 2023, SEBf HO/CFDY CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 doted October 07, 2023 ond
SEBIHOCFDY CFD-Pol-2/P/CIR/ 2024/ 133 doted Cctolber 3, 2024 ssued by Securities and Exchange Board of Indlo {(colactively
refemed to as “SEBl Circulars™), the Notice of the ASM along with the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 15 being sent only through electronic
mode o those Members whose e-mail addreszes are regisiered with the Company/Depository Participants ("DP:"). Addittonally, in
accordance with Regulation 3401 xb) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosurs Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is
alsosending a kefter to shoreholdes whose e-mall addrasses are not reglsterad with Company /Ragistran/DP providing the weblink of
Company’s weabsite from where the Annual Regod for FY 2024-25 con be occessed.

Thosa Mermiets who dre holding shares in physical forrm and have not updated their a-mail ids with the Company, dre reguestad 1o
updale fhe some by submitting o duly fiked ond sigred Form [5R-1 along with self-aliested copy of the PAN Cord. and seif-altested
copy of any documan! a5 oddress proof (e.g. Diving Uesrgs, Volter ldenlity Cord, Passport, Masked Aodnoor, et 1o the
Company”s RTA ot he below mentionad addrass or by a-mall o da@cbmsl com.

Process tor obtaining physical copy of Annual Report

The Company shall send the physicol copy of Annual Repart for FY 2024-25 to those Members who have made areguest for the same,
eitherto the F1A or the Company. Additionally, any memberwho desires fo get a physical copy of the Annuol Report FY 2024-25, may
request for fhe same by sending on email fo the company af nglibp@Eradiffmail. com menfioning their Folio No. /DF ID-and Clent i3,
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1 lIrve sweiths the Minlstry of Comporate Affairs  MCA ) Crroular Mo 17/2020 dated 13" April, 2020, Members moy olso note that The Notice
af the &47 AGMN olang with Anneal Repaort for the financial year 202425, 15 ovalable on fhe websita of the Company of
https:/ fnarmodagelatines. comfannual_repart.btrml |, on the website of Stock Exchanges ie, BSE Limited wwow bseindio.com . The
AN Motice s also disseminated on the website of COSL (ogency for providing the Remote e-Vating foclity and e-voting system
durirg the AGM) Le. https:f fwwiw . evofingindio.com.

Details of Directors seeking appoiniment /re-appointment:

Dietils s required (n Reguiation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosune Requirerments) Reguiations, 2015 and as pear
prowvislons menfioned In clouse 1{1.2.5) of the Secratarla! Standard - 2 on “General Meetings bsued by the Councl of tha Instihute of
Company Sacretanes of Indla and approved by the Central Sovemmaent in respect of the Directors seeking re-appainimant at thie
AN, are annaxed fo this Nofice and in the Coparate Govarnance Rapor forming part of the Annual Repor.

Explanatory Statement:
The Explonatony Stalament pusuant to Bsction 102 of Ihe Actin respect of he businegss under lem 4 and llem 5 et oul above, are
annexsd herswith.

Procedure for inspection of documents

Documents refered to In the coocompanying Motice of the 847 AGM ond the Explanafory Statement sholl be ovaiobie of the
RFegistered Offics ot the Company for inspection on all working days except Saturday, between 11:00A M, to01:00 FM. (5Tupta the
date of the Meeting.

The register of Directars and Key Managariol Parscnneland fhelr sharehaoiding raintained under section | 70of the-Act, the regishar of
Contracts of Arangameants in which the Directors are Inferested, malniained under Saction 189 of fhe Act shall be made avaliable for
imspection by the Memibas during AGM,

Common Online Dispute Resolution Portal:

SEBI wide Circulor MNos SEB/HO/OMAE/QIAE 1AD-1/PY CIRS2023/18) doted July 31, 2023 and SERHO/OIAE! CHAE_IAD-
1/PACIR/ 2023/ 135 coted August 04, 2023, read with Moster Circular No. SEBIYHO] QIAE/GIAE_ IAD-1/P/CIRF2023/ 145 dated July 31,
2023 (updoted as on August 11, 2023), hos estoblished o common Onine Dispute Rssolution Portal ("ODR Partal™} for resolution of
disputes arsing In the Indian Sscurities Market, Pursuant fo above-mentionad circutans, post exhousting options fo esolve thai
grisvanceas with the BTA/ Company dirsctly of through sxisting SCORES platform, the Inveastars can initlate dispute resolution through
the CDR Porfal ot https:/ fsmartodring/login,

Green Initialive:

Mermbers are also requested to Inform thelr comact e-madl oddress, if any | to the Depositories {f shares heid in demot form) and fothe
Registrars and share fransfer agents by visiting thelr websife nomaly "www.cbhsl.com/green.php™ (f shanes held in phwysical form) In
compliance of Green Inffiative a8 per cincuiar Mo, 1772011 doted 21.04.20171 and 18/2011 daoted 29.04.2011 ksuad by Minisiry of
Corporate Affalrs to fociifate fhe company tosend noftce/documents through e-maidl,

Dividend Related Information:
Dividend -¥ey Dates

Record Date: Marday, 15" September, 2025
{for detarmining the entitiernant of Mambers

1o the fincd dividaend for the vear

ended March 317, 2025)

Date of Payment: after Tuesday, 23" Seplamizer, 2025

Divldend on Equity shares, If declored of the Meeting will be credited [/ dispotched after 23rd Sepfember, 2025 subject to deduction
of tax at source {(*TDS"), to those members whose nomes appecr on the Company's Reglster of Members as an 18" Saptamiern. 2025
(Recard Dote), Inrespaat of shores hald in slectionic maods, the dividend will Be paid to memberns whiose noames are furnished Dy the
Mational Security Depostary Limited (NSO and Central Depositon Senvices (ndio) Limited (C0SEL) as the beneficiol owners on 15th
Saptamizern 2025,

Mermbears holding sharas in demat form ore hevety informed that bank particulars registered with their respective DPs, with whom
thay maintaln their demat occounts, will e used oy the Company for the payment of dividend. Mamizers holding shares In demat
formn are reqguested ta intimote any change In thelr address and [/ or bank mandate to their DPs only. os the Campany o its [RTA
cannol act anany reaguest recaived dirscily on the some. The process for updating the aforesaid choanges has been detailed under
Point Nos. 17 and 20.

Mote: SEBI vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 subsaquently amendad by circulars dated Decembear 14, 2021 and
Movembar 17, 2023, hos mandated that with elfect from April 01, 2024, to make dividend payrments only in electronic mode,
Members are once again reminded to update their PAN, KYC details, and Choice of Nomination by submitting the relevant I5R
Farms before the cut-off date 1o ensure imely credit of dividends.

In terms of the provisions of Sectlon 72 of the of the Companies Act, 20013, read with Rula 19 of fhe Companles (Share Caplial &
Debhenturas) Rules, 2014, the facility for making o nomination i@ avallable for fhe Members in respect of the shares heald by them,
Mernbars wino have nat yat registared thelr nominafions are requested to reglster tha same by submiting Form Mo SH13. if a Membar
dasires to caoncel the earlier nomination and record o mesh nomination, ha may submit fhe same In Form SH-TL. Mamibers wha are
aither nat dessing to register Momination o would want to apt oul, are reguested ta il and subait Form Ma. 15R-3. The said forms can
be downlooded from the website of the company hitfps: / www normadagelatines.com ., The Members are requested to submit the
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seid form o thedr P In case the shores are held in etectronic form ond to the FTA In case the shores are held In physical form, guoting
theirfoliono.

TD5 related information:

18.  According to the Finance Act, 2020, dhvidend Income will e taxable In fhe hands of fhe Shareholders w.ef. Apdl 1, 2020, and the
Company i required o dedoct fox at source (TDS) from the dividend paid to the Members of prescribed rotes in the Income Tax Act,
1961 Cthe T Act'). In general, o enable complionce with TDS requirements, Memibers are requested 1o complete and/ar update
their Residentiol Status, PAN, and Cotegory as per tha [T Act with thalr Depository Parficipants (DPs') of In cose shores ara hald in
phivsical forem, with the Company by sending documents befora 15" Septermber, 2075 4l 5.00 porm. (1573, to enoble thie Company to
determine fhe appropriate TDS [/ withholding fax rare opplicable,

m Resident Shareholders:
fax Deductitle af Souras for Resicdent Sharsholdars

5 Na. Particulars Withholding tax rate Documents required Gf any)
(@) valid PAN updated in the Company's 10% Mo docurment regulred
Reaister af Marmibers A1 ne exarmption & sought)
(b Mo PANAAANS PAN not updated In 20% Mo document required
the Company's Register of Members {if no exemption & sought)
(oy Avallability of lowennil fox deduction Rote specifisd Lonwer tox daduction
cerfificate ssued by Incomes Tax in the certilicate abtained from Income
Department ufs 197 of Tan Authority

Incoma Tax Act, 1961
Mo Tax Deductitle af Source on dividend payment fo resident sharehaolders if the Sharehalders submit the documents oz mentioned
Ir fhe below fabie with the Compary or the Registor & Share Transfer Agents, M/s: CB Manogement Senvices Pvl. Lid, before
167 September, 202511 5.00 p.m. (5T,

5.No. Pariculars Wﬂhhuldhg tax rate Documents required (if any)

(i Submission of form 150154 il Declomation in Form Mo, 158G (opplicatle to any
peson other thon o compony or afim) / Form
15H {applicable to an indvidual whao 5 40 veors
and above. fulfiling cerain conditions.

iy Sharahoiderns to whorn saction 194 il Documeanitary avidance that the soid provisions
of the Incomz Tax, 1951 doss not are not apodcabla,
apply such as UC, GIC, eic

iy Shareholder coversd ws 196 of Incomes il Documentary evidence for coverage ufs 1946 of
Tax Act, 1981 such as Governmant, REI, Incorme Tax Act, 19461
corporations established by Central Act
& mutuc funids,

iy Mon-Resident Shoreholders:
Withhaolding tax on dividend payment to non-resident shareholdes i e non-r@sident shareholders submit the documents as
meantioned In the below fabla with the Company or the Reglstrar & Shore Transfar Agents, M/s. CB Management 3ervices Pvl. Lid. on
orbefore 15" Saptember 2025, #1500 prm ¢ 1ST).

5. No. Particulars Withholding tax rale Documents required (if any)
Iy Foreign Instituticnal investors (Fis) S 20% (pbus appllcoble Pl registraticn number / certificate
Foreign Portfofio Investars {FPIs), if any, surcharge and cess) To awail benaficial rate of tox freaty following tax
docurnents would be required:
(i Other Nonresident shorehoiders 20% (plus opplicable 1, Tox Residency cerificoie isuad by revenue
surchorge and coss) authority of coundry af reslidence of
ar tox traaty rate sharaholder for Ihe yaar In which dividend
whichaver is benaficial Iz recabvad,
2. PAN
3. Forrmy 10F filled & duby sighned

4. Salf - deckration  for non- exstence of
permanent establizhment/ fiked bose Inindia
(Mota . Application of benaficial Tax Traaty
Rate shall depand upaon the complateness of
the docurments submaited by the Non -
Resident sharehcider and review o the

sotisfaction of the Company
(i Avdilcbiity of Lowet /NIL fax deduction Raite specified in Lower fox aaduction cefiffcata
certificate ssued by Income Tox Dept. Cerlificate abtaned from Income Tax Autharity

ufs 197 of Income Tax Act, 1961
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o Format for the above mentioned Forms/docurments ore avallable for downloosd on the websta of the compony -
hirtps: fwwew narmmadagetatings.cam

o The Company will Bsussoft copy of the TDS certfificate o ifs shorsholders through emall registersd with the Company or the
Fegistror & Share Tronsfes Agents, M/s C8 Maonagement Services Pvt. Lid, post paymeant of fhe dividend, Shareholders will be
atle to dowrlood the 108 certificats fram the Income Tax Department’s website fftpsy/ /Incomataxindicsfiing govin (referto
Farm 2645,

» Appbcafion of TOE rote 5 subject to necessary verfication by the Company of the shareholder details os avaoilable in Register of
Members as on the Record Dote, and other documents avodloble with the Company  Registrar & Share Transfer Agants, b/s. T8
Manogameni SenicasBPut. Lid.

o Incoze TDE s deducted of o kighar rate, on aption (s sl availabbe with the sharsholdar to file tha refurm of Incormea and claim an
appropdate rafund

s Inthe evenl of any Incoms fax demand (ncluding infersst, penally, ete.) ardsing Irom any misreprasenialion, Nocouracy o
ormizgen of Infarmation provided by he Mamber/s, such Member/s will b responsible fo Indemnity the Company and alse,
provicle the Carmpany with all Information / documesnts and co-oparation In any appaliota procaeadings,

»  [his Communication s not exbaustive ond does not purport o be o complate analysis or Bsing of all potential fox consaguences
[ the matter of dividend payment, Shareholders should consult thelr tax advisars for reguisite aotion to be taken by them,

Members are requested to nofify immediately:
s TothelrDepository Parficlponts (DR in respect to thelr Bectronic Shore Account; and

o Tofthe Company af its Realsterad Office o to the Registrons and Shoare Tronsfes Agents (FTA) of the Company in iespact af thai
physical shore holdings 0 prescribed  Form Moo 1SR-1formal & ovailable on the website of the compony af
Rt ps:y fwwned narmadagelatines.com) guating thel folio numiber and enclosing the sell -ottested supporting decurment G) seil-
attestad copy of tha PAN cord and (1) cancelled chaqualsaf.

any change of address and also parficulas of their Bank Accounts viz, MName of Bank, Branch. complete oddress of the Bank and
Account Nurmber for printing the ame onthe Dividend Warrants o avold fraudulent encashment,

hemibers holding sharss In slectronic form are hereby iInformed that bank porticutarns registersd agalnst thelr respective depositony

accaunts will be used by the Company for payment of dividand, The Company o its Registrars cannal act on any reguast recaived

directy friom the Members holding shares in electronic form forany change of bank particukars or bonk mandates, Such changess are

o be advised only ta the Depositary Parficipant of the Members, Memibbers holding shares In physical form ond desirous of sither

registering bank particulars or changing bank pariculos already registered againgt thelr respective tallos for payment of dividend

areragussted fowrite totha Compary it Form Mo, 1537-1,

Further, to racabve tha dividend. If any on time, Mambars holding shares in physical form wha have not updated thelr mandate for

recealving the dividends directly in theair bank accounts through Electionic Clearing Senvdce or any other means ore raguested to send

the following documents rofha RTA - Mis, CB Monagement Servicas Pyvt, Lid,, before 158" Septembar, 2025:

I Farm Mo, 15R-1 duly filled and signed by the holdens stating their name, folio number, complete oddress with pin code, mokbie
nurmber ond following datai redoting o the bonk accountinwhich the dividendis to ba received:

Il Marmeof Boank and Bank Brandgh:

i, Bank Account MunrDer & Type aliotted by your bank after impéementaton of Core Banking Solutions; and

. 11-digit IF3C Code

v Peligit MICR Code,

vi.  Ongindl copy of cancelled chegue beanng the name of the Memiber or first holder, incose shares ane hebd jointly;

v, Sall-atlestad copy of tha FAN Card; ancd

viil, Self-offested copy of any documant (such as AADHAR Card, Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in suppot of fhe
addrass of the Member osregistered with the Cormpany

Furthier, please note that instructions, it any, olieady glven by Members in respact of shares held in physcal Tomm, will not be
automaticolly opphed fo the dividend paid on shares held In electronic fom

SEBI mandate on KYC Complionce:

SEBI vide its Circubor Mo, SEBYHO/MIRSC/MIRSDRTAMB/P/CIR/2021 /455 doted 3rd Novemioer, 2021 os amended, has mandated the
submission of Permanent Account Numbar CPANT by every participantin the securities market. Membars hodding shores In electronic
form ore therefore, reqguested o submit thelr PAN 1o their Depositony Poarficipants with whom they are maintaining thelr demat
occounts. Members holding shares In physical form con submit their PAN details to the Company or fo the Registrar & Share Traonsfer
Agents, M/s. CB Managemeant Services Pt Lid

fo pravent frouduisnt fransactions, members are advised to exercise due diigence and nalify The Company of any chongs in
adcrass or damise of any mambear as soon 05 passible. Members are also advsed nal 19 leave heir dermal occounis) darmont (o
Iy Perodic statement of haldings showld be obtalred fram the concarmed Depasitory Participant and haldings shoukd be verifiad,

Mon-Resident Indlan members are requested o inform the Company’s Registror and Shore Transfer Agants imrmediciely of:

a,  ohangsainthe residential status on retunm 1o india for permanant sellement; and
b, pomiculass of their Bank accaunt malntained in indic with complete names. branch, accaunt type. accaunt mo. and Godress of
e baek, it not furmished earfes,
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Information relating to unpaid or unclaimed dividends {Investor Education and Protection Fund):

Pursuont to the provisians of Section 208445 and 206C of the Companies Act, 1956 (Section 124 of the Componies Act, 2013). the
Company has fransterad the unpaid or unclalmed dividends upto the nancial years ended 317 March, 2017, friom time to time. 1o
the Irvestor Faducation and Protection Fund (IEFF) established urder Section 205C of the Act, In occordanges wifh the provisions of
Irvestor Education and Profection Fund (Uploading of Information regording unpaid and unciaimead amounts hing with the
companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has upleaded the datalls of unpaid and unclaimed amaunts lying with the Camzany as on
247 Seplember 2024 (date of st Annual General Mesting) on the website of the Mintstny of Corporate Aftales (IMCA). Mambes who
have not encashed thel dividend warrants are advised ta wiite to the Company immediataly clalming dividends declared by the
Comparny,

Adhering totha various reguirements set out In the Investor Education and Protection Fund Autharity {Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules. 20146 (Rules). as omended from fime fo time, the Company hos, daring fimancial yeor 2024-25, transfered o the |EFF
Authority all eguity shares of the Company in respect of which dividends for seven conseculive years or more remaining unpaid or
unclagimed as on the due dote of tronsfer. Membears may note that shares oz well gs uncloimed dividend fransferrad fo lEPF Awuthornity
can be claimed bock from fthem. Concerned members / Investors are advised to vislt the weblink:
hitp:/ fiepf.gov In/IEPFAfrefund itmil for lodging clalm for refund of shares aond / ordividends from the IEFF authority, InFormm Mo, IEPF-5
oz available onwww iepf.gowv.in,

SEBl mandate onissuance of securlties only in demat mode

26.

27,

28,

Tha Membars may furthar note thot Pursuant fa SEBl{omeandmeant) Regulafions, 2022 vio Notificotion doted 24th Jonuary, 2022, reod
with SEBI Cirgular Mo, SEBIFHOMIRSDMIRSD _RTABM/P/CIR2022/8 dated 25th January 2022, the listed companies afe reguired to
lzsue the securfias i dematenalised form only whils processing the requests for lssue of dupicots sscunties cerificate, Clalm from
Uncloimed Suspense Account, Renewal | Exchangs of securties cerificate. Endomsernent. Suo-division / Spiiffing of sacurities
certifficate, Consolidation of securitles cemiiootes/ follos, Tramsmisson, Transpasition, Alsg, In view of Ine Reguiation 40 of the SE6I
Listing Regulotions. os amended with effect from 2dth Januany, 2022 securities of lsted componiss con now be fronsferad anly Inthe
demat mods.

Mermbers halding shares in physcal form are therefore requested fo convert their holdings into the demot mode to ovold foss of
shares-of froudulent tfransactions and avaoll better investor senvicing. Accordingty; the members are requested to make sarvice
request by submiting a duly filed ond signed Form IBR-4, the format of which s avaoilable on the Company's website ot
http:/ fwerw narmadagelafines.com.in in fhe downlood section of investorinfomnafion.

Members can confact the Compary’s Reglstrar and Transter Agent, M/s. CB Managemeant Samvices Py, Lid, of na@cbrmsl.com for
cssistance inthis regord.

Details of RTA:

&9,

All the work related fo share regisiry in ferms of both physical and electronic, ars being conducied by Company s Registrar & Share
Transfer Agents, CB Monagement S=nices Privafe Limited, Rosal Court, Sth Floor, 20 5ir BN, Mukherjes Rood, Kolkofo-700001 Phane;
(03334071 4700, Emall; fad@chmsl.com.

Procedure for remote a-voling and e-veting during the AGM:

a0

3.

In compllonce with provisions of Sechon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companles (Management and
Adrministration) [ules, 2004 oz amended up-to-date, and Regulation 44 of the Securlties and Exchange Boord of Indlo (Listing
Cioligotions and Disclosure Reguiramenis) Regulations, 2015, the Company |5 pleoasad to offer e-voting faciihy fo the members to cost
heir voles slectanically al the 44" Annual Gensral Masling (AGSM) 1o be held on Mandeay, 227 Seotemban 2005 af 1100 am. The
Company has engoged the services ol Central Depository Services India Lid (CD5L) to provide remote e-voting focilities. The ramote
e-voling facility is availabie af the link www.evolingindia.com . Further, the company hos entared into an anangement with COEL for
conducting the AGK through WEBEX Meatings,

Tha Members can join the ESMAGM In the VC FOaVM mode 15 minutes bafars and after the scheduled ime of the commeancemsant
of the Meeling by fallowing the pracedurs menlionsd in the Molics, Tha facility of parlicipation af the ASM through VE A OAVM will e
rmode ovaillable lo alleast 1000 members on first coms first served bosis, This will nol meluds arges Shareholders (Shoreholders halding
2% of more shareholding). Promoters, institutional Investars, Directars, Key Monagearial Pemsonnal, tha Cholmesons of fhe Audit
Committes, Nomination and Remunaiation Committes ond Staketoldars Relatianship Cammittes, Auditors ete, who ara aliowed 1o
attend Ihe EGMAGM wilhaul resticlian on account of firsl came fis! sarnded basis,

The Company has fived Monday, 157 Septemboer, 2025 s the cut-off date for determining voting rights of shareholders entitied to
participote In the e vofing process, In this regard, your demat account/follo number has been enrclied by the Company for your
participation ine-voling on resclutions ploced by the Company on e-valing system.

The ramote e-voling focility will be available during the following period:
Commencement of remote a-voting End of remote e-vating
Friday, 19" September, 2025 af 10.00 a.m. Sunday, 21" September, 2025 ot 5.00 p.m.

During this pencd, mambers of the company may cast thelr vote electronically, The remote e-voting modutbe shall be disabled for
voting thareafter, Marmbers who have voted through Remicte e-Vating will ba aligible to aottend fhe AGM, Howewar, they shall not
ba allowad to cast thalr vore agaln during AGKM.

The voting rights of the members shall e In proporfion to thelr shares of the paid up equity share capital of the company as on
hWonday. 15" Septemier, 2025,
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The Boord of Directors of the compony has apoointed (W/s. Topon Bodkul and Associaltes), M Tapan Badku! Prochicing Cost and
hManogemeant Accountant (Mem, Mo, 23394), a5 Scrutinizer o scufinize the Remote e-vating process as well 0s e-vating process
during the AGM in a fair ond fronsporent manner and they hove communicoted their wilingness fo be appointed ond will be
avallabie forsame purpose.

The Scntinizer shall, Immediarely after the conciugan of vating at the AGM, unblack the votes cost through e=voting (l.e. votes cost
durlng the AGM and votes cost through Rermote e-Vating) and shall submit o consalidated Sorutinizer's Report of the total vofes cost
Im ferveur, againgt, abstained, if any, 1o the chalrman ar any person aufhonzed by Rirm, whio shall countersignad tha samea. Tha Rasulks
will e annaounced nof later fhan 2 working days from the conclusian of the AGHM. The result Seclared dlong with the Scoinlzer’s
Repor shall be uploaded on the webste of the company: www.narmicdagaeiatines.com, and also sholl be communicoted o BSE,
whare tha Comparny's eculty shores one istad and De made avalkabla on thalr wabsita,

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMEERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, AND JOINING THE VIRTUAL ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The Remote &-Voling pericd begins on Friday, Seplembear 19, 2025, ab 2:00 a.m. (15T) and ends on Sunday, June 21, 2025, ot 5:00 p.m.
(15T). The Remote e-Voling module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereatter. The Members whose names appedr in the Register
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date i.e. 15" September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in propodion to their share in the paid-up equilty share capital of the Company as offhe cut-off date.

The detalls of the process and manner for e-Voting ond joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders and Meambers holding
shares in dematerialized form

L sharsholders whohove alrecdy vated pricr fo the mesting date would not be enfitied to vote at the mesting venue,

Il Pursuont to SEBl Chroulor MNo, SEBIHO/CRDYCMDSCIR/P/2020/242 doled 09122020, under Regulafion 44 of Securifies and
Exchanga Board of India (Lsling Obdigotions and Disclosure Requiremanis) Regulations, 2015, lsted entities are requised fo
provide remote e-voting faclity to its shareholders. inrespect of all shareholderns’ resalutions. However, it has been observead fhat
the porticipation by fhe pubiic non-institutional sharehcidars/retal shoraholders s of o negligibie lewvel,

Curently, there are multiple e-vating senvice providers (E5Ps» providing e-voting focility to Bsted entities inindio, This necessitotes
registration on varous ESPs and maimtenance of multiple userDs ond posswiords by the shaneholders.

I order 1o increase the efficlency of the voling process, pursuant to o pubdc consultation, It haos Deen dacided to enable -
yoting to all the demat account halders, by way of a singée login cradential, through thesr demat accounts/ websites of
Depositonas Depositary Parficieonts. Demat account holdes would be abie fo cost thei vole without hoving to register agaoin
with tha ESPs, tharety, not only faciitating ssamiess authenfication but also enhancing ease and convanience of pafhcipating
Inevoting process,

In terms of the above mentioned circular, Shareholdes are odvised fo update their mobie number and emaod id in their Semat
occountsin order to occess e-Vobing focility
Therwaoy to vots electronically on CDSL ewvoting system consists of “Two Steps” which aremeantioned below:

Step1 Accessihrough Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voling system

Login mathad for Remote e-\Voting and |oining thea virtual meaeting for Indlvidual shareholders holding sacurifies in Demot
mode

Iy terms of 5261 circular no SEBLHOCFDCMD/CIR/F2020/242 doled Decamiper 2, 2020 on e-Voling facility proviced by
Ligled Companies, Individual sharehaldens halding securifiss in demal moda are aflowsd 1o vola through thair demal
account maintgined with Depositones and Depositony Participants. Shoreholdarsare advised to update their modbile numiber
and email ld in their demat occountiin order ho ocosss o-Voting facility.,

Login methed for Indivicu gl shareholdars holding securhies i Dematmode COELNSDL B glven beiow:

Type ol shareholders Login Method

IncEvidual Shorehoicans 10 Users who howve opted for COSL Eas [/ Eosiest facilty, oon logln through thelr exlsting user kd and
hotding securfies in password. Option wil be mode available o reoch e-Voling poge without any further
Damat micde with autherflcation: The usaers to logn o Eosi [/ Eosiest are requested o visth odsl website
CDSL Depository wiwow .caslindla.com ond click on login lcon & My EasiMew (Token) Tob.

21 Afier successful login the Eosl ( Easiest user will be oble fo see the e-oting option for eligibie
companies whore the e-voling is in progress as per the informotion provided by company. On
clicking the e~voting cption, the wer will be ale fo see e-Voling poge of the e-Voling sarvice
provider for casting your voia durng the rermote e-Voting pencd o jaining vidual mesting &
vioitng duning the meating. Acdifionally, there s also links provided o acceass the system of cll @-
Voting Sarvice Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voling service providerss' webslte
disactiy.

J I the uwser s not registered for EosifEosiest, opfion to register 5 ovallable of cdi webslte
www caslindia.com and click on fogin & My Easl Mew (Token) Tob and then click on reglstration
option,

4y Altarnatively, the user can directly ocoess e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Mumbar
ard BAN Mo, from o e-Voting link avollable on wwiw.cdslindlo.com, hame paga. Tha systam will
auhenticate the usar Dy sanding OTP on registerad Moblle & Emall s recorded In e Demat
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Account, After successiul authentication, user will oe oz fo see the e-Voling option whers the
svoting 5 in progress ond oo able o dirsctly occess the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers.

Indlividual Snareholdars 1
holding sscurlties in
damot mwcle with

NSDL Depasttary

2]

)

4

If you ore already registered for MSDL IDeds facility, pleaze vist e e Sanvices website of NSOL,
Opan welk brovieser by typing the followlng URL: htos:/ fesenvicesnsdl com either on a Personal
Computer or on o moblle. Once the home poge of e-Services s lounched, click on the
“Banaficial Crwner” leon undar "Login® which i ovaliable under ' [DsAS section. A naw scraan
will open, You will have fo enter your User ID and Password. Afrar successiul authentication, you
will be oble to ses eVofing services. Chok an "Acces: to eNoling " under e-Voling services and
v will e obde 10 see e-Voting poge. Click on company rame of evoting senvice provicar
name and you Wil be re-directed 1o e-Voling service pravider wabsife for casting your vate
durning theremote e-\oling penod of joining vifual measting & voting during the mesting,

It the wser & not regstered for [DeAS ebandices, option fo register & availoble ot
hHps/ fasarvices necl.com,  Select “Reglster Cnling for 1DeAS “Poral or click at
https: fesarvices nedl.comy) Secure Web/ldeosDireCReg.isp.

Vigt the a-valing website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the folowing URL
Fttps: /P evoting.nédl.comy elther on a Pertonol Computer or on a mobile. Once e home
page of e-Voling system 5 lounchad, click on the lcon "Login® which i ovallable unds:
‘Sharehoider Mamizer saction, A naw screen will open, You will have 1o enfer your Liser D (e,
veslr sixtesn dight demat accaunt numie fald with NSDL), Posaward/ QTR and a Verlcation
Code as shown an the screan, After sucoesstul authentication, you will be redirected to NSEL
Depository site whereln you con ses eVoling poge. Click on company nams of e-voling senice
provider noma and you wil b redirected fo e-Voting service providen website for costing your
viote duling he remoba e-Voting perod o jolning virfual meeting & voling duing tha meaeting,
Faor OTP based legin you can click an hitps:/feservices.nsdl.com/Secure
Weeh/evolingevatinglogin.sp, You will hove toenter your B-cEigil CF 10 B-cligit Cliant Id, PAN Ne.,
Warification code and generate QTR Enter thie OTF recelvad on registered amall id/mabie
rumber and chck on login, After successiul authantication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you con sse e-Voling poge. Click on company nome of a-Voling
sefvice provider name arnd you will ba re-directad o e-Voling service provider website for
castirg your vole durng the remote e-Voling pencd or joining virfual mesting & voting during
fhe meeting

Inefiviciacl Sqoreholdsrs
(holding securities n
clEmat moce)

login theough their
Depository Pordicipants (DF)

You can alzo login using the login credaentials of your demat account through your Depository
Parficipant registerad with NSDL/CDSL for e=Vioting facllity, After Successful login, you will be
abie fo see e-Voting optlon, Once you click on e-Viating optlan, you wil be redirected to
MEDLACOSL Depositary sita after successiul authenticatlon. wheraln you con 88 aVating
feqature. Click on campany nome or e-vVoling sendce providers nome ond you will be redirectad
fo eVating service praviden website for costing your vote durlng the remote e-voting pened ar
|@lring virtual mesting & voting durng the maating.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User D) Password ane odvised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
avalobie of obove mentioned website,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securlties in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.

CDSLand NSDL

Logintype

Helpdesk details

Insinviciunl Shorehoiders
Folding securities in Demet
e withy CDOSL

Mermbersfacing any technicalissue m login can contach CREL helpdesk by sending areguest af
nelpdesk evofinp@odsindio.comorcontact attoll free no, 18002109911

Incfvicual Shoreholders
holding ssclites in Demoat
rrcois with NSDL

hMeamiers facing any technlcal Bsue inlagin concontact NSOL helpdask by sending o reausst of
evating@nsdl co.norcall ot - 022 - 4886 Y000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Step 2:Access through CDSL e-Voling system in case of shareholders holding shores in physical mode and non-individual
shareholders in demot mede,

I Lagin Mathod for shareholders ather than Incividual sharehaiders holding securitias in damal moda and sharzholdens haiding

securities inphysicalmads

I, Thasharebalders should log on o the evoling website waww evolingindia.com.,
i, Clickaon Sharehoiders” moduls.

i, Mowentaryour LisarD:

g, ForCDEL: 16 cigits benaficiary 1D,
b, ForMNSDL: 8 Charocter DP ID followed oy 8 Digits Client 1D,
. Sharehotders holding sharesin Physical Form shiould enter Follo Numbear registenad with the Campany.
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v, MNextenterfhe imoge Verdficotion as displayed and Click on Login,

v, If you ore hobding shares in demat forrn and hod logged on to www.evotingindio.com and voted on an earlier e-voting
of any company, than your axisting possword isto be usad.

vl I youare a fisst-time user follow the steps given below:

For Mambears holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physlcal Form

P Enfar your 10 digit alpho-numearic "PARN issuad by Income Tax Department (Applicabie far both
demot shareholders as wallas physicol shoreholdens)

» Shorehotdens who hove nol updoted Iheir BAN wilth the Compary/Depository Partcipant are
raquested to use the seguence number sent by Company (RTA of contact Cormpany /RTA,

Bividend Bank Endar tha Dividend Bonk Detalls or Dafe of Birth {n dd/mmdyyyy formot) os recorded In your
Diestails OR dernat account arin the company records In crderto login.

Date of Bt (DOB) o If both the details are net recorded with the depository or company; please enter the
rmemberid / falionumberin fhe Dividend Bonk details fiskd,

Wl
Wil
WL

=

2l
EAR
ZlIl.

XY,

FAYA

34,

Atterenterng these detalls appropriately, click on "SUBMITT tab.

Shioreholders holding shares in physical form will then divectly reach the Company sslacton soreaen, However, shareholdens holding
shares in demat form will now reach Posswiord Creafion’ menu whernsin they are required to mandatonly enfer theirlogin posswordin
the new password feld, Kindy note that this passward s to be also used by the demat holders for vating far resclutions of any other
company on which they org aligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through COSL platfarm, If is stranaly
recommendad not to shore your password with any othsr person and fake utmost cane fo kesp your possword conficential,

Far shoraholdars holding shares in physical farm, the detalls can e used only for a-voting on the resalutions contained i thisMotica.
Click anthe EVEN for the retevant < Company MNama: on which you choose ta vate,

O the voting poge, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIFTION " and against the same the option "YESND” far voting. Salact the optlon
YES or MO as desired, The option YES implies that you assent fo the Resclution and option N2 implles thot you dissent fo the Resolution,

Click onthe "RESOLUTICNS FILE LMK If vou wish toview the enfire Resalution detalls.

After salecting the resalution, yvou hove decldaed fa vate on, click on "SUBMIT™. & confimation box will be displayed. if yvou wish to
confirmyaurvote, click on "CR”, elsa to change yourvote, click on "CANCEL™ and accardingly mindify your vate,

Cnceyou "CONFIRM ™ vour vote on the resalution, you will not be allowesd to modify yourvots,
You con aiso foke a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here fo print” option on tha Voting poge.

[f o demaot account halder has forgotten the login password fhen Enfer fhe Lser ID and the imoge verfficotion code ond cick on
Forgot Password & enter the detalls as promipted by the system.

Thare |5 alscan optlonal pravisian fa uplood BRPOA Ifany uploaded, which will be made avallable to scrutinizer for verfication,

Faeility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote Voling only

s Moreindividuad shoreholders (e, other thon Individuats, HUF, MR efc)) and Custodiaons are raguirad 1o log an fo
whwiw anvatinglindla.com and reglster thamsalves Intha "Caorporates” module,

s A scanned copy of the Regisfrafion Form bearing the stomp and sign of the enfity showld be emailed to
heipdesk. evoting@cdslindio.com,

e Allerrecaiving the lagin delails a Complionce User should be created using the admin login and password, The Camplionoes
Usar wolsd e absle 1ok the accountis) lorwhich they wish 1o vole on,

The st of accounts nked in the loginwill e mapped outomatically & con badelink Incose of any wrong mapping
It is Maondatory that, o sconned copy of the Boord Fesolution and Power of Attomey (FOA) which they hove ssued in favour of
the Custodion, if any, shoukd be uplooded in PDF format in the system for the serufinlzes to verfy the same.

s Altermnatively Non Individusl shareholders are requirsd mandatory 1o send the relevant Board Rasclution, Authorty letter etc,
topether with attested specimen signature of the duly authorzed signatory who org authorized fo vote, to the Scrutinizer and to
the Comparny aft the emall address viz; nglibp@rediffmall.com  (designoled emall address by company), if they hove voted
from individual taly & not uploaded sarme in the COSL e-voting systarm for the sorutinizer to verlfy ihesame.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedura forattending maeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM issame as the instructions mentionad above for e-
vaing.

2. Thelink for VC/OAM to ottend meeting will be avollable where tha EVEN of Compony will be disployed ofter successful login as
par the instructions mentioned above for e-vofing.

. shoreholdsn who hove valed (heough Remote e-voling will be sligible tooltend the meeling. Howsawver, they will nat be sligibie
frovote ol the AGM/EGM,

4 Bhoreholders are encouraged fo join the Meeting through Loptops / Pods forbetterexperienca,

5. Further sharehalders will be required fo allow Camera and wse Infermat with a good spaeed o avoid any disturbance during the
meaeting.
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f.  Please nate thot Parficipantz Connecting from Mobiie Devices of Takdets of through Loptop connecting vino Mobis Holspot may
svpansnce Audin/Video loss dus to Fluctuation in thelr rsspectvea nehwork, it s therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-E ar
LAN Connaction tomitigate ony kind of oforesaid glitches,

7. Only those sharsholders, who are present in the ASKEGM through VEIOAM faclity and have not casted thal vote on the
Fesolutions through emote eMoling and are othenwise not barred from dolng s, shall be eligible fo vote through eVoting
systemn avallable during the EGR AGM,

8. IfanyVotesare cast by the shareholdes through the e-voting availaoble dunng the EGM/ AWM and if the same sharehoiders hove
not paricipated In the meeting through VC,/O8WM facility, then the voles cast by such ehareholders may be considesed invalid
as the faclily of e-woting durdrg the meeting s avallable only o the sharehoidens attanding the meeting.

Moltes:
In cose the memberns hove any queres or isues regarding ottending AGWM & eMaling from the CEAL e-Voling System, you con wilte on
ermol to helpdesi avoting@odsindia.com o comtact at toll freeno. TEO021 09911,

7. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS TO REGISTER THEMSELVES AS SPEAKER DURING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

1. The Membes who would ke to exprass Hhelr views o ask guestions during 1he meaeting may reglster themsealves o5 a speaker by
sending their reguedt In odwance mentioning thair name, demat occount numberfAokio number, emdail id, mobils number of
rnanima.patkar@narmadagelatings.com onorbefors 147 Septernber, 2025,

2. Those WMemberswho have registered themselves os a speaker will only be cllowed to exprass fhelr vienws,/ask guastions during the
migeting. The company resarves the nght fo restict the number of speakers depending on the availabiiity of fime for the Annual
Generl Meeting.

. The Members shoukd aliow to use Camena and arereguired to use Infermal with 0 good speed to avoid any disturbonee during
the meeting.

38, PROCESS FORTHOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE E-MAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY /DEPOSITORIES.
. For Physical shoreholden- please provide necassany details like Falio Nao., Mame of sharehokder, sconned copy of the share
certificate (front and bock), PAN (saif -attested scanned copy of PAN cardg), AADHAR {sall- attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Cord) By ermail 1o Company al ngiibpd redifftnail.eam (RTA amalid ol fad@ctmsl.co,
2. ForDernot sharehaldars - Plaase update yvouramdllid & rmobite ro, with yourrespactive Depositony Parficipant (DPY
A, Forindividual Demat sharebioidens — Pleoss updote your emaodl id & mobiiis no. with your respeciive Depository Participant
(DPF) which is mandotany while 2-\oting & joining virtual meetings through Depositary

If you hoives any queries or Bsues ragarnding atffending AGM & eMating from tha CDEL a-vioting Systam, you can wilte an emall to
helpdesk evoling@odsindio.com o contact of toll free na, TB0021 09911

All grievances connected with the fociity for wating by electonic means may be oddressed o M Rokesh Dabvi, 5 Manager, (CDEL, )
Central Depositony Services (ndia) Umitsd, A Wing, 25th Floor, Maragthon Futurex, Mafatial Mill Compounds, M M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Murnbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk evoting@cdsindio.com orcoldl foll freeno. 180021 09911,

By Order of the Board of Drectors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahima Patkar
Compony Secretary

Flace ! Jabalpur
Digte : 13" August, 20258

Ragistered Office:
CARANVS, Roorm MNo. 28
15, Civil Lings, Jabalpur - 482 001
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102¢1) OF THE COMPAMNIES ACT, 2013
item No. 4

The foliowing Staterment sat out all matenial facts relating to the Ordinary Business (Seeckal Resotution) meantioned in he gccompanying
Metee:

M 5 Annarmalad (DN 0000138 1), aged abouf 78 vears, is a Bochelor of Technotogy (Chem Engq.). He has vost expenance in succeassiully
monaging Chemical Industries over o pencd of S decodses, In 1973 he wos oppointed as the Manogling Direcior of Pandion Chemicols Lid
({PCL), whichi the largest producer of Potassium Chilorate inindia.

He ls also on the Board of Indla Gelatine and Chemical Umited, Plonaer Jellcs India Private Umited, Sree Ayyanar Spinning and Weaving
Mllls Frivats Limited, Pandion Chamicais Umited, Mapoo Industides Limited, The Meatal Powder Company Limited, Asio Matchas Company
Frivate Limited, Ashok Matchas and Timter iIndustries Private Umited, Niranian Sankar Enterpelses Private Limited, Plonasr NF Fargings India
Priviate Lmitad,

Ha does not hold omy shares of the Company ason 31° March 2025,

As W, S, Annarmialod hos attained Iha oge of 78 yeass, thersfare in complionce with he provisions of Reguiation 17014 of Securities and
Exchangs Boord of India (Listing Obligatons and Gisclosure Requiremenls) Reguiotions 2015, members approval is raguirsd by passing a
Speciol Resolution, tarre- appaintment of M 5. Annarmalal os o diector iable fa retire by rotation,

Tha Board at its meeting held on 24" May, 2025 s of the opinlor that Mr. S, Annamala bos wost knowledge and vaned Industry experlence
will b2 of greatvalue o the Company and hos recommandad the Resolution af ttem Na, 4 of this Nofice as a Special Resoluflon (since M. 5.
Annmamalal hos affeined the age of 78 vears) relafing to the appointment of Mr. 8. Annamalal os a Mon-Executive Non-independent
Diractor llable to retire by rotation, for vour opprowal,

w5 Arnarnalal s nat disoualifisd from baing appointed as a Dirsctor in karmg of Section 164 of the Companiss Act, 2013 and have given
his consant 1o act os Direciorof tha Company.

The other detalls of Mr 5. Annamalal interms of Ragulation 36(3) of the sting Regulation and Secretarnial Stardard 2 afe annesed 1o this
Maotfice.

Excepl M 5 Maheswaran and Me S, Annamalc, nore of ihe alhar Dirsc o, Key Monagearnial Pemsonnel of (he Campany of 1hair rélalives
e in oy way, concemed o interested in the Resolution set out atiterm Mo, 4 of the MNotice,

ltem No. 5

The foflowing Staternent set out all material focts relating to the Special Business (Ordinary Resclufion) menticnad in the occompanying
Molice:

Pursuan fo the provisions of Regulation 244 of the Securifies and Exchange Baard of India {Usting Obligations and Disclosura Regulrameanits)
Reguloticns, 2015 ("5EB| Listing Regulations®) and provisions of Section 204 of the Act.and Rule § of the Compaonies (Appointrnent and
Remunemation of Mancgeral Pesonnel) Rules, 2014 (" Rules”), fhe Audit Commiites and the Boord of Directars af thelr respective meetings
held on Moy 24, 2025, have approved and recommeanded the appainfrment of Dr, Asim Kumor Chottopodiyay (FCS Mo, 2303, TP Mo, 880,
Paar Review Na. 6375/2025). a Practicing Company Secretary o the Secretarial Auditor of the Company on the followirg terms and
conditions:

a. Termofoppointmant Foratermot 5 (Fve) conssoutive yeors from Aol 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030

b, Proposed Faas; At a Remuneraticn as mutuaily agreed between the company and the Sacratarial Auditor plus applicoble faxes and
reimbursemeant of out-of-pocketexpansas for a tarm of five consecutive financial yeds commanding frorm the financial vear 2025-24
to Fnanclal Yeor 2029-300.e. . from Aprl 1, 2025 to March 31, 20307,

. Hosi of recommendotions: The recommendations are based on the fulfilmeant of the sfigibiity critedio & gualification prescribad
under the Act & Rules mode thereundes and SE8 Listing Regulotions. Whike recommending the Boord of Diecios hove also
considerad, expenence of the Individuol, copability. independsnt assessment, oudlt experence and oo evaluation of the quality of
auditwork done by birmin the post

d, Credentials: D6 Asim Kumar Chaoltopodnyay (FC5 Mo, 2303, CP No. 880, Peer Review Mo, §375/2025), o Practicing Compary
Sacratory, B0 seasoned professonal with over 40 years of rich expanance, spacioiizing n secratanal audits and corparate
comphance acros g divenss range of Industrias.

Academically, he distinguished by aformidable suite of gualfications ncluding M.com, LLB.. Ph.D. (Applied Econamics), FCMA, FCS,
and Dn.Lit.

D, Asln Kumar Choftopodhyay has given his consent to act os Secretaral Auditers of the Cempany and conflmed that his
appolntment, if approved would bewithin the prescrbad limits and that ha & not sgualified to be appointed oz Secratarcd Auditor
Interms of provisions of the AT & Rules mads thereundier and SEBI Listing Regulatians.

The Board of Directors of the Company recammeands the resolution set out af fem Mo, & for approval of the Membess as an Ordinary
Fesciution.
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Mone of the Director, Key Monagerial Pessonnel, ar their respective miotives are, In any way, concemed or interested, financiclly or
otherwise, inthe sald resalution

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Normada Gelatines Limited

Mahima Patkar
Cormpany Secratarny

Ploce: Jabaipur
Diote ; 137 August, 2025

Registered Office:
CARAVE. Room Mo, 28
15 CivilLines, Jabalpur - 482001
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% NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

ANNEXURE

Details of Directors seeking apoointment ond re-oppointment at fhe 447 Annual Sensrol Mesting
[Pursuant 1o Regulation 3643) of the SEB (Lsting Obligalion and Disclasure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Sscetardal Stondard 2 on

Genearal Mastings)

Hoame of Director

Director ldentilloation Numibes

Dasignation/cotegory of the Directar

Date of Birth

Date of Appolintment [/ Re-oppointment In AGKM
eucEticotion

Expertise in specific funciional areas and past experence

Terms and conditions of re-eppainimsant

Datails of rermuneration iast drown (FY 2024-25)
Detalis of remuneration scught to be poaid
Directorship In other companies including
aculty ted companias (excluding

forelgn companies as on the dote of this notice

“Mermibarships / Chalrrmonships of
commitieas of oiher companies
{excluding foreign companies)
Az an date of this Notlce

Shoreholding

Lsted antity fram which tha directar

hios resignad fram Directoship in the
past three (3) yaars

Mo, of Board Mestings oftended
Interse relafionship with other Director &
Key Monagenal Personnet

5. ANNAMALAI

CO00 1381

Chalman, Mon-Executive, Mon-Independent Diractor
26001947

14,07 2023

Bachselor of Technology (Chem, Engg.)

50 years of experence In managing Chemical Industies over a
period of 5 decodes. In 1973 he wos appointed as the
Manoging Director of Pandion Chermicals Lid (PCL), which s the
torgest producer of Polassiurn Chilorate Incindio.

Directar liabls tarel e by rolation

Sliting fees: ¥ 1,460,000/

Sitting feas as approved by the Boord of Directors
India Gelatines and Chemicals Limited
Pandian Cheamicals Limited

The hMetal Powder Chamicals Limited

Fiaresr Jalics ndia Private Limited

Ashok Matches and Timber Industries Umited
Asic BMatches Company Private Limited

Grea Syyvanar Spinning and Weaading Milis Pyt Lid,
Fiareer NF Forgings Indic Private Limited

¢, Miron|onsonkar Ertarprizes Private Limited

10, Mepeoo Industries Limited

1. Morminotion & Remunaration Committes: (MembDear)
India Selating cnd Cheonicals Limited

£ cnTiEn R a0 i B o=

2, CER Commitras: (Chadmman)
India Gelating and Chamdcals Limited

M
il

Sout of &
M 5 Maoheswaran - Brother of Mr S, Annamalai

'The abova Includes Mamibeships/Chalrmanships of only Lsted Companles.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25



-¢ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Information ot a glance
5r. No. Paorficulars Details
1 Date and fime of AGM Monday, 22nd September, 2025, of 11.00 a.m. {I5T)
2 Modes of Conduct Video Conferencing (WCTHOther Audio-Visudl Means (O8M)
3 Link for Participating In the meeting whnw. svotingindio.com
throwgh WV A {pleose refer e-voling procedure specified in Motice)
4 Contact detalls of CDAL for assistance Memibes can cannact withy;
befara or durdng the AGM M, Rakeash Dobl, Sr. Manoger, (CDSL)
ol helpdesk eveling@odsindio.com or call 1ol free no, 1800 21 09911
& Record date far Final Dividend Monday, 1510 September, 2025
] Dividend poyment date Affar 25rd September, 2025
ki Cul-off date for e-Voling Mancay, 151 Seplember, 2025
8 e-Yoting start dote ond time Friday 19th Sepfemier 2025 from .00 om.(5T)
9 e-Veting end date and time Sunday 215t September, 2025 1l 5,00 p.m, (1ST)
i Link to register E-mall address to receive notice whwiw. chsl comy/green.php
12 Date, E-rall address fo submit the form for Onoor before 15t Saptember, 2025 #ill 500 2., (ST
TDE axempiion
13 Fengistrotion for Speaker Shoraholcer Send e-mail to mahimo.patkar@narmadagelatings. com an or bafoe
|4th Septemiber 2025,
14 Mame, address ond contact delais of CB Management Sendces Pyt Lid
Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) Rosal Court, 5th Fioor, 20 Sir RN, Mukhereas Road, Kolkata - 700001
Emnall: ro@cbmsl.com
15 Live webcost of AGh woenw evolingindia.com
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Protection of Environment and Promotion of Literacy



Narmada Gelatines Limited
Caravs, Room No. 28, 15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482001




